o8 OHOMO 2019
UIBLITIHS M08 2019
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Sri Lanka
Council for Agricultural
Research Policy

3 o MBMLID shedesn oSS cemnd
@ 6evmiens aleUF T S TTUIIEF S Q\&TETe0SH F6vLl
SRI LANKA COUNCIL FOR AGRICULTURAL RESEARCH POLICY






B o211 2028250882 83868 o5 29232325573 23297
D882 782D 2019

Sri Lanka
Council for Agricultural
Research Policy

B o211 2028250892 3868 o5 292323255753 23297
114/9, 868S>® ®:9
G2NED 07,

@ Ro2»2d



395

QU oot 3
B@BEND G ...ttt ettt bbb 3
@BZIZE) 1 vvrnrernessesse it s ss st S SRR 3
& oz 22820892 38605860 35335353 2380900 BE@ER ..vvvvorveeerreerrreeereeeeeieeein: 4
23292 233325 @GFEIEGCS 23I@IBZND G = 2019 .o 5
& Goz 20282892 3868 en 3833535 232168 DE® 2IEISEISCS oo 11
232022323 BC5I BB DIBZNID .....ooooveeereeesreeereeees s 12
CEZDDDGEEIGES DIBZIID ...eoeeeeeeseeseeeseeeseeersesseese e sseeseeesesesese s se et esesasesese s se et seesaeesesersereens 15
2019 D238 BE & G0z 2aB2nEIz) B3EG B 3532535 25560 265128 ....... 17
228278925) BEGIEBED 2)EDBIIZDCGDCS......eeoeeeeeeeeeeeseeerereese e eeee e ees s ees s seeeeenee 35
D152 DE1S BGLTEEDES ZIED ...oovveoveeeeeeeeeeereeereeiee s 39
BOGICE BIEIBD .ovvvreerrirriieiiss ettt 41
@225)8) 23D23253 B30DEEIBICH .vvrvvveerervererrreeeeseseeiesessssseeseeseee s eees s esen e 42
& Goz 202820892 8E6EBEn 353535 23IGD IKIBY ..vvvveerrveeereeerereirrrrerrnenes 45
BG83 230DERNB @E23% 83928589753 ZES EBBD  -2019...oeooeoeeeeeeeeeeee e 45
& Gz 2282089z 38eBen 953535 83160 2B @ EBRECS ..nvvvvvvrvveerrrerrenes 49
ZNADDCEDIID ...ttt 52



et

& @026 23@229-28:8T2m 830DED 2105 23208325 2O D2 S IEeI e3an
2302310 290282928825 238605885, 230DED2 2389 2DB29086 B3I cs253
& 5328386@

6®e®»do

2832359753 23829322005, 23292520 83,2930, 23OD IV e O G, aIesIBEBaS5 8320
21038 2B 2a82:6F 29 23860528.85, 230DBERD 2 2389 DA% 2922529
23008020 2820180 2007 6651928 8@ 2302325 23880.

QRB®

1 92 9EHHGS: 2aB2189% 3868w, t3:dENHE %) HEDIBBIEHES 5HB%
230080 9RHIZ 6B EKHB BB®

2 9% 9EWIS: 55z 2382892 386 B8en 3INBG BE N8B DG 830DEVBES
30EVBS BHES

3 9% QRIS 63T 280@r5)83cs 38eEB e, 2B3:DENB) & KIEDIBIBIEE HHBIBDES
282259282253 2936 )1 283@

4 35 9RESIG: 68 BenIBBIGHB) B)E BDETD) 278N D $$BO 3OERBG
58O

5 95 QRWWES: K% 82089 BEeBen, B8.AEAH )1  5)6DIBI3EH
157883 S e00s 27 215D B350 BDENHB BE®

6 D5 9IS B2 B2 8Dz BEGEBED BINBIBO 628D 28123BS dDed B Foznd
282592 3868 en 35232535 2320160 BB N8B DB K23B3e8DB 535
BE®




@ o™ ®aIB8mbdwm sbBedssn HSH 53ed OB

1. 282089 386iE8en, 23:DENHS &1 BIDBHSEHE 53 dBFOSDGB €6 238
OVAIC)

2. 358325 230DERB) B BBYCS 23253853 S ©B@ 23ee) 28282 3868 en
) B)DBWO &R ENPST BE®

3. %5182 ®B2n&9m 38ecBen ) %EDIBIBeH 3INB6E (Dewsrsidwm )
525358602 282520 DB Eggen BBO.

4. 2028289 230DED %O 832303 DO 231 @NE, 3OB B BERE 9EEO @) 8325
8 3&ei8en 3DENHE BBS.

5. 639 ®@D06® 3&6EBen, 2830:08N® %)) HOBWEEHEHS 832258255 296 O 3eH)
SIS BIIE, EBCs 236 2553z DD 23%EIE D 3DERN LIS BE®

6. %5182 B3EGEBER, 230DERNB %) HHEDIBIBIEE DRSNS 832 PISHBDDE BB
2pEI7 8005 29 P ANBD

7. 5% 2850887 3&86EBen, t3:d8NB) %1 HEdDIBIBIL DREsOHB D519
BE® ) 15083 BE® 30BIH BE®

8. 553z 230DERNL B1BIC BBYGS L3IBIBT WS HBD 2een) ¢ Foz 2aB2IED%
3E63Ben 3BIBBIE 2329160 $633E32 85D KB5S BB



&%) 31D HDEEES SIDIE®D6T - 2019

1. & Gozn 2820882 88ecBen 3BIBBSA 2320160 8350723753 2rDI8cs 8. 8. Boed3
&8 9B ®?

2. 8280, §19cs 8T 2Og52), B 839353 230DEDHI, DIB@IE® 2326 BDS )
B34 230853 230DERNL FDIBDBeKEE 4BeE® FHO (228 BB ED) DI S,
D). ded. s x5 & BT BB

3. @eC o0 B®OIS  @IDBoRGE D)  IEFRI®ICEE, GRB  JBRBBSE
623:85)602555)6d #5238 DI WBE 6297512652 ABR@?

4. 2880 6223856953560 3B SHHE,  D18i DAED. 9. DAED.
JSemIB BB

5. 97 2.058e% ©623:8DeOBRED), IBe8m BodrwiBen XHSE (3EecBen,
2532325 ) 230DERD ), A#D8cs 623 DO, . DTS @B

6. 920503, #983cs, 3. Ded. D). eFeserg B

7. 5782 8324 2893253 88 eSBEn %) 230DEND) B6c3IBBIEHBIGE Bec3TeSs B2
B5EE (BEGEBED ) 230DERND) DB DD, DO. 8. B55E38 @B @?

8. &3. #8. 8. enIFNBISed B. OF. 8. B 301 DN BENE WRDED. ®ed%HGDY
OB ®)H

9. Snew JED JersrEneds, 23B8E® BAe, 2B8ES BD sy FABGEIKEE
©251580) 26970285, @57D2803 ©I8 € 62825252652 BB

10. ©83625)I81®, 3@ 886cB8en $rEMEE, BecsINs B82S (36 3E6EBeR), 8@
eedexs 8. & ©endERNH @%5Ss

11. 51520 Deisy 816 23%133%53 1018 &, D). §RD16%S OBH@?

5



12. 6253 38 GESBED ISDHBIGES 2RB2B D8 DE. DS, 625, 82D EDD BB

13. 622515 D13D233¢5 267 HNHDS HHGS 230DERN B A@ BB 2B (D BE) . H®.
380 B33

14. & Goz 2827892 3&638en 3BBSSA 23160 6EMO/ $82B 410180 6255,
©508215DS @B@) (2019 6BRASGDIB £30 83 e25390)

15. & Goz) 2028208920 386d8en 3833535 232160 6EHS/ #B2B D218 6.
B. 38. 35802 @B (2019 253 £30 62831 PE ez3d0)

16. 6§ Go20) 228201592 3&eBen 3253232558 23207160 6EES/ $BB 52155 DOC
&S B@) (2019 622398 £30)



DR 9%
QR o2k QR @R Q2 Selells QR QR QR B @R
@6 5 @16 @6 o5 @16 BELR | QSRR o @16 o @16 WER | RE PPCRR 8
DR DR
Seglelv] QUL Seglolv] QUL Q2 QUL QR QUL QUL | RERPIIER?E@
QRKRIK | POWER | QRRIY | PO B ER | POWEIR o5 @16 W ER | HOELR eslele L
QU QU @R QU QUL @R QU @R QU SCoRP?
$OWER | POPEeR PR | HPOPRR | POPER PR | HOWE PR | POPRMR | QR e X 9
PR
@R @R @R @R Q@R QR QR @@6@ QUL | @OCICLFRO
Scfou= B @6 o5 @16 o @16 B @16 o5 @16 WELR | QRKRZ | POWELR | DR NQCRLR S
CAelelclele]
@ QR (2
X X X X X X X X WBER | (LE QYRR %
FE&EOOE
ORI DR eRYeE
@R QUL @R Selells QUL Selels QR QUL Q@R R RRLE
Scfou= B @R WER | QRRZL | DWER | QKL @16 @16 @16 PR €
@R @ @ @R | RROPRRR%RS
X X X X X o5 @16 @16 W@ WER | RO PYCRR I4
&R
QR @R QR @R R QR QR QR QR peow
wEle| wEe| wEe| ®Eik| ®ek| wEe| wEe| ®ee| ®Ee| QEYeR| |
6LLL VL 6L0LSL 6L°60°LL 61L°80°0¢ | 6L°L0°LL 61L°90°8L 6L°90°Lc | 617091 6L°E0VL
CRRP | CEFPY | CRRP | CEFY | CERP | EEFP CRRPY | @ERP @Esp §
(CACRT44 «E ree (CACR X414 @ ¢ee @@ lee @ 0¢e &@E6le| &8l (CACHA X4 @< | &oR

CWEIR (FOREPCECH (RN @RFP HIOEITE &R CRE




OE (2O (@R * 0E e X
DR
QR eRlel\
WElR | QR x * x x x x | POReRE| 9l
ORE | ORI cJcleAelee
@R | Wlow| low &9 @
WER | QRRE | QRKY x x x x x «| POtk Sl
‘P
2 C(TsRR
QR R QR @R R CR
BElR | WER| Wk e * x x x v| PRROQER| vl
(ROROER
@42 @R @R @R @R ‘R R
wele | ek wEkR| ®Ek| 2w x x x v | o woetR | €l
olEge @
@ @2 @ @42 @4 @42 R e
wele | ek welkR| ®ek| ®Ee| wEw x x v | o woetR | 2l
OEE DR
QUL B0 @R @R @R @R 10w QR @Ol @@
POBER | QRKRY @6 @l @6 @6 QeRRY(L @l X @ PYCRR Ll
QR @R QR @R QR @R @R @R @R | @RI ® @
5 @16 B @16 5 @6 B @16 5 @6 B @16 WER | BER WELR | R (RS e ol
(@ OULCLHRO
@R @R @R @R @R @R @R @R @R WE@CH
BER | WER| WER| WER| WER| HEkw wele | weElR B ElR PQCRIRE 6
6L°LLVL 6L°0L°SL 6L°60°LL 61L°'80°0C | 6L°L0°LL 6190°8L 6L°s0°'LZ | 6L°V09L 6L°E0VL
CERY | CERPY | CEFRP | CRFRP | CEFPY | eEFRP CERY | CRFY | CEFRP e
&LEee| KERVeZ| &XE€Eee| (@ iee «Elee| & oce «LEo6le| @8l «ELLe @ | oR




232897 233325 © BN RGS A.eSSd 2019

2019 &&38cs 1) 2320 23291 AL.eID® M)A 3BDB G&. 2019 Desedes & 83601 BrEH
DEFNEEES 83801383 S) 6328 D8 8. 8. HotdE DI BH® WIEH WE
IS 2019 YB3 @18365 ez 2829160 6EWODSHI Pocs DIBE 623, 6D
OB 5. 2019 4 830 cces®DE ezidr s BE #9DEE 6. B 3B, p®SEBoen
OBB®) 2132 eFNEEE 6EMODSHI Ds.

w05 7 200572 E8% 299D - 2019

2019 88cs B 9BIBBSE 2329169 W enr) 61 WEDBNWE e HIID (AMC) 8823 @G
) 382336506 WE1ER L3OVBR D 23120Dedr BB esenr A.eddO By 3B5DB =8,

5O IS BICS 299 d.e5D® 2pozncs 8320 ¢S
57 58 59
10.04.2019 16.08.2019 14.10.2019
#D:8c 283 A28, §eE
©282%)2252652%) %) @233 %) \ \ \
(832£)223253) 2$®I2)2570(5C5
@018 1896 | 65580 @519r8¢,
©2d25)5)6529) 22828® B, J J J
(230@7882) Sienen DD
&e3655
#D:8cs D). DO. | BerTs sz
8. 553638 X563 (38638 en
(280@7282)) ) 230DERNB) 251532
25328 2323253 \ v \
3E6EBen 60
230085
B36SIEBIIBDHBIS
2688 6:3658) dnenn 328,
228588, 661385 v
LIRS
e ed 3. BOBBBS DHenz,
B®3E ®HDE, 228289, Beenesd
D:8@38® 1 628 \/ 2O1eR v
23008 ess&cs
&®I125)2520(53C5
®. D). G ** | Dens) B8,
%8280, 66335 v V
®&TRHB

** 26475 6236858 @053 605653



85)162558@

1987 o2 47 285 & Gozon 20282015882 3&6iBen 3BIBBIE 2801 BHD DEIBO
BBOB 88O 2BWE® B0k 50653 1987 6223 @DE 22 dm &5 & Gozn
22850892 38ccBen 95383535 832590 (SLCARP) 880025 & ¢H'dm 2821892
B&elBen 330BS (NARS) B)€ 23821802 38ccBen 23e) §031208 28060IE55D:S
G 2O 220 OB 90 5. HBw 2828w BBeBEn BINBB BE BHWS
882338525 B3E@rencs BEO OB B892 oo 38eSBEn %) 2880DERDBICS
KB OBI BB t3e6) 9BBBIB 297 323368 @8 ® 2830DERD B BBO & G0z 2aB2ES )
BEeBen 9BBBE 316D BPDG® 28086 6D, JFBBBAE 396D PRI
2856553 dmed s8ecBven 39PN WWeds) ®ern B, e Beds) BERe
e5NESL 9SG WS O DER ABHE-85128BDBEO 8IS 2813EBY,
BE6EBEBEIIE B DA BS1mSens BEO 5 gerg WIIDE )51z e
8iem DB 237 2805218023 9 BDEOR. 6® D IO 2881 332 LN IS
85D Ge B2 2O 12 255 ez

i. 2082582 66290 258 e%c BEDE 5152 SN (NCAB),

ii. 2002820892 51535 encs BERE 912532 SID (NCAM),

iii. 2938 23923 BERDE 5182 299D (NCAR),

iv. 9F D1 BEGESBED 67 2830DENHS BEDE 5152 S (NCFRD),
v. 92 Jesr BERe 5Bz 39D (NCF),

Vi. 330 23023253 297 DD 3B BEDE 2912532 299D (NCLP),

vii. 2889120082 839353 WEOIMS e, G288 2B 2ES %) edrH &z Jes&csrEs
8Eae 2H%2% SYD (NCNRMSACC),

viii. 2982 22888 BEDe 5%z SYD (NCOA),

ix. 8I% D1BIEc5em BE® 97 836 Jewrd BERE 9HrB2 SYD (NCCIA),

X. 5229 #6258 e%cs BERE 25152 2S)D (NCPP),

xi. 2363223 223D 5) BB EDCS 91 @125 63TBEH BEDE 25182 29S)D (NCPHTHN),
xii. 28@228-24832 91 38232535 D SeEBencs BEDE 55z 2SYD (NCSEPA),

6®0 3OS O, VeiBx) 115302 62dDI1DHS esen) De®sd w1535 S 8353 S
c%

i. B Gz #2098 97 2B E® 3@ 52D BERDeE 230292152 DTS
ii. 386880 292570 BEAeE 47 28

10



@ o> »BmMbBm sbedsdn 5HSNE 556 5D IBE®AEEG

1. 22820802 386c8en 8:dDIHGE BB, BODBRMEEHE, 1O BED 3%
B350z BBO 232 3@ Sc51 EBS 66528 WEB) GRAB) GAMS3 g WS1er BERE
® 5850 c3eeed &),

2. %5152 28508592 BEeBen 9533535305 7 B@PBN 8zed BES;

3. %52 23080 #5@en ®AEOB 9880 6®KB 3160 6B BB
3E6EBendE 3@ #58en 1 B 3% BEDDHG BE;

4. B8 38eEBen B %) 30e8IBHOED FDES GEB, SBEDE &0
6H0BIZ 8BS 8% DO PEHMOE 8% 3oedNIBMAE BB OeTRDEeE D)
6253638 BEReE 83283 DENIBBIDEHO BEed®n 98B8:xss HE;

5. SE %) 6228569555 85089z 88ecBen B80S B8@I16ETDHE
BB 320 JDr16c8 3PN 2329 #SYeF OV BN6E B G ) 2)@e3De3122%) B IS
A@58DE) 66 A@ImBoKsO BEedK 988853 BE;

6. 2821892 3&86EBendE IBBOBIDE 3DENHE BE@ ) 363 88123B;

7. 22821892 3E6EBen 4055 23 S8 IS 85IBeDer @E®ns 638 %)
R69;

8. 383 E-2r5 8% B8z 3EeEBEn D152 B3e) FSGeE 8O3 ms BHES;

9. 230295 290282892 BEGEBED ABo®Ics 2ERI DEKIB DL GedDIDLS 830DERIBS
REO e p6Qe 831233 9);

10. HBz %) BsBEHE D085 :aBzxn89zm BEeBen IEH®B S
2895302 3DEAH BES;

11. 202820892 38658e0DEO 1€ HBIBBIHS, 5152 2326 1533 E-2$055)532 2 S1e:
BENDe 8OO5IL)em 235 8OEOR L30INIBS BE;

12. 202821892 3E6E8en 18 OBFNEEE BEDIB 3238 5KeRd 539D E@ )
Jedtan sl BE® 5 3868 en #6555 B8O® 1D HD@I161 298 EEB®; 2326

13. 9885 36 282189z BBecBen D513, FISDB) %) PoBDE B)5I12EBIDcS
23®163705)05 BES.

11



SDISHDOBI6E DIBHND

& Goz) B89 BBecBen 3BBBSE 232000 JEBS 2019 DeseSH & &cs 3G
280850 $8O0DBR  Bsrzdm® Az, DmO $HBm 858w 38ecBen
B3VBEE ewreedES 90 %8z 80125 Yermes BB, 83NB6E 88eEBEBBIGE
M85 DG DEVBS, 238201892 38ecSBen D15123a8 52155 BBO 23 ARG 2326
2300 53%5) 8% 31DB3O® 285 23382 D 9 WEL) C1Dew.

228208592 38ecBenel JEBOBIDG e & 5HBm 8@ 5 2aBEESR)
BE6EBEHEIE ABIadd) INBSBIDEB  gmsBeIms Em D & Eozw
28250882 38ei8en 3B3BBIB 283600 BB SO WE® e 3058z 39@12%)
653850 )08, DDE, NDE 6590®, BDS %) B3¢ BVOBB3 6B BB FoG 4 B3
#5893755 21edd #2 S, NDE, NIE 651905 %7 VDS 5 Yoy BYBIDLY 2Ac58De353
3528 BB 1D DGR, 3§ 8393253 2oRGEHLS 2c5DBL KD B BN, 2pc5EDe353
ed® e3de® 8ens’ WS B BBOGHO ABWME 625 DB 3eOBBY %S 3RIH
65380® YD T B weds WS Ge S #HBOD FWWEE) C1PED #55D85S 45
% @&, 953535 250000 DS 355 WMEB B A&z DB 28@r1eRIDB S 3 2
23203068 D PJNB) 6558 OND JEBS 232252000 BB ASEOWMSOB 45 Ge® BB
280@15)E18353 6336 OB3EN & 6@ fig TG /28], ¢ Cozned JuD e,
5182 2820892z 88edBen 3INBEE $BEHB) 28% 6830dHER ool DEIOGEHSS
DEDBY B 4@ 238232® G253, 2§25 BecsIBBIEBI6% 5 23@253D ) Scs. BK0tsH 23D
5B 1 D BEeEBED 2eFNIGS 10 2347 88D PN WEB) BE. BEO), 62D
) 63DB) 3O 8ee) D DK 2eFRIBEO 3RO 2818182 EHO 23BZ, 28OS
D3 %7 e 8OPB Perrcs WEB BE. B8O, 6eDB ) EHDB) HBHH LBIAVBR e
2830@1HIE D8%H® 8BEeDELS S18sF 300,000.00, S18eE 250,000.00 232 G186
200,000.00. 23530832 23202323283 2565(5)22N BB BRI & 21536253 8320252 3O 6o,

9832325525 232920 DEIB3 B -201925) @533 %) 3@ 36D 3DBSS BEDE HHrvsBIHS
RGOS 232 8305175) 318N 22820788z 3E8eTBED 21653 oSS (APAARI)
280 D230 2019 & 10 &80 12 ez3d) sz 4@ 230353 38ecdB8en 232 280DERND
$65IB516521665 (NARA) & 2803R125)65 25 5) 1 €. 3e35ide BERE 1@ G ©B3®
2326 3 925)-202925) @2532815 292 833G 239373 32365IE 23S © B BEDE GenIE @ 15553
23€20) $22925 oS 2325 G39dBNE oS S HAFzNB5D S 8526 $HrEZS D05 DERDBICS
BE® ese) BSe8I8 9HYFwB853Dsz dBAMmB BB B&es 8B Jewiy JDsS
IRGDD DD 838 W) COW-WNI® B PeDK 80853 8% FDred
Dr&smbencs BERDe 38x5Ben 3DEN®IE BB t3e%) Jend1sm PJed® 832 NS 6B
/ 868 eE 828BB) BB €5 @ ¢ S .

12



%5182 2928207582 886865 BINBIS 23 DB @1 2303 230DERN® DRI
$06zY, 2019 & 2053 6236 O 23 g 236 B S BNBEBBE, D1EFEID 8329
BEB%)s 55 SO 90emd 23een) 2017 232 2018 DEBDEE @638 6ISH 1B 1.
330 KD Bewr30s, @EEFEBEID (11), e25e3&DeE0 ufd Jewsrcanss (01) 8E88x Suld
e1533668 (05) 92386525 228218020 3868 en 23207 JED w3 (01) 32 FISDHHDE
A2EB3 V6® 3DedDID $rB2%) %828z BEecBen 3INB6E 886:EBEEHO D
35 .

338328255253 230578 DEIBS 3253 EH) B IS L3@16GETD® WS I3 BEGEBED AL
ez 2019 & 83@1633056 65 & JD1 1O 623 8BecdBen 5B (CRI) 239
2880 22856955560 (DOA) $HB2 6z BesINins ©e8de (NPQS) .
23@1635025) 289 DIEBH) 23292 2329 I BB 6B 9EB8EI WEB) BE. AerE DIBAS
288@1637D® O IBB B B BEedtn Br55dm BBe® 3nBn BBxiBencs
BB BSe0es Jes. BE6E% Bc5r5502 BEe® HBS53Dcs BEZSEBO B&es, 23253235583 23292
31320 @GS I3, 2017 & 83@16ETDHB S G 8EeETBEH #1555 02 253 (20282 E®
©6238:8560555)6d BEH)SL 6I® BEEEBED ) 268:DERNB) #63EIE FRDI ) 29)2532)
BB 428Dy WEDBIWE D 3B NIPHM) 2325 3&6SBen 10525 06 285 D5,
we6B85) 60I® 3E6EBED 7 B30DERNB) #6IBES (FCRDI), 6202308 6202 mE)d 66d
0D 386Ben 61 9 en AEDBES (HARTI), B2 83 80855 s&ecBen %)
23008 BeiiB8mnm®ms (NARA), 7 s386i8en grsmmes (PRI, ¢u 88ecd8es
#63S (SRI) 2820 3y 3BecdB8en #6mHES (VRI) 813BIEO ©iblen. e8@163ID5S
6B @e BE6dt 51530z BEe® HHBIBIDE € @IS 6EMDDES, $RBES
BBIGHIEDES /865225 RIBBI, %N ENSEE 5182 313830 623I1EDEDBTHD 835
2880 3@58%6E BB FNBBHS N 605 YBEE BdB IO
80515502 BE6® 550805 B3 58I .

4565 BEBIS, 9537 28207892 88ecBen 3IVBS BE BEGBO 23 33855
23201680 BGe35%0DS Sy BIBBIEBS B B8O s8EedBven B3INB GG
JewreedE1S e80® 315383650 BBE® 6H12c5D 8325 IR 1550z SYDE & 2880
3132 @eTDE DO B3DBIDIGK L (375) BB oD DD® @) ¢5. 830DBIGDLS 12 253
%), 360 9%e BEDBOZ 4B 65188 DB WEBIe®H 805D TR Jewrs’d%
99 R)B3eE DB EE W3 BBOB 95 D10 WEEEE 98 WEB. 9HE
@6 B8IDBINDN 325 EB8K DO DT D BB IS, VIR WSYDR 2985868
H3G) B 625 YL@ DB IEHBIDE R NBEDE D BEN IO 232012325
D%HE®sS 98 @ em .

B32DIBS 23I3B BB 2382378 2802 BE@ eseen) 83N 283@rBEH5R) DB 18T INIS
BesIBBIs 66 8325183853 30653 RS DBNEHH )1 WEDNEEH DY (AMC)

13



32300 8d53DH Ge S DB BEedKcssO emmE d Bug 383135 %1 §E1 BSen
©B) CiVES. YBBBIE 8320168 2EFERIGS 53832065 232 BSew O JBDeenIds
BB B3O 280HB% BBD ¢62esr @z D 3D @ w8 eTRE AeSDDDE &
853 @ 208065 @D 239@I1BBEHO 2ED BN EHD 2D 236 DY 536 epeensd
6EI OB 2dedd1dD NI E® ¢ AR,

BBIBBIB 2329160 BPDG® 20855 99 BBeDE e 281 BASI @O 28
RGO BRI ¢83 D10 cBeees ) AW 63550 8ens’ BEOD OO OBIEHS.
BBIS3BIB 232160 ©eIsBD JewrerdS 83 8B OFRNES B 665 Sr¥EE 9
D86 & 161 6de%E8 &) IGEBD 6512825305 @@ &K WSS,

©20797865 ©19 GeS5IIBIIGL
23272325
&3 oz 282892 B3EGEBen 98335383 83257D

14



6Q®8DOBrIeE MB=ID

5182 22827587 88edBen rHHIE BEEBED %) @125 239853 230DEDBICS
280ABRmE s BBO, B8 38even IRLOBDE 3OEAMmS BEO 8%
3523200 231238 23e) & Boz WaB2EDm BEEEBED BBIBBIB 282010 D& 8. &F
3759, 2019 & 22821892 3E863BeHE55H B3N e3INBISBIDEBS 58I RIBS
23EB) B&es 28210892 3E6EBen IBBOBIDE 6D5)EDBS 81837 230@r25) 830DDIZE
26 BQ . DIB, D1BDE 62195 ) DS 52 2oBdE DRFO™N B3&6EBen 2T 10
23e2n) 230@1%) P5eIBmB WEB RE. B 28DBBS PoRGELS 24c5EOBB; BEDZ D BN
982535 23057 3132 TR DL B35 S BE #0832 DD 3@16ETDH S 3
%) 2329365 D PJNB) 6BE IND JExT 83823 BB 3EDWMEDLS 45 GeB) 6EKLY
230@15)e8 53 66 O3B RE.

%1820 228207587 23865865 8330BE@ES $EHHIR 15D 259325S 280DERN BB BE®
23€29) D) DO #1505 DI85 20DERNL WO 35D, 2019 & S 65389
£ W36 B 358, NEEE5ID, ZNBRBIBIH, BEBBIS 232 9538516D DB 2328 2826
D138 3238 6D5eD 53 3K er BE® esex) 2017 3% 2018 dEBDE 6536 GEDDEO
3OS D 2019 DEBEEH & 29061 BB t3een) e BImBLS 23 662 EBISIBB ) .
2019 & HB3BB 32760 8B DEA® E9wnBm KKen DRWON® OGS
#6938 B B} 2N 6eemHS (19) 839 DD JewsrEnses, O1eEE3kID, 62323808150 u3d
Je113300s, BB D w65, 95317 2821892 386dB8es 2358 WD Jewsrc
%2 3D DR INESS .

9255805%) 2828582 3868 en 232509 (ICAR) 23O® $BWE®SS DRIV BJeg®d
#15)9, 683 BEeEBED $EHHEE (TRl ) 8E6EBEEO 92538168 8 ded 628 B
36346 B8 D e300 (C S KHPKV) 6DB53 863DI5S 3238 2305€1d 23eanr 83125105255
G . #DeDINBN B23® 50655 & Gozn 23821892 BEGEBen 953232555 232029 2329
16383517 22821892 BEeBEn %) 230:DEN® 21652565 (MARDI) 2328 Do Rr6d%
%8580 3&68en 3% (BARC) 50655 e15reedEs’ $0@161 BB BERe erend
D30N3 8326 4B DBz 9B D& 23ee) 230INIBIS S BER.

9882555 232600 DT 2019 &5 & BEeBEn PIsHB) BEDE MBS 8@I16ETDE 62223
2308923 5O S5 G&. DO s B, G231 BEGEBEH 55 (CRI) 2832 29282 E®
6233785602555 (DOA) 51832 12 565301652 688Dcs (NPQS) 68. 292322 23@163EID5)
DEB) g PISDHBDE PNIBBS 23 282 EO @ ImBeK6E 6EMODSE) DB
68 B)E eB3D® 2329 83@r163IDB) I BEedKks’ BEDe 383 B Bes @8BS
w05 c&.

15



BB 238760 DEHBO DE® B2 DB 9H53z 2B Edz 3EeBen
3Bl 38eBen cnim d.ed BBO % JeFBens HE@ &. DG, DB 6005,
RS, 836y 239853, D5 Jewr %) OF DD (51 ot DSBS D) BBE IR 24@I7N0®
50655 8868 en 41655 25 %) 3868w IS 8e) M6l $S@eE LEBBS \¥B)
3@reni D188 O 6025 OB BEd). IBWMEDIBZEE 9D kDG 3868
23e20) Bz BYPB 9EBN GBS DHBO 3D B DO 8oINIBS 3BIS3BIAD
23202 5. VDB, 83223 B350 ©3ed & BE6EBED 6@ eDSDLS, 3868 RLS 23
@) %HeBRIDISE 23€I WEDBNWEEH 6D 63ELN 1IN BB 3&86B8es
653@10%3 232 BAMBS 6BNEHR)GL A28 BE® D% 60). 6@ JKeFTBens OGBS S6
2850897 B38eiBen 511865 356 DS DX B HEO e s8ecBen
E@5NWSDBIO BB 8H IR S5rE37 B:BS 23S 412 6O DI EBEHS B 2HES
6238569255500, 6I® BEEEBED $SHBMAE IABIBDSHO, 21 $@IHBKDEO
28 @%) e8NSO BEecdBen HYPDN, BEeEBVEn DBEEES 8% DRIB
36633555 21 53 BEGEBED 25215765 BB)5BT 23€) 28OBB3 6D BE® twmed HEO
ADHBDND OB BeH® ) 386BeRdE B HEDI GBOD B8EE 6D. 953w
22821895 3&ecBen 3I0BEE #sHB) 25 83 2019 28exn DB 8EeBen 63031298
281383® 952325383 2326070 DT DSeFB B 3B G IS FDIGS FHBICS & eI 238 e%Hcs
0B &

6®EO FOBE D, 2019 DEBS BYE, 2O B3B3 I % 2Bz ESz BB EEBen 2313830
152328 e HBOO 323 BBO 2825 )0 5152 28208z 8BeBEn 23133 D88
e I6) B3O e XHdm O] BOBD® RE WS IV H%m 2282758
BEecBen 3INBEE B IR e WEEHB) B CGAB 5HBH 2aB215S%)
BEecBen 2313850 BBy 53 2 JHOBS IVHBERS WE IS 5Bz AETwcs
6025625 8RB ¥BBR 83223853 296 OBO 6288y 2020 & 5155302 BB K5O
58 23228 15 258 42502 EB EBE. 2019 & & 25,832 2928208z BEESBen 33NB G
865G @ pEBBIG B)5:208 8313830 JkeFBens BEeO5S 6HE Do BiE @ $IBDB
32532925323 232600 I3 232830 B BB ETBED BYP21IRO WG OB D &. D WO
D853 s88edBen 623050 B3O D18YB BBO 28en Dz HHSBHS DRI, Dz
5182 $3OOBIB) 0052 2320 DEGD 11 285 8308NBIS EB EE IS BesreedES 6D
232 28RSO BEeBen SR 812D BBO e 6D BEDrencs
2065 & G236 2:DERN® 9EHm 6388 S ©B3 ¥BBBE 816D S en
282253280253 208 1B3® e3ee0) B &3 e e 830 EGINH GDLED LS 2320IGS) 23eI23%Y, 838D
3132 OEFNE 237@rB 23O 2326 207805 DEFREBO @) BT Doz WNABLBND BE 2SS.

5267253 DOE @18
6ED® / 18RS
&5 Gozn 292821892 38ecdBen 353232555 858070

16



2019 966 RE @ EoM MaB;HBBm sbedad 5HNE 5MIED
Bcrmndm®

2282578925 88eBen 358515 esmes 58O

221068005 26 4125} 831DE1® 228c5c8

2821592 886cBen 2303NIBGE BB, B8ODBIRISEHCS, 231320 BED 235
£)5:5502 BEO 2325 4@rBDEE) DL 6518 WEB) B GAMSS g WE1ER
8Ee d S50 cseeed @ (1)

12837 228278592 BEGEBED 3BBBIBIS %) BGPB 8 HED (2)

5152 2800BRNB) #6Q e DSOS 98B0 E6EH 56O #3853 %aB21ES%
BEeEBeRdE 3@5) pS@en 7 JBE 3B BEDDBE BHE® (3)

282592 38688en #1035 835 G5cs #HS 2325386 @182 6Ee8 E0sH
B8 (7)

28208592 3868mIEO g BrBBBDS, BB 25% 3HE-4655)532
G1en BEMDE 8OOBIB)en 2325 3DEOEL oINIBIS BB@ (11)

2018 2 & 9152 2028292882 BEEISBEH 2IcsHB) 25 2 BEESBHD 255128
2312239 2018 D236 e3een) 6B 58O

9BIBBIE 2329160 DENBIO® NEHB’ DG® 8BEE DB KB B8
3&eiBen 3dNB6E BEelBen el d.ad BB 3 JreFBencs HE® 8. MIE, )IE
6219®), BIS, B4 e89B5Y, D) e ) OF DI 5B o DSBS D) BEE 29r2837)
228210892 3&8eiBen 3dNBel sEelBen BB 25 8 BEeBen OGS B3eH)
Se86cs 4S@eE BB (57 @185z D188 D 6D WEL) CLEd. 9H %% 23821892
BEeEBen 3BS3BIB 8393258 BB 3% 9N WeEB)DE BEEEBE 23€) KHB2
BIODBN eI ©B6O DNB® 23108 e D) © 230DVILIS 9EIB5IE 835208 ¢5. DD 3,
23829 B3Sen OBe® & 3E6Ben NGBS, 386EBEBLI 23 %I1eFRIBISE 23€H?

17



BEOHIWSe 6ODEOE 633 I BB BEeEBen 6550105 3 6DHBS
eSS .28 BBO 515D 0. deFBencs D85 WS JBBE 48D B3S1236%65
6ECO% BB, %5152 2828 3E6eEBen BINBEE ®BENESm 38ecdB8en
BB DE5»D 2018 DB ¥BEHADS &. 60O IsleFBencs OB S0
2820897 3E6EBen mH1IS BB)6E EDKS 6IBEMO 6®m® JOO 8% BEecBen
BB, BEGEBED IBBHBS 83€2) PDERBDID OB 32K &) BEEEBERDS RS HEBN
B3O 232 DENBY BEcsTSHIBI ) HEE 3EEETBEH 1551068 375) 2S) 289853 DB BED
8wes eI $@IBoRDRD, PABZB BBBGIFDSIID, PABLBDC1HNO 8325 €)I€FEIDNIS
BISESHO BB} 8B A28z BmBs S . JEeFBeH6Es 6HE Haeds, 2018 &
5152 228210 89% 38ecBen 3IVBEE EHHOE 3E6EBED B i1ERODG
D15723a283 1392 25 23€291 S18c5E BB 1081 28 25D BB WS GE DD ¢S.

ASDHBDE 620G, 8BeBeRDE HEeBOE, ©2IEIMBIODE  B8EIBDIDE,
802580210, BBedBven uBHE), BEeBen (B BIS, DBIEBE 83
H)E853Di5S @ 8emOD 2019 & 5H Bz 2828w 3&eBen 3INBEE
ABDBDIE YBOE) 88@16EIDMmS 2019 Fenieds) e & 3DBDH 8. 8218592
wed5)6c 3Jew JewsrrdES 66 8eHMIEBBIDEE S @@ 3KA 8@I16GETDBES B HEH
38 Gedl 9ame DO ew’dr 6H® IO e 6EPNMEE wWed WS D). 6O
28@16370m6E JeddDrnsidzm HEBBen o 38ecBen 180 OFNEOE B,
BEGEBESBS 2525 2953232535 23D BB S 3B 0s A3 E-8) 5328536 S 3925299,
BEeEBen 0151235 898 D IRV 62 BEO, 243D 9BBICE BNDB) LR
Be® ADHBDND, dED® ®OO BERe IBHE-FSHBBED D)-DBEIBIO®)
BEeEBED NI, 15O DD BHE® 3@ @ 3% 8EeETBIGES 285 ©6®IDBS
A58 ABE-28)050208 2813856 DeHms 5@1e0dB 65 IO 6. D5 28I1ZDEH e3eN?
BBIBBIBY 2381 8IEE OeFNEHO 938855 WEB RE. 8HIB & & IJesredSiss
230502528 60 255 3@ €% Jcs.

B Ro26d 272827892 2orr6cS 2080523102503 62065283 2r83
BBBBIBDE OS82

6O® BBBIB 2302368235 3O & e5IE5S 9BIB3BIA 8325000 DT 230DRIBWS WEB B
& Goz6d 29382189 ot 28BN HG 6263H $8I% BBBBBIE ©®@1525))
8EDe NGBS B’BKH & SR O DB DS D DEDH@1%) $EIH %)
2282592 953535 DE DRSO 8329 2827892 20568 26512918555 626G Dl
DRSO BEMDe d 628651 DEH. 2028281255508 DO 60 62€, 5036868 DB B3
e B8z D@75 DB @) 31638, & G216 2aB2IESE oK YRIB) oG
B35 53 2805505 6d: NDE, NIB 65105, DB DEND, BAES %)) B3¢ L8DBBS (35)6DE3.
6608 2302 e€ 6@ 5881850 228291802 FoBEESS F1ERB) 215253 2012 &

18



7.8% £30 2018 &2 3O 7% 2301 83205 NS . 2BBIBEB 833 M3F6® & 2282892
#3555 3B eB%mmes 2015 & 140.0 &80 2018 ez3dr D 3B BE 160.7 ez3dr 23
DEIBIEH 635350 WER. aBWE@IBHS & Fozd BE 98 WEB BB )S2D
3906IR 23 ©BO53, DR G8e3csxT G60H 28@ed5) 48T 30DEABMEE & 6O 2poacs
2300858 BB @RI 83832 BBBIBOE @B $S5D% WS/ HE B3 & 4.

GO 8BBE QERICDNGBLE] H¥AIB o G GWESE PDNBG 66HY WHSO5S
22820882 830DENBES € 2986 GO A5 en WEE:

(28] 68805 B3ge32225)05 29 BEIR5D 9eNE BedD® BEBS FIBBB) A6IERBICS 832 21578
236BBDBNDE 288HBZ BB, 2] ABBIE BDEDHE BE®: DEDH®15) 3OE &S
392823253253 2319680536255 322925 24266532425 D1EIe3D%B) [PIP] e3DE123665253 ¢5. G251 2166532525
DBeONEB} PYBB3BIB BEDHE®E, NB 868%5) 5 WO g JOG YRBBE B36cI®
232 9 BBBBIB B3®c5253 3OGB3 412 BRIB) GBI @IB®B HEBNGHB) ).

G282 21605787 D1ReBONEH 2028218825 oSO 2ere ¥ ¥BBBIA
6®629c3d® 2017 - 2020

o AcS

29283232532} 6@E2H 5O

eI®
228580153565

38236 B2 5)6DIBIBIEL 5)2R8EH5 O 22aB2ESZ oGacs
D108 e 65 6518 BEO, 291836 21210 PORBBLND 88en
#2018 e866dDE6IDG 8HBm OO 8838w 533588 EIw
DEAHm©EE IS OBOD sz dp IS O, HmsBEHmAE
cDEEEESE BNE WBWME@IBIHES %) WaB-31ew B3 mdD3
DO IBBIDG 23025301 OB 99N ©d.

305 8392353

6l 9FR® 23336,8® 232 ¥)IDS 212IBO PAE BIydD® 23€2) GAA3CS
%) JedBi 6d6ELeBIE BE DHE® BHEOD 6@3D 6ENIBIO 128D
G 8® 8y »K 8O3S BEemdE BHesems M)
© 553022020 S @AE B0,

98

DBWE6E 30355 BDB BBIBIDS 8B WEOB HHBIHS
6dEe626E WG @HE) 6DEEBE 620K 35535 WS OB
23€25) NDE o8 GOEANHI®

ARle}

B350 665 21208 3CEBBIBIDG 8320 DS 252920 6 2e3DadB @53
BD 1) BHBIBID S 280252 OB S © BIBBBIBS 6DEEEE3IE BNE &3
G0z DS B2 5DE DHSEZENBBIDE @ANE H100®

9N

28@12515305)08 8320 2388882 53688258005 B3DBIDI DBIBY WO,
2422020 L36BE DS 8325 852500 G S 52023753 B %) BBIBID S 23eHBI 7
GO, D8 9E $83%m 23D9BB;  83125B55S B3O 23een)
653052 OB BeH® @) @RS 3BT YIROBT d 295y BHES.

19




26725325 290282578925 3863280 231R125® (NARP) 2019 D& 28¢5

& Gozned B B8z 38ecdBen 28131ed® (NARP) 3%5) )53z 2827892
BEedBen 33056 (NARS) 2028210892 3&68en 835 H%83% J3DIew3 8IS
228250882/ 28281255565 %) 288055 BEeEB e D513 B)515302) BES 23€%)
35@eE 8313Be® DRWON® B. 2B2nEIm 3EeBen IBBIE Bedd & Gz
2282508582 3EGBEn 3B3BBIB 2326010 IS BSD5) 299G B82S 83€297 HEBIGH L)
B BN WeIBSHO IHMWME D 60O BB wwmed WS #>). 28ED
6238865, 3755 2aBWE® 62318569535 3% 2Bz E@12555)068 28OV B
BEecBen B8a26n 5Bz ID DewrE e emd A6GeE 88386k E) e, DwrBans,
D236 1830 3 ez3dr DB 2103 B 28e2) DEB2 & Peames WEB) GLEd.

518% %82080% 3EecBen BINBEE g BB 8% $HBm IKED JewE
BEVBcs DIz 2983232558 23000 DB 98B 35T WS B 3EETBeH D5r23aB) B5ISENDE,
232026 £)c5r255@2 DB €, BBz WO IS 5@ B3Eedn BE® t3ee) OB
% 265 G1ed). 6@® MBBONB $O6B & Gozm waBENEIz BE8eBen 3B3S8BIH
2320160 gerg B I IR A5 D188z 3H B BERe 4R wBencs BHES, 21O
B 515302 66385 BE6EBen D1r18aB ARBeHns BBO 232 23@19%83 DBy M HBO
8¢ W08 CER.

5 151325 665392508 OB 9532 %aB2EIz BEeEBED 23131Ed® OGBS 4
33125 )52 OA. 2019 & 5532 22821892 BBecBen BENBIGELI 2885 H$H B
IR Fewrz 3B BEGEBEn D1r18aB) BNEEIDE C1R) . 6@ 63ISKHDE B
28923253 (2), 2028289z 6699 57286505 (2), 6GDIW DEIE5er BB 8325 2368 Desrd (4),
23970522 83023753 ED WSS, BISG83S 230DENS 2305 B6EH Qo DesB a3 (2), OF
D) 386380 %)) 2830:DERNB) (1), 6202 25258 EHcs (3) 2329 28@228 &Sz (1) BERDE 292532
290 JEB3 e HBOO B S BE. 6@ %D BBEEB en D8P BNEEIGDLS (15) D2
5832 DD Desz BEVBEEHE 5 eENe® DD ewsrRans (1), 68361688 DSD
Je1136a8 (1), S1enen JED JersrEEs (2), 2nEES IED DewrEes (1), & SsdBHIS
D Jew1r360 (1), & Goz BRSH@D JD JewsrEnses (1). 282E8® 6231556953525
BEeEBen 6579208 8 285 988355 EE 5. $B3MBH) 22B2E® 62238569555 2020
D88 t3er 5D ©03ISENOE BB 988353 WS m. BBE © ©c5I8%DE 2020 &
35@ec 23138 3 BE6E® Jcs. 6OED @IS & 21O Bc$r55Oz D BABIB) D8re3a
12 2 28ee) #5@e 230® DSz 2R & BBz G & .

20



2019 & B5:55@2 &) @ D132 230520 53 = (2aB2E® 623:85560555)6d 36 2,
#8555 22B2EO 623185605556 08 25 2325 2953z VKD JewsrEdE 09 ) Jcs. 6O
D251232%) 53 8 38R &8z OB RSB eHcs BEO e Hr%53% I I B B
G2 43S FHBS 85N DD Y@K 3 BER. NBESOE SHE % 6mE I®
BEecBEn %) 28:dERND OIS (GLORDC) - 6, 602 66DG $HEBIENEES
®523N565 (PVIC) - 3, %020 22 239353 @R1528D178 (PGRC) - 1, 22325)65%5) 2082 E®
62385692535 - 6, 2aB88® B88ecBen 3D1B)S - @EBSIE (ARS-TW) - 1, 5r68¢E3cs
BEeEB e 839156 - GRED (RRS-LD) - 1, 33561 3865865 1 230DERN) 24652532565 (FRDI)
- 3, 92638E i 28280 38edBen %) 8:DERND ORNBEIDILG - @1ZES (RARDC-MK) -1
282 & 88ecdBen 67 28:dERND #EDHBHE (RRDI) 52) smBIG 2925365 Dwsre3azs
33238505 3¢ 3B & D1BIBaBDE BHBIS 82D EIEE DD P2IK D ). DBy
2SO D1EIEciem BB 23e21 5D 6c5ISBN %) BBl 988853 6zBew.

& Roz)) 22820882 BB SV D 958535 2320160 8Hr282) 2989

i) 202820892 6685255880 BERDE 9r525 200D (NCAB)

228250892 66290 5288505 BEDE 9H 53z OID 333 2019 dEB6S & 99 A3
ez (2) 805505 3. & 3&6T8eH ) 2B0DERND) IBEHBIGE $RBZB (29386 B3§))
#DES 951535 6837125652 @B WOYED 28eBBDEGI 638 WOED) WE IS
B3B8 235068 BEeEBe BERNIE CHB2 008pEDD @5 OYED 6EHD
/23O 2I6Z 6388 2@ WGE, 5. 20aBED 622385 53H)ED (4) 230 JEID s
3) B DewsredsSs’ 38x5 2019 D836 & HB%m 2BwnEIm B8ecBen 313Ed®
DR300 50653 20282892 664D 512786505 BEDE D153 MW (7) B WSB) GE.
92) 23e20253 3E56:3BeD D1BrBaBDE JHOB®S S 83@182R53 B3 ARS8 eHs 2HEH
3&d, 6O L35G 1512322 3NN EIBH) G YHNBIB 6B3BIH® WS 4 DD »HeNY St
Jes. 20 DwrIBaB) 6657920DE Gemny 88238300 18MmB WE® B IS 2020 28e)
#68ed 23138 8e) BEedn D GE. cnd HrsiOzm & BIB® D2 D25223aBI57)
2R &8 B8O ¢ &g Jes.

ii) eI D18)8ggen DB 297 2315 22510 BEReE 7282 299D (NCCIA)

2019 98863 &, 6I® DEEc5em BB ) 23615 De1rd BEDE 9152 SYD I3 A eSS
9 253 8025305 B&. D288 Ded. 6. DrL3EEE, 231318 12 239353 ARBEIDIMES ABEE®
BB B2DSE) SYED 239188 638 WIKE) WE IS & Gozn 2aB2189%
BEeEBen BBBBIA 356D ©5sED s DB 8IS B. BEBHIn® @653

21



9960 6@m® /B8ODBBISH 63es £3cs 683D 3D 6EH BcsI 5. 6O DEBE BE,
D22328) 20 25 B350z 3B el 2B8E® ©22:8DHEDBHD 6DBB3 Dsre3ad 15
%5, 832555 88O 622:856DE5)D DB 4 & 835 ¢ Goz cod DRSS JuID
Je130305 GOBBS D232 1 288 42N D 5. GO D223 20 @ 2RI ES WEB) B2 ™S
6@® BEEE ® WHYIGH 6HNBE JOBRGE 638/ WS . aBHES
623856925350 (03) 8% 6zNE® Iu3D JesrEnec (01) ®O D138y 6sI810dE
HBERS #HBOD BH S 3D, 665IS8DE 9 @ e e BEed® 23S
A25)6 T 29,532 202821892 3868 en 2513129® 2019 DRBIN D FEBS S .
&5 Gozed 236 Jexsd BERe B 3EeBen JYDNDN 8wed 620 PIIKKO 2753
em8en.

iii) 2 52150 BEAe 5Hr82 2SHD

%) 50 BERe %5152 2SY6D 2321235 267 23D BIR2ISE / 6EHO 6328 BEDESS
@185 65OBB Sentlocn 235 D3, 8. cHRHE VMBS 353 EB) V. 2019 &,
990 AeddO 03 255 282 "2E) DB ABIOBEE e DB Jewsrd” BEe Oz
RGOS 231D155395. "©03B3 3B 2B DemIesrmecs 6@r15560E DrnBIHSE
D2 850603 2326 2358858365 Jend s xS m23eedST BE®” 325 BEEESB e Dr23a28305 2019
2812957 ODE @1236c5E D283 WEB) B IS 281298 DrEBND BB HEDBZ DALY

9 .

iv) 200252 22828875355 BERE Hr %2 20S9D

B@723525) DewsT M 3B 83@1HED 232513875 DIBE 885 SendS esen D3 8.
2DRAOE @55 BEEDES B 238 ES BEDE 953z 2ONED 83207235} 2326
280 BIR2MSH / 6EEO 6383 355 §2n. 2019 & 289D A.edBS 02 23 231D153D) 8. 2RV B
2285 8@1555)6 BERNE 3E6EBEn DRSO 31DV 3% 2IVBIZ 2B ED22555)08
BERe 38eBen 3IENH®B BBO 1B maz 60O d.edde® & 31mdH) emB&. &
Go26d 2B W BFeemBnS, 386EBmBBS 8 FSGE 282355 AFIBDB) BEAD
360534 MDBT 6IETEL 29IDEE 2aB2E@155H s BEDE HB% SYD IS S &
Go2) 23820802 38ecBen 3BBBIE 265160 DD INI6E PEKRGO 353 AN
Ced). 20DE 828 BB S BERE 6dEecBIgdT 232 BFBr2m), 5% 3868 en
D RBO%NGHE JYPBN, O BIB®) BE6EBEn GARIDBDR 8302 832 2805DS),
BoBrE3 BOBBS 282 230B% BED DKL, Aerg G188 BBBBE @ BED e3en
$oRBO DG OB 6HECHS KB KEYL) B8ONBIR) GO 2FoRGEHE 628G FDKBLN
23236280 6@ 2effegacs 6.

22



v) 29028257882 1535 mESencs BERE 9Hr B2 209D

9BIB5IEY 232760 B8 GIBIB ISR BERE %z SY6d 8IS
55653 38eBen #DKBED HEXI B 3% 2BEESI® GIBBmIMSeRs BEAe
IBRBBE 8D BBO B 6@@ @mIJD & Gowed 20aB2nEIE oKD
SIBB)ESencs BEDE 83583 D BEHSBS 280DEAHB BE® 71 6y 1B e3en
250208 D 28950 D, 633815 ) 6B89dDER AoKGE 280DNIBDE B3G5IBDHAS S
6®s’ $80533m 6. 2019 & 2 I A.edP@2 230DIWS WE® 8. 6253 8BeEBen
$BBEE 401808 DO. . eSS Denzy HSYeD 3e183%) 6EE WIEED) WE IS
9BBBIE 232560 sBeBven BEMNE 8IS 80 @Mz WmOJed 6EWmO /
239D BIR2IC 6EE8 2IEH) WEEB.

vi) ¥R 230355 BEAE )12 299D (NCAR)

2019 & M43 289353 BERE 9H83% 29D 2099 A.edDD %5523 231133 5. DD JEJ53
COB-8NI) On5ess &0 B8O 9ed 893855 8% DB DER®S BERE HHmBBIHS
D@Dz 232 2E3c5r%) 31BN B8z BEEEBED 2ISHB) 830D (APAARI)
230@ D250 2019 48 10 £30 12 225507 29252 8328 23De35Y BecsIBBIB 26 (NARA) &
895505 G ew. 8868 En, 23:dEN®), FBHIEH, DD JewrE, JBBBIE 2898122 B53
232 ©2393HBE% oK B6TEBB EDBS 150 6652 DO 230N . MBDYDED
3283281025 ) 825 D YBBBSA 23023BdIc5253 2322 G E.

vii) ©F %) 886 ISBeH 297 2BDBERBIE BEADE 4125325 20S)D (NCFRD)

S96d 2301BBBIE 638 B ¢l 515 623:8%69535)6d BABHB SHEIE
A8 686310 HPwG1%H @NBIS 83535 WS B S & Gozr 2aB21ESH)
BEGEBEn 3253232535 2325760 G51PEN Jewaee rDIBE D2 D). 8. DBV 8IS @IS
28ODBIR2ENEZ / 6RO 638 6e8DE WEI 5. 2019 DEBE E, HBH 2BENES%
BEeEBen 81310 BODBR) DrBaBIDE BHBE #nBO e 605 @ 616€28DH
552 OF D B8BeEB en 3OO 535)e50s (12 D25) NASFLOR) 31D12550@ 2326 2018 2925320 O
D% 3E638e% 3OO555) 06 5HE G825 Dr1E5D), 838706 2019 53z OF D1 3868 eH
230 @153%5) €56 6525 23025363 953V e3PV BIR) & I A.2dD® ez 8DBIDE) G ew.

23



viii) 23¢Q 23923253 297 22 VIS BEAE 9125325 2SI D (NCLP)

2019 28 & 20896d 23:@182dES 5 WEB BE S WSYD 2§85 WS B) GV ew. B
A.230® 2019 62500 PE 29 D &x B8OBIH RE. ARBPBIED® eds) BODBR
BEeEBEn €023 D) BERE D 312D 62865, 2SNED 23eI1BBEIS GG
Snem 3D Jersrcnel @61D186 :B8c) 6ed68e%n dNBISs 62D wWE IS
BBBBIE 28060 BBecBen BENE 8IS 85062 OB WSYED 6EHO /
230D BIDIEE 63E8 623D EE.

ix) 29120792 3085 WEDNIWMSHS, BSEIS aBHEOIBIHS  23eH
635Kz S3csr28 BEADE 91532 20SYD (NCNRMSACC)

5B, BWE®, D8@E® %1 §HFS 283:0ENB F@IBrKeE B 6EH
A8 #SBIBN & BFD) @NBN WSOYED 282018BDSEBI 63 WOED) WS #B S
29960 B8ODBIRICH / 6EHD 63EE8 5BBBIE 835168 681D Jewiree D& Del.
9. 8. 8. 3d9& @NBISEs OGS 2EI 8. 2019 dEB BE, HHB2 22828z
BEeEBe 23131850 BONBR D1IBaBOE YW BHBO 232 $MD D118 6c5I85DE
882552300 2135505 BE@ 23e2) 2O A.efD w2 3DBIDH RE. ¢ o226 55T
30® BBO 23e) 66490 9865361 )@ ©I5) BE® BERe Oz 8I8EWIWED 66l
DRI 853Dy 1RV ew. SID 2019 & %52 22821892z 3EccBen 281G1Icd
BEeEBen D155 05 5 BHBIS #HBOD Bz € 43S % 3868 en Dsr23a 02 253
88258300 225565 286 2019 & 6@ BRI E® e3en) 5O WEB R&.

X) (325 2182538 e0cs BEAE 9125325 20S9D (NCPP)

& Gozed 655 8868 en $EHBMEE BecsINs #ABEB (BE6Bew) I8 BES
6162208 206D 2325133783 63e8 OGS 2E IS JBIBBIE 232016 68BN Desiee
#DES 6B BcseedmE @538 D) BODBBICH / 6RO 63EEs 683D 2E?
5. 502 PCEBEBHS DBEH SOEDR 21290 E)5r55O% D% BEecBen D513 22 2
#HBOD G2 WS BE. B2 %aB21892% 8BecBen 28131Ed® $8OVBR 3868
6033851 DE pHBO w82 DKL PYBBBIBOG B3Cen B 23€eNI K% ORI B DS
29960 d.ed8d 8%} 305505 1R ew. 2019 & 50 88eBen 6¢5I95DE ez 1R
31536 2020 & 3225305 DB eseenr D123 G © HBOD B2 WEB B

24



xi) BB 3Dy B)WBSHG 2 ©I1HD 683TBHHS BEDE YHBm HSHD
(NCPTHN)

2O 2301335 6EE3 9IS ¥ 203BE® 280DRDIBEE 235ZMNS B3ecsIB5) Da8cs .
. 8. JedSBIH @05 WOED) WE IS JBBBIA 232160 69BN Jewiee rDrBcs
GBI B56edmmS ONBISB 2SYEdD 28ODBDZICH / 6EHO 638 62dDE EI .
5152 228207582 38638 en 28131250 OB BEEEB D 605I821DE 06 = #HBOD
G2 BE® 2326 363DS 223D %) 25320885 ABIBEE BEGIEB D D8 QB2 8B2RBIDO
212825065 BE@ 23een) B3¢IDIST %edDE) 528D %) @D eBIBeHs BEDe A 2D
6% 89530®) B&.

xii) 83@725-2:8 52 297 Y BBIB JBeFB s BERDE 29725325 29SYD (NCSEPA)

282580 6223856055565, 88@125 38T 231383® ORI DIBIGE 3RIL DB 8.
9. 607655 @) HOYED 28250138 638 683DB IDHE WOJED WIADBIREICE /
GEDO 638 YBIBBIB 2329160 BecsINs BB (BEeEBen WEONWSED ) D80S
OB BEB3S5 @enry WOED) W€ . 2019 dEB BnE WSYed DD BB
BIB3DE) 1.2 8E6EBEn D1128a835% SYD IBH HBOD % WE® G S
2020 &&@8cs t3e0) BB WEB G&. ‘S Comed 2aB5ED® poredd 2EE 8RB
6266 $083%m BBSBBDE DEB1®” 65 @125z OGBS 3BIBBIB 230236Be3052
232083 G2 8e0.

25



2019 DB BYE BIBIDH CE VAP 2329 3OEDEH

2780517) - IBBE 816663 G925 -291D5) O5e8S 97 B ¥6dD K 239853
2329 JD16055 DB M BEDE 2)Rr18Bs NRDY DD

OB -%NIB) @538 22 23@)E 296D & 239373 2305 e DERN B BEDE WEIBs DRSS
2#78305225) 23183028} 29028208z 238 ESB8.e% 5B 2830 cS (APAARI) 230 D253 2019 48
10 830 12 228307 & o216 2972820 33 23923253 B365IEBIEIHEE (NARA) & 2392539 2%)
G ew.

#:830522%) 23283608 6@I66HT SODF DED@156 BEBD DKID 282 F9H-29I1D5) 538825
%) 838¢ 96D 8985 B6GIH 8 OO EWEGHE ef) FDVIBEE 6651 WEE.
CAMB3 183312 CODE EEIOBE Gram-DD) OBI8S %) B8E B 259853
236638 S B 23685)c53H @) 1O ) LRI 2453 S VB B HYe,
223 5)DO5 DB 1@ ) BHICKC1 180D B3 BEE KNS WS BHB) 6EO. DO
2@ ) EBNSRCT HHEDE S OBE® DB WEBACO ©BSS & Gozd
2282508582 3E6EBen 3BBBE 250D 9B WEIBE MRNGDD 3DV 231385
6 #B S BeHmE; CODE B8O® 6® BERe O 81D WS . ZNBEBEE
D% & B0 (9BSBIBE 832070 60 8330182 PIBHBIGR DB)) 242E3c52-231E382
228210892 3&86iBen #EDB) 280HOcE (APAAR)) 608 EIB DRGDD 230DDIZG
RBO 2seen) 8306EING EOD 35 BB 32m@% 26 BeR. & Goz6d DRYDD
B3O 6563, 5HrIBBIZS 28eHEEDBIBILT (25 G6EE6H% BOew) 23eH) QD2 HO53
232 2Dy’ Bes Dx BB 3-8 2aB2n8O%m 3EeBen AIEHHB)
230)®c5 B3 69D 2412,

26



3361 BERE 1@ BRI K@ 28 F9-21DB) @538 29I 28IHS 8OBS3 EBESIE
236 B3O BEDE Gene @ %DBIELT 23€) G915 2oacs 8325 ©393HNEW oKcs S
HD 22855805 2325 Hr3mS e DEVS BB 23een) 5358318 853D sz DERNBCS
B8O 8é0es 80 deuis D] DB 6D 8538651 ). 9B-1DB) L3@)G
36K 8085 8 D16l IS BEAE MedBew 3IENHE BED e
Jend1525y) 363% 282 IS G / ASSEE 83BESB) AIBIB) KNG LI GBS Be W3S .

23180 DRNYDEDH 6DHB W8k 986235 BEODRO @GO 6060 98By
BED 12 25 ¢ Jcs. DBz 938153 BB OB WEIBEE €38 WS 4 BRSBHSSS
cOB® 35 IEeFBeHB BB #NS O 8IS %) JeHDB B8OBBIDED eIE
3852830528 ©1OQ) 2329 G2365) KBS DS EHcs 3B BE. S0 12 28 BewIdmes EO53
Jee2dSt 150 288 MDD 2320 E 8. DRNYDED 2085 D&% BEee BHE®
6883 ersiedSy IS ¥DesxT WS $283651-231802 22820788z B3EGEBED AIEDHB)
280O 08 B3 32MRBO 353 EB) GLoD.

B8 2382 80% BBeTBew 8BIDBGS 8 S8 ¥®S 8 6HESH
280022328 26 1B 62MEEH %)5128 BEedBew 8888 (802882
230828¢5 - 2019)

"$B% 2820892 BEecB8en
B3EVBS 83 G55 4BE e EEOH)
2300226528 MG B BEOB)
852208 B&ecBen 3823803
(@882 e30drecs - 2019)" BERe
DE® RGDD 2019 &8 29 dx E»
602508 62D RD 6218 WO
BEeEBeD %) BKEH PEHBHEE &
89539 RE DRYIEd B83@1E
Q@oé’ 2875597 SEctBenEsS D5mm HBEDS w5 BENGD) 860053 BERe d
D)) eee FDEANIVNGE R OBO® 20Yen WS OB 830DICEES eI 2553
22820892 38ec8en 3IBeE Desedds, 3BSBB / Blew OBIm, fed
A@B5I8006cS #2rg BEMNBH 23 388ec8en EDHIMSDL! e DR 3ABB3
D820 231330 &B. 6O HRYDDD 23207 213 OEFNRGEES 8338182 G Beeems
A B, %152 2282189z BEGEB e 3INBS DB B 43 661 & aB2E®, §)rIDs
#8332 299658, DIB@1E® 297 BDGS 297 5388 2308758 230DEDB) A IS0 BEE BIECRIE2S
GEEEEMR & 83eeIE e, Py )1888I19ICEE KRG RIBIeES esenenIdBIDEG
52951 206 B3 &0 ¢ 8320163 GBI K.

27



3238 ces DS BE BiE © 3BeEBEw FsmHB IBS, VY5 Yeew 255 6RIGHT
cESB dD1BEE DD & 6@ 4 8IWmE N 230DEDBIS B3EeI LBIEBB (B CISTBIDEE
G & B DD (5D »eede, DI e&® 3% AAFBB/E), 5O BHIESEHCS, L& D2WBIBIO
B@M®), B BBB1eE), E@1535) 6:e® 28:dERMB, m»HD BEedw) 8EYHNB Ds.
66T DS 8E86EBen DRSS 6® D% JO 8313830 286 B30z W3S e S
225765668 & 5053 6RI16%T 68 BB pedisr ED DD & #5IDEEHE D, 2K
98823253 SBIH B c19)® &2536 53, BHOB3 E6rI62HT ©O 267 DINDBIO Genen & 42 D53
R DO er652B3DS B3 BRI & AsSes’ 959 cFWE 638 VDB DED@ 16 & 33D 8EEHIB
638 2 2080238@ & 3&6dBen B BEO 3283 BEGEBEn 388382 65OB VDSBS
05. 29@2180D53 @252 D) 2ES TR, Qe 301908 @185 B3 625 DO 2325 DD T
8 @eTDEBO EA e BEH (DY, E@x0, Bewes) ®) 3e8er) IO XHB
22820892 3868en 33BN HesreedEss 9O 6d5ed rzSEBBS EEO 5388
#2375)00 32539® D1 D15 DI ©§2dOB) WE 1 Jes. VDB § &% G2 O 232
D BEAE D Sedcs O® e3B3BeDeMms BB 23e 5B B2 ESm 38edBen
B3VBeE 23883 BeIB5E5 6153 B8@BIDD) 9ME 6386€ WSYD2 3253 BEDO de3r
D%EESS 665385 EB Be IS DO WSYD 8355 BEDO 3838 BIA 238016 BIEZ 830
OEFVEH BYDBB BN & 1.

207852558 ) SE-23108c5 DB D 683TBH 506D BEe MDD

DO BE Bderer) 88D 9¢E IO 3% 2IEEIBO %) IB-RNBIS ZISEE
6333815228 ©D 8 B 6455 620 61®), EGHBO )1 SE-23INBS ©D
623786505 232209 €, 657 DO B 23685528 6REs 6K DX RE. 3838 en 212078 DS
(CFB) 2202865030 221€ O SE-80DBE 6388 633J8ens BB6® 31 @86 BEe d
e5)d83 BEO 26@er 238 ©BS5S DS €5 DRYDD2S 6c3ISE WEB) BE.

3BIBBIEY 2329160 35 23DBHT 97 WD BICHS BERE HB WSYD L DRGDD
2303NBS S5 3D, D 2019 @385) 18 dm &5 ©BIeHIS1EDNH BDELD PRSIBE)
ABDHBIGE & 3D 3. DRGDDO RIS 28138¢56D BDE, H¥ES 239853 230DENL) )
6295 #83m #@r0s10Gcs, W8BIBID BFBEH %) ©289DS 6228HEDBHD, B®
BEeSBED PEDHB W8N & o B 9oBeriS; BBedBven %) 28:dENS
O8N BB B. 6O ARYDDD 8320eNIBYD 23 83061520 87 25 &) &S R BS BE D1 A®
BBIBBIBY 235060 2390337 DB 8. 8. BotdE DE2E) ez I B emBen.
6616 JED Je1rRrel 82E8® Bdec 89@1mBs @B &f. D53, .
63688 BB IBBS '9we BEBIHBND 8% BE ®ISHE EB315@EBm D
c3fBencs BB 32 @azENd SOEHAE BB 6ERHE & JeEB®ELE] IS
520238602 85183 06 28 & 239530 5) FEVes.

28



BE3DIBT DG 5282 6388 36 23985 97 2 2I3BIS BEDE X2 HSYD
883885 2108 OB (CFB) B ens0 i d 18N8 ) IE-2rDBE 6E8
®d©S esfBens HEO BERDe MMV Eerinednnz e mEDsS 8. O
235552530 B3de312%) 1 G398 623:8DEIBBED BT VBB HG%) EedB S
0259283 B3RS BS S e 8B GER.

3 BB6TBm BEAC B8OOBIB)wS 2019

Veterinary Research Institute 38385555 28270 230 HF2IDERD D 230DNIBBS WEB GE

2y 4 10 Couc o Aol Peseczen 3@ 6601 B8cEBen 2019 88O@535)ewes, 2019 62231 ODE
5 0% &8» 3@05iden 4md 9O KedBnen @M€
L F00500EB ) €6 DD 8% A1)5)INWBBS S
aB® ) 682EIOBS 9DGT MBOD 6Oi dNE)
3DeIND 5. & Gomn 2Bzn89zm  B&elBen
' 952325353 232620, 238338 D2BS 329 W V12 & 2393 E e
8 5065 ce 38elsen 3@ WS BES IS d
| 386Ben ) 230:08B HYDDI BI1DEGD 35O
231880 BESB®EErE B BSH 8 8. 680 6838 eszmed
6B Ge 38680 &) 80DERND JYDI OB BEZI
DBeOB aHRSL O, YBBBIB e8ed BW GO
3&6iBen 2019 B8OOBIK)EHEO 8NEGING DB EE
235D 83.

282892 8868 B3eenr ewrsiOz ¥edmnds 3% BE6EBH 5)@6dacs

282892 s8ecBen e Jesrsi@zn ¥edncs 8% s8ecBen K@edarn” BEAe
6285 ORGDDZS 2019 650N PORE 25 239 2019 6cesdE 02 Em53s & 8B H G8.
6®® DRI 88@18Ii oS 2aB2ED% BEeEBEn 23e%I 9H%w 2aB8218d%
BEeBen 3INBEE Jesr1edds’ 6@ ewrs’i@m Bednn 5% 88ecBen x@6dacs
BERe We3EsH dEBS BB OB Y 66 BEeBen D180 HEBOSS HES &.
5182 2282088 3E86Ben 3IBeE Jesr1eds, Jdues ceenz 6@ DR
232020703 Hen.

29



O D% 8E6iSBeH 2Be) 12 D) 4122 3OEO RS 2019 (NASFLOR - 2019)

B o 22820887 BEecBen JBBBIB wed 8% HBm cdBe EesH
62385602555 335 60 wedn)en @1 8 8868 62303161 9@ S
2SO ® 282 232D BBO 23e2) 2019 620DEDE 09 D & 66rIecKHeE Gr8Hcs
edefe aesmed GDep$Ided & OF d®) 88ecBen B D188 5HB3% 8OEOEHES
(NASFLOR - 2019) 230800563 235 G&. 6@® o®cs 330DERNMS BBO 6336218 23S 6K
BE6EBEEB3, DHIMSDBS, FBBISHEMSDL 83 3BIBBIE 23D3ezH53 B8DE@EHEBO
2300 8 236 RS 665 BB 9D@IGT WS ©BIH. OF D®I oRHED AEIE
B8ecBen 38w 16 28 386lEBmBs] IS 988355 mE® 3¢ S DO 8E2) DE®
DNBIOWO 218BDB) 26 2.

238 20N PBIOBIEZ) 2BEeNI DB DD BEReE 8OO x5IB)eHcs

& Gz 285089z
BEecBen 9BBBIB 83
eE@m® z=&ces & 2019
@223 @S 10 dm 8m "8
ZIDBS EBIOBISZS 83een) DX)
9" OB D Em
239@835) ez 28I D
235305 ce 6®®
2390 5I5) 005  3€e)  25r22)
2282892 B&ecBen
B83VBs, Bz EDDewsE
B3E8NBB, ©89EHNEE PoKHG®E
PIBBIB) 832 BEIE @B HRDRD BBDER) DasIB eI e3BEeS O BEEHZRS 8320NIES
8. IRNGED 33@18I05 D363 & Bozed 21053 B3R 48) BBe® BB 235
5253%5) 8505253 830200291 REOD 291 HEDBEHS BDE@D 6DEHIDR! 251233 &B. 23e05) 23eN 53

30



@220 %) 98823553 8@ ¢ WE® RE, ; B Gozd N D 6EIWMEE DBA®X) oK
BDE DE®@1) 3D ew5N, OO, DB BB, 237251232565 (MRV) 23260 D5 D62d
BEAe 305z BE®: B3B3, A#eBecsI® 2320 @88 @18® 03, 6650 IMBNEE 5] CESBcs:
DHB3BDE, WS1en 282 988 @105, 665D tMBR) NB BEO BERe 3IBS 235
DBNBBHE 665D MBI B3NBWE NS DB DD BOVBR 6398WNERE G285
HDETIB8BIDB - IRB cBeIHRD) W@IHE®  D1BrBaB 280DERBE  PJNB 2§63
BB GDS 3% BASHGD D JewsrcncEcE BoDISH  PRBBBIHREE G558
232703805 D285 83923253 D0, B3G2898 2259IBBHS 2 EFRIBES 2 E OIS B DA
6edENRS OHBIDS 232 D D) EBEEKZ) KI5 D1OBDBIL AN, 665D DEKZAD
280O6 ©835-23213283 QoB61536T B8O Bcstdotn, G Bz POB PBEHBHEE BENA
2808 BBE® 2okrecS 2HZENS AABWB BeEm & B @NBISs w3 @ed
6nIRBIGed B 2382382 535835005 BERE NIz O6:IE2) Senton @NBIDCS.
2020 3e@) 28%)ed & 8OO8IB)ewel 25 DrEEND ¥BIBBIE 8360 DR ARV
SRO WOB) CLeR.

12 6B ewcs BERE BBV BODHR BBV 5)Ocdacs BH» D
98823253 2B ® 23297 316532 936D K52

602 PSS BBeEBen BODBR B8eEBe 25)@6decs EPD D 988355 BBO s3e?
52665382 36DKs BENE DRIz 2019 312551 OE 9 D25 82 238D S1 1.00 3D 389D ST
400 223Dy 9BISBIB 23290060 & 3D’Den. IRNGDED B3E@EIS Yo, BEeEBED
2®6decs B0 O 988353 BBe® Kenr) t3:dENBIE BERE BB FDEBENID®EZ
#1283 DD 1S3 325) DB Garze) BB e e BEGIBED SDD) D 93835 BB x)@6decs
HRBOB BE® B. 60O DRYDD 50 66252 23O €n 832020IE D29 232001 &) BBEEHO
® 0B BB 32rmS WEB BE. 6@ MRS 23035321652 B 5] HecS D& .
9. 8. RIS 832 K2 ASBB e BEDE 51532 O 236012328 2rD2& s BES
6®7629293 .

@22 625588605 BOD5IR) $)r2825) BY DB BEReE 212995) HB6S DAY

20 B8RS OB 2582 JYD) BERe 1D BEe® DRYSDD 2019
e®Iedz) 6 D1 85 238D 2.00 30 383G 4.00 22507 9832325328 282760 & 230550 R&.
6®® IRYIEDNR S@en e 2017 — 2021 DEB 237 88DBICHES WEH EBE G
288 e0cs 3ODBIR) 2952520 3PN BENE O BDESOBS DB BE® 4D BE® &.
6@® ORYDDD 50 GEEHR 3O & 8320NIET &eA.

31



2515510 DO KBO e 664D-9.B86x5I6T 5@ 1TMHBEO © O BEAe
DADYD

50551 & G10BWEB §enen 685 DEBHR © OODIZS 638 LS. DO 6KIBE &)
2EIBS 230DNIL 8329 PIBIL B3 & PDRIBG 665K WEB. 669D 908655 %)@
21025605253 52265651® DO BES 823 23838558 2 323365 B ® 230DED %3 BES 23€26?
9B335383 232970 DS 90 @122 3DE™ MBS 2019 GEEPE 20 D €
280JNIZS WEB BE. & o216 15065c51® DD BB ded 668D-goBerIST )@ ©83205
OO wen s8ecBen ©0I9rDE®EE 8w BBO B $HBm 6®IDNEE
BEeEBeD 830DRIZG (NBRO), 6281856O535), BE6EBED 5B 855 31295 62505
280DNIBDE DEDBIH 5@ 4531 S 60D@2161 S OBIA.

24325325) 353D 2253 223D %) 2 €O 25126 YIBHHES P15 BB G S8 8 2313899
860 DD

515325 329 223D %5) €O 210 S 8D S BGS (NIPHM) 2250625 38605865 231383® BB6D
IRGDD & Gozn 2B 2ESm B3EGEBED 353535 2820160 & 2019 Fe®vIeEH) 8 DB X
31530, DRGDED BS@EIS HEE 5Bz 3ty %edDE) WEDDIWMEED FIBDBE
cOKEDB, JBBBA 2316 9HB% 3EeEBED BYDD) BO® GBE ENEEB) AHINOD)
88ecBen 16ED) MHEDI B, 7B 83025)O 80 (5I1535)eH0 KIWBOB BB, 52532
38y 22808 WEOBWMOLH LIBGHBIGS 3% a8 D15123:82% OBDIBWSES PO
23ODBABNDG B OBS BDE® 32 &)L 28D B RS 2 @I1mD Ge3IBeHcs
BERe 25537 SN JE2s3, 9BBBIB 23250160 291532 3EEEBED DB O 23O
%), 2B 383 #23DB) WEDBIWMEEH $SHBEE 3B 3868w %7 2830DEN®
DRe8O% 5 KSBOBI BB 23e) BEedn 988353 BB &. 6@@ RNYDDO 40 62652
B3®en 23200IE en.

32



38652805 D523 462598863 297 P1OBES 31253%5) o3 BEAE 232060 D YDD

X518% aB2089% B3EecBen 3INB6E 62915EN BERASHEHO 8% B3EEEBEEHO
BEeBEen Dwr18aB FRZSBEHES %) B HBEO $12555) 0 BERDE B3NS DeDIN®GZS -
2O esex) YBBBIA 23000 IR 2019 ©eedDE 19 I 8x uBedBven Dsre3asd
AR Bencs )1 #HOBO BERe BMem IRNYDIR 2INBE OB & ARNYDED
BE@8I Hecs BDwBen 67 HHOBES $r12555)eHc 3% ©22E5EDBIBD / AIBDHBIS
68805 #@r130608 B3 B e BEGS 7 OB B DO BT BEAE BSE
$DeDING D) E© 602 @ 3E86EBEI) B G6HN9BIZ ) YEB @R 83835 BB®
23een) 386iBen D1r128aB3s Be WE 7)Y ISEH 3% Gnen 0D 9B) B Dwr8asd
8B@1023 235 B@1DS 95 O85BS 6Wes & $B3B B1ENEE WSED B. aBWE® BEDrsS
3238 EHEE 6BS-4VB28B8 @26070:808 &, DE. 8. 636881 MBH@), 3% aBHES,
©196s #8532 052, D18@1E®, BDES 297 B328 23De3253 230DERNB) @IS0 KE S 3R
91 BENE / 5215 H&2M&zNE ed. O, &. DBIGEE ey BAIB, 8513850 DED.
DDED. D28 Do N2 NRNGDDD 28VBBS EIsMBIDS BRI &53e9. 6O EGAD 75
ceemn W@ 8 amd D0 BEecBen ) 83:d8DE  PEHDHIC 9NE
EOI21B53Dcs e B V.

BB 832 31383565 B8O BRBD 116D %MD 2.8 23Sy &)
31535 162529

2382 BB d®y 9% BERE AVB%E) DIBZD 2019 231295ODE 18 €30 20 223D
2308923 B3O 265 G&. 6@ 280dMBIS 3B ded 95)85’E 232160 $ES 2598
BEDe %5z SYD IBA. #@)10K6E BAS %) HEY 289BB3  Po®acs, §EIBBIAD
2329269 3132 OETRREH, BEY 8085 BERE $H Bz WOD, 9BBBE 8325018, $HrBz)
B3 23085 BEeEBED %) 280DERND BEHIBDIGEHE 28 ¢ Gon HBwm ¥EED
23008 X286 5B PIsB B6csIEBIS WSS B3RIEK 35 GEEBR PRBEL)

33



182000 23225083 o5, 6O FABE DB26d »RIB BS@EIB e §Ke WBS
(&g DNECH)sB®, 638858l »HE BEO, g B8, OV WIS,
Be0I8Kwsed 05608 9edesr’ 1 e 811D D1 BEO pBEB & Coz16d &S
X383 D®y BB 3% 6038€ B SB8D DD OB 12 BB 230DEVBES &)
BRI BmS 50 BERE d 2175053 BB cs.

feng 2B89C (@M ERSY) D JewBes 61631580 PR DB IS DS
SHBIBBBDE 6DEE 6231663 9 DS #B) DGEBGE). 9B L3NS} JdKDS
DEBB)E1 66IBEDE 56 25 B)c5Hr530%) 60, ©) WS D% BB e3een) GBS BEIGSS
92665352 & %I OB WO )OS B 61§ 5. $IBBWEE O E)5r530% DBIeB3 D25
$52825)2)760805258 3@ €. ©23:8)82828253 58 BE® 535 ¢S HEE%REE 2880DENS 6D 3
3DBB) )53 Rre0erB D2523386528). 6@ ) 423D BRI DGO 555 2016 3O 3DA.

OBIBNEO®, BEE2NDT 3% I1BHES 5B SPBBIEC Yg 3EelS D 6ed.
DE%@1560, @) 83e B3 EFEOE w0 BIBNDBS 87 25 @ D 618K 118 255 3O %
1308228 DB D®1 268, 33938, BEBIRECS, B 23 ZIBIGBE D D6 BB )@
B 5e3c528 625253 D% 31O @ 5 WS B B1ER. A 31618 62I€ 21 SI1BH B 3HDSE.
BEe51D3, 5333505 232 @5355@ EedEWAE 6253 g 21618 Y B3es122565 2019
& 6®@3z} @123 150.3 2. D%H6O 983 6K1DeBeDE BBy #5365 B3BNEES .
OB ENEEOH DRBB)E DENEOH 66KI1T6EDE 6ewmn B IS D Dy RS
@185 WS 26 ¢ O WS PYDrews WS 65 258 & ©D. 8odaz) BENBIBE 23
BB S ED PaBISE BIBE IS BEDD D:838mmi5 § 8edIBR ¢S
9251608 2019 & & oz IBWBHIS W) CG1ed. B 66IHzmnde S8m 310853
23@)25) 890 255 & 302D $BIBHS WS B&. BEDIBI DO 255 B 19.73 288 6O Dz JO
®AD 26 B6d). 60O @edesr’ DE®EEHS #tddn) 61E5) 3160 6@TS ©DrxS 216.1 A).
D% DB WWSEWO 2@ 30 SiBSE SBEHm 1.25 K. @535)5O
EedBwWel cmen 6o 888 98 WAL BHE BBe® ) SIm® B3IEH
6®19631€ 210D B 6865, WS BB %D EBST WEIBVG BNE 80DENBES
OIS BIBB) S 6835 %7 61IBE DKEESS 6O 23eI DI GDEEEEES .
DE%@156 &, 3T ®53H B 60T DI WEB GE 66T rzSEcE AR 22T 63E3s
%)) $BHEB) 6DELEBIEDE 3% $EKLIE 21918 5NDEH GG LEEZ. J6EIBD
D) DB OKIHIGE 6ASE BEEES 2 en 6RIZEwE 85D .

B Co2) 20282507882 BBeSBen 3253232535 2329160 20IDHBSO ® 62 M)
27888 D216 KBS 23een) 2019 A% 6D 536

23202 2332 @B DaEB2) 8322513325 S YD D32 9 €25 D) B1Q) IDBIGED HB) G)
B 61680 DS BBO esexnr 2019 dEBeE & 9BBBIB 235000 B 3BID
6536835 80550® B&.

34



2aBo5nb®» sbedadn HE®MIHOHIEG

221068005 26 4125 831DE® 2038052973865

o 285089 38eEBED EDHHMICO #DKS DB QEB, SXEAE %) ENIBH
23923253 BEDE D 23228 DENIEBID©B:O BEedn 988353 BE® (4)

o WSDBRZ %) ©cEmEOBE)  21B28589m B8ecuen  D@sOHSS
28@16R70 BEO w8 VO PEHDBOC YYD ¥ 6YeE 3B
28OBIVEEH 8% Ged 1 O 89BeE BEE 9IS @IZSDSB) 66
A@5)80550 BEedK 988353 BE® (5)

o 22820592 388edB8en D128, PIGIB) 28 oHDS B BEINBB DBBT DS
23@263TO% 5 BE® (13)

2382892 8868w 2O 5I12E1D B 28eeI 625362581 (INFORM)

BBIBBIBY 230500 1Bz 2:aB2ES 8EedBen BINBeE BEeEBED DB 13 %
D50, 6233 3868w $5BS (CRI), DS 83E63BEH 46525 (PRI), SDE 886ESB €0
#BBS (RRI), G288 88ecSBen #iBES (SRI), 6255 3868w 5B (TRI), 8@
BEGESBED 43S (VRI), 2925320 9@ 2392353 3E6EBED 67 2830:DERN5) B3EcsIB5c55)65
(NARA), 83&3D1253 2428D25) 502255868 265 B)6S (IPHT), 829025308 620D 1E)D 6618 2OED)
BEecBen %) K BEES B (HARTI) , 51832 dBe 3115 62831856 2555)d
(DNBG), &2 280525865 6223285695328 (FD), 4325655 2aB8208O 622385695325 (DEA)
232 323 B 19 283 S D 282E® 6233:55692535)D (DOA) 6dBSS 288 ),
Jenss dmaBdcszs BE, BEeEBen BB, BEeBen D15123a8 25 356DED®H
BE6EB e 40318 BEAE 6k R DEBEO BODBIR 656G A8 mEE. 2019 DEBcs
BE B35 85O B3es D2z D) BEOO 246925381 € IS I HHA@BZS D2 WEH
GE. e5im) 321 23228 23S B 2AeIE ISDHBBIEO 9882353 2B €.

9556mIBD 35 en BBE® D1EI8D% S 2019 B 18, 19, 30 2529 31 32 &1 BE OB3EBIS1ED,
552 2BE® NSRS ®n WwEBeder ORseIImeE (NAICC), 38®H ez
Je11$18608, & 23892 D 805D RE. 60¢ Oz WEFNIGOR 6DXEDBS &5 G2
30560 DRBONHES &) IS ) EFRIGS GEZ 23€20) (29382 EO 6223:E5)ED 535D 236
@25 %) 8DBIOEL) 1V &.

28580 622856055568 338 6B 18 2 6ZNEH)GT BODBDISASE %O
(e8s) 6I® 3E86Ben 7 280:DERNB) 26325 FCRDI, 8RS 8863860 297 28300ER5)
AIBSBHBIS FRDI, 215025 6RI% 8386d8en %) 280DER5) #1655)25)65 HORDI, & 386865 )

35



230DERL B3BBG RRDI, 6DE 6I% 386cE8en %) 2800802 @R1589D12565 GLORDC,
28@324 4832 297 231383 @R1529D2125)65 SEPC, 23062 G3c5 20282 E® 3865865 27 230DERN )
O8I BB - #SE®SE RARDC-AR, 3162@3cs 2880 288ecdBen %) 230085
ORI BS - DeFRISEDE RARDC-BN, 29062830 2B8mE® 3&ecBen %)  288:dERNS
OBEEDIBS - AINEDE RARDC-BW, 5162@s 2aB8mE@ 3&868en %7  830DEIH
ORI BS - @12eS RARDC-MK, 9162Bs 208080 3&ecBen %) 830085
®5EIINIBS - BE62DD RARDC-KC, (3125 2512 83023255 @R25283)2%5)63 PGRC, 5302 ©66DSE3
NEBDIEBE®  ORBEIDIBS PVIC, 2582 602 B6SINGE 683D NPQS, 6%I1D6BIE,
BB mSen  3BeBen OB DNIB®ES FMRC, 018 28ecsen Tz FRU,
BEeDINBN%Z 6683YE 2851w ROP, 28 23202532 2386® @2ddcs SCS ) 2019 48 18
23 ¥B 30 B»m ©eE®m e3eM) pGINBN WO® RE GIXMB PIBBOR
28D BRI 9O (B85 2BWE® 622318560535 DEA, 623:E BEGBen
#2632)25)¢5 CRI, SDE 3B @cSB 60 24265525265 RRI, 3,258 238605865 242052205 SRI, 655 3865866
#63BS TRI, DE 386SB8e% 241655565 PRI, 8¢ 386cSBen $IDBIS VRI, 9Hr53% $5ES
23923253 3EGIEB D %) 230DENB) B3605IB25)655)65 NARA, D) 2805255865 6223825692535
FD, &% ¢dBe aewm) 6223:85)6055%5)0 DNBG, 836iD1SS 2eddns) 5238 eH IS BICS
IPHT, &} oz 82088z B&ecsen $BB5SR 580 SLCARP 2832 602308
62D RD 66 WOED) BEGEBED ) 234)eK BBED #26325)2565 HARTI) 48 19 2326 48
31 52 &%) esean) SINBI WOL) Cden. 308 DRBINEHS 369dD® Emeds &
2 eFIBO 6eem © 8HMIBIBHE 0O enim DWW BEO ¢y esi® B
eSS BERE ¥ND D e’ & 6edm Emel & RVYMO 95360NHED
0128005 463D 1cs e82es BB 282 VYL 6@ 2535 3¢ HHODE LI S BB DI ©B®
BEDe D HneRd D 62X G $0HDBE B. B, B8mH® @NBIS 5 €R
DRe3DNE5)S] 83DBBICIBIBIDG BRI &BIBN 8.

2019 ¥B 1819 EmwsB & nen BEEO® RWONHO @BeMIED D@05
289D BIRICAST 232 2820206 LD BIZMSDST e3ELS 25 BEEH 832eNE §)
3756 2019 248 30-31 63533 & 312 GeEeEeHmR e8eneIE Hen. eBSB 3O 15 3 (CRI,
GLORDC, SEPC, RARDC-BW, RARDC-MK, PGRC, PVIC, NPQS, FRU, ROP, SCS, RRI, NARA, FD €32 IPHT)
2399880 B B AH3S 255 32/ 14 285 3B %S 8DRBen WEH B,

DRGDD 3D155D@ 23e) 2B ES 6e2EDHEDB3B)6D), 9Hr253%) waBHES 6216751 0
288535536025 ORNBEIDImEE BEBDEHE JewrHISE 6DEEE BRI 6B GV, 299
BE6® Re30%HNeHS & 88 O 76,390.00 25 & a6, 230MIBDBIHB 9O &)
2302953228320 8D 212285 232 B3 3155 BRI 8D, Be3BIB 23291 BRNSHSHS HO
cem eI BEecBen %) BAEND PISHDHEEE 6 GZ X 239853
®15eID15)6035 5)DIBNBS %7 215752325 281238 232 QBN BAKED LT D15 cs.

36



18E6iSBem s BERDE DrHS 8OI6ERTDHES - 2019

BEeEBED BB G2 2019 & B8@I16EIDBHG WE® GE DO MEHE BO; 6233
B3E6EBeD FBDBES (CRI) 283 208280 6228569255568 (DOA) KBz 62
663055 628Dcs (NPQS) &. 353 365 Ee 28@163TDmDES 80 @Bz A.edd@2s 2019
&) 29 D5 85 3DB3DE) RV, 235 &) BiE @ 8@I16ETDWAST 288@I16EIDHES
230DBING B3 eeensd WIG WE. 83@IBEIDBBO ¢%IBSBE DB $ISEHB GABB 9FR?
A8 BSDHBEE DEBY) 9BBBIB 23260 65 93885Y WS WD mS FDy gese
23@1637D %) VTG 3O 6D HOBIHI BE.

2019 & B0z 2BEAB] DB IS BOIERIDMG BHBO B&HKe3 8H16EIDH
O eFADR 353 EH RE.

62313 386 B $IBBBIS LBEH)I BOIGERTD DBDRS

2393805 3. D). E. 66:0B6®3, 58 3EeEBen 241055566 21806 E B R3S
- 232022325)

29785 . DO. 8. #OS62I53, 13 IKED BersrEneddE, es) BdeE, G835 Dew)
A8 505663, 52580 2T 2DIECS - 23@7829

29285 DO. &F. 68853, 6753 B8E6EB e 136N, 83915 918 BEIS - 83:@182%

37



2880 622385605560 B ©rEm B6edSIDIE® 68D  2BeI
23®716RID) LIRS

91383 625. DE. dBBI® @8, Siner D Desrcned, BWES BIed,
228280 B Je1s) B0 56E, 238291802 BD Je150 BEDE @2601D28cs - 8322235

902865 6255. 625). &B. ¢§. P61 IS, Sinew IHD BewsIEned, IBWME®
BN, 6I® ey p8EE0®EE, eDIE 215D BERE @250rDr8cs - 230@282)

86538 & BEDr @05, B©125B™ [FBBOE & Gorn B3, ;D BED ) SHrmBBSHE
GOEE 2o IS - 833®2882%)

012536 8®16RIDH 383 SO HBe:

2017 & 83@763505)E WEB GE 3E6EBED BB 02 2 (20828@ 623:85692555)6d,
BB 6T 3E6TBen %) 2830DEND ISHBIE - FRDI 232 5%z 883 edDA)
DEDBITMEEH $BBHS - NIPHM) 6023 @ 2018 & 23@16350565 2385 @ 8868 en
#BIB 06 2 (Weds) edin BEecBen ) BoAERND SIS - FCRDI, 602308
G2DARD 66 W) 3868 EH ) 2368 BB BB - HARTI, 2925328 8538
23023253 38608 en ) 288008 B365IB63)S - NARA, 5 B3EGEBEH 241655565 - PRI,
22 BEGEBED PGSBS - SRI 835 3 BEEEBED ISHHBIS - VRI) BEE% 503153020
BEc® mBIBID 388535 23807 3132 OeBFRR DB 288@16EIDBB WEB & 6O
BEeE®% 958535 23051 2313%) OETREEE BWIK O P2IE $SIBBI®K GEDIDESS,
@025 23€eNBI DB PIBDHBOR PABZS B35YrFDC153/ 3IBBS, 1€88IDICEE 257532
2313830 ©2B1EDEDBIRD ) 2aBWES @IS HREE BRI LNBBHES DK e D)
NG eB3D® ) 8)05:53020 BE® B&wes 65D ).

38



Dexrwedies) gHedosns 5B

21068005 26 4125 31DE® 203805293865

o 2282597 8868en IBBOBIDE 3DENHE BB 2305 3832 28138 (6)
o 80D 2aB259m BEeEBED Poacs 23€) JEGIB IesIBIOZm ©2DIDBS
28031 BE® 297 36 831238 (9)

B Coz) 208251892 BBeTBen 9B3BSIE 238070 FBA YIS 6HEEH
%2828 386Ben BBOSIDS e3een) &) ¥r%5)z e39@rm - 2019

2820897 38ecBenel dGBOSDG 8ewr & XHB%m BO@IB $5) 2aBEESE
BEeEBeHEIE B3 INBSBIDEE  gmsBeEInG WO D & Gozn
22821895 38eiBen 3BBBIE 82500 BB 6% B @ 8188z 8O@r%
65755 OB, @@ DReOMB) 1987, o2 47 265, 6§ Gozn B2 Ed% 3&6EBEn
BB BIE 28000 282653 3DS® 2867 63Ees 1997 DesedH 80 8IBDE EEed.
228208892 JewsrdES 9ne @DDE® Jesrsidzm 3E6EBeD JBBR 3I1ZBIB WS
B3O, VY 6@ DassBes pedIBIDBS DEEsen BED 3% HBW 2aB28D%
230DBHEE Eg5eRd 23€29I 2B EBEMB CISWBIDEE G 8@ 8e) E8K DO @@
65345 2)@6c 6@ 6d. DBE, BB 6203, DS ) 8@ e39BB3 6B ot 4 B3
205802353 2ed) S 2589353 8,ed BB RN, B L8DBB3 2LoRGHBLY 25 D2853
BRI G 531, 9BB3555) 232920 DI 23253 WS B Be o Bz DS 23@163TDH O
3 29 2320365 D PN 6BIES 2SND JES 3@ rHmRIB LI 623G W IHY BE. ABE (1),
DB 6200 (3) 2325 BDS (2) (32 Aoy BYEBES 28O@I1WRIB LS s GBI BBedH WSH
38 6050 FOBE D, NDE 6251 D) oK6S ASEDWMSDBS 4 GEHZY K0td) 28N G
290 BBeld®m WE® B&. Potsr 8NBW BBEL PN BBV En 2eFEIGS 10 23€e)
280@72) 321565 0B GV . BE ), 6B ) 6L 3O IF e D2 D2 2 EFEIGES
8353 @ 289@18W BB 282053, B8OGT DE 1 e 23015 92r1mcs WEB BE.

39



&3 oz 222036 297 20282 8® 362D (SLIFA)

2019 &8s e 8BeBen 3Bz 13 2 8O BOIGETIMGS WEB® G DS @53
BEeEBen 352 10 2 FEIGRBIS 28eX) IS 6’B) #B S BB EISIBH®H
65N/ 9B 23S EHB) #12. & oz 9IS ) waBWE® B8®$HED 4 D 6D, 2
%) 2RIV 8% 5 DB 6D, 1 DB BB & Goz BIHESHRBE B&SH 55D
B325E@R (SLIOL) 2326 29253325323 23¢9 6D RIES 92%D 353 2385 G 3:3S 4 D
6@ 8529 5 %) 6P, 1 DB WF22365 &5 OB B& (ISSN 2424-6913). (5 o2 22028
) 20282 5O 236520 JDars) 86D K% BBV $BOOBES SR, 230282152 O EFNES
DEB3 29253 30 2329 e ®ODE 31 D® JO YEKRBO 353 BE® s BEWLS 8BeBen
3520 5n® D236 © BEGDESS 1 83% 2 EIBD R BWIKRHBO 38253 6268, 9 &, 3B3855A
232020 D323 D2 28@216EID M2 23e5) G185 2,000.00 DB 6HDB) GV €.

1886Bem 825 DRBOHNH

& oz G9cs, @S 2385 BBeEBen DRI DB 3e) BEEEBIGES $HO
882920025 G & B 416 VY 665 Jerisee 26850 ere DEH@I1 9EED
2396280 w3e%r QMg MmABECH BBecBen g BB R 8053 BB
$1535) 052 638 & 60% WIED) WOB. WEO@BNWMSE 628D 62818HED5IED
D%)6ED 2/2014 6% 6@ K)5I5302 6. DEEDEO ABWME d ©2B82IES%) LoK6E
BEecBmmEs e 38eBen 29500 #1505 BBE® DB & Gown 2aB2ES®
BEeEBen 953535 2320100 231D8 . 38edBen E@%0d t3exn)r @8BS &) s ®ess’
130 23 B B3 26 GE.

6650-625625)51 12288605 €530 8@ B8Ee NADYDD

BE® HEBEEO ©BSBS :2825:859%
668N 38638eHDED 30DBD
5728325) 228208592 38ecdsem
3IBe  emIS®sl  DesieedSss
23€207 663D -625I02)C1 5280 BERE
3en€R DRBONH BB 2SYD
BOews 06 BPdw. D §BBEERS
DHEESS 25HB3% 23B89z 38ed8en
BEVBEE  SHBAE DesreedS3 30

- Gemum e 6d96eedis  JED
3325, 6690 75)1258 &% Bes1306, 282597 665223865

SersreedSiss a6 5D em® OB Sxer ®BNHEE B e DRDYDDRS
395305 R&.

40



68e@ s5tsB®

221068005 26 4125 331DE1® 238052973865

o IBZE-$r5HBHB% B8 386 Ben D513 23 FSGed 813BO 2309

#6@eE 3en) DG 83023122505 2B (8)

3535 8-21655y 5 B2 BB GSBew D5r23a%) 28e) PS9ed 2813B®

cO® IRNWON®), BBeEBVEw DRWONES 3DBIOO seX) HBw 2821892
BEesBen 3I0BEE $EHHICO HSHENE BeHO% @5 S 233cR. 86V D
915723283 DO 83€29) TR D 4SYeF M e RE. 6O e YO &BDHE S18BE

3,000,000 253.

DD 1: 32IHBS S RE BEGEBeH D5r23a%)

3868 D818aB6E 5@ 2IBBBCS ZIARY) eI B35
®6dB2% 26
6s 5H® D8scs

& G085 6253 D cERDE B3NS 55 8&ecBen CIARLO) 2018

308A® AES1® ©edBens BB AIBBLCS 856832

S e Bl
DewsrEescs
686162005 DE3D
esrEecs

GBS @RS 102 BO® 2255rDBS %288 #D28c &f. | 2018

Sedmecs edwnrdm ds8ansies ©233785692555)d B 023833

RES®IEO ¥5DEDHE Je® BsdE%S B35@r€5% DEHEH

6Res NEBDI e B 86OIDD 3106 D® | B8

3E8RBIGB BYE 320 MIEBICS, 2370

EBDOBIS ) EDIB B3R BCS

230832532 25)153502) & 2B

623265832 RSO DE305% G388 655 8&eEBen #0280 @28, | 2017

653 D16 DDBEH 3E6DITNMHEES ARNEBO | $IBBBIS .

8023 D1 5D 31065 BDremNSH 68616286 DESD 6165708

52806 DHRGHLS 316D 50BBIS | DEBIBEBCE

(B8 G0®) 20 46RIGAID) BB eHEDe

RIONHLO)

@253 (OB Ber53E3ed) DB A 53 8868 en 9. &J. &. 2017

36D & JSSeEBencs %7 B3OV BINB AIBBLCS IO

BB 52 S e &S JESD

JewrE6cs

41




®»Nd 5855 B0DBANCG
DS TS 206 12 21DE1® 2185291808

o 285089 3E86BEn PEHB) IBDHES HB &0 HBBHS DD
288053V 3DENH BE® (10)

o 2282587 88eBen 180 QNG eI BEDsT 38 90 end I EdD
gD BE® ) Jedrnsss BE»SS 8&E6EBen B B8O esredDSS
$O@161 S 3@ (12)

82 2382802 BBesVem 8ENBEE BEeSBWMSE 66 D8 AR
@@Daﬁ)ng@

& Goz 2827592 38 6B en 98323555 2326070 FE3xS 2019 DEBs YOFERS @ #NEBS
3O w3enr B853S 9O D% LBIVBREEEHE DI & B S, DBeON®
23€29) #3823 VO 2305 W3S 1. DD, BBBBIDEBS 00 KB5S E3c5g 6HDD
8¢ emBen. 3BBBIA 25160 313%) OeFNEH IR #H®O% WEB B F)csr 8823380
3753 2019 dEB6E & 5182 %8285 3E6EBED 3IVBEE 16555 6IBBS 5)D53
50605355 D18 280D 2nedB) C1V6s.

2019 D236 53 & 3B)835IA 232916D D182 AR 6®INH1DE® EK-20182 3nem
D100 %) 3062528 @ RNES DO RE 5182610253 2308253

8E8x Ju3d Jewsr3ecs 05
6232380232580 3D Jewr36568 01
30 Bu3dD Sesr36305, @1EEE305D 12
9255865175 2282802 3&6TBe% 23201 DD ewrc 01
9 BB1553DEe5253 83061529 19

2019 D286 53 & 3B 35IA 232916 D182 AR 6®INH1DE® EK-2082 38R
D1 DBOWHB 06 8D} 3236 23€%)I)  PRBBHEBA  6B6ED
B855350 (22825 23052529

BEBx D JersrEe5cS 24
623238023280 Ss3d Hewr3scs 02
330 3D JewrRccs, eI 28
925586517 2282802 3&6TBe% 23201 DD Jewsrc 05
223052%5) D)IZRBEH PIGBBICS 03

9 BB15IDEe353 830601528 62

42




2$283¢5125) 331830325 290282572892 2386V 2205252 230AISCS (APAARI)

9BIB25IEY 23268 3DWEE BO @ $83051%) 31830 B2 EDz BEESBED A5
2805 28I BWEE% DB IS DI1BB 23182 ©1e8DE AR, 9BIS3BIB
2320760 6FODSG) DBE VEHENIR © INIEH WO 33@18Wmens 8 IS
2320129830050 GEBDBITBEH ) 668DBOBS; BERDe 2prtdcsry) 3B B8BNIHmEE
(APCOB) 352 231@183206052585 @328 3255 Des. 2a8305r%5) 3B 22820882 3868 e
AL 830DOcS Do r15DnES B0 @ 2828z 3868 en BDKBI 2336 BEOD 3ehH
2 EIB6S %208 %)) 6237865 L36%B250D @ANE B1IOD 2BEB 52 CIBZBIDEZ G
& o412, 230D DB D236 Ve BNDHS YIRS DBV S e 2383 3D BB,
53, HDTI855D 232 2:8RDWMEDBS B8O BIBB) 2396 IEEN SR 6290 6HD,
D65 23033668 D2 230IIBISZS DD 23253 &) £38. 230NO G 4D83:25) QRIS DB3G5S
#383065169) 2320 ENBIBE WEIB86E BG83 23:DERND #S@)en 231258255 S IO
223210 BEOB. 6@ 230D G20, 2383235383 2329020 6B ARGDDZS 91 358K BB
e} 23€e9I 15011 98BS WEB Be ™S JDI 3205 eNEDBIG LS 320eIBD BB BS
665 5O O G:

2019 B8B6S & 23060 DI 3e025) 23e2 B3 DB 26D 253 @RWeID A eeH GE.
2019 DEB6SE BE8HOH e 3eHENE Je® @RI

o2 | BENSBI 663 Jedm D18271603 eSS 60 2@
s 5® L JORD)

1 #1805 Ded. 628, | 282089z 38ecBen e35B3E, | 2019
8. . & 338)23253583605253 4 D} Byens’id | @6y | O 26 - 31
B3G02855/ B36532525 | 2305365 )

2828
(386880
e 80120 €n)

2 #2805 D28, D28 | #2)6)220253D s G BHE1ED OBexsd, | 2019
Mcseedmo/ D15883I65 2B 53 L3ENI 8815 | 4% 30 -
651580 Sesaee 2892236658 D82S e 48 06

BgDe ORNYDD
3 8. 8. Boed8 228257895 665025122880 &) | DI, | 2019
DE5I)/ 283088 | 665D8DB5S BERDE 2rE35125) IREBD | 4B 11-12
231830328 28253 HEE 6OENES | 5
39 A.edd®
4 e Bed Besrex) @BIB)CS 2020
512880665 D8O BERE 63328
DRNYSID 03 - 05

43




928323255283 238D 32 OEEERBIT 2aBES BBV 7 23:DEDH
232505 A6 3DERINDI BDeyd

BBIBBIBY 235008 235 @EERIT) BB 8EeBEn ) BoAENE AIGDBEICS
(MARDI) 2016 23663, ¢ G060 2851883BDG%) @16FE©IED 28001862 BEB &
30edNeDH & BewsiOm )1 DEBHE 28XNEEIEEND 8% HBw 23B89
BEeBen 3ENBEE 23821892 JewsredES 66 @150 23085 83:DENMmS BEDe
206IVDN BJwROWO Ded Bed. eI EI¥e® BE@EIB  dmeE
282 8@12555)05, 3¢5 289353 525 26 AB) BE %7 EBNSHET WEO NS e BENBIB BE
388D 555 35S Dewrs’@zm 1 DIEB&EZ 28806EIBEND KEBOB BES, 8O
2312330, 3B BB 32 oDERMS BBO &. HBm 2aB2nESm 38ecdB8en
BEABIGS #2657)5) BRIBBS 50 9EES BBz DS, 2019 BB 23€%) DK 3%)€H
2DK1B5) OB OB BEVBEE 63E ewreedE1ST 6GS 23%)€7 ADGHRBLN HNEI ©E®
23ee) 2ORBDN B0 8IBOE RE DR 336180 3OV BNGHESS
®16@FR®EIB) 22821587 3EeEBEn %) 3:08NB) FISHBGE OB CDI OB
23e20) 9N en DKBDN BEDE O VXS 6B e1m® 6er) . 62683 D &, 6B
eI 9B BBIBIDEL 6825) 620 E’B), 9MB) HKEHID BoIDNIBSG WE DU
925608 2020 & QD @1EEFEGIE) B8z BEeEBED %) 830DENB PISHIBIS B3
8386 5. 6® IBS, ZNWBHE WEDBIMEEH HSYD (TMC) 8BYIO %7 &E6EBGBIR)
28250892 38ccBen ) 30DEND $EHBHEE PABEB BWHEDEE & FozdO
319 ® 289DBINGEBS DO AIBBBES ) BEIBBIA 235D S BB B3z 59)D@r6t
Jes. #DeDINB BIIOD FHWME D, 52382 WEDBITMEEH SYD 23€20) & Goz2d
$6sIE5)08 285, 832832 GB3 28 231818553 5)© BE® 6DKEDB 3BS3BIA e8e
23232 OEFDREE KBRS 9EEI BER.

9BBBIB 23210 232 RoiiEIed®n 203828z BBESBVen 2380 MBS
3D Begd

& Gozn 22820897 2Becdven 8BBBIB 25e00D 28 DoER1edH 228275
B&eBen 232010 (BARC) 353 4deINDN BJe3® 2011 ¢edd 18 €5 DodiEredrned &
2538853 0B & 6®® DRI B) BVEB; 62IIBB genen 4deddr DI e’ RE;
AEN5c55) DBz 832 290968 DR8I, 25125 B389 %D@I1GD, 2B E@ BB BEDE
EBNEB)E, BESBEH 3% IJeEBRIGSS $D@I1GD 6@BO FNEBIED. 312DXHDO
202282565 &) 2017 -2021 23ODBIRD) 65 IO, 2383 D & Fo2I6d NoHRI6EH ©enesw
A5G 6l D% 62028828 Besred HBEE @B 3% 9H53%) 22821587 3E6EBED
BEVBEE 6958D 28BS BB ¢B53esdDsw & B’y WEHm i s
231100 2250, IBHHER 28NEBIE IS 4N O BIIEIBEHS, 2515 8Fe8®,6585)01,
e DSBS 8305 380D BB 9)D@I61 23 KBIOD 62238 @ D) DA

44



@ o> ®aB8mbdn sbHedsdn 555 556D MG

culture Research
Book of Abstracts in Sri Lanka

National Symposium on Floriculture Research
NaSFloR - 2015

Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Palicy
B1419, Wiperama Mawaths, Colombo 7, S Lasks

&
Department of National Botanic Garder:
.0 Bou 14, Peradeniya, i Lanka

56610 ©50DBAD YEBD BS5IW3I1B) DO ®TSHO - 2019

2019 & %)z 202821892 886dBen 28513125® (NARP) 50653 “GQB)s 23132557 2329 “6dK®n &2
Je3&sr28” 32 WMSERDEO Ferg D BHSeIS 300EN® 9REE 231 BIB WS O e
sEecBen D128 53 % BODBVWMEERES WEB G IHS 2020 & S@eE e813BO e 5O
D182 29z (10) BEed W3S . ABHE-AsBIR2z 8BeTBen D1r18aB 2 A6
239232565 DE6S D@e8ONEHS &, 5352318 23:08RB) PRI 31238153 23S O BEGEBeD
15323228 HBEK B3O BB E 8 EB BE. DB FOBE O, 20c5cs1® DO BB Béwes 665D
9086536 )@ 050 BBO e PBRBBIB %1 3815 @E® B:dEDBE BBO ety Iz
DYz 3OBIDE) D, & oz MDD DO KB 8t 66280 @oBeridr @
#50038e0 S B3O e BEecBen ©6INEDENE 8w BB 6dKEDB  $HBm
65N EE 8868 eH 23080125165 (NBRO), ©223:85)602552), 3865865 24103225 832 672925 ©25)) D)
280D BIE DEDBIH 5@ AT ERDEINE) DBIX).

45



22805 ® eFDERES 95629

2928323253283 2329769 2585 ® FD RS 2329 23897 23732 O BARGCS 2318782 D G123
725525356 239O 53%5) &6 2329 OGO RHIDEO 232N O

o2 | BRASHI 663 %)@ dedw Jof3) 2)E 8870
5 D1625):6d83
JedS
1 #2805 Ded. o2, 8. 22821582 eBENBIE, 2019
. DT, BSoes258/ s8ecBen ©1EEE3EID &3 26 - 31
B3ecsIedns s B3BBG 4
(38eE8e0 B} Byens3d
DE© 8012 €M) 2302535
2 #2805 D253, ed. 451620 B5DS 3 | OB, 2019
Meedm3/ 558D 5Y518% 508D’ 423 30 -
dewaee D125 48 06
23een)
2)a882523:666553
56053185
BEDe DY
3 8. 8. BotdB &8/ | 2852895 DG, 2019
2329223253 ©65D25)I2R8 8% )2 NBRBBZIS | 4B 11-12
66508393753
BEDe art3c5125)
31830325 e8BINIBGCS
6®6HE® O
Aedd®
4 #D8cs Ded. . B. 8. | 293803 DoSRr6d®%E | 2019
33/ 652580 282065383270 R23629DE
Jewaee 23€29)) 2 €K 16 - 18
2$283057%5) 830D GG
(23:82) 2028285
®31588D2125)¢5
(@558
RISy
dende& - 6I®)
5 #2805 Ded DO, B. 8. | D25198 RededBc5rd | 2019 cees @S
33 &/ @558 2EO52EEHCS 12-13
derwsee 8Eae Hmssimd

2396EOEBIS

46




292532325328 2326760 291805 O FADR S 68HBcs 3260 DDDED 2830eHd J@

BEASESI 66 5@ 292908 DO 6253©7d a5
D85 253, Ded. & e3es DS 2019 && 30 - 31
8568820
D& cs Ded DO, 8. 3. cesed ddeesE 2019 &8 30 - 31
SOk
D805 B. D). . B 8. DO i @esed €292 2019 24253 12,19 1 26
BE516H® ES5S 2535 B82S

€O 5208005

E[?I)B 8. . 8. 6@62590(5)

B3 260251 €0 03

2019 ae®mieds) 05 ) 07

&5 B. DD, . B, £,

&5 Goz) SDE 3&8edBen

2019 65201®E 04 ) 06

BEeHI1H® BIBBIBIGCS e3OCORBIGS
3. 8. 6508 5DS D02 psieesed 8735 2019 621 9E 07 ) 08
6O 2535 B8O
26951208065
#DEcs Ded. DO, B, 3. &5 Bozd 32005 D) 2019 2231 @8 05 ) 06
339 & 2825368
3. 8. 6508 5DS 3@78%75592) 292 2019 621098 29 0
© 05302 253 Dzsded | e ®DE 02
BEO es05 SHReEBE0S
95D E®
Gz, 82812596529 65® 6ENB) 252 DB | 2019 621D@DE 27, 28 )
269512908005 29
D85 D253, Ded. D2 035 SO 5S 2019 62500 9E 27, 28 &)
85628206 0257238 E@ 5805 | 29
D85 B. DD, . B. £, D2 035 SO 5S 2019 62500 9E 27, 28 &)

BEe5r60®

25729225 €@ 52 S80S

29

47




Y2NI1K35):

6008 6DS, O3 8, SsBEm, DY, Ysle, Dl 8% @edEI®, ded 2019.
62196233880 DBNL GBBRIER Q&I® 660N 621063880 LoRDE 2318w,
EHBOB) BHEDBIE %) DEOESE DB FBWMEB DES®. B2 8d2 %) 8D
De15,5302) @oB625361 BB AS 8@ SD), 12 (4), 8.184-191.

2335)), 62, OO. &; 383D, el DO, 8. &; BS538%8, D, 2320 DEBNY, 8. S. 6. (2019)
D152 55D DENIBEO DB BB PYDHRBO DEB® WE DD ? OF D 2B
D252238 oiacs BERE 2355, OF D& BEGEBEn BEDE X552 3OO 2535) w6l 83870%
©23225), ©250D®DE 2019.

83D, Ded. . B. 88, 621268, B. 8325 BOEH®, 8. (2019), DE® BERDE 33 BES:
& o226 OF D% WE@IBBmEE 215350 DDesrBBS 665 8BS FWSHB @
665 88@128 DEPDE DERB1®, d512386 WEO’WEEH BERE 16 DB BHBPISBHS
283969356 G5 D185, 6@1518 D s, Veded)Brd, &. 104.

2835), 628 DO. 8., 83D, Ded D). 8. 8. 232 DB &. 8. ez, (2019). ©¥IB3 IHHS
1923652550 DERNBES: B o216 OF D% EIBIDEHBHS EBOBD H1E 31D, D15123:8
DEDBITMEEHS BENDE 16 B KHBBBE 2896OEH6E G5 D185, @108 JED
dew1300s, DededEcsrd), 8. 113.

#3185 28625, 8. D, DT, BSo2d53/ BecsTeds sz (3868en 6@ 51206 8%);

5B, B8O, MB@E® %71 €896 $08Jm WOWH BERE  F@IZIBIGKEGCS,
228250882 oy HHIWMSEH D226, 2BEO BedE)ErE 3BBEE B8ecBen
23@263TO%

6008 EENRAIND 618 OED) H3BeEBEn %) ¥KH BEEO PEHBECS,
BEeEBeD ) 5 en BES O9ed (RTC), 83@7820)

& Go 228201892 BEeBEn BBBBIB 816D, & Gozd #2018 %) 2aBHED
2@ 516D (SLIFA), ©276® ISSN 2424-6913, 20822 @ 638G £31@782) 6388 62393 296E, ¢S.

48



@ o »aIBmbdn sbhedad 5HSHE 56D HBs PHDEG

BBIB3BIB 23000 23€20) X)OB) 2188 @EBFRNEHS 36 28 DB S 2019 & BDBIB 29988
OeFNES 26 %5 6. 359238 & e BHBBSy ©SBBD Jewsiee (BHBB)St 01), 83868
BRIS (BBBRGL 01), ©EIzNE (ZyBERSL 01), 38BMIBBIRBB (ZBITGL 01),
38233325 BERS (HBHBYG1 01), €028 80 8320278 (B2 G1 03), BsgSt (Bry5ry2G1 01)
2320 292853 20805 23291652 ()G 01)

2019 6223198 31 8 D) JO & oz 2aB21ESz) 36TV e 235232555 232160 2786
QTG BB 3202 388 ©d:

2325723253

#2805 Ded. Ded. B. 8. B. 9sDEN® - B.DeI.8B. (2aBE® ), DO .Ded 8, B.DD.E. - 2019
45918 2259

#3808, 8. 628 DEHHR - B.DeS8B.(Dera), HD.Ded 8B, B.HD.E. - 2019 6B3REDIB - 2019
62231908

GE™O

#3805 628, 8. 9. JeBDEND - HD.8F, B.9D.8). - 2019 35528 225D)

#1805 6235, 62904 GDT - B.923.88. (2928 59), B.D 8. - 2019 6B3DEDIS - 2019 24253
#1805 6235, 8. 8. @GEo2n) - B. D238, DD .Ded 3, B.HD 2 - 2019 A - 2019 62231ODE
3536023 DOE 29@6 - B. &, D927, - 2019 Gees©@DS6S £30

6252580 2568212961
BecsF815 D523 (886380 290€ 825126 80)

#D8cs Ded. 628, 8. DS, DS, BS5385 D.De3.88. (22850 ), DO.8F, BHDE. (a8
#8832 DexsHd)

49



628258 Jewsree

%85 8. D). . 8. 8. BB%1%® B.923.88.(20282:80 ), DO.0F, BDD.E. (%28 8T

8@)53@)

#1805 D253, Ded. BeseesnS .23, (D), D9.092888, B.HD 8. (a8 BO Jesrd)
#D8cs Ded. 9. B. 8. 839 DD, (20a8:59), DO Ded B, B.DD L. (2928 eI®

5@253@)

2353 ) BEEIBH

s&86cBen BRAS

23, 8. 2§EHOGE 955D 8.229.88., 99.099.88. (20282089)
8. 8. 9. 823120529 @) 8.9e9.8. (228259)

38, 600D @) B.0e888. (2928:850), OO .Hed 3.
OO 2)HEO %201

232025206 252558 38237325

#:8. O&. 9. 8. Sen5)0® HNB3SS BOYB. (EODIWEEHE )
38e313565) HeEds

2EO25125)58% 23201652 DE (5972598 5o 25))
2. 9. &. &. D253. eRDEBIH deHBN) DeBS DrBS
el & 8. 99. 8. c583o2n fefS
Ded. . DS, (5. EEIRERBSI &efS

2 €012 S0 2329152 (BI2R8 5025 625D X))
8. DE 5190c665 @n53Ss

9. 99. DI NBISs

9253, 8. 923, eB&%

8. 8 028 883252052 @NBIScS

50

G252



& . epo2dB @053 s

6. 8. 94, 8. DB WeeImS @5
& 8. 9. 8. 623, 83958D ®enBIScs
#:8. 8. I8, D. @B @26H5))
8.8 8. O3 8305802 ®9H53Scs
29, 28, 9. B, D). 83055652

29750820 ®D0® - 9298/
2). 8. &F ded. cesmacsm @y Bsigr
8. 08 8. 8. 8. Bcs@2 @nn  BesieSt

29750820 ®D0® - $YN K
%55, . 6285, HS62:78 @enz 238533 27865 83297652
& 8. D). 6d@553% @053 cs 280533 20805 83520529

51



DADGENO

& G027 20828z 3EE B 295232555 23618, 8BDHDBI 27808 DEE3DN L) 26575302
BBe® & 353830053 V@ 1 D ¢33 288906IHE BERE & DB 23@2I5) 27808 @ EFRNEEO
2568 6. DY 63 DT 2320HEIWES 2329 23D 6250 Y6 5O, 2019 & B3 6%
Ge DR D180 2 6REI DBI 2253 WOMB) BB N DB 1. Deds 361 R &3 DS BN
23206BING GDKEDLS 8320 23132 DLFNEERN 832022356510 8320 83318 AGIHO 2pes
6@ $Do2s) 23758305 BS ©d.

2019 D265 2808 281323@ 238Dz O 2893 E e BB 23€e) SISO G &3 DL
289651851 695EdB BB, ¥)r89¢ 08I WOKD), 8@ 8OBSS BoAEID,
D:8@8% ) BOS o B3 28893855 268:dEND $@IBDSE) %O, WBWES 2295
A@58DE®) 90, 2aBWE® BecsTess #@sdDSHI 9O, 2aBHED @I KREGE
eEmODSEBI 90, waBWES 62295 @180 %6E BEMDDSEB) %O, 2aBWED, §)ISS
#8332 g5, B8 23053 230DERNBS, DIB@IE® 2320 BDES 27 B3 2385 230DERN®
60 BeB8Y 8085 8080  F@msrrKed 3BeEm 6EmODSHO, HYNIB
©F2NERZIBDE0, FAZBISIHO 3% D w5 F2ecs BERRSBHO %) EBIGZSS
22805 @eFRNEBO 95232558 232970 6DENI2I e 6D,

522815 2o6cS AISB), DED DewrE 239 eI 639dWNER LPoKES 230DNIB I &3
2865358 BERE d ¢ KRB 38DW d e’ WSH) C1ed.

52



SRI LANKA
COUNCIL FOR AGRICULTURAL
@ RESEARCH POLICY

25 Yoare Soraice o the Watiow |
Since in 22 December 1987 -

FINAL ACCOUNTS - 2019

Ministry of Agriculture
Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy

114/9, Vidya Mawatha
Colombo 07




Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy
No. 114/09, Wijerama Mawatha, Colombo 07
Statement of Financial Position

As at 31™ December 2019
2019 2018
Notes LKRs. Cts. LKRs. Cts, -

ASSETS

Property, Plant & Equipment 08 11,021,067 11,782,463
Infrastructure 08-A 560,180 604,392
Work in Progress - CARP New Building 2,460,000 -
Total Non Current Assets 14,041,247 12,386,856
Inventories 09 1,494,097 1,558,832
Trade & Other Receivables 10 18,714,601 20,554,351
Cash at Bank 11' 20,278,760 25,446,705
“Total Current Assets B 40,487,457 - 47,559,888
TOTAL ASSETS a 54,528,704 59,946,744
EQUITY & LIABILITIES

Capital & Reserves _

CARP Fund : 12 5,208,877 27,639,257
Treasury Grants - Research 13 0 {6,468,925)
Deferred Income Fund 14 11,581,247 2,208,690
Accumulated Surplus / {Deficit) 27,621,522 27,025,744
Gift - 116,892 .

’ . 44,411,646 50,521,658

Retirement Benefit {Gratuity) 15 9,177,501 7,820,353
Total Non current Liabilities ' _ 9,177,501 7,820,353
Current Liabilities

Trade & Other Payables 16 939,557 1,604,732
Total current liabilities . 939,557 1,604,732
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES : : | 54,528,704 59,946,744

These Financial Statements are in compliance with the reguirements of the finance Act, No.38 of 1971-and the Public
sector accounting standards in Sri Lanka.

The Governing Council is responsible for preparation of these Financial Statements. We approved and signed on behalf
of the SLCARP council.

Prepared By ; %\"J"m.. S.M.5.U Kaushalya

Checked By ; O ADMPIayasinghs

M.K.M.Mihirani Prabhath Wimal Kumara
Acwu&tant (Acting) Secretary | piveckov
M. K. M. Mihirani .. - .
Accountant . Gamini Senanayake, : Pmbath Wlma‘! Kumara
{ Project & Institutional Finance Management) Chairman Secretary/ Director

Ministry of Agriculture, Livestock Developm . L W ; i8#i Lanka Council forAgricultural Research Poli
asion s Fers & Aquatio Resouei Lanks Counl fo Agricuturd ReseschPligtLanialiannel Begien o estuch ol

Development o No: 114/9, Wijerama Mawatha
No. 288, Sri Jayawardenepura Mawatha, Rajagiriya. ~ *\0" ¢4 %57 Colombo 07
0 4 1 Colombo 7



Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy
No. 114/09, Wijerama Mawatha, Colombo 07

Statement of Comperhensive income
for the Year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018

Note LKRs. Cts. LKRs. Cts.
Treasury Grants 01 181,203,509 127,530,048
Other Income 02 3,917,342 1,862,572
TOTAL INCOME 185,120,851 129,392,619
Operating Expenses 03 149,587,917 64,159,073
DIFFERENCE BETWEEN TREASURY GRANTS , ' 35,532,934 65,233,546
OTHER INCOME AND OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative Expenses 04 40,937,552 38,100,208
Capital Expenses - -
Finance Cost 05 1,147,563 23,732
blFFERENCE BETWEEN TREASURY GRANTS . (6,552,180} 27,109,607
& OTHER INCOME AND TOTAL EXPENDITURE
Add / (Less) Prior Year Adjustment 06 7,147,959 (689,180)
- Add / {Less) Write off Assets 07 158
EXCESS OF EXPENDITURE OVER INCOME & TREASRY GRANTS 595,779 '26,420,268
Balance B/F 27,025,743 605,476
‘Balance C/F 27,621,522 : 27,025,744
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Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy
No. 114/09, Wijerama Mawatha, Colombo 07

Statement of Cash Flow
For the Year ended 31* December 2019

2019 2018
Rs. Cts. Rs. Cts.
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Surplus/ (deficit) for the year 595,778 26,420,268
Non-cash mmfements
Ag[ustg_}gm for
Depreciation on property, plant & equipment 3,173,985 3,183,560
Treasury Grant Prior year Adjustment - -
Deferred Income on Funds Received for Fixes Assets 9,372,558 2,208,690
Gratuity Provision for the Year 1,357,148 2,091,465
Property, Plant & Equipment Disposal Loss - 158
Prior Year Adjustments on Fixes Assets 13,056 474,104
CARP Fund {22,430,380) -
Gift (116,892) -
Interest Income
Distress Loan Interest (644,268) (547,354)
Bank Deposits - -
Net Research Investments 6,468,925 (612,336)
Gratuity Payment - (820,928)
Operating Profit Before Changes in Working Capital (2,210,092) 32,397,628
Changes in Working Capital
{Increase) / Decrease in Inventories 64,735 _ {666,628)
(Increase) / Decrease in trade & other receivables 1,839,751 (15,611,734)
Increase / (Decrease) in creditors and payables (665,175) 248,190 _
Cash Generated from Operations (970,781) 16,367,456
Net Cash Flows from Operations Activities (970,781) 16,367,456
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING AC'I’IVIT_IES
Purchase of property, plant & equipment (2,381,431) (2,315,375)
Work in Progress - CARP New Building {2,460,000) -
Interest income
Distress Loan Interest 644,268 547,354
Bank Deposits - -
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities (4,197,163 (1,772,022)
CASH Fi.OWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Treasury Grant Received - -
Net Fund received - -
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities - -
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (5,167,944) 114,595,435
Cash & cash equivalents at b_eginni_ng of the perio_d. 25,446,705 10,851,270 .

Cash & Cash Equivalents at end of period {Note 10) 20,278,761 25,446,705 ,-f}

ng




Notes to the financial statements

Year ended 31 December 2019
2019 2018
LKRs. Cts. LKRs. Cts.

01 Treasury Grants .2019 2018
Recurrent 168,350,300 112,584,500
Capital for Research Management Activities 12,853,209 14,945,548

' ' 181,203,509 127,530,048

02 Otherincome 2019 2018
Distress Loan Interest 644,268 547,354
Sundry income 99,050 18,725
International Symposium . 108,000
Deferred income 3,173,984 110,685
Exchange Gain . 1,077,808

3,917,342 1,862,572

03 Operating Expenses 2019 2018
International Training (A) 136,734,708 48,213,526
Research Management Activities 12,853,209 14,945,548

149,587,917 64,159,073
(A) International Training
2019 2018
Long term Training _
India 9,773,198 3,640,254
Malasiya 62,881,141 6,302,322
Phillippines 46,041,838 15,457,252
Thailand 18,038,531 14,162,555
136,734,708 39,562,382
Short term Training
Bangladesh - 166,391
India - 105,698
Malaysia - 74,000
Thailand - 918,960
Thailand - 7,575,812
USA - 784,833
Orientation Program - 25,450
- 9,651,144
Total Expense on International Training 136,734,708 49,213,526




04 Administrative Expenses 2019 2018

Allowances to Chairman & Director 1,661,907 2,374,960
Employee benefits expenses (A 27,214,340 24,470,545
Travelling Expenses ( B) 34,143 634,816
Fuel to Members 139,250 96,000
Allowances to Members 532,309 429,250
Fule & Lubricant 234,081 206,349
Uniforms 25,000 25,000
Newspapers & Periodicals 17,520 16,809
Stationery 1,130,371 779,433
Repairs & Maintenance ( C) 755,208 571,416
Office Upkeep ( Janitorial service) 674,001 623,594
“ Communication Expenses 419,717 447,295
Electricity Charges . 846,063 - 79,171
Security Charges 1,234,019 806,136
Entertainment/Meting Expenses 560,745 638,556
Staff Welfare 462,163 307,649
Auditor's remuneration 426,384 255,400
Staff Training : 322,370 203,000
Insurance 370,495 387,092
Postage & Stamps 102,725 67,936
Advertisement 493,330 549,921
Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment 3,173,984 3,183,560
Sundry Expenses : 80,931 201,807
Vehicle Tax ' - 6,000
Non Consumable Expenses 26,496 25,914
40,937,552 38,100,208
({ A) Employee benefits expenses 2019 . 2018
Staff Salaries 14,769,582 12,527,049
Cost of Living Allowances 2,506,660 2,534,870
Other Allowances 1,418,332 2,157,247
Overtime : 308,788 227,166
Medical Reimbursement 259,411 267,903
Encashment of medical leave 566,115 -
Research Allowances - -
Transport & Fuet Allowance 3,124,320 2,320,382
Contribution to Employees’ Provident Fund 2,420,271 1,953,677
Contribution to Employees’ Trust Fund 483,714 390,7851?
Gratuity Expense 1,357,147 2,091,465
27,214,340 24,470,545




(B) Travelling Expenses 2019 2018

Local 34,143 43,109
Overseas - 591,707
34,143 634,816
{ C) Repairs & Maintenance 2019 2018
Equipments 278,535 228,704
Vehicles 365,273 303,064
Building . 111,401 35,148
Furniture & Fittings - 4,500
- 755,208 571,416
05 Finance Cost . 2019 2018
Debit Tax 25,737 23,732
Bank Charges 200 -
Exchangeloss 1,121,625 -
' 1,147,563 23,732
06 Prior Year Adjustment 2018 2018
Add: .
Reversal of Accrued Expenses Provision - 280,484
Reversal of Depreciation : - 373,821
Fuel & Lubricants Adjustment - 6,400
Correction of Capital Grants (Treasury Grants -Research ) )
2010 490,950 -
- 201 5,098,189 -
2012 9,811,304 -
2013 10,660,490 -
2014 12,096,339 -
2015 9,462,065 -
2016 6,696,459 -
2017 5,692,846 -
2018 4,408,230 e
64,417,912 660,705
Less: _
Provisioning of Accrued Expenses 899,014 899,234
Building Maintenance - 449,480
Loan Revolving Fund Bank A/C - 1,171
Correction of Capital Grants (Treasury Grants -Research }
2010 {42,681) -
2011 (5,047,710) -
2012 (11,747,822) -
2013 {7,067,044) -
2014 {10,316,405) -
2015 (9,462,065) -
2016 - {6,694,895) -
2017 (5,_530,992} -
2018 (461,325) -
{56,370,939)

Balance as at 31st December 2019 _ 7,147,959
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07 Write off of Assets 2019 2018
Balance brought forward- At Cost
Computer & Printer 299,907 1,054,960
Office Equipment 161,651 533,790
Office Furniture & Fixtures 53,331 10,000
Non- Consumables - -
514,889 1,598,750
Balance brought forward - Accumulated Depreciation
Computer & Printer ' 299,507.14 1,054,960
QOffice Equipment 161,651.38 533,631
Office Fyrniture & Fixtures 53,330.75 10,000
Non- Consumables - -
— 514,889 1,598,591
- 158




Notes to the financial statements
08 Property, plant & equipment

Balance as at Additions Disposals Adjustments Bala_nce asat
01/01/2019 31{.‘12{2619
Cost
CARP Building 22,325,490 - - - 22,325,490
Computer & Printer 10,188,382 1,850,500 299,907 - 11,738,975
Computer Software 2,404,427 - - - 2,404,427
Office Equipment 11,602,037 - 161,651 - 11,440,386
Office Furniture 4,006,098 530,931 53,331 (461,325) 4,022,373
Motor Vehicles 26,321,295 - - - 26,321,295 -
Library books 143,248 - - - 143,248
Non- Consumables - - . - -
76,980,978 2,381,431 514,889 {461,325) ..78,396,194
Balance as at Charge for Balance as at
: Disposals Adjustments
01/01/2019 the year 31/12/2019
Depreciation
CARP Building 15,932,545 1,116,275 - - - 17,048,819
Computer & Printer 8,712,594 911,212 299,907 - 9,323,899
Computer Software 2,404,427 - . - - 2,404,427
Office Equipment 9,151,663 782,685 161,651 (448,269) 9,324,427
Office Furniture 2,599,588 312,438 53,331 - 2,858,695
Motor Vehicles 26,321,295 - - - 26,321,295
Library books 86,402 7,162 - - 93,565
65,208,514 3,129,772 514,889 (448,269) 67,375,127
Net book value as at 11,782,463 11,021,067

2019.12.31



08 -A  Infrastructure

Balance as at Additions 2019 (Disposals) 2019 Balance as at Balance as at
01/01/2019 31/12/2019 31.12.2018
Cost
Electronic Data 8,640,585 - - 8,640,585 8,640,585
Road 884,251 - - 884,251 884,251
9,524,836 - - 9,524,836 9,524,836
Balance as at Charge for (Disposals) 2019 Balance as at Balance as at
01/01/2019 the year 2019 31/12/2019 31/12/2018
Depreciation
Electronic Data 8,_640,535 . - - 8,640,585 8,640,585
Road 279,859 44,213 324,071 279,859
8,920,444 44,212.53 - 8,964,656 8,920,444
N lue as at -
et book value as 3 604,392 560,180 604,392
2019.12.31
2019 2018
09 Inventories
Stamp in hand 6,705 885
Stationery 955,785 999,845
Non- Consumables 531,607 558,102
1,494,097 1,558,832
10 Trade & other receivables 2qT0 2018
Staff Debtors - Distress Loan 3,525,282 2,430,390
Staff Debtors - Festival Advance 3,750 3,750
Unsettied Research Imprest * 659,131 659,131
Deposits Receivable 75,500 75,500
Prepayment 14,086,412 16,831,738
Income Receivable 363,958 553,273
Floricutture Project 50 50
IFPRI Project 518 518
18,714,601

10

20,554,351 .




11 Cash at bank 2019 2018
BOC - Torrington Square 6,963,024 14,017,088
BOC - Loan revol. Fund 4,975,666 5,471,187
BOC Savings A/C - Gratuity Fund 8,340,070 5,958,430 .

20,278,760 25,446,705

12 CARP Fund 2019 2018
Balance as at 01% January 2019 27,639,257 27,639,257
Prior Year Adjustments

2010 - -
2011 (26,402,813) -
2012 (1,964,728) -
2013 6,713,823 -
2014 {2,918,025) -
- 2015 5,116,750 -

2016 -

2017 -
2018 - -
{19,454,993) -

Transfer of Net Balance of Capital Grants
2010 1,456,870 -
2011 4,572,010 -
2012 850,920 -
2013 (5,599,756) -
2014 722,401 -
2015 (1,855,716) -
2016 (831,703) .
2017 (4,286,192) -
2018 (151,012) -
2019 2,146,791 :
(2,975,387) -
Balance as at 31st. December 2019 5,208,877 27,639,257

Jomad




13 Capital Grants - {Treasury Grants - Research) 2019 2018
Balance at the beginning of the year {6,468,925) {5,856,588)
Treasury Grant Received 15,000,000 14,350,000
Prior Year Adjustments

2010 - -
2011 (6,319,092) -
2012 3,355,657 -
2013 {8,812,010) “
2014 3,522,032 -
2015 4,318,929 -
2016 3,058,517 .
2017 1,721,388 -
2018 461,325 (16,789)
1,346,746 {16,789)
Transfer of Net Balance of Capital Grants to CARP Fund '
2010 (1,456,870) -
2011 (4,572,010) -
2012 (850,920} -
2013 5,589,756 -
2014 (722,401) -
2015 1,855,716 -
2016 831,703 -
2017 4,286,192 -
2018 151,012 -
2019 (2,146,791)
2,975,387 .
12,853,209 8,476,623
Research Management & Related Functions
Research Management Activities 10,239,563 12,135,933
Publication, seminars & Workshops 232,215 490,240
10,471,778 12,626,173
Transfer to Deferred Income Fund 2,381,431 2,319,375
12,853,209 14,945,548
Net of Capital Grants Transferred to CARP Fund 0 (6,468,925)

12




14 Deferred Income Fund 2019 2018
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,208,690
2011 32,671,426 .
2012 505,589 -
2013 (2,025,046) -
2014 (2,471,471) -
2015 (9,435,679) -
2016 (3,060,121) -
2017 (1,883,242) -
2018 {4,136,346) -
10,165,110
Government grants Received on Capital Assets 2,381,431 2,319,375
Deferred Income for the Year
For the Assets Purchased in 2019 (3,173,984} {110,685)
Balance at the beginnigg of the year 11,581,247 2,208,690
.5 Retirement Benefit (Gratuity Provision) 2019 2018
Balance as at 01% January 2019 7,820,353 6,549,816
Add : Receipts
Current Year Provision 1,357,147 2,091,465
Interest - -
9,177,501 8,641,281
Less : ment
Payment to Retired Employees - 820,928
Reversal of over provision - -
Balance as at 31st December 2019 9,177,501 7,820,353
6 Trade & other payables 2019 2018
Accrued Expenses 649,329 1,229,260
Deposits Payable 217,890 241,730
Loan Payable 6,200 6,200
NARP Project 233 233
PAYE Payable - 2,155
VAT Payable 12,000 12,000
Retention Payable 47,685 113,153
Other Payable 6,220 -
939,557 1,604,732

13
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Comparision of Approved Recurrent Budget (Revised) and Actual Expenditure Amounts for the year ended

Recurrent Actual Income/ Approved Revised Difference/ Excess
Expenditure 2019 Budget 2019 (Shortage)
LKRs. Cts. LKRs. Cts. LKRs, -  Cts.
01 Treasury Grants
Recurrent 168,350,300 200,000,000 31,649,700
168,350,300 200,000,000 31,649,700
02 (a). OtherIncome
Distress Loan Interest 644,268 - -
Sundry Income 99,090 - -
Deferred Income 3,173,984 - -
3,917,382 - -
03 Administrative Expenses
Employee benefits expenses (A) 28,876,247 37,820,250 8,944,003
Travelling Expenses (B) 34,143 750,000 715,857
Vehicle Hiring Charges - 50,000 50,000
Allowances to Members 532,309 800,000 267,691
Fuel & Qil’ 373,331 650,000 276,669
Uniforms 25,000 30,000 5,000
Newspapers & Periodicals 17,520 20,000 2,480
Stationery & Non Consumables 1,156,867 1,150,000 (6,867)
Repairs & Maintenance (C) 755,208 1,225,000 469,792
Office Upkeep( Janitorial service) 674,001 800,000 125,999
Communication Expenses 419,717 559,750 140,033
Electricity Charges 846,063 1,000,000 153,937
Security Charges 1,234,019 1,500,000 265,981
Meeting Expenses 560,745 600,900 39,256
Staff Welfare 462,163 600,000 137,837
Auditor's remuneration 426,384 350,000 (76,384).
Staff Training 322,370 500,000 177,630 ¢
Insurance 370,495 480,000 108,505
Postage & Stamps 102,725 250,000 147,275
Advertisement 493,330 700,000 206,670
Surcharge - 10,000 10,000
Incidentals - - -
Sundry Expenses 80,931 150,000 69,069
Vehicle Tax _ - - -
Interenational 'Frainigg for NARS 136,734,708 150,000,000 13,265,292
R 174,498,276 199,995,000 25,496,724
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Employée benefits expenses
Staff Salaries 14,769,582 17,768,376 2,998,794
Cost of Living Allowances 2,506,660 3,088,800 582,140
Qther Allowances 1,418,332 1,500,708 82,376
Overtime 308,788 300,000 (8,788)
Medical Reimbursement 259,411 270,000 10,589
Encashment of medical ieave 566,115 1,240,349 674,234
Contribution to Employees' Provident Fund 2,420,271 3,128,576 708,305
Contribution to Employees’ Trust Fund 483,714 625,715 142,001
Defined Benefit Plan Cost - Gratuity 1,357,147 2,792,606 1,435,459
Approved Vehicle & fuel Allowances 3,124,320 4,005,120 880,800
Research Allowances : - 300,000 300,000
Allowances to Chairman & Director 1,661,907 2,800,000 1,138,093
' 28,876,247 37,820,250 8,944,003
Travelling Expenses
Local 34,143 100,000 65,857
Qverseas ) - 650,000 650,000
’ ' 34,143 750,000 715,857
Repairs & Maintenance
Equipments 278,535 300,000 21,465
Vehicles 365,273 700,000 334,727
Building 111,401 200,000 88,599
Furniture & Fittings - 25,000 25,000
755,208 -1,225,000 469,792
Finance Cost
Debit Tax 25,737 - {25,737)
Bank Charges 200 5,000 4,800
Exchange Loss 1,121,625 - (1,121,625)
' 1,147,563 5,000 (1,142,563)
200,000,000 24,354,161

Grand Total 175,645,839
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Folio

Expenditure I
Category

Objective
No./ Section
ois_l'.le Act.

Object
‘Code

Functions

Actual Income/
Expenditure 2019
LKRs. Cts.

Approved Budget 2019
LKRs. Cts.

Difference/ Excess
(Shortagz)
LKRs, Cts.

Research
Management
and Functions of
the council

10-(a)

To advise the Government on alt
matters regarding the organization, co-
ordination, planning and execution of
agricultural research and such other
related matters as may be referreg to it
by the Minister

11,000.00

200,000.00

179,000.00

{Objectives of
Jthe Council)

10- (b)

250

To formulate national agricultyral
research policy and priorities

436,758.00

480,000.00

(16,758.00)

10-{c)

2501

To define the overall aims and scope of

agricultural research with a view to
hering national development

objectives

101,250.00

150,000.00

48,710.00

10-{d)

2501

To make recommendations to the
appropriate aythorities on the financial,
manpgower and physical resources
required by agricultural research
institutigns and establishments and qn
the terms and conditions of service of
the staff of such institutions and
establishments :

157,380.00

390,000.00

232,620.00

10-{e)

2501

| ‘ré review institutional and departmental

agricultural research programmes and
make recommendations with regard to
their priorities and funding to the

| Ministry of the Minister in charge of the
subject of Finance and Planning

1,094,262.50

900,000.00

(194,262.50)

2501

To promote and facﬂitabé excellence in
agricultural research

3,308,130.75

5,000,000.00

1,691,869.25

2501

To éct as a channel of communication
between agricultural research
institutions and the Government

73,322.50

80,000.00

5,677.50

10 - (h)

2501

To arrange for and fund inter-
institutional agricultural research
PIQE cts

2,649,910.61

3,000,000.00

350,089.39

10- (i)

2501

To arrange for and fund special scientific
services for the entire agricultural
research sector

321,384.00

350,000.00

28,616.00

10- ()

2501

To promote linkage between agricultural

‘Jresearch institutions at national and

international level

1573,241.51

2,900,000.00

1,326,758.48

C/F

9,786,679.87

3,663,320.13 -

13,450,000.00
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BJF 5,785,679.87 13,450,000.00 3,663,320.13
To organizé conferences and seminars *
on internatianal, national and inter- .
- ' Y ,000. 24,620.00
10-0) 2501 institytional issues relating to 225,380.00 250,000.00
agricultural research
To arrange for the post-graduate
10-() 2401 training of agricultural research staff and
for interchange of scientists with
recognized research institutions abroad:
To review the performance of
} |agricultural research projects, 72,497.00
10- {m) =0 Iinsmutions and divisions from time to 227,503.00 500,000.00 272,497:
ime A
- ’ 10,239,562.87 14,200,000.00 3,960437.13
Acquisition of . I -
capital Assets
(a)} Building,
Plant, Machinery 2103
- 4,841,431.25 15,400,000.00 10,558,568.75
2105
4,841,431.25 15,400,000.00 10,558,568.75
*
Rehabilitation & _
{improvements of 2001
Capital Assets
4 {Other Capital
diture
(a) Restructuring 2502 N .
(b} Seminar,
Workshop & 2502 232,215.00 400,000.00 167,785.00
Publication
232,215.00 400,000.00 167,785.00 |
Grand Total 15,313,209.12 30,000,000.00 14,686,790.88

rosk
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GENERAL
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PART I

16.1.1 B asis oi‘_Pregaration

a)

b)

d)

Statement of compliance - The financial statement of the council comprise
the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Financial Performance,
cash flow statement and notes to the financial statement.

The financial statement was authorized for issue by the Council on 27%
February 2020.

Reporting entity - The institute of Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural
Research Policy has been registered under the Parliament act.No.47 of 1987
on 27th of December 1987. The registered office of the council is situated
at No.114/09, Vidya Mawatha, Colombo 07, Sri Lanka.

Principle activities and nature of operations - SLCARP was established
in 1987, under the Act No.47 of 1987 to ensure that agricultural research is
directed towards national development through formulation of agricultural
research policy, research prioritization, planning, facilitation, co-ordination,
monitoring and evaluation of agricultural research.

A Description of the Nature of the Entity - Sri Lanka Council for
Agricultural Research Policy is an umbrella organization of the National
Agricultural Research System (NARS) that operates within several
Ministries. SLCARP came into existence on the 22nd December 1987 to
create an environment for more productive agricultural research.

SLCARP’s mission is to enhance and mobilize the scientific resources in Sri
Lanka efficiently to catalyze and agricultural research and technology
generation within NARS,

With the Secretariat in Colombo, SLCARP serves as an organization in an
advisory capacity for co-coordinating and consolidating efforts within Sri
Lanka NARS, funding research projects/programmers and promoting scientific
research linkages in prioritized areas both nationally and internationally. CARP
has been instrumental in promoting and facilitating research, by improving and
enhancmg agticultural research through documentation and communicating
latest advances in research to the NARS scientists. SLCARP has identified its
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own perspective, plans and programs for the future in keeping with the
aspirations and goals of the Ministry of Agriculture Development and Agranan
Services to meet the future challenges in enhancing domestic food production
and exports focused on poverty reduction.

f) Our Vision - A vibrant and sustainable agricultural research, developmem
and innovation system assuring socio- economic development of Sri Lanka.

g) Our Mission - To ensure agricultural research, development and
innovations are directed towards national development goals through policy
formulation, facilitation, coordination, monitoring and evaluation and
impact assessment. |

h) Our Mandated Functions - SLCARP

(1) To advice the Government on all matters regarding the organization, co-
ordination, planning and execution of agricultural research and such other
related matters as may be referred to it by the Minister;

() to formula:te national agricultural research policy and priorities;

(3) to define the overall aims and scope of agricultural research with a view
to furthering national development objectives;

(4) to make recommendations to the appropriate authorities on the financial,
manpower and physical resources required by agricultural research
institutions and establishments and on the terms and conditions of service
of the staff of such institutions and establishments;

(5) to review Institutional and departmental agricultural research programmes
and make recommendations with regard to their priorities and funding to
the Ministry of the Minister in charge of the subject of Finance and
Planning;

(6) to promote and facilitate excellence in agricultural reésearch;

(7) to act as a channel of communication between agricultural research
institutions and the Government;

(8) to arrange for and fund inter-institutional agricultural research projects;

13
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(9) to arrange for and fund special scientific services for the entire agricultural
research sector;

(10)to promote linkage between agricultural research institutions at national and
international level; '

(11)Organize conferences and seminars on mmaﬁond, national and inter-
Institutional issues relating to the agricultural research;

(12)to arrange for the post-graduate training of agricultural research staff and
for interchange of sclentlsts with recogmzed research institutions abroad;
and

(13)to review the performance of agncultural research pro;ects institutions and
divisions from time to time.

16.1.2. National Agricultural Research Plan (NARP)

National Agxiculturai.Research Plan_ (NARP) is one of the mandatory functions
conducted by Sri Lanka Council for Agiiculuual Research Policy under the
programme no 1 and 13 of the Action Plan .U.nder this programme SLCARP does
the recommendation of research project proposals for funding, monitoring of
ongoing projects and evaluating of the terminal reports. Main objective of this.
programme is to facilitate Agricultural research by providing funds, monitoring
ongoing projects and evaluating of terminal reports of these projects.

Annuéll_y, end of the year, SLCARP prepares NARP, the document containing all
the details of the research projects to be conducted in the following year. The
projects are implemented by the institutions of the National Agricultural Research
System (NARS) and agriculture related Faculties of the National Universities.
Currently NARP is operated in the Departmént of Agriculture, Department of
Export Agriculture, and agriculture related Faculties of National Universities.
These projects are designed in accordance with the priority areas identified by Sri
Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy for a particular period.

20
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16.1.3. Capacity Building Programme

SLCARP decided to revitalize Human Resources Development for the NARS as
there was a felt requirement for training officers to M.Sc. and PhD level. Thus,
SLCARP submitted a proposal to the Ministry of Agriculture for Capacity Building
of the Researchers of the NARS for which Cabinet Memorandum was issued on
21 September 2017 under the heading of Directing of Researchers of the NARS
for Foreign postgraduate degree training.

This programme provides provision for training to address the training requirement
of the National Agriculture Research System of this country, which needs much
strengthening to meet the challengers of the sector and to be in par with the
neighboring countries in the region.

Number of Candidates who have received admission under the Capacity Building
long term training Programme of SLCARP in year 2019 and on-going scholars of
the Capacity Development Programme. '

No of Scholars

University Putra Malaysia - Malaysia 28
University of Philippines Los Banos — Philippines 23
University of the Philippines Diliman — Philippines 01
Kasetsart University — Thailand | 02
Asian Institute of Technology (AIT) — Thailand 03
Haryana Agricultural University — India 01
Kerala Agricultural University — India 01
Professor Jayasankar Telangana State Agricultural'

University (PJTSAU) — India 01
Acharya N.G. Ranga Agricultural University — India 01
C S K Himachal Pradesh krishi Vishvavidyalaya — India 01

16.2.1 Accounting Policiés and Concepts;

Accounting policies consist of principles, bases, conventions, rules and procedures,
and also Accounting concepts are ideas and assumption which are fundamental to
accounting practices. Therefore some of our accounting concepts are as follows;

16.2.2 Basis of meﬁsurement

163

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cash basis. No
adjustment has been made for inflationary factors in the financial statement.

Functional and presentation of currency
The financial statement of the year end 2010 were presented in Sri Lankan rupees

(LKRs.) and nearest cents.
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However we have decided to present our Financial Stﬁterhent in LKRs. And round
to the nearest rupee which is effective from the financial year January 01% 2011
and ahead. Year 2017 was presented in LKRs. and rounded to the nearest rupee.

The stipend and University fees relating to Capacity Building program are paid in
USD () where that Expenses is converted to LKR at the spot rate of transaction
date and prepaid the stipend and University fees are taken in to financial
statements at the rate of Balance sheet rate. The difference arisen due to changes
on Exchange rate has been taken in to financial statements as exchange gain or
Loss.

16.4 Accounting for Govt. Grants disclose of Govt. Assistance

(@) Accounting for Government Grants & Disclosure_of Government Assistance is
adopted. '

(b) We '&rrher say, that_accounting policy had been adopted _with regard to the
government grants was the method of capital approach but that government grant
was related to the fixed assets it had been taken to the accounts under the method

of income approach.

(¢c) A Deferred Income Fund has been identified only in respect of the assets purchased
 during the year 2018 in the Financial Statements of 2018

16.4.1 Capital Grants [Treasui‘v Grants Research)

According to the Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy Act No.14 of
1987, all the Grants received need to be credited to CARP Fund and all the

expenses need to be done out of that. In that Sense Capital Grants (Treasury Grants
Research) need to be a considered as a supplementary Note to the CARP Fund and

the remaining balance need to be reflected in the CARP Fund each Year. Then only
Carp Fund will be remaining as an Equity Fund in Statement of Financial Position.

From 2010 to 2017 the funds that were used to purchase of fixed assets have not
been reflected in the Capital Grants (Treasury Grants Research). But a
depreciation_income had been transferred to the Statements_of Comprehensive
Income. Because of that cumulative adverse effect over last years a_negative
balance in CARP fund was visible in Capital Grants (Treasury Grants Research)
in2017 & 2018.

P
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Corrective Adjustments have been made in order to rectify above adverse effect
based on the issues emphasized by the Auditors General by his queries dated

31.12.2019 with the reference of AGL/E/CARP/2018/03.

In Summary areas that were recognized by the Auditor General is as follows.

1. TIreasury Grants Research _
In the years of 2017 & 2018 Treasury Grants Research has reflected negative

balances.

a) Council have made capital exggmes more than Fund received for the

activities in
b) Itwas doub;&l the marmer of e xge es that were incurred on fixed assets

without reflecting such expenses in Treasury Grants Research as that is in

capital nature. _
¢) The depreciation impact of Non- Consumables has also affected to the

negative balance in Treasury Grants Research.

2. The Amortization of the funds recg;ved on behalzf of Fixed Assets have not been

happened according to the requirements of LKAS 20, Accounting for Government
Grants & Disclosure of Government Assistance as the funds used for those fixed

assets purchases are not reflected in Treasury Grants Research,

3. According to the Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy Act No.14 of
1987, all the Grants received need to be credited to CARP Fund and all the

expenses need to be done out of that.

In order to rectify the above the initial entries that had been passed to Accumulated

Surplus or Deficit (Prior Year Adjustments), Carp Fund & Gift were reversed in _

respective Years and placed the correct entries according 1o LKAS 20, Accounnng

for Government Grants & Disclosure of Government Assistance the Correction
entries, Calculation and the explanatory notes are attached as Anmexures.

16.4.2 Research Management Acﬁvities

Generally, the Capital Fund are utilizing to Research Management Activities where the
requirements of LKAS 38 for Intangible assets are not comply with. Hence the Research

management activities are in a nature where that could not be capitalize. Due to that

reason both the expense and amount of Fund are shown in the Comprehensive Income
Statement in order to reflect the effect.
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17. 1. VALUATION OF ASSETS

1.1 Property Plant & Equipment

Property plant & equipment are on the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and is provided on the straight line method at the following rates per

annum.
a) Building - 05%
b) Computer & printers 30%
c) Computer Software 30%
d) Office Equipment 15%
e) Office Furniture 15%
f) Vehicles 25%
g) Road 05%
h) Library Book 05%
1) Electronic Data 30%
Revaluation of Assets

Request has been made to the secretary Ministry of Agriculture for revaluation of assets.
Adjustment will make for 2019 after receiving of the revaluation report. A revaluation
committee has been appointed by now where as the council approval is pending.

1.2 Disposal Value |
Value of disposal items has been decided by the council approved valuation committee.

1.3 Trade & Other Receivables

Trade & Other Receivables incurred Staff Debtors, Unsettled Research Imprest, Deposits,
Prepayment, Income receivable & Project receivables.

1.4 Composition of EPF & ETF rates;

Employer Employee Total
EPF 15% 10% 25%

ETF 03% - 03%

24



1.5 Unsettled Research imprest

The research imprest has been given to various research Institutes/ Upivei‘sities in Sri
Lanka. However, some of the research institutes/ Universities do not settle this research
imprest at the year-end such amount stated as an unsettled research imprest.

1.6 Stocks

Stocks are shown in the financial statement at lower of market value or purchase price.
The stock is valued using FIFO method. The Non Consumables are classified as stock item
based on the nature of that category which was previously presented in Property plant and
equipment. The Depreciation provided so far is reversed back to Prior Year Adjustments.

1.7 Gratuities

A provision has been made according to regulations 5 of Gratuity Act. No.12 of 1983 in
respect of employees eligible under the Act.

1.8 Receivable Deposits

Values of refundable and receivable of deposits are namely as follows;

A. W. Ranasinghe (Filling Station - Kollupitiya)
Postgraduate Institute of Management - Library
Sri Lanka Telecom - IDD

1.9 Other Matters

2.0 Ownership of the Building SLCARP
Request has been made to the Secretary ministry of Agriculture to clear the ownership of

the land and Building which is used by the SLCARP.

2.1 Pending Litigation of Mr. W.M.D. B. Abyerathne
The Council noted the present status after the disciplinary inquiry - Mr. W.M.D. B.
Abyerathne, Former Accountant, SLCARP. In addition, the council approval was also
granfed to handover the case against Mr. W.M.D. B. Abyerathne to Attorney General to
cover Rs. 587, 418 the amount which is to be recovered from him.
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Our Corporate Information

As at 31* of December 2019
Name of the State Owned Enterprise
Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy
Ministry
Ministry of Mahaweli, Agriculture, Irrigation and Rural Development
Seecretary to the Ministry
Mr. Neel Bandara Hapuhinne

Classification of General Treasury (PED /COP/POLLCircular-17.06.2015)

Budgetary Funded — Research and Development Agencies/ Entities established under an Act. of Parliament
to perform research and development activities for the benefit of the National Economy or in the wider
interest of the public are deemed as Research and Development Agencies.

Supervision and Monitoring Role Managed by
Department of Public Enterprises (PED)

Carder Supervision & Corporate Plan Managed by
National Salaries and Carder Commission / Department of Management Services (MSD)

and
Department of Public Enterprises (PED)

Annuai Budget and Action Plan Managed by
Department of National Budget

Governed by
The Council of Sri Lanka Council for Agricuitural Research Policy

Head of the Council

Secretary / Director

Legal Form
Incorporated Under the Parliament Act.

Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy Act, No. 47 of 1987




SLCARP Annual Report 2019
Registered Office
No.114/ 09, Vidya Mawath , Colombo -07
Sri Lanka

Telephone Numbers
0094 — 11 - 2697103, 2697648, 2698001,2685688, 2665076, 2665077

Fax Number

0094 - 11 - 2982951

E-mail - slcarp.agri@gmail.com

Our Website - www.slcarp.lk

Auditors to the SI. CARP

Auditor General

Secretary to the Council / Head of the Department
Secretary / Director
Bankers

Bank of Ceylon ~Supper Grade Branch, Independence Square, Colombom07, Sri lanka.
¢ Current A/C No. 2323310
¢ Swift Code BCEYLKLX ,Bank Code 7010 ,Branch Code 453
¢ Telephone Number 0094 - 11-2692506

Lawyers to the SL CARP

Attorney General, AG’s Department, Colombo 01, Sri Lanka.




\ fﬁ;mo(._x. 0SNG

_—

- mﬁﬁnzwo\. . M..%m ¢ Aq padyooyD) «2% ‘Aq poredaiy
0620976191 S ITS6ETELT | 00°8VSSP6'PT 00°LO6°EST P8 | 00°T6I°LSO'ST 00" 7T 7S8°8€ sasuadxq [enmoy
00°000°000°ST 00'00€°0SE89T | 00°000°0SEYT | 00°00SV8STIT | 00°000°T08°01 00°000°0SP°Ey | PoAleIaY spuny [enjoy
00°000°000°0€ 00°000°000°00C | 00°000°000°SE | 00°000°000°0SE | 00°000°000°0Z 00°000°000°0S pasoiddy [eio],
00°000°000°0% 00°000°0SS°L8T | 00°000°005°681 | 8T 12T 19L ES 00'000°00L°SLT | S8°ELOPSS°IS Sjewpsy [€10],
1ende) JUILINIY [ende) JULININY [ende) JUALINDY sienonIe g
6102 8107 L10T aBd X
00°01€6£96 | 00°0I80FF 1€ | 00'1LETES T 00'TLISYT LT 00°68L°60L°61 00'806°921°9Z | 0091 1°ZH9°SI 00°S£6°L0Y ST sasuadxy [enjoy
00°00L°96L8 | 00°000°00Z°€E | 00°559°8L6 oo.og.mmmdm 00°000°L¥F°0T | 00°061°S10°9C | 00°0£0°€ZEQT 00'000°009°ST | PaAIRdY spun,] [enOY
00°000°000°0Z | 00°000°000°9S | 00°000°000°0€ 00'000°02T°1¢ 00°000°000°0€ | 00°068°01L°LZ | 00°000°000°0€ 00'000°000°LC pasoxddy g0,
00°000°000°SE | 9€°€69°TH0°9S | 00°000°00¥°SL £€°€81°698°9¢ 00°0P6° 180°€L | LTH6S'CES T | 00°000°S90° 101 | 00°881°96L°6€ dpewnsy [e10],
jende) JULINDIIY rende) JURLININY rende) JUILININY [ende) JULININY saemonIey
9107 S102 141114 €107 RL2 )

S10T - TI0T SI'e_( 193png

A0 YIIBISIY [BIN[MILISY 0] [[oUN0)) eyjue | 1iS




Summary of the Recommendations

made at the Audit and Management Committee Meetings Conducted in year 2020

Composition of the Audit & Management Committee in Year 2019,

Audit & Management Committee:
1 Dr. Kapila Senanayake, Ministry of Finance & Planning ~ Chairman
2 Prof. Gamini Seananayake, Faculty of Agriculture, University of Ruhuna — Member
3 Dr. H. M. P Kithsiri, National Aquatic Resources Research and Development Agency — Member

By Invitation:
1 Mrs. Udeni Perera, Audit Superintendent, Agriculture & Agrarian Board
2 Mr. U S L Kumara, Internal Auditor, Ministry of Mahaweli,Agriculture, Irrigation and Rural Development

Numbers of Meetings Convened with Duties:
57" Audit & Management Committee Meeting — 10" April, 2019
58" Audit & Management Committee Meeting — 16 August, 2019
59" Audit & Management Committee Meeting — 14" October, 2019

All Recommendation of the Audit & Management Committee Meetings held have been submitted
to the Council of SLCARP.

Recommendations made at the Audit & Management Committee Meetings:

Papers submitted at the 57th AMC Meeting Submission Requirements Action by
Information Recommendation

Confirmation of the Minutes of the 56™  [Submitted for

. ) ) ) - Secretary
Audit & Management Committee meeting |Information
Budget revision 2019 Submitted for_ Secretary
- recommendation
P f the 1% Quarter of 2019 submitted for - Secreta
rogress of the 1™ Quarter o Information © M
. Submitted fi
Unutilized tyres Homitted for - Secretary

Information




Papers submitted at the 58th AMC Meeting Submission Requirements Action by
Information | Recommendation
Confirmation of the Minutes of the 57"  |Submitted for
) ) . - Secretary
Audit & Management Committee meeting [Information
‘Revision of Recurrent Budget 2019 Submitted for
- Secretary
recommendation
Progress of the 2™ Quarter of 2019 Submitted for ) Secretary
Information
. . Submitted for
Unutilized tyres Information - Secretary
Annual Asset Verification Submitted for
. - Secretary
Information
Internal Audit Division Submitted for
. - Secretary
information
PAYE Dr. Wijewardena, Former Secretary  [Submitted for
) - Secretary
Information
Transfer of remaining Balance of Bank A/C,|Submitted for Secreta
BOC, A/C No. 1632497 to Treasury information i
Auditior General’s Report 2018 Submitted for
i - Secretary
Information
Investigation — Research Grant Negative|Submitted for '
- Secretary
Balance Information o
Half year Financial Statements 2019 Submitted for '
- . * |Secretary
recommendation
Revision of Capital Budget 2019 Submitted for
- Secretary
recommendation
Papers submitted at the 59th AMC Meeting Submission Requirements Action by
Information Recommendation
Confirmation of the Minutes of the 58™|Submitted for
. . . - Secretary
Audit & Management Committee Meeting |Information
Matters Arising from Minutes Submitted for S
- ecretary
information
Handing over duties of resigned|Submitted for
. - Secretary
Accountant _ Information
Recovery of Overpaid medical leave Submitted for
. - Secretary
encashment calculation 2018 recommendation -
Revision of Recurrent Budget 2019 Submitted for
- . Secretary
recommendation
Revision of Capital Budget 2019 Submitted for
- . Secretary
recommendation
Proposed revision of Capital Budget - _ Submitted for Secretary
2020 _ recommendation
rd Submitted f
- Progress of the 3™ quarter of 2019 ubmitted for i Secretary
Information

Convener

yoyna

( Project & 1nstitﬁ1§0nai Vinanee /mnftgem;l?t]
k iiinisiry of Agriculture, Livestock _Der\{re OE& e
Yrrigation and Fisheries & Ac;ua,u':. Reso
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SiMPls1d
@ evmIenSNaIF ML TTUFR & & TaTanSFemL (©).60.9L.0&T.5.) 1987 @60 47

DB VEHE@).0N.9.Q&M.F.FLLINFLLAIMGHIDEOLUNMNNSGS QFTLTHS 1987

QLD e0oT(H B FLOLFLOMSLD 22

AU IDH&EH&HNG6S ML NNFFOTELDSTLINGHELILIL LI 3jeTmledmbh S,
@.600.9.Q&m.F.

GaF Walleus e, Tmilds nenmennuileu(NARS)eN6UE T QLT TUIEF)
QEWMOHUTL® L LMBISEHE G256 6UH 6086060 WnTe:FH UL (HeUb S 6Tens.
NARS6m MmO UN6V2_8515 862 (IH &5 L0 606V6T M LI(H & Sl 61 & 60T 26 L1856 61 &F ITULI &5 Sl 60) D
Wl6Ly, T MR emUIWLD,

IL9aN 5 5 et W U LD6eUsVILILI[H & &I LD QUITIHL_(H Gl 85 T6IT6m 85 8560 61T U LD G M (LD 60 D & F)
L LMB1&6M6T W IDG W MflS SaILpnkiGeal s @).al.0. 0 & M.8. @) 6Tas L LTS ST mLITH
&eflevep( QSMPMHUITLMGLD. QT mUiI&Fs

FIH S LN6oTe) Iflem L LILI ] 61 85 600 61T (@) 60T 61 85 [TETBI &5 6V,

6555 S160)M 5611608 856160 LIS Tl 60T 26mL_ T8 LITeN LITTnL_(H M6 & & 256 56V,
LT MULEFR BL A8 605U L6eTH [T CIB T & LD LI [T&F &) 61) 60T 5 615 & (5 S 761 & TETDI 55 6V),
IBBHSEGWESOTAFWMLT(H&n6aTCLLN LG S S eUF 6V LIMISG 6L FQ&F U160
6T60T LI6oT GLIM6dTM LI6ool1856T@)H&H@).6. ). Q& T.&.

@ eTTsTearQ SN MHLTH S&6TTESLD.

SHOLMWLSI@)\HS T LIWN6eTeneuDS MLNEG & LILIL L Li6Teol1Q 6ot (h G &8 &\ LI & (LD 8 5561
& IT600T L1 L1 (h) ) 60T (D 60T.

i.  eleusmwe wilflweQsmlevm L LbUMMUCHF WG (NCAB)
i. eleuFmwehH T LISIF6oormg6eTUMMIWCHF W@ (NCAM)
i.  BrlweveuerinmMIDELMHAMTNeLLIMNMILCHF WG (NCAR)
iv. LWhSTalImi&GeTeleryLLeLTmilds nmnminglelmssumnmucCs s ulEw
(NCFRD)
v.  elermiseTUMMIWGHF W@ (NCF)
vi.  STVHELG6TIMHMNGHTINeueTTLILLMOHMULCHF UG (NCLP)
vii.  @UWIMENSHEUETHIGET(LNSTENLNS S0, Bl60)6V6 LIMIGE @& 6N 6U &S MWLM MILDGT
suBlemeu D ITMMLDLIMMIWCEH & UG W (NCNRMSACC)
vii.  @umensallauFmwbumMwWCHFWG LD (NCOA)
ix. UWlFseT GuUT® wmmin elleusmwd ummlu CaH W & (NCPB)
X.  STeuryliumsismiyummlwuCsa W@ w (NCPP)
Xi.  SMalmL&GULN6r-05mEleLmE L LIDIMmID Wmefll GLIMaqms @ LMl
CHFA W & (NCPHTHN)
Xii. FPSLIQUTHETTSTIIMMHMID Q&TeTems LG LILTUI6LIMHMIWECHE UG LW
(NCSEPA)
@emeu i, allGaq L all@hehmeor CaFemausserfler BILGSLD LeoTou[HeueoT GLIMeTm
aNCaq L alEhEhTeT & (W& 86T BIWLAEELILIL L 6.
i. 2 ewrey LDMMILD S TW @ 6eVhEiend FEhFlens LIGLIL| FeLl
. QWUmMUES emibs QamhHLLeTeS&6T LmMIU 2 L GE 86T
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FenLIUN 60T &L LITW LI6oorl & eir

. NeUEF WL ITULIES el L LLIMIS6m6ITeR (LD M1 & 60) L0 & &6V, 62(IH IR 61) 60015 &6V,
S LGS MHOIDBlenMEaMHMIG6,

LOMMILD 60D & & Ifl60T M6V & M LILT(H Q& WU LI LIL_TeVLD6TER DS LD LB S LILIL
L 3|58 6008 16T 60 60T U6l L LLITHI S 6T(LN &5 69 W F 8606l LU MBI & TG & ITL[TLI 8yl
LD S| TEF IS D M &3, E6V TS 60)60T6U LD MBI (G 55 6V.

. GHAWYTMTUFR&HQ S TETENSH G M6TLLD LDMHMILD (Weteaflenn EMTHS
S| LD F 618 60)61T | LD 6V (& & & 60 L0 & & 6V.

. CaxAWLINNHEE &M &G M em e G ey LD el [fl6u M8 & D GHITE & 6V
aleusmuweLTmER 6Tl HOLMSS 8GN 8 C8 MeTd: M6 LD LDMMILD
GIBITE 61 56V 60)6V60) LI U| LD 66D [T UL MI & & 6V.

. QIS T ITULIE G\ B MI6) & 6185 @15 & & LD LD M MILD & ITLI60T 61 & @5 & & LD C &
606U WIIT6OT (1 5), L0601 8561 69110 M M1 LD G\ LI 6T S 8561 61T 61 &5 61T6T 60T LI 60T
QML LDMHMILD D& 56008 U B M6 60T 615 61l 60TSI LD,

&ITLI6oT Ml & 6rfl 6or 51 LD 26 LAl WL 17 85 611 60T G F 6pr 60

Q&ML LM B WS &6TMMILD B LIHSEH6060T85 6T &ML T LIewhQUTHS S
Lomeor2_ [l B & TT & 60) L1 85615 & & &) LI [f] 5+ 85 60 61T (LD 60T 60) 61 & &5 6V.

. BlmI6I6oT DD HMILDE) 60)600T&H S 6T F T H SN QU T QLT TUIFR B &HLDEF &
FL_LM1&HemeTN6TTeQF WGSBS MG L L IOl wsHmE&LeUIT
DILIL|en LW S| e EF 6T emnng &8 @, BlS werlliNer mllg s L0
Wwereiflenn FTbHS

6 L WITBIB6TQ & ITL [T LIT6oT &) LI T [f] 57 85 60 61T (LD 60T 60) 61 &5 55 6V.

. alleFmuermilgsFs

BL6ULY.86m 8 U L& M LIL| 5 5 60T6m L0 60 U 26185 (& 611 & S 31 & 60T BILA & 5510

2 56 &6V.

. QTFMMHIGSH MG DM MILDEN 6UE T T ITULIE T B M6 & I8 E1H & LD @)
MLUNLVRHOSTLIUTL6VINTTHEHLINMSSCS TN ML S 6V.

. BlMIaISHISEDEHG@ ML UlvalesmTwU T TR &5 [HS

G518 60)6T6R (LD MBI & 60 LD & &1 3| & & 60 & U1 & (H 5

L 515658 G B 5 ulerfl &8 60.

. (PWELTSSN U TUISL T ITULIE T & Sl 60 M & 85 MeoT GF 60) 61 & 61l 60T

B &5 06N Gaq L6l 6h6h 6T GF 60161 560 6MER (LD MBIHMINE H HS
GFem6USHEH5 & BB W6l s 6v.

10. eleuF Mo TTUIF & Bl M6 &b & 6EH 8 G ) 0L U6 Blevea| D2 _Mme|&HemeaTCs

FAWLMHMIDEFTaUCHFIEMaNLELIDLIL FQ&FUIS6V.

11. e ML TTUIFSF UL 6TQ &L IJL|6m L WIBl M6 5 BISH 65 &G @) 60 L_Uil6v

SmeorLILQ & erm LNTFF emerser, G WMMMIDEFTeUCsHF el L
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S| LD F 615 6IT6T60T LIGOTQ & ITL_ [T LIM60T LO T HT(h 8 60)61T UL| LD LD M MILD &5 (1H & & 60) [J Th
G&HMETUW LD MUTH QO &F U SIILDMHIE S 6V.

12. Nl GU& TS, TIT UL & & 26 LA WLITT 85 615 &5 & LI L L L1LN 60T LI LIL |
Q& MTLFUMmeor LW HE) 8560 6/TeR (LD M1 & 60 LD & &6V L0 D MILD Q 61 61T B T(H) & 6116V
IBIBHHHELILUL LI TTUER
FTI b B M6 mis6rfleotedl @h @b meoflsemer LU oMMl 66 & MeTemev.

13. UM ITUER&HE5HS HL_Lkigeflersin,
L0 M MILD B M161 & IS 6rfl eorgi L Lo 1 o)1 LD L9 1] 61 & 6rfl 60T &1 LD Q) & LI 6V IT D M1 60) 5>
MW el LIQ LT SILS6TITULIE G &FUIS6V.
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& 6emeveUrletr 9in)&enss

2019 9ulb bevor(h SHMeVLl LUGH ullev @evmiend afleusmul oL FTUlgFs
Q&MeTems Fenll (©).6..Q&HM.F.) QFW HLLID FTiHS
QEFEWMUMTRHSmET Qeumms&TInms CLmG & meoor(® BlenmCeumnilwl ..
AHVML alleUF W WTTULER enmentouilev (NARS) 2_aiTerT

6@ 6h 6ol 5 EH &G CHFIW l(HEIHem6T aULpBIGIU|LD, NARS

QLI TUERWmeT g erledr LMMeLEem6T &L LG 6TWLILIW LD, eleusmul
TTUESF &HS G LBIGH6T QLUMMIG Q&MTHSSILD,

GeUEmBEVLITTBIG S6METWLD LDMMILD S(HS ST HIEGE6METWLD HLSHU|LD
FenLIUN6oTITEL 56015 & 2, 6m600T U618 L1LIL(H6TeT Lisv (L& &I
QamEMmUTH&Hm6T QaumMI&TINTES QEFWMLGSSH BlenmGaimm (WL HSHSI.

aleusmw rrds Lflallev SmLiL Bl eorssieusHMmesmer G5 W

N ((H 156 QULDMBIGH 6V 6T6dTLISI @)T600T(h 6U(HLMISEHEHE @[ HLem6l HL S
LI e l(h& QILPMHISG S LIDMGWD. @hs HLL LD efleusmul o milgFe
BL AU EeMEHEH6T60 AL HS LITSHHCUISLOTET &8 60608560 6T L0GH &S
Q&mergell& @D (NSLOME @evhiens elleus T QLT TUES Q& meTens FeoLl
eLn6VLD (LNEITQET(H &S LILIL (B 6Tem S LInm@GLD. 4 Lgsmer Lifleysefledmb s
6l 60oT600T LI LIMIS 6T G&MTLILLL60T. 355608 W L ifleys et Lileoreu[HLomm:
QUGBHGSHTLLLD,QUIBBHECSHTL LD FTFTH606U,&HLMHAMTHSHET L0MHmILD
&HMVHeMLG6T. eneorml L fleysserflel @pHSISDLISS! eLnedTml 6)l6vorevor LILIL]
LILQ 6UMBIG 6T TenL_& S @) (HHS60T. &5 em& W Lfleygser LilesreupLomm:
QUWBBHCHTLLLD, QUIBHCHITL LD FTFMSHN6 LDMHMID &L MHEMTLE6LEET.
&meupen g6t LNflellev @ @hHs! el6oorevor LILIMIS6T &N Henl G851l
QuMal6vemev. eleTLITSH6L GMIGSIenTsHS GOILNILLILL (G @mbHS
GxemaulILIMTH&Heme6T e fleamns 6Tl (b elleooreoor LI LIL.6)MbIg 6T

R LG5 QLMHMET. bH& ellevorevor LILILI LIl eumig&eT LNggmer Q& ifleys

& et epevld BIFTaE&H&ELILL Leor. eteleummmuileniln 45 6l evoreoor LILIL

LI eUmBIS6T ILGEWL LHLLT MG 2 L LBSSLILILLET. &GS 2_6mLWl 45
elevoTeooT LILI STTT&HEHE G @6emLUilev @@Ha ell(ha QLMIBISET,
afleusmw ITUFR Q&meaTens Fenll (@).6.94.06m.5) Blulss @ mHs 3
fley eminbs mlLeorssiel WeTTule)] & s aserfler 2 sallu|Leor LNy meor
Q5fleyd G weller eLneuld CHTHE eT(H &S LILILL 6T, @) 6vhiemssudleor

LIL& M6V HLNSMIGET, CSFIW afleus Tl QTmMUFSF (NemmenL& 6T
BlmiasBIsGeTIMMID Seoflwmy Lifley eteoreummlev @@HS! eulaQLmm
2er AT 6T L BSOS HGF) 260l W &FWmGHernmer LNrSH b S &er @bhs
F&H6V Y WLIKIG6TleD/ & Waserflann o 6Ter L mIS uIlHHS6eor. 10 QLT TUlFe &
GWHHEHEH G BT LUTTTL(H FmeormIS L& 6T L HIse0Ts el(HSI8EHLD
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QULNMBIS 60615 LI L60T. (LNG6VITLD, @) F600TL_TLD DM MILD CLNESTMITLD

N BSISHEm6T QUMM 6UQUT(H & WN6TSID FHEV (HIS S 6T EHE G
FIeTMIHLOSEBHLD, Hl6060T6) &Fl60T60T IS EHLD LD MHMILD Lievor LIKFlIF608@HLID
GULPMRIG LILIL_L_60T. (D& 6VITLD, @)J600TLITLD LOMMILD CLOEOTMITLD

(& FHEH&E T LicvorLl LNf1&levaserfledr G\LIMILDMTEoT RIS 6T (LNemm Gl erp.
300,000.00, 250,000.00L0 M miLDerp.200,000.006T60T & MevoTLILIL_ L 60T, LITFITL(H
FIeTMISLLGHMET QLIMM QeuMMIWITeTI&HEH& G WL (HLD &Fmedrm&LD 86T
QULPMIT 60)61 & & LILIL L 60T,

@QbS Fel AW LGNS elleusmw QLTTUES BloImsseT &missSSers
(APAARI) ol QLTS SIMLOLIL|L 60T, GemmeUms LiwedT LG &SSLILIMLWD LeoT
LOMMILD &LV &FMT @UIM6ENT QUETHIGET 6TedTLIeoT LIMMIW 6(H FIeuCsH &
GauemevWTmIeNs gMLUM(H QF IS FHemeoT 2019 LD 21,600T(H W,L6M6V
DTS 10 QD H&EH) NSV 12 9Llb H&ESF) aueny CHF W HifluieL eueTmI&S6T
(P& Blemeu (NARA) aUeTTEHSH 6V BLSH WS, LNgmHS w & wlmeor

B 60075 S16U GeUm6VTTHIEG G6MMeUTs LIl URQSSLILMILWD LS6oTa 6T
LDMHMID HL6V FITY QUETMHIGET QSTLITLITET elLial(NLD IHmID FMHS
QEFWETM&EHL LmMlu sinflenel LIS THE Q& TeTEHID (N&INTH TG
SIMEHGLD LDHMID 6ol SlemmEGLD @ emLulevmer LKIsTeflHgial0n
LOMMID eUeMEVLIEMINLIL] QLHIIDENM QTS SIS Q& MTeTEHL QLML ()
Blemevuwlmeor LIS MeflEsalsHems CWLGESS G5 6emeUUTeT (H &HeTs s
MG S QSHBTHSSICTETSI. &MU LIW6eT LM &SSLILIMG SR 6Tm &L_6V
@UIMENS AUETMHIGET LDMMILD 3jeUMenm 6U6ol 18U LU SSH60 G Ul
I|hFmiseTlev g ulesemer CUILMSS Frsglulnmer Liifle]&semerTuLd
H6TQ & TemL/BISHUINHIG 60T (LNS6UT 1606V WIEIH 66T LD (@) 60T IS TEmI 6l S
S WILDTeoT 6p(H L WILDMGLD.

NARSQ&TLIJLIM60T L060f15 eUeTmIGHeT LINellBsD) BlapeaFR s S L &5 et
SLp, 2019 LD 34,6006V CLOAVILD CHTHGHH LIL&HET LM & M6TETLILIL L 60T.
2019 9LlD SL600TIE MG STUIVTHG!, LDCLGFWIT LMMID LedlemLI6dTery 31,8 Wl
BTH &6V 36LeVEl 2 6THITL () LILSHMVESHLNEMIGETIL LUWIHF&HTSH
2017 Qyb LoMMILD 2018 gLb yevoT(h&erflev CEHTHR S HEELILIL L 6UT8 6T
FHal72019 QLD 31,600T1q 6V &1L QUTIHL () Goswid 23 LUl &mg & et
CHTHASH &G LILIL6)6Temeori. NARS(LOEMMemLD T MULIFFUITETIHEH5 G
LDGVFIWIMeN6ET LISTIT LIGVSHMeVSHELNSLD (11), HTQFTLEVLITTL LI6V& 605
&LP&1D (01), LNedlem LIsdTenv LIu&emMevs: L&D L& Wwelmmleviin (05) LM min
NeUETW QYTTUIEFSF LIVEH6VE &LEMIG6T 6T @HhH W Fenliullad (01)
6T60T LI6V 600G UITUILIL|S6T &6t L5555 60T.
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@.00.9.Q&8M.&. BlWESS Gleuerflgaer L6 U TET & 606 _6T6rT L8 8 Ul
& W& 56lermev 2019 QYLD ,600T19.60 @) Tevor(h) T TULIES Bl MI6) & MBI G 6iT
WSeTmuleys@ 2 L LGS SLILILL6T. 6&60Tem6T TMULFSH Blmieusd (Q5. .
Bl) LMD eNeUFTW &Heneoors86Ts5 S 60r (6. §).) CHFIW &TeUmIgseT
QamHMIB&ESH Carenal Blemeuuwlld (NPQS) QL& WLIGT Sj6uelmml LE6TTUIO &G
2 LLUMGSH W BlmIaeTmBIGeTTGLWD. e mule]d & W M&an&HE6T @)H
FOLSHGLD IDMHMILD SHSHHS BlMIIEHHISHEHESHGW FLOFLILNESLILIL L 6.
3BSHSH Gealefleaser eTTUIaSH & WaHE6T (NaTam6ls s GG o6
WVLIH S S UBH VIGTET (LNETCTMMEEME & 60018 T6001 188 G61600T(H LD 6T60T
Grnmefl&aslulLgl. Gm&HES FUTKFEH6T (LD6VTEHE 6V [Bl6V6U I IS 606
@.69.94.Q5M.5. ISaTTle] QFUISS. laF T 5)60)600TH 8 6md H 60T LILL
LWITs6T QW ImEFs mhmib 9Nellmss Blmieusd (FRDI) nmoih G5 & Wl
ML &G LNeT-(nsmenng Siel Blmiausn (NIPHM)SLSIW 02 94 rmlgFs
BlmIausmIS6Tl602017 QLD Y,600TIq 60T GLIMSI LO6TITULE] Q&F W mLIMTH & 6T
GLMO&meTETLILLL60T. &6l LulFaseT 9 mlsds inmmin SiLelms s
Blmieussd (FCRDI); Qam&QLT Q&TUCUSM6 elleuaFmul QL ImlEFs nmmild
LWIm& mlmieussd (HARTI); Gs& W Brfluiev euemmigseT QMg 1 mHmin
SNBSS WsHalT Blemeuwild (NARA); LIeM6T ST TUIFS Blmieusd (PRI);
SHLOL W TTUFS Bloieussd (SRI); LHmID WHS HSSI6U S TTUFS
Blomieussd (VRI) & W GLosild 06 9T ML Bl mieu s misserfleu

A TTUFFR 6T FTIHS QEFWMUTHIS6T WeTmUle|sE 2 L LI &S LILIL L 6.
WSermuley QeWwiiul L Sumflaserfler o nevmdEeV Hlevelmhigs 6T
AHBHS 3|60 05 & G6IT160T Q& WIGVITET I8 EH 8 G LD, [l M6 ssmhiderfleor
LIeoof | ILITETIT [BITWI8 M8 @1H & @& LD / Bl M6 60T 185 6rfl 60T 6016061 85 EH & G510,
FermCFFlullett CHAW HIL_L AL 6V &) 6060078565 H) 60T L1600l L ILIMTET)
BTWSSHMHGSGWD HMID &H065Q5TLH6 SjenndFer o flu Lggmeor

D 6T &600TE & ITUIAUTETIHE LD 2|6UTSH 66T &8 6Ua &S| LDMMILD
I(NEVTEHEE BHLAUEHNEHHETHE|LD 3|61 6016885 L1LILL_6oT.

@).601.9.Q&5T.&. @60 THF&HMTEV BTG LIL], NARS (LD60)MD6MLNEEH & S

NSH U6V 91560T SBISSHTTLD LDHMILD BH6M6V6ELIMIGE SHT6nLD 3,5 Ui6oT
NARS 6165 65 Teol18 @B L 60T QGMTLFLMTLEeM6V g MLIBSSIUSHM & Felish G

@ HSR TN 3|FH60T MMeIaID IMHMID eSS UWITEFLOmeT 6lehEhTeor
GWESGH6leL FemLl DL L EH 6L @).a0.9.Q&M.&. eLpeuld &FemLiudleor
GuemTILIH G 60TM &6V HEHIMTWITLL IjeTellewid SHRISUINHEGLD. 12 U5
G W& GHefleL BT 19607 L& 6D 2 6TeoTSI0MS IS S LILIGILD FCTeq L
QML CHTFRIMETIH 6T 2_6TemL&5H STLGSLILL(H6TET LI6D 6U60&
61 6h @ IT60T (&5 (LDEE6IT UM MI6T &Mev GBI MHIGEM6T [ LILI6o &S LOl&He LD
QUMINGWIMeT QG MTLHI6L Licoofl&emerT BleomGeum miG 6T M6oT. 5 & 66 TeoT

B)VIBINSE 66U FITILI Y TITIIFG) G T6TenNFH F60IL]
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QML nmmild 26m8 Gl LD QS TLIHSID @ HEHSH6V S eUF WIDMGLD.
@bS FenlLIUN 6T HemevallT 6T6dTm 616G U6, a1 &S WITEFLOTEOT (& (L& & 616V
M6l S0 LImIS 6 LIL&erfleor 26rL_18 HeLEG LD eummledr QlLIMILNE)
QMUlbHE LmGerfllienu gmm omi&Es&se el 8 eorGmeor.

FMIHS Bl ([HEUTSH B0 (LNEMEEN6T 2 MIFQ&F 6T 6V, 6ULD60ILOLITEOT
&HE00THSHITILIE| LDMHMILD (N&HTENNS SO &S Fnl LHIKHE6T (H.(0.&.) QHS
Fenluller e 2 miliNeorymss Liesoflwmmmild HenmEaifl LNg& ml& ulleor
5606V6mL0UIN6L [HL GG LILILL60T. BlIHeUTS LDMMILD BIFH) FMIHS F&H eV

S ILOMETHISGEHLD &.(LD. . @)60T FLM&5EHE G ©)600THIS%
GUME&meTaTLILLL6oT. ©).60.94.Q&M.8 @ 6L &mevorLILI(hLD Lievol1&

G W& 56TleT (WD &G6T 2 MIFQFUICISTEIN LDMHMILD TS THSLD
BLSSLILGLWD Lgellulent] W dal Lmkiserfley GLmG&meTeT LD
SIL0meTmIS 66T QeueflliLienlL g &eoTemlnenl GLIsTDIa S TewIL
(NEHTONS SIS MG LIMIG6T &85 Falll 6160 UIID LDMHMID S 6UTE6T
S0 H(HSSIEHH6T LR THEH Q&HTETeTE Fnld Ul 6UendHUINeYD FaHeV

LIS 6 ULI600T] 3|1 E 5 6UT86HE @D eUMTUILIL&6T §) 60L& 5 60T 60T.

610G SLLIMTW QS TRMUTH&em6T BlemmEealmmialEHev 6T60Tah @&LD oM MIN
QEFWMET(HEGLD 6TING Fell 3MIGHESHITEH6T ULPMHIG W GLIMILOE WImTeoT
2,GEVITF 60I60TEHEDETLLD LOMMILD SITLIQ U eULEIS& T L 6V&HEm6TULD DG &8
SLemWLILIL(HeTCemedr. @).a0.9,.08M.8. @ 6T F1GTaq L 6l @hEhment& eHLID
LOMMILD eF6em 60T LG el W60l IS E S5 6 TEEBLI S0 &L 60105606 U|LD
LMMILD QUITMILILIS&Hem6TW LD 3FLiuevoflliLLer Um@®uUL@® Wes SmLliLms
BlenmCeumMlUIemLN&: & 6T60TS [H60TMI e UIW|LD LI TL(h &8 606D
Q55518 Q& meTer el (hHLD LS 6T GmeoT.

Gumelwy smdlesl] GFeTMHITWLISSH
&H60)6V6U T
@eumIens alleuF T SLTTUIEF Q&TETeNS FevL
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QFwevmerfleir 9im)&ens

QLTTLES HMILD euells auermigGeT L6l [HE 5 60 62(H I 6m600TSH &6V,
G W alleuFmwl QLImMIES BlmieusmiseTflev Ll 2018 G el 5560
LDMHMID NGHHMEW FMLUILIEG euFH W6 Hs560 9,5 W el L imigerfleor
BlU&SID @evhiens elleus Tl TMUFSF Q&meTens FeanlldhE (@). ell. 3.
Q&M &) AP &ML e GH&ELILL B 6Tensl. &HH R eoormILS, @). . 9. Q&M &.
aleusmu B rrsfuiley giemLwiiU@b LTSS CUISS &F T 60)60T860 6T

LH S5 &HeTIalléh @G (&M elleuaFmul W ImlFauiey FSmLiL & e mer
N ((HSI56M6T QULDNMHIG LD eMEULIAIMIGEM6T 2019 9LlD 2460071960 FMLIM(H)
QFWHMBHSS. QUIBHECHTLLLD, QUIBHECSHSTLLLD FTFT LMHMILD
&SLMHMTLEI6L aw&w Lflellsyeter 10 AmLiL] QLTTUIER &WEHHEHES

N (BSI56T UG LILIL L 6. STeVHemL &6t LifleleSlpha! eThsells

6 600T600T LILIMI S @ LD BemL 8811 QLImellcvemnsy. @). . 9. Q&M & Blulls s
3 9fley &M mlLeoors siel L6TTUle)] & W& erfler 2 saflu|Leor LFgmeor
Q5Ifl Gwallearme, H&H) aUmlnbs 456 [HS! CLIMIBITE6T
CHIHOSHH&HSHLILILL6OTI.

NARS Blmieusmiserflaverer neofls auemmiseneT LNel(BESH FUIausnG&S
fenEFTenel BSEEHHS5 UMM HINNGSS bl&ELERS S L &G 6o
Npsmy, Geyin 2019 Q4D 31,600T1q.60 3 FH&HL0MGeoT T
CaIHOSMH&HSLILLLET]. LDCLERIWT, STUevTHE, Ll6denListreny LDMHMILD
@S WM S W BrH&erflev PhD Lommith MSc oL L &5)6v

LW moetiugmesms 2017 IMMILD 20189410 24,600T(H &6rfleV
CaHIHOSH&HEILLLAITHEHHEG CLeVH SINME2019 QYLD 36007196V

I ILLILGISDHES 23 CUTS6T CHTHOSHHELILLLETH. @). a. 3. Q&T.
&F. @607 QMM6L &L IQQWIWLILLD HevorLsmev LWIMHEG mlesLhaF 5

F L 5T60r LD LISQSHTTLIS (19)6600T600T LIS TTTE6T 2019 Q41D 31,6007 1960
LDGLVEANWIMEN6OT LISTIT LIVSHEM6VE SLNGLD, HSTQEFTLETIL L6V&HmM6VE
&5 1D, L6960 LI60TEN LIV& 6608 SLN&LID LDMMID eNeUs Tl QLT TUIFE
LIV&6M6V8 &8 MG 66T @HS &6mLI 35 Ul6UM MIE S T6T 360G 60U
QUMMEDTI.

@B Wmaler elleusmul QLTTUIFS FenliuLedr (ICAR)Q&FUIS

Q& meTeTLILL (M eTer Lflhaietoriey spllbe &S 6o (L. &.) @ 6ot LNFsmrLD,
Gaullemev QL IMUIFSF BlmiassSH 60T (TR)SLTTUISESFWTETT 6(H6eUHE S
@bH wmeiler &. erev. G5, anlnmEmev nmeooilev & eyl LiIcvsemevs:
&HP&ESHOIMHHS! (CS KHPKV)LL LU Neruig UL uullm& el
QUMIAISM&TET GUTUILIL] HeML S5 S @6vmiensd elleudF Tl QLT TUIFS
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Q&METeNs FenLILDMMID LDGVHI W elleusF T QLT TUIEFSF LnHmILD

U psSS Blmieusd (MARDWLMMILD LBI&STeTCH6q elleusml QLT muilgFs
Fen Ll (BARC)QL&H WeuMmmis @& @emnLwlev Q&g Qs mereTliLLl(heTer

L glevor 6y 6L 1S MIG 660 (L. 62.) BLp, Liev ell@h@hmeoflseT Liflinmmles
Q&METETLILIL L 60T, 6THIeUIHLD 600T (NS EHSH & 3IHHems W Lflinmmls
Q&METEHLD BISHLPEFFS L HIGEHLD LDMHMID 316 6583 WIEI&EHLD
gOUTH Q& WIWILILIL 19 (H 5 & 60T.

@). . &b Q&M & 2019 QYLD 3460071960 QLT TUIEFF Blmieus mkiserfler @) revor(h
Qeuerflaumi] WemmUle]&emeT QeummMIsGTINTS Blemme Q&S SI. 655 60T60)60T
QLT TLER Blmieussd (CRHLMHMILD efleuFTuls & eneoorsasens S e (el H).)
CaHF W HTaUTHISG6T Q&THMIHESR CFemeal Blemsuwild (NPQS)S, 5 Wi6oT

@5 H6M& I BlMIEISHIGTTELW. HLESESTLHIE 36L& & 6ot
QEFW6MET[HEEGLD LDMMILD SHSHS Bl MI660T IS 6l 60T &6016V6M 85 E1H 8 G50
SEEINIGHTEH6|LD MM LeTMUI6] & Weller AUMl&aemnerT
LNesTLMMIeNSMH&H TSN @MIS LE6TTUI6| )& 608860
FLOFLUL& 8 LU L6oT.

CxA W alleuFmwl QLIMUES WwenmennulleT QWIMUFSF FmibHs
&T6|&Hm6T CoaflGa QWITUIFSF HT6 s H6T LIGLILITUI 8606
GME&TaTEUS @). . Y. Q&IT. & @)60r. L& (P& G WILDTEOT &L LT

Licoof 616V e6dTmMGLD. QUBHECSTLL LD, QUBHECSHTLLLD FTF,
SHLMHAMTHI6LE6T, HITVHEN LG 6T, 6U60T QUETTLIL] LDMMILD L, eU6TyLIL]
(WS SIIME 66T 2_6TeTL 85 NARSLemMemLnUlledr &peiTer 25

QL TMTUFSF BlmiesmIs6 60 QL TTiFEFRsemer CLMASTETEHLH QUITIHL(H)
QIIHLITHSLD 86001 FLOMTEOT 3|TF B1H&H6T 515 LILIMH R eoTmerr. G5 & W
EUETW QYTTUIEF Q&ITTE0NSHE6MET 6U G55 6MINEHMLNEG G LDIMMILD
GMHGMISHS Slenmsetlev QWTTUIFR&HSETET CEHF W (HSIflen LN emerT
@) 60TMISTEDILD QUITMILIL] FTLLLILL (B 6Tem eGreulm@p mlmialerid @). e,
Q. Q&M & FOLWMGLD. 3605 UTILTTUIFR 5606068 EH5S G LD,

QLT MUFRWTeTI&HEHE G LMHMID HeormE&Ffl QUITIHS S LD MeoT
STLOMTETRIGHEM6T 6T(HLILSMGLD 2 (NS TeNNSHI6 & [HeN WIS
LweTUMSSIUSME LT TUFS &BLGUTIHLE6mETW LD LDMHMILD 660607
F55aIVEmETW LD CF&ILILIS P WLNMGLD. BTL 19607 eleUsmul

A TTUFS BleaFFRBITedlev G86meU Ul meoT LOTMMHISHEN6T 68 meoor(h 6T
@bsL LGLUTUIE] L6 (N&HHWLNTeT QF WG &6t all(h&Si6Tens.
6U6TRIG 66T 815H(HSHem6T LG 6D LILISDIETET SjeUFT SLTTUESR Blredev
BTSS0S TET TTULEF WHsIflennsser, rmilsd Lifleysser
LOMMILD SjeUFIWILD eTedTLIeUMMI60T L LiLiemLul6v, QprmilgFeulleverer
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@ 6emLQelerlgEemner @) 6oThIsTavIaIH 6V UMSIS HenmCFlHGD, 3HSHHS
S|MNEFGH&HEHSHGLD, LIWNTEH6T T TS Blmiels s 5) 6or

LI6oof 1L ILITeT & ©@h& @& LD LDMHMILD eNle&FmUlg 5)60600Ts: & eSS M &L @)HS5L
LGLUTUIE] LIWEIETeTS TS 3emlnou]ld. 25NARS (Lem memLn [Blmie & higserfledr
2019 QYLD 4600TIY METET QWTTUIEF QFW6eL HL_LMHKHET @). 6. 9. Q5. &.
eV UGLIUMUe] Q&FWWiUL L eoT. &bH& L LiGLiumuieleor
(WDeTGeTMMIOLD @)HS &F 6 LIUN6OTITEL 8560078 6001 1&&H LILIL LS.

@5 a7, BlewLd NARPS (S S LKisGemneT G UL 6USMELD mHmiD
LIS W NARPS (S HL_LHISem6T QT MUIeIESMHEGLD 2019 Qb 600T(h &ITeVL]
LUGHWI6L & (DES6TIn L HISGem6T BHL&H6or. NARS (LnemmemLoullsleimer

Bl MIQI&MHIS6T CLMG&TETI) (BHS 53 B1&H WL NARP &(H5 &L L Mmigerfler
(L ETCETMMMHIGHEMET @)\HSH 5 & (DG 6T & 6001560015 5 60T. G &L
QUITBHETTSTISSH MET60T LIULISI6TET QL MIGLIMISEM6T 3j6mL[HS
Q&MeTEBLD QUITIHL(H 2020 QLD 34,600T1q 6V QFWMLRSSLILIGUSMEG 15
LS W &S HL_LHBIGmeTULD @ HHe & (D8 56T BIBSHEE60r 2019 QLLD
21,600TL9.6V F8560 NARSBIMIaUS BIG6TleTaID QFWeV S LBISG6T Q&TLTLTSS
GLMASTETTLILIL Y (BIHS LIGLILITUIG, F&6V BlMIaIsHHEI&HEHLID @). el 2.
Q&M & GMIULTH QFuIsieTeT QrmlFs (nbsflenngsemer aFfls sl
QasTEMUBSTS QeusfLGSH WG SbTTUIFF & 6rfleor (LNLg.6856merT
LIJDL6Y QEFWeUSMETEH LD IDMHMID WTTUIER SFTFbHS 6l L LIKIS 6T
QLT MWD 6Uen & U6V 6l 6h6hmenl18@h & @D LDMMILD 3|8 856000 U660 L LI
STLULSHEREH G 2 &HHS (I HETHMNS NNSHSIH Q&HTHLILSMEHTEH|LD
QB &WHEH6T ([H FIaUCHF CouemeLUITHINS WD, 62(H FIUCHEF
LOMBTL 6L U] DMMID 11 GeuemeuU ] hIG&H6emeTWLD gmum(h)

Q& WS (HIH S 60T

MG @MIG WIS, Blemevwlmer LN HES & m&HComTeTsemerT

ML AISMETET LIL6oTEF60 @). al. 9b. Q&IT. &. @)60T. & M8G5 MeTg:6m 6T
MLAUSMNES S0 AUTTH STem6l aUPBISR W @). . 3i,. Q&IT. &. @) 6T
S66V6U([HE G LD, FenlluleT 2 mILILN6T I8 EH 8 G0 LDMHMID &6t LUl edT

2er AU TS EH & G LD 6T60TSI LDETIOMIHS HeormMlenwl Q& flells a8 Q& meTerT
691 (H LD L] 89\ 60T G 60T.

S\ Nyums elllnev GO

Q& WVITET /LI6oor L ILITeT
@6evmlens IS M TTUESF Q&TeTend FeoLl
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2019 9L1b 1,600TL9.6V GLOMA S MeTeTLILIL L @).69.9).Q&T.&F. @) 60T
QFWMHUTHS&ET efleusFml SLTTUFFIES Q& TeTens 6UE 5 S enLnLIL]

2 _6ITETLMBI(@LD &L LITW Lieooll&eiT

o NQUEFTWLT USSR L LLIMISEm6IT6R (LD 615600 & &6V,
62 (a5 6016005 &6V, B L8l (H) & 6010 MH IO Bl 60 D B6u DM G 6V,
LDMMILD 6D &F&F 60T meL & MILILT(H Q& WU LILILTeVLD6TER D& LD LITH S LIL
L L3/ 5 86008 U16T60) 60T U6 L_LLIThI 85 6T (LD 8560 L
3G 5MEWEFHV L WMBIGETOSTLT LN TFTHISSH M EHI,CTE
60)60T6U LD TRIGH &6V (1)

e CHHAWYTTUIFF S S TETENE S 06T LD
(P TR If] 60) LD & 60V 61T U LD 6U (B &> T 60 LD S5 F6V (2)

e CxHAWINNBESH &GN &HCEHTaTEHm6TG e fleums @& L GHTe: &
svalleus M TmiFRulerel B QLTSS 8 G N & Ca MeTdH 606U LD
LOMMID GBITE G & 60606060 UIU|LD 66N T W MIGSSH6V (3)

o alaUEFTW SLTTUIFE BMICI&HISEHEH G IDMMID NTFTHIGSH MG
@6mL_Uil6L (B QGTLLIMLGEY IDMJEHHIMS QSTEIMLIMHSS6V (7)

o ANEUSFTWLTTUIFER UL 6TGSTL |60 WIBlMI6I S8 HIS e &S 6L Ul
6L &meooT LI & eorm LINT&EF em6orsH6iT,
CaHAWMHMIDEFTeUCS & 6) L LIMIS6T6T60T LIGOT Q&L [J LIMOT LM B IT(H 85
606 LDLDMMILN & (HSH ST hIGH M 6T U DT MHUTH Q&F LS HIGSH6V (11)

25 G5F\ W afleusmwl SyrmUEF mBlmieussnisefler BlOGHSI0D 2018 9yLb
SL600TIQ M & TS 2018 QYLD 1,600TL.6V CLOMQ S METETLILIL L ST TLER
FMIHS Q&FWeL G Lkiserfledr LGLLIMmliey

G W alleuFmuwl SLIMUIER WwenmenoulleT QLIMUES FMiHS
&T6|&Hm6T Coaiflsa QWITUIFSF FHT6 S H6T LiGLILITUIG 8606
GMO&TeTaUS @). . Y. Q&IT. & @ 60T, L& (PSS WILDMeT &L LTl
Licoof1 & 6160 epedTmMMGLD. QUBHCSTLL LD, QUIBHECSHTLLLD FTF,
SLMHAMTHIELE6T, SITVHEN L& 6T, 6U60T QUETTLIL] LoMMILD L, 6Tyl
WS SN & Em6T 2_6TemL 85 NARS(LemMem Lo Ul edr S(peiTer 25

A TMTUFS Blmiels ks ey QL TTlFRsemer CLMASTETEHLH QUITIHL(H
QUHLITHSLD &600T | FLOMET ST BIH &H6T SIHHLILMG TR eTmer. C&H & W
eUEFTW YTTUIFSF Q&HTETe0SHE6M6T 6UE S5 60085 6MINE @D MMILD
MGG Slenmsetlev QWTMULIFR&HSETET CHF W (LNHSIfl6mL0&6em 6T
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@ 6T MDD QUITMILIL] ST LUl B \6TeT G uim@p mlmieierd @). e,
Q. Q&M & FOLWMTGLD. QeMSWTOTTUIEFSF &em6v6alTsHEHos G LD,

QLT TUERWMOTISEHE G LMD HenmEC&if] QUIT(HS S L0meoT
SILMeTHIG6T T(HLILUSMHGLD @ (N&HTennsSSial &Hellulms
LWeTURSSIUSMHES T TUEFR S@HLIQLUTIHLSHem6TULD LDMMILD 6560 60T L
H&5aIVEM6TW LD CF&IILILG TP WINTEGLWD. LUGLILTIIe Blenme
QEWWLILL® wlgeyseT eflems s LUl (h eu(hS eTmerr. GHF W elleugmul
QA TTUFF Wemmenlouiledr 2018 LD 34,6001 MEMeoT eleUE MW QLT MUFH
Blemev MIGHm&ECW @MIS) (NI TG LD. 6UeTMHIS 66T 51858 (H & emerT
L& 6 LD LIWLISIGTET Q&I bTTUIFS BleLpaFFRBIras s
B&HIHSISHMHETer GHemel LDMMID TTULFS WHSIFlenns6T, L TTUIFH
LN fley&seiT eTedT Lieum Ml edT 419 LiLiemLul6v, QrmilgF&uilev smevor LiLI(hILD

@) 60 L Q 6ue6rfl86m6IT @) 60T RIS TE00TE Solq UL LOMMILD [HITL L9 60T 6Nl6U&F Tl
QTTULER BlePEFERBITedlsy G5 em el Ul TeoT LOMM MHkISGEem 6T 68 mevor(helJs
Fnlq W UenE W6V I HFHHSEH 3|6MLNEFTF&EHE LD, LieoolILILIMeT
IHITUWI& MG 665 @LD, LIeoolILILIMeT I8 Eeh& @0 Mo & mEsifluliler
SHEM6VEUTEHEHE G @ HHLI LIGLILTUIE| LI6V (LN&S WM G5 LS & 6m6rT
(B & Si6Tergl. NARS BlmIalsmigserleor oLJmilsEs Q&Fwev S L misserflev
139285 HIL_LMISHEHHG 2018 LD 360071960 10810606 Wl6dT eHLIT B
RSGSHILLGBHSSTEH GMISS LUGLUTLeNGHS QS5TW aubsS.

IHSHS B MI6IGMHIS6T60T H5H6160&6T, QT TULIFR &6 6T QUTMHSSLILITG),
QT TUFS (N19.6)56160T LIWLIGTS &S 60TemLn, 6l6m60TE H M 6ot (2T MUIEFS)
(D196 &6 L&D GO F6V6] LILLII6TT ellgH a5 60 260 UILILIL L 60TRUT?),
A TTUFR QeuefluTBH &6, QTMULFS (LN19.65H606T LIFLINLIEY Q& g6V
LOMMILD LITEIG Merfl& Sl 6 1S 6iTereoT Lieu MMl 6oT 219 LILiemL_ullev 2020 QLD
2600T(h) Feotaulf] LDMHSH VD LDMMILD &NV IDTSSHIeVD NARS

(e MEMLD Bl MI6U G IS 6rT 60T (LN 6dT GeoT MM L6 U6 8561
GLMQGTETETLILLL60T. @bH& (L6t Geormm LOETITUIES6T afleusmuls
slenmwilayerer LN7Lev elehehmentlaserfledr Limi@ LI mHmewL edr
GLMQGTETETLILLL60T. (IH QbEU6DITLN HTEFMHIGESFH6L 2 W L LEHMHGS
Q& mevor(h QF6LeVLILIRD euem&Ullev WM& LILIL (H6Tersl. @\hHo
WSermuleedr (P& SHWILDTET 6UGTeoT L1856 Q4T TUIES) 268l Wiy &s 6rfleor
LIMMTEGemMm, T MUUERWMETI&HEHE G LDMHMILD G1&TeTem s

A5G BISHEHEH G @ uillev HTHHTLOMET LITeVLT Q&ML L &erfleremin,
ATTUER &HS DL KIS 6 60T QB (HMBIG U & 60oT8sMevot L1 edTemLn,
AUTQFVSH L L @3515HHGemeT WeTMle] QF IS0, SHELITEN S

L wmiserflev 2_6aTemss mlmieuer Lisv Lifley ourmils&ulleremin, 9jnjlemeu
LU QEFUWeUSH 6T SITINGLD LDMHMID T TMUFFWITETEHEHSH S
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aleusFmUI&HEHS G @emLulevmeT LITeUT Q&GTLTUTL Gemmum(
6T6oTLIGU MM 60T 19 LILI6m LU 6V &ITeoorLILIL_L_60T. &6VHSI60 T WM(H LD
QUTHBLM @& Q. . 8. A&T. & @M FFULNGSELILLLS. @b
BLAIGEmMSUIL QLTSS gFmEE&emmul 60 6)©hehTeol 186 L@ LM 6.

@ evmien & ulletr efleusFmuus Slemm QFWeLH Mmedr LMW QUITJHETTSITT
Q& T6iTem & & 61Tl 60T & IT8 LN 6iT

QbS5 Q&TeTeNd G(HEHHID @). all. QY. Q& & gHuUm@® QFUIS
@evmliemnsWleT ellelFmuls Slemm QEWLEH M6 LUMMIW QUITIHETTSITT

Q& MeITeM & &6 160T &m& LIIWLIMBIS6T Q&ML LITeT G6u6m 6L T IS 60T

Sl LILemnLuflev smeooTLILGH&HTMS. @& SHCUTMS W QUITIHETTS T
LMD eNeUSFTW Q& TeTem & & 6rfl6dT &8 8 MG emeTWLD LDMHMILD eNleUFmuls
SlenmuIeT QFWELH M60T16L UMM 6T &5THEMIGHEN6TULD ST TUISHTMSI.
QUG MWD BITL Q60T (LNSIQFHILDLITE @ BLILISTILD LDMHMILD HF 5

6T600T 60011856008 LLIMTEOT LD& 86T ellaUF TS H 6V @) 6oTenlld SIS UINIHLILIGS TN
@8 HTVEGHMGEHHSHTGSGLWD. BHH QUIBL LNleysseT @) 6vmiensdsuiler
afleusmug siemmuilev 2 _6T6rTL IG5 60TM6oT. QLIBHESTL L LD,
QUEBHESHITLLLD FITFMT, 6U6T aUeTTLIL, &L MHOMTPI6L&EET LDMHMILD
&HIT6VIHEDIL_G6T 6T60TLI60T |5 &H6m& W LTfley&Hemm@GLd. 2012 QLD S4,600T19.6V
aleusmws SenmuIeddbHa BITL L1960 QLTSS 2 6THTL(h 2 MHUSHEHS
QM2 2 ) B 55 7.8% LIMIG6TILIL| 2018 QbLD ,600TI.60 7%65 & 5 MTeV
SGMMEUML_HSI6TETS. FMHMILNEH ST SHSH M & TaTHR6orm CLIMSI, 2015
QLD 91,600T19.60 140.0 eT6oT Blevallwl efleuaFmul gHMILDGH &6T QLMILDTET & L1
2018 9LlD 24,600TI9.60 160.76T60TM 2|66 &H G 3IH &G Sl6Tengl. @&, GMHS
&MVl UGHU6L #mmI eueTFFFenl &L 1986 STLHHeTmSI.
@evmiemnsWile efleus s Slemm UG &R TN (PSS WILDMeT LikigerTlLienL
LB SIQ&TeTEB QUITIHL (D LIV I FTFMHISHIS6T BHITL_160T L (HGLDTEHS
QuUMBeTTsSMTT SILNeNBSH UL @BHs5s Semmenwt LN HSS Q& U0
GBHMHEH ) Q& TeTemnS aUPIEGTL L eV&Hm6T MG LILIMH S S U|6Termeor

/(LD 60T Q 60T () & S1 GITEITEOT.
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Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy
No. 114/09, Wijerama Mawatha, Colombo 07
Statement of Financial Position

As at 31™ December 2019
2019 2018
Notes LKRs. Cts. LKRs. Cts, -

ASSETS

Property, Plant & Equipment 08 11,021,067 11,782,463
Infrastructure 08-A 560,180 604,392
Work in Progress - CARP New Building 2,460,000 -
Total Non Current Assets 14,041,247 12,386,856
Inventories 09 1,494,097 1,558,832
Trade & Other Receivables 10 18,714,601 20,554,351
Cash at Bank 11' 20,278,760 25,446,705
“Total Current Assets B 40,487,457 - 47,559,888
TOTAL ASSETS a 54,528,704 59,946,744
EQUITY & LIABILITIES

Capital & Reserves _

CARP Fund : 12 5,208,877 27,639,257
Treasury Grants - Research 13 0 {6,468,925)
Deferred Income Fund 14 11,581,247 2,208,690
Accumulated Surplus / {Deficit) 27,621,522 27,025,744
Gift - 116,892 .

’ . 44,411,646 50,521,658

Retirement Benefit {Gratuity) 15 9,177,501 7,820,353
Total Non current Liabilities ' _ 9,177,501 7,820,353
Current Liabilities

Trade & Other Payables 16 939,557 1,604,732
Total current liabilities . 939,557 1,604,732
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES : : | 54,528,704 59,946,744

These Financial Statements are in compliance with the reguirements of the finance Act, No.38 of 1971-and the Public
sector accounting standards in Sri Lanka.

The Governing Council is responsible for preparation of these Financial Statements. We approved and signed on behalf
of the SLCARP council.

Prepared By ; %\"J"m.. S.M.5.U Kaushalya

Checked By ; O ADMPIayasinghs

M.K.M.Mihirani Prabhath Wimal Kumara
Acwu&tant (Acting) Secretary | piveckov
M. K. M. Mihirani .. - .
Accountant . Gamini Senanayake, : Pmbath Wlma‘! Kumara
{ Project & Institutional Finance Management) Chairman Secretary/ Director

Ministry of Agriculture, Livestock Developm . L W ; i8#i Lanka Council forAgricultural Research Poli
asion s Fers & Aquatio Resouei Lanks Counl fo Agricuturd ReseschPligtLanialiannel Begien o estuch ol

Development o No: 114/9, Wijerama Mawatha
No. 288, Sri Jayawardenepura Mawatha, Rajagiriya. ~ *\0" ¢4 %57 Colombo 07
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Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy
No. 114/09, Wijerama Mawatha, Colombo 07

Statement of Comperhensive income
for the Year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018

Note LKRs. Cts. LKRs. Cts.
Treasury Grants 01 181,203,509 127,530,048
Other Income 02 3,917,342 1,862,572
TOTAL INCOME 185,120,851 129,392,619
Operating Expenses 03 149,587,917 64,159,073
DIFFERENCE BETWEEN TREASURY GRANTS , ' 35,532,934 65,233,546
OTHER INCOME AND OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative Expenses 04 40,937,552 38,100,208
Capital Expenses - -
Finance Cost 05 1,147,563 23,732
blFFERENCE BETWEEN TREASURY GRANTS . (6,552,180} 27,109,607
& OTHER INCOME AND TOTAL EXPENDITURE
Add / (Less) Prior Year Adjustment 06 7,147,959 (689,180)
- Add / {Less) Write off Assets 07 158
EXCESS OF EXPENDITURE OVER INCOME & TREASRY GRANTS 595,779 '26,420,268
Balance B/F 27,025,743 605,476
‘Balance C/F 27,621,522 : 27,025,744

02



WITIV VY WS Te9Le - LYT'I8S'TE 0 LL8'80L'S 6107 ISTE JPquiadaq] e uejeg
641'S6S - - - - sjuesg Ainseas] 13 20dU| OAQ 34njipuadxg JO S529X3
- (00:'602vEL) - - - WO 40§ JudWISHIpY
- 00°LTE'LTY - : - WIS 104 Jawisnipy
{r86'eL1'} - - -Juswisnipe uonepasdag
- - TEYI8EC - - S395SY [EMAED U0 PAARIBY SIURIS JUBILIIADG
- - 0T1'S9T0T - - pung awoeou) pauagag 103 Wwswisnipy
- - - L8E'GL6'T - pun4 44y 03 siuesn jeyide) jo-aouejeq 1o Jo Jajsuel)
- - - 9VL'9PE'T - JuaWISN{py JusWeuey YoIeasoy Jesp Joud
- - - T6L°9V1' - JUBLUISBAUL YyoIeasaY 19N
- - - - (£8€'s26'2) uaunsnipy sjuesn Jejde) jo asuejeq 19N
- - - - (e66'v5¥'6T} JuaWSn{py pun4 dyv? Jeap Jolid
85972505 prL'seo'se 268'9T1 069'802'C (5268919} £ST'689°LE 6102 1ST0 Atenuer je dugjeg
85912505 brL'ST0'LT T68OTT 069’802 {sz6'89t'9) LST'6E9'LT 810Z ISTE 1aqwadaq e auejeq
892°02t'9Z - - - - sjues9 AINSeal] 13 awod] JIAQ InJIpuadxa JO SSAINI.
- (s89'0TT} - - awWoou| pa1agaq se paziudoaay awodu|
- SLE'GIE'T - - pun4 2Wodu| paiajaq 40 UOIUS0IY
- - (68291} - waunsnipy JuawiBeueyy Yoieasay Jea) Joud
- - (8¥s's6S) - . JUSUIISIAUL Yodeasay JoN
L£0'S05'2T 9/%'S09 T68'9TT - (885'958's) LST'6E9°LE 8102 15T0 Auenuier Je asuejeg
(s;yaqg)
Aunb3 * pung yoeasay .
[sesmding SIAISDY JARO pung duyd uoRdpsaq
ass! e : . i
[s19ssy 19N jeoy — awoou| pauseq sjueln Amseal)
Aygu3 3uljonauod Ay Jo SIBUMQ OL INGUAY
SN

610Z ,,T€ 12qu303Q papua Jeak aup Joj
Aynb3 /19N uj saBuey) o Juawialels - Au3 103088 Ngnd
fayod yoieasay jesnynousy Joj ;3uno) exuer ug

n3



Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy
No. 114/09, Wijerama Mawatha, Colombo 07

Statement of Cash Flow
For the Year ended 31* December 2019

2019 2018
Rs. Cts. Rs. Cts.
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Surplus/ (deficit) for the year 595,778 26,420,268
Non-cash mmfements
Ag[ustg_}gm for
Depreciation on property, plant & equipment 3,173,985 3,183,560
Treasury Grant Prior year Adjustment - -
Deferred Income on Funds Received for Fixes Assets 9,372,558 2,208,690
Gratuity Provision for the Year 1,357,148 2,091,465
Property, Plant & Equipment Disposal Loss - 158
Prior Year Adjustments on Fixes Assets 13,056 474,104
CARP Fund {22,430,380) -
Gift (116,892) -
Interest Income
Distress Loan Interest (644,268) (547,354)
Bank Deposits - -
Net Research Investments 6,468,925 (612,336)
Gratuity Payment - (820,928)
Operating Profit Before Changes in Working Capital (2,210,092) 32,397,628
Changes in Working Capital
{Increase) / Decrease in Inventories 64,735 _ {666,628)
(Increase) / Decrease in trade & other receivables 1,839,751 (15,611,734)
Increase / (Decrease) in creditors and payables (665,175) 248,190 _
Cash Generated from Operations (970,781) 16,367,456
Net Cash Flows from Operations Activities (970,781) 16,367,456
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING AC'I’IVIT_IES
Purchase of property, plant & equipment (2,381,431) (2,315,375)
Work in Progress - CARP New Building {2,460,000) -
Interest income
Distress Loan Interest 644,268 547,354
Bank Deposits - -
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities (4,197,163 (1,772,022)
CASH Fi.OWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Treasury Grant Received - -
Net Fund received - -
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities - -
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (5,167,944) 114,595,435
Cash & cash equivalents at b_eginni_ng of the perio_d. 25,446,705 10,851,270 .

Cash & Cash Equivalents at end of period {Note 10) 20,278,761 25,446,705 ,-f}

ng




Notes to the financial statements

Year ended 31 December 2019
2019 2018
LKRs. Cts. LKRs. Cts.

01 Treasury Grants .2019 2018
Recurrent 168,350,300 112,584,500
Capital for Research Management Activities 12,853,209 14,945,548

' ' 181,203,509 127,530,048

02 Otherincome 2019 2018
Distress Loan Interest 644,268 547,354
Sundry income 99,050 18,725
International Symposium . 108,000
Deferred income 3,173,984 110,685
Exchange Gain . 1,077,808

3,917,342 1,862,572

03 Operating Expenses 2019 2018
International Training (A) 136,734,708 48,213,526
Research Management Activities 12,853,209 14,945,548

149,587,917 64,159,073
(A) International Training
2019 2018
Long term Training _
India 9,773,198 3,640,254
Malasiya 62,881,141 6,302,322
Phillippines 46,041,838 15,457,252
Thailand 18,038,531 14,162,555
136,734,708 39,562,382
Short term Training
Bangladesh - 166,391
India - 105,698
Malaysia - 74,000
Thailand - 918,960
Thailand - 7,575,812
USA - 784,833
Orientation Program - 25,450
- 9,651,144
Total Expense on International Training 136,734,708 49,213,526




04 Administrative Expenses 2019 2018

Allowances to Chairman & Director 1,661,907 2,374,960
Employee benefits expenses (A 27,214,340 24,470,545
Travelling Expenses ( B) 34,143 634,816
Fuel to Members 139,250 96,000
Allowances to Members 532,309 429,250
Fule & Lubricant 234,081 206,349
Uniforms 25,000 25,000
Newspapers & Periodicals 17,520 16,809
Stationery 1,130,371 779,433
Repairs & Maintenance ( C) 755,208 571,416
Office Upkeep ( Janitorial service) 674,001 623,594
“ Communication Expenses 419,717 447,295
Electricity Charges . 846,063 - 79,171
Security Charges 1,234,019 806,136
Entertainment/Meting Expenses 560,745 638,556
Staff Welfare 462,163 307,649
Auditor's remuneration 426,384 255,400
Staff Training : 322,370 203,000
Insurance 370,495 387,092
Postage & Stamps 102,725 67,936
Advertisement 493,330 549,921
Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment 3,173,984 3,183,560
Sundry Expenses : 80,931 201,807
Vehicle Tax ' - 6,000
Non Consumable Expenses 26,496 25,914
40,937,552 38,100,208
({ A) Employee benefits expenses 2019 . 2018
Staff Salaries 14,769,582 12,527,049
Cost of Living Allowances 2,506,660 2,534,870
Other Allowances 1,418,332 2,157,247
Overtime : 308,788 227,166
Medical Reimbursement 259,411 267,903
Encashment of medical leave 566,115 -
Research Allowances - -
Transport & Fuet Allowance 3,124,320 2,320,382
Contribution to Employees’ Provident Fund 2,420,271 1,953,677
Contribution to Employees’ Trust Fund 483,714 390,7851?
Gratuity Expense 1,357,147 2,091,465
27,214,340 24,470,545




(B) Travelling Expenses 2019 2018

Local 34,143 43,109
Overseas - 591,707
34,143 634,816
{ C) Repairs & Maintenance 2019 2018
Equipments 278,535 228,704
Vehicles 365,273 303,064
Building . 111,401 35,148
Furniture & Fittings - 4,500
- 755,208 571,416
05 Finance Cost . 2019 2018
Debit Tax 25,737 23,732
Bank Charges 200 -
Exchangeloss 1,121,625 -
' 1,147,563 23,732
06 Prior Year Adjustment 2018 2018
Add: .
Reversal of Accrued Expenses Provision - 280,484
Reversal of Depreciation : - 373,821
Fuel & Lubricants Adjustment - 6,400
Correction of Capital Grants (Treasury Grants -Research ) )
2010 490,950 -
- 201 5,098,189 -
2012 9,811,304 -
2013 10,660,490 -
2014 12,096,339 -
2015 9,462,065 -
2016 6,696,459 -
2017 5,692,846 -
2018 4,408,230 e
64,417,912 660,705
Less: _
Provisioning of Accrued Expenses 899,014 899,234
Building Maintenance - 449,480
Loan Revolving Fund Bank A/C - 1,171
Correction of Capital Grants (Treasury Grants -Research }
2010 {42,681) -
2011 (5,047,710) -
2012 (11,747,822) -
2013 {7,067,044) -
2014 {10,316,405) -
2015 (9,462,065) -
2016 - {6,694,895) -
2017 (5,_530,992} -
2018 (461,325) -
{56,370,939)

Balance as at 31st December 2019 _ 7,147,959

nT



07 Write off of Assets 2019 2018
Balance brought forward- At Cost
Computer & Printer 299,907 1,054,960
Office Equipment 161,651 533,790
Office Furniture & Fixtures 53,331 10,000
Non- Consumables - -
514,889 1,598,750
Balance brought forward - Accumulated Depreciation
Computer & Printer ' 299,507.14 1,054,960
QOffice Equipment 161,651.38 533,631
Office Fyrniture & Fixtures 53,330.75 10,000
Non- Consumables - -
— 514,889 1,598,591
- 158




Notes to the financial statements
08 Property, plant & equipment

Balance as at Additions Disposals Adjustments Bala_nce asat
01/01/2019 31{.‘12{2619
Cost
CARP Building 22,325,490 - - - 22,325,490
Computer & Printer 10,188,382 1,850,500 299,907 - 11,738,975
Computer Software 2,404,427 - - - 2,404,427
Office Equipment 11,602,037 - 161,651 - 11,440,386
Office Furniture 4,006,098 530,931 53,331 (461,325) 4,022,373
Motor Vehicles 26,321,295 - - - 26,321,295 -
Library books 143,248 - - - 143,248
Non- Consumables - - . - -
76,980,978 2,381,431 514,889 {461,325) ..78,396,194
Balance as at Charge for Balance as at
: Disposals Adjustments
01/01/2019 the year 31/12/2019
Depreciation
CARP Building 15,932,545 1,116,275 - - - 17,048,819
Computer & Printer 8,712,594 911,212 299,907 - 9,323,899
Computer Software 2,404,427 - . - - 2,404,427
Office Equipment 9,151,663 782,685 161,651 (448,269) 9,324,427
Office Furniture 2,599,588 312,438 53,331 - 2,858,695
Motor Vehicles 26,321,295 - - - 26,321,295
Library books 86,402 7,162 - - 93,565
65,208,514 3,129,772 514,889 (448,269) 67,375,127
Net book value as at 11,782,463 11,021,067

2019.12.31



08 -A  Infrastructure

Balance as at Additions 2019 (Disposals) 2019 Balance as at Balance as at
01/01/2019 31/12/2019 31.12.2018
Cost
Electronic Data 8,640,585 - - 8,640,585 8,640,585
Road 884,251 - - 884,251 884,251
9,524,836 - - 9,524,836 9,524,836
Balance as at Charge for (Disposals) 2019 Balance as at Balance as at
01/01/2019 the year 2019 31/12/2019 31/12/2018
Depreciation
Electronic Data 8,_640,535 . - - 8,640,585 8,640,585
Road 279,859 44,213 324,071 279,859
8,920,444 44,212.53 - 8,964,656 8,920,444
N lue as at -
et book value as 3 604,392 560,180 604,392
2019.12.31
2019 2018
09 Inventories
Stamp in hand 6,705 885
Stationery 955,785 999,845
Non- Consumables 531,607 558,102
1,494,097 1,558,832
10 Trade & other receivables 2qT0 2018
Staff Debtors - Distress Loan 3,525,282 2,430,390
Staff Debtors - Festival Advance 3,750 3,750
Unsettied Research Imprest * 659,131 659,131
Deposits Receivable 75,500 75,500
Prepayment 14,086,412 16,831,738
Income Receivable 363,958 553,273
Floricutture Project 50 50
IFPRI Project 518 518
18,714,601

10
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11 Cash at bank 2019 2018
BOC - Torrington Square 6,963,024 14,017,088
BOC - Loan revol. Fund 4,975,666 5,471,187
BOC Savings A/C - Gratuity Fund 8,340,070 5,958,430 .

20,278,760 25,446,705

12 CARP Fund 2019 2018
Balance as at 01% January 2019 27,639,257 27,639,257
Prior Year Adjustments

2010 - -
2011 (26,402,813) -
2012 (1,964,728) -
2013 6,713,823 -
2014 {2,918,025) -
- 2015 5,116,750 -

2016 -

2017 -
2018 - -
{19,454,993) -

Transfer of Net Balance of Capital Grants
2010 1,456,870 -
2011 4,572,010 -
2012 850,920 -
2013 (5,599,756) -
2014 722,401 -
2015 (1,855,716) -
2016 (831,703) .
2017 (4,286,192) -
2018 (151,012) -
2019 2,146,791 :
(2,975,387) -
Balance as at 31st. December 2019 5,208,877 27,639,257

Jomad




13 Capital Grants - {Treasury Grants - Research) 2019 2018
Balance at the beginning of the year {6,468,925) {5,856,588)
Treasury Grant Received 15,000,000 14,350,000
Prior Year Adjustments

2010 - -
2011 (6,319,092) -
2012 3,355,657 -
2013 {8,812,010) “
2014 3,522,032 -
2015 4,318,929 -
2016 3,058,517 .
2017 1,721,388 -
2018 461,325 (16,789)
1,346,746 {16,789)
Transfer of Net Balance of Capital Grants to CARP Fund '
2010 (1,456,870) -
2011 (4,572,010) -
2012 (850,920} -
2013 5,589,756 -
2014 (722,401) -
2015 1,855,716 -
2016 831,703 -
2017 4,286,192 -
2018 151,012 -
2019 (2,146,791)
2,975,387 .
12,853,209 8,476,623
Research Management & Related Functions
Research Management Activities 10,239,563 12,135,933
Publication, seminars & Workshops 232,215 490,240
10,471,778 12,626,173
Transfer to Deferred Income Fund 2,381,431 2,319,375
12,853,209 14,945,548
Net of Capital Grants Transferred to CARP Fund 0 (6,468,925)

12




14 Deferred Income Fund 2019 2018
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,208,690
2011 32,671,426 .
2012 505,589 -
2013 (2,025,046) -
2014 (2,471,471) -
2015 (9,435,679) -
2016 (3,060,121) -
2017 (1,883,242) -
2018 {4,136,346) -
10,165,110
Government grants Received on Capital Assets 2,381,431 2,319,375
Deferred Income for the Year
For the Assets Purchased in 2019 (3,173,984} {110,685)
Balance at the beginnigg of the year 11,581,247 2,208,690
.5 Retirement Benefit (Gratuity Provision) 2019 2018
Balance as at 01% January 2019 7,820,353 6,549,816
Add : Receipts
Current Year Provision 1,357,147 2,091,465
Interest - -
9,177,501 8,641,281
Less : ment
Payment to Retired Employees - 820,928
Reversal of over provision - -
Balance as at 31st December 2019 9,177,501 7,820,353
6 Trade & other payables 2019 2018
Accrued Expenses 649,329 1,229,260
Deposits Payable 217,890 241,730
Loan Payable 6,200 6,200
NARP Project 233 233
PAYE Payable - 2,155
VAT Payable 12,000 12,000
Retention Payable 47,685 113,153
Other Payable 6,220 -
939,557 1,604,732
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Comparision of Approved Recurrent Budget (Revised) and Actual Expenditure Amounts for the year ended

Recurrent Actual Income/ Approved Revised Difference/ Excess
Expenditure 2019 Budget 2019 (Shortage)
LKRs. Cts. LKRs. Cts. LKRs, -  Cts.
01 Treasury Grants
Recurrent 168,350,300 200,000,000 31,649,700
168,350,300 200,000,000 31,649,700
02 (a). OtherIncome
Distress Loan Interest 644,268 - -
Sundry Income 99,090 - -
Deferred Income 3,173,984 - -
3,917,382 - -
03 Administrative Expenses
Employee benefits expenses (A) 28,876,247 37,820,250 8,944,003
Travelling Expenses (B) 34,143 750,000 715,857
Vehicle Hiring Charges - 50,000 50,000
Allowances to Members 532,309 800,000 267,691
Fuel & Qil’ 373,331 650,000 276,669
Uniforms 25,000 30,000 5,000
Newspapers & Periodicals 17,520 20,000 2,480
Stationery & Non Consumables 1,156,867 1,150,000 (6,867)
Repairs & Maintenance (C) 755,208 1,225,000 469,792
Office Upkeep( Janitorial service) 674,001 800,000 125,999
Communication Expenses 419,717 559,750 140,033
Electricity Charges 846,063 1,000,000 153,937
Security Charges 1,234,019 1,500,000 265,981
Meeting Expenses 560,745 600,900 39,256
Staff Welfare 462,163 600,000 137,837
Auditor's remuneration 426,384 350,000 (76,384).
Staff Training 322,370 500,000 177,630 ¢
Insurance 370,495 480,000 108,505
Postage & Stamps 102,725 250,000 147,275
Advertisement 493,330 700,000 206,670
Surcharge - 10,000 10,000
Incidentals - - -
Sundry Expenses 80,931 150,000 69,069
Vehicle Tax _ - - -
Interenational 'Frainigg for NARS 136,734,708 150,000,000 13,265,292
R 174,498,276 199,995,000 25,496,724
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Employée benefits expenses
Staff Salaries 14,769,582 17,768,376 2,998,794
Cost of Living Allowances 2,506,660 3,088,800 582,140
Qther Allowances 1,418,332 1,500,708 82,376
Overtime 308,788 300,000 (8,788)
Medical Reimbursement 259,411 270,000 10,589
Encashment of medical ieave 566,115 1,240,349 674,234
Contribution to Employees' Provident Fund 2,420,271 3,128,576 708,305
Contribution to Employees’ Trust Fund 483,714 625,715 142,001
Defined Benefit Plan Cost - Gratuity 1,357,147 2,792,606 1,435,459
Approved Vehicle & fuel Allowances 3,124,320 4,005,120 880,800
Research Allowances : - 300,000 300,000
Allowances to Chairman & Director 1,661,907 2,800,000 1,138,093
' 28,876,247 37,820,250 8,944,003
Travelling Expenses
Local 34,143 100,000 65,857
Qverseas ) - 650,000 650,000
’ ' 34,143 750,000 715,857
Repairs & Maintenance
Equipments 278,535 300,000 21,465
Vehicles 365,273 700,000 334,727
Building 111,401 200,000 88,599
Furniture & Fittings - 25,000 25,000
755,208 -1,225,000 469,792
Finance Cost
Debit Tax 25,737 - {25,737)
Bank Charges 200 5,000 4,800
Exchange Loss 1,121,625 - (1,121,625)
' 1,147,563 5,000 (1,142,563)
200,000,000 24,354,161

Grand Total 175,645,839
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Folio

Expenditure I
Category

Objective
No./ Section
ois_l'.le Act.

Object
‘Code

Functions

Actual Income/
Expenditure 2019
LKRs. Cts.

Approved Budget 2019
LKRs. Cts.

Difference/ Excess
(Shortagz)
LKRs, Cts.

Research
Management
and Functions of
the council

10-(a)

To advise the Government on alt
matters regarding the organization, co-
ordination, planning and execution of
agricultural research and such other
related matters as may be referreg to it
by the Minister

11,000.00

200,000.00

179,000.00

{Objectives of
Jthe Council)

10- (b)

250

To formulate national agricultyral
research policy and priorities

436,758.00

480,000.00

(16,758.00)

10-{c)

2501

To define the overall aims and scope of

agricultural research with a view to
hering national development

objectives

101,250.00

150,000.00

48,710.00

10-{d)

2501

To make recommendations to the
appropriate aythorities on the financial,
manpgower and physical resources
required by agricultural research
institutigns and establishments and qn
the terms and conditions of service of
the staff of such institutions and
establishments :

157,380.00

390,000.00

232,620.00

10-{e)

2501

| ‘ré review institutional and departmental

agricultural research programmes and
make recommendations with regard to
their priorities and funding to the

| Ministry of the Minister in charge of the
subject of Finance and Planning

1,094,262.50

900,000.00

(194,262.50)

2501

To promote and facﬂitabé excellence in
agricultural research

3,308,130.75

5,000,000.00

1,691,869.25

2501

To éct as a channel of communication
between agricultural research
institutions and the Government

73,322.50

80,000.00

5,677.50

10 - (h)

2501

To arrange for and fund inter-
institutional agricultural research
PIQE cts

2,649,910.61

3,000,000.00

350,089.39

10- (i)

2501

To arrange for and fund special scientific
services for the entire agricultural
research sector

321,384.00

350,000.00

28,616.00

10- ()

2501

To promote linkage between agricultural

‘Jresearch institutions at national and

international level

1573,241.51

2,900,000.00

1,326,758.48

C/F

9,786,679.87

3,663,320.13 -

13,450,000.00
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BJF 5,785,679.87 13,450,000.00 3,663,320.13
To organizé conferences and seminars *
on internatianal, national and inter- .
- ' Y ,000. 24,620.00
10-0) 2501 institytional issues relating to 225,380.00 250,000.00
agricultural research
To arrange for the post-graduate
10-() 2401 training of agricultural research staff and
for interchange of scientists with
recognized research institutions abroad:
To review the performance of
} |agricultural research projects, 72,497.00
10- {m) =0 Iinsmutions and divisions from time to 227,503.00 500,000.00 272,497:
ime A
- ’ 10,239,562.87 14,200,000.00 3,960437.13
Acquisition of . I -
capital Assets
(a)} Building,
Plant, Machinery 2103
- 4,841,431.25 15,400,000.00 10,558,568.75
2105
4,841,431.25 15,400,000.00 10,558,568.75
*
Rehabilitation & _
{improvements of 2001
Capital Assets
4 {Other Capital
diture
(a) Restructuring 2502 N .
(b} Seminar,
Workshop & 2502 232,215.00 400,000.00 167,785.00
Publication
232,215.00 400,000.00 167,785.00 |
Grand Total 15,313,209.12 30,000,000.00 14,686,790.88
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L N




16.

GENERAL
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PART I

16.1.1 B asis oi‘_Pregaration

a)

b)

d)

Statement of compliance - The financial statement of the council comprise
the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Financial Performance,
cash flow statement and notes to the financial statement.

The financial statement was authorized for issue by the Council on 27%
February 2020.

Reporting entity - The institute of Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural
Research Policy has been registered under the Parliament act.No.47 of 1987
on 27th of December 1987. The registered office of the council is situated
at No.114/09, Vidya Mawatha, Colombo 07, Sri Lanka.

Principle activities and nature of operations - SLCARP was established
in 1987, under the Act No.47 of 1987 to ensure that agricultural research is
directed towards national development through formulation of agricultural
research policy, research prioritization, planning, facilitation, co-ordination,
monitoring and evaluation of agricultural research.

A Description of the Nature of the Entity - Sri Lanka Council for
Agricultural Research Policy is an umbrella organization of the National
Agricultural Research System (NARS) that operates within several
Ministries. SLCARP came into existence on the 22nd December 1987 to
create an environment for more productive agricultural research.

SLCARP’s mission is to enhance and mobilize the scientific resources in Sri
Lanka efficiently to catalyze and agricultural research and technology
generation within NARS,

With the Secretariat in Colombo, SLCARP serves as an organization in an
advisory capacity for co-coordinating and consolidating efforts within Sri
Lanka NARS, funding research projects/programmers and promoting scientific
research linkages in prioritized areas both nationally and internationally. CARP
has been instrumental in promoting and facilitating research, by improving and
enhancmg agticultural research through documentation and communicating
latest advances in research to the NARS scientists. SLCARP has identified its
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own perspective, plans and programs for the future in keeping with the
aspirations and goals of the Ministry of Agriculture Development and Agranan
Services to meet the future challenges in enhancing domestic food production
and exports focused on poverty reduction.

f) Our Vision - A vibrant and sustainable agricultural research, developmem
and innovation system assuring socio- economic development of Sri Lanka.

g) Our Mission - To ensure agricultural research, development and
innovations are directed towards national development goals through policy
formulation, facilitation, coordination, monitoring and evaluation and
impact assessment. |

h) Our Mandated Functions - SLCARP

(1) To advice the Government on all matters regarding the organization, co-
ordination, planning and execution of agricultural research and such other
related matters as may be referred to it by the Minister;

() to formula:te national agricultural research policy and priorities;

(3) to define the overall aims and scope of agricultural research with a view
to furthering national development objectives;

(4) to make recommendations to the appropriate authorities on the financial,
manpower and physical resources required by agricultural research
institutions and establishments and on the terms and conditions of service
of the staff of such institutions and establishments;

(5) to review Institutional and departmental agricultural research programmes
and make recommendations with regard to their priorities and funding to
the Ministry of the Minister in charge of the subject of Finance and
Planning;

(6) to promote and facilitate excellence in agricultural reésearch;

(7) to act as a channel of communication between agricultural research
institutions and the Government;

(8) to arrange for and fund inter-institutional agricultural research projects;

13
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(9) to arrange for and fund special scientific services for the entire agricultural
research sector;

(10)to promote linkage between agricultural research institutions at national and
international level; '

(11)Organize conferences and seminars on mmaﬁond, national and inter-
Institutional issues relating to the agricultural research;

(12)to arrange for the post-graduate training of agricultural research staff and
for interchange of sclentlsts with recogmzed research institutions abroad;
and

(13)to review the performance of agncultural research pro;ects institutions and
divisions from time to time.

16.1.2. National Agricultural Research Plan (NARP)

National Agxiculturai.Research Plan_ (NARP) is one of the mandatory functions
conducted by Sri Lanka Council for Agiiculuual Research Policy under the
programme no 1 and 13 of the Action Plan .U.nder this programme SLCARP does
the recommendation of research project proposals for funding, monitoring of
ongoing projects and evaluating of the terminal reports. Main objective of this.
programme is to facilitate Agricultural research by providing funds, monitoring
ongoing projects and evaluating of terminal reports of these projects.

Annuéll_y, end of the year, SLCARP prepares NARP, the document containing all
the details of the research projects to be conducted in the following year. The
projects are implemented by the institutions of the National Agricultural Research
System (NARS) and agriculture related Faculties of the National Universities.
Currently NARP is operated in the Departmént of Agriculture, Department of
Export Agriculture, and agriculture related Faculties of National Universities.
These projects are designed in accordance with the priority areas identified by Sri
Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy for a particular period.

20
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16.1.3. Capacity Building Programme

SLCARP decided to revitalize Human Resources Development for the NARS as
there was a felt requirement for training officers to M.Sc. and PhD level. Thus,
SLCARP submitted a proposal to the Ministry of Agriculture for Capacity Building
of the Researchers of the NARS for which Cabinet Memorandum was issued on
21 September 2017 under the heading of Directing of Researchers of the NARS
for Foreign postgraduate degree training.

This programme provides provision for training to address the training requirement
of the National Agriculture Research System of this country, which needs much
strengthening to meet the challengers of the sector and to be in par with the
neighboring countries in the region.

Number of Candidates who have received admission under the Capacity Building
long term training Programme of SLCARP in year 2019 and on-going scholars of
the Capacity Development Programme. '

No of Scholars

University Putra Malaysia - Malaysia 28
University of Philippines Los Banos — Philippines 23
University of the Philippines Diliman — Philippines 01
Kasetsart University — Thailand | 02
Asian Institute of Technology (AIT) — Thailand 03
Haryana Agricultural University — India 01
Kerala Agricultural University — India 01
Professor Jayasankar Telangana State Agricultural'

University (PJTSAU) — India 01
Acharya N.G. Ranga Agricultural University — India 01
C S K Himachal Pradesh krishi Vishvavidyalaya — India 01

16.2.1 Accounting Policiés and Concepts;

Accounting policies consist of principles, bases, conventions, rules and procedures,
and also Accounting concepts are ideas and assumption which are fundamental to
accounting practices. Therefore some of our accounting concepts are as follows;

16.2.2 Basis of meﬁsurement

163

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cash basis. No
adjustment has been made for inflationary factors in the financial statement.

Functional and presentation of currency
The financial statement of the year end 2010 were presented in Sri Lankan rupees

(LKRs.) and nearest cents.
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However we have decided to present our Financial Stﬁterhent in LKRs. And round
to the nearest rupee which is effective from the financial year January 01% 2011
and ahead. Year 2017 was presented in LKRs. and rounded to the nearest rupee.

The stipend and University fees relating to Capacity Building program are paid in
USD () where that Expenses is converted to LKR at the spot rate of transaction
date and prepaid the stipend and University fees are taken in to financial
statements at the rate of Balance sheet rate. The difference arisen due to changes
on Exchange rate has been taken in to financial statements as exchange gain or
Loss.

16.4 Accounting for Govt. Grants disclose of Govt. Assistance

(@) Accounting for Government Grants & Disclosure_of Government Assistance is
adopted. '

(b) We '&rrher say, that_accounting policy had been adopted _with regard to the
government grants was the method of capital approach but that government grant
was related to the fixed assets it had been taken to the accounts under the method

of income approach.

(¢c) A Deferred Income Fund has been identified only in respect of the assets purchased
 during the year 2018 in the Financial Statements of 2018

16.4.1 Capital Grants [Treasui‘v Grants Research)

According to the Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy Act No.14 of
1987, all the Grants received need to be credited to CARP Fund and all the

expenses need to be done out of that. In that Sense Capital Grants (Treasury Grants
Research) need to be a considered as a supplementary Note to the CARP Fund and

the remaining balance need to be reflected in the CARP Fund each Year. Then only
Carp Fund will be remaining as an Equity Fund in Statement of Financial Position.

From 2010 to 2017 the funds that were used to purchase of fixed assets have not
been reflected in the Capital Grants (Treasury Grants Research). But a
depreciation_income had been transferred to the Statements_of Comprehensive
Income. Because of that cumulative adverse effect over last years a_negative
balance in CARP fund was visible in Capital Grants (Treasury Grants Research)
in2017 & 2018.
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Corrective Adjustments have been made in order to rectify above adverse effect
based on the issues emphasized by the Auditors General by his queries dated

31.12.2019 with the reference of AGL/E/CARP/2018/03.

In Summary areas that were recognized by the Auditor General is as follows.

1. TIreasury Grants Research _
In the years of 2017 & 2018 Treasury Grants Research has reflected negative

balances.

a) Council have made capital exggmes more than Fund received for the

activities in
b) Itwas doub;&l the marmer of e xge es that were incurred on fixed assets

without reflecting such expenses in Treasury Grants Research as that is in

capital nature. _
¢) The depreciation impact of Non- Consumables has also affected to the

negative balance in Treasury Grants Research.

2. The Amortization of the funds recg;ved on behalzf of Fixed Assets have not been

happened according to the requirements of LKAS 20, Accounting for Government
Grants & Disclosure of Government Assistance as the funds used for those fixed

assets purchases are not reflected in Treasury Grants Research,

3. According to the Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy Act No.14 of
1987, all the Grants received need to be credited to CARP Fund and all the

expenses need to be done out of that.

In order to rectify the above the initial entries that had been passed to Accumulated

Surplus or Deficit (Prior Year Adjustments), Carp Fund & Gift were reversed in _

respective Years and placed the correct entries according 1o LKAS 20, Accounnng

for Government Grants & Disclosure of Government Assistance the Correction
entries, Calculation and the explanatory notes are attached as Anmexures.

16.4.2 Research Management Acﬁvities

Generally, the Capital Fund are utilizing to Research Management Activities where the
requirements of LKAS 38 for Intangible assets are not comply with. Hence the Research

management activities are in a nature where that could not be capitalize. Due to that

reason both the expense and amount of Fund are shown in the Comprehensive Income
Statement in order to reflect the effect.
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17. 1. VALUATION OF ASSETS

1.1 Property Plant & Equipment

Property plant & equipment are on the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and is provided on the straight line method at the following rates per

annum.
a) Building - 05%
b) Computer & printers 30%
c) Computer Software 30%
d) Office Equipment 15%
e) Office Furniture 15%
f) Vehicles 25%
g) Road 05%
h) Library Book 05%
1) Electronic Data 30%
Revaluation of Assets

Request has been made to the secretary Ministry of Agriculture for revaluation of assets.
Adjustment will make for 2019 after receiving of the revaluation report. A revaluation
committee has been appointed by now where as the council approval is pending.

1.2 Disposal Value |
Value of disposal items has been decided by the council approved valuation committee.

1.3 Trade & Other Receivables

Trade & Other Receivables incurred Staff Debtors, Unsettled Research Imprest, Deposits,
Prepayment, Income receivable & Project receivables.

1.4 Composition of EPF & ETF rates;

Employer Employee Total
EPF 15% 10% 25%

ETF 03% - 03%
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1.5 Unsettled Research imprest

The research imprest has been given to various research Institutes/ Upivei‘sities in Sri
Lanka. However, some of the research institutes/ Universities do not settle this research
imprest at the year-end such amount stated as an unsettled research imprest.

1.6 Stocks

Stocks are shown in the financial statement at lower of market value or purchase price.
The stock is valued using FIFO method. The Non Consumables are classified as stock item
based on the nature of that category which was previously presented in Property plant and
equipment. The Depreciation provided so far is reversed back to Prior Year Adjustments.

1.7 Gratuities

A provision has been made according to regulations 5 of Gratuity Act. No.12 of 1983 in
respect of employees eligible under the Act.

1.8 Receivable Deposits

Values of refundable and receivable of deposits are namely as follows;

A. W. Ranasinghe (Filling Station - Kollupitiya)
Postgraduate Institute of Management - Library
Sri Lanka Telecom - IDD

1.9 Other Matters

2.0 Ownership of the Building SLCARP
Request has been made to the Secretary ministry of Agriculture to clear the ownership of

the land and Building which is used by the SLCARP.

2.1 Pending Litigation of Mr. W.M.D. B. Abyerathne
The Council noted the present status after the disciplinary inquiry - Mr. W.M.D. B.
Abyerathne, Former Accountant, SLCARP. In addition, the council approval was also
granfed to handover the case against Mr. W.M.D. B. Abyerathne to Attorney General to
cover Rs. 587, 418 the amount which is to be recovered from him.
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Our Corporate Information

As at 31* of December 2019
Name of the State Owned Enterprise
Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy
Ministry
Ministry of Mahaweli, Agriculture, Irrigation and Rural Development
Seecretary to the Ministry
Mr. Neel Bandara Hapuhinne

Classification of General Treasury (PED /COP/POLLCircular-17.06.2015)

Budgetary Funded — Research and Development Agencies/ Entities established under an Act. of Parliament
to perform research and development activities for the benefit of the National Economy or in the wider
interest of the public are deemed as Research and Development Agencies.

Supervision and Monitoring Role Managed by
Department of Public Enterprises (PED)

Carder Supervision & Corporate Plan Managed by
National Salaries and Carder Commission / Department of Management Services (MSD)

and
Department of Public Enterprises (PED)

Annuai Budget and Action Plan Managed by
Department of National Budget

Governed by
The Council of Sri Lanka Council for Agricuitural Research Policy

Head of the Council

Secretary / Director

Legal Form
Incorporated Under the Parliament Act.

Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy Act, No. 47 of 1987
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Registered Office
No.114/ 09, Vidya Mawath , Colombo -07
Sri Lanka

Telephone Numbers
0094 — 11 - 2697103, 2697648, 2698001,2685688, 2665076, 2665077

Fax Number

0094 - 11 - 2982951

E-mail - slcarp.agri@gmail.com

Our Website - www.slcarp.lk

Auditors to the SI. CARP

Auditor General

Secretary to the Council / Head of the Department
Secretary / Director
Bankers

Bank of Ceylon ~Supper Grade Branch, Independence Square, Colombom07, Sri lanka.
¢ Current A/C No. 2323310
¢ Swift Code BCEYLKLX ,Bank Code 7010 ,Branch Code 453
¢ Telephone Number 0094 - 11-2692506

Lawyers to the SL CARP

Attorney General, AG’s Department, Colombo 01, Sri Lanka.
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Summary of the Recommendations

made at the Audit and Management Committee Meetings Conducted in year 2020

Composition of the Audit & Management Committee in Year 2019,

Audit & Management Committee:
1 Dr. Kapila Senanayake, Ministry of Finance & Planning ~ Chairman
2 Prof. Gamini Seananayake, Faculty of Agriculture, University of Ruhuna — Member
3 Dr. H. M. P Kithsiri, National Aquatic Resources Research and Development Agency — Member

By Invitation:
1 Mrs. Udeni Perera, Audit Superintendent, Agriculture & Agrarian Board
2 Mr. U S L Kumara, Internal Auditor, Ministry of Mahaweli,Agriculture, Irrigation and Rural Development

Numbers of Meetings Convened with Duties:
57" Audit & Management Committee Meeting — 10" April, 2019
58" Audit & Management Committee Meeting — 16 August, 2019
59" Audit & Management Committee Meeting — 14" October, 2019

All Recommendation of the Audit & Management Committee Meetings held have been submitted
to the Council of SLCARP.

Recommendations made at the Audit & Management Committee Meetings:

Papers submitted at the 57th AMC Meeting Submission Requirements Action by
Information Recommendation

Confirmation of the Minutes of the 56™  [Submitted for

. ) ) ) - Secretary
Audit & Management Committee meeting |Information
Budget revision 2019 Submitted for_ Secretary
- recommendation
P f the 1% Quarter of 2019 submitted for - Secreta
rogress of the 1™ Quarter o Information © M
. Submitted fi
Unutilized tyres Homitted for - Secretary

Information




Papers submitted at the 58th AMC Meeting Submission Requirements Action by
Information | Recommendation
Confirmation of the Minutes of the 57"  |Submitted for
) ) . - Secretary
Audit & Management Committee meeting [Information
‘Revision of Recurrent Budget 2019 Submitted for
- Secretary
recommendation
Progress of the 2™ Quarter of 2019 Submitted for ) Secretary
Information
. . Submitted for
Unutilized tyres Information - Secretary
Annual Asset Verification Submitted for
. - Secretary
Information
Internal Audit Division Submitted for
. - Secretary
information
PAYE Dr. Wijewardena, Former Secretary  [Submitted for
) - Secretary
Information
Transfer of remaining Balance of Bank A/C,|Submitted for Secreta
BOC, A/C No. 1632497 to Treasury information i
Auditior General’s Report 2018 Submitted for
i - Secretary
Information
Investigation — Research Grant Negative|Submitted for '
- Secretary
Balance Information o
Half year Financial Statements 2019 Submitted for '
- . * |Secretary
recommendation
Revision of Capital Budget 2019 Submitted for
- Secretary
recommendation
Papers submitted at the 59th AMC Meeting Submission Requirements Action by
Information Recommendation
Confirmation of the Minutes of the 58™|Submitted for
. . . - Secretary
Audit & Management Committee Meeting |Information
Matters Arising from Minutes Submitted for S
- ecretary
information
Handing over duties of resigned|Submitted for
. - Secretary
Accountant _ Information
Recovery of Overpaid medical leave Submitted for
. - Secretary
encashment calculation 2018 recommendation -
Revision of Recurrent Budget 2019 Submitted for
- . Secretary
recommendation
Revision of Capital Budget 2019 Submitted for
- . Secretary
recommendation
Proposed revision of Capital Budget - _ Submitted for Secretary
2020 _ recommendation
rd Submitted f
- Progress of the 3™ quarter of 2019 ubmitted for i Secretary
Information

Convener
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SE6VeNTT,
@evmiens elleusF T QLTTULEFR Q& TeTend Fevll

@levniens eflausF Tl SLTTUEFTF QSmeTens FemLiuilesr 2019 Su1d
S,600T(H B FLOLIT LOM5LD 31 b Be&EHulleh WIgeuanLbS
ST D SHITET BIH & Fa (D NISSET QGITLITLIMES 2018 S4ID ), 600TL.60T 19
3ilh @\ v&E C5FIW SauTEamILeY FLL S 6r 12 b L9rflefleor
Hrsny seaursasmlaumeny &S LS Qeaueflull@Lh &eurss&miiey
S enss

1. BIS& oMo &ser
1.1. sawrssmle LN ymwid

@evmiens efleuF Ml LTTUEFSF Q& meTens FenLiufler 2019 guLd
QLe0r(h S FOUT LTSLD 31 Q1D HaHullev WIgeUmLES
SLEVOT I (D TE BIS) & &aDDISSHET DD BSS H &S uiley
PSS 260071 D& meor 65lifleumesr eu(BLOTaTE: Sam o, G5 mlwl
QFNS S8 &6rfler IDMHMBISET LML Sado IDHMILD NHSHS
FHEH U (WDIGEUML B 2600719 M ETET &ML LIMUISFE) Fa M)
WHMILD BIFE oM mIsaE T &ML &6T, SH(HSE0TaT (NS
HTHEL_ (D& Q& ITETENHS6IT 6T60T LIGOT 2_6TerL IS W 2019 SuLd
QL6e00T(H HFIDLIT OMSLD 31 Qid &S ullev WigeuemLHS
SLEVOT I D SHITET BIFH G FnDMIGHSHET G)6VHBINS LQETHITULES
Can&edlags @19 W s HTFwevemnoliLer 154 (1) Qyld
2_MILILemTUL 6T CFN5E S UTRES Ceuesoriqil 2018 LD 24,6007 1q.60T
19 Qb V&S CHFIW SHeTsH&TILY FLLSHTHID InMmmith 1971
QLD 8,600 19.60T 38 QYLD @VE:S BIH AB&TT FLLSH TSN
ghourp seflar Kgsmr erarg LiewollLiedr SBLp & 6mrd: & Tile)]
QEFWIWLILIL L 6oT. 6Te0Tsl @) hF 2IM&and TFweveninliilesr 154 (6)
Qb 2 mitijemyuiler Slgpsnpid &smevs HrngsHev
UMITEBLOETHSESE QHILGSSILGILD.

eTe0Tsl SMlEenauller sersamuley HLINULNTmwgES) MHas meor

Qg iuemL-U Wifleysserflev efleurflaas Ll (hemer el uwimigerlesr
BTG BISH6T ST, @euniend elleuFmuwl ITUFS C\& TeTen s
Feanuuwiledr 2019 b e HEFWLUF DTS 31 Qb BaEH ulley
(LPIGEUEDL S 26007 DS TET BIS Blemevs gn DD OO AbHSS



FHHEH W6 WPIEUEIL_HSH S,6eu0TIy NS TET FenLIUNeT BIS FTTHS
QEWMUMHISEBLD LOMMILD SIT& L LIMLEFF6) SanMmID E)6Vniens
STTF SIEMME HeToTsEL(h) [BIWILOMEIS EHEE ©)600T IS
swmfléas Ul G\aTerer IMHmILD &F6m LuledT HIWmwL meor
2_6TOTEMLO WITEDT [Bleneven it a6y LTS Led &S eTment 6redriig)
eTeorgl LT mESLD.

. SHEOUTSHSITIIOSSITET L LILIeTL

(&) GUISS WSemmilie) 2uLe00r® QS UN6L WPEDLOWITS
@z UILDMmeoTLd S6voll&EHIUL G @) BHS 26,321,295 epLtT
QUG WIMEOT 04 6)ITE5 0TI 6T GLOSYILD LITEUEMEDTE: (& 6R6U6 TS
LweTmm Blemevuileh @ BHSID 3iHS 61T 60T ki & 6rfl60T
LIWLISBI6ITEIT LITEUENET HITVSH NS G)6VMBIeNS 3|T&F SlehM
SHEoTEHE L1960 3 91D B)6v&:S BlLng T 6T LNFsTrh ;eSS MH
Q& mevoT(h), 2{BS 6UMTSHETBIFH6T LiaTallemey DS &S LILIL ()
SjeuMHI6DT BIWITWILOTET QLIMILDTETLD BIH & Sn M misserlev
STLLULGUSMHES BLULSHMNS 6T(H& 8L B
@\(H& &6 6Vem6V.

(1) Qevmiens afleuF T WITUIFS QsMeaTend FemLl
BleuH SSLULGWD SLIGLSHNG LB R0 LUTHS505
BlFwmenléaEL QuTGLE GMSS LeTmILIeY S4L,6e00T([H &meuL
UGB U6 L1 L RIHET HenanrdsensHnE& Qeaus s Ll d
@\BHS 2,460,000 € LIT Q) GTem&:LLITET (LNMLIGHTLD B Blemevss
FapleV BEOLNeNDF QFTSHGSHaN6r Eip ST LILGeUSDHE
OIS [HEOL (PN MUIVEVTS Q& TS SIS &6Tr SLD Blemmey
QUDMTE Lesofleeriig ST UL (B @GBHSS!.

(@) F6vell QFwhurGsefler PGS0 QeualBTH&EH5HE
QFOTOBES 2 HHCUTHSSTHET FNTLMS Femll QFMNSS W
UMLQBMIE &L L 600 BiSs6IT LOMHMILD 6UBIS&H6T MHMILD 3j606)
QBTLITUMS HMellL LU IQ.(HHS eUHIGH & &L | 600T HI& 6T
WHDILD SIS L6ewTLD eTedrLeum 6T sal (hig 6l& men sl mesr
473,770 epUT QM GSMISHS LOETTUIEY 2,607 L1460
QFVTHEH DG FIMes s LILIL B ETaNLD & TJ600Ts S\ 60T M6V
GGG HaTmILe] 2,600TIq 60T L6 S 3iHFH S 6TeUTeL LTS SIS
STLLULLGH @GBHSS!.
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GTGOT6OT [T6L S5600TE SITILI6Y QEFWIWILILIL L GI. @)HS 6T aTuley
plwomigerfler S erarg QUMMILILSES6T @)HS ol enasuller
B9 & FaDDI&HE6T &eTs e M6 &FLDLIHS L0 mer
senrdamuleumerifler QummiliL eterm LNiflefleb Guogpid
elleurflgasLILIL (D 6iTerTenT. 6TewEI &eurs&smuiey LN T mw S mesmeor
R {14 LILIEL MW LPETEN6USHEGLD QLIMTBL () 6T6dTeurmeL QUM mIs
Q& TeITemLILIL (D6ITEIT &5600T 85 851TUL16)| 8585 TE0T & T60T MU 6IT
GUITGILDITETEMEU LD LOMMILD GLIT(HG &0 MEOTEm GULL| LD 6T60T [HIT60T
[BLOL] &\ etT G 6o

BIS\& aMH Q&S QSTLFLUTS (& TenLNSSi6us S HSLh
LwHoIb SLELUUTLE SrUUSEESELID @) s S erm
QUITILIL & 56T

QbS BIH S FaDHOUSGESHMET G)CVMAIMNS ITF SNME HeTe:EL (B
BRI EBSES G 6wrnhig SWHLLgID WMmoLh §wimwLmeor
allgs55 60 FFUULLGID WHMID CMEI.&efleTme (6V6sl
&6U 061607 M6V 6TLDE Fon. L9 U @) LIT(H6BOTE0ILO LITEOT @) LITUILLIT60T

S DHMIS&ET BRISW BIH & Fahmssaner swrflésn QurmLl@
GZHemeuWITEIT 2 6Tems8 &L BLILTL (R el L WmkisenerT
SrwmerlliLgild W& TenLngSieusSH et QLUmmLILITGELD.

BIH& Fabhmssener WrflsEh CUTs G evniend elleus i
QTTUEFR Q&HTETENS FanLMmW QSTLFFRAWTS Bl([HeuH 5SS
Q&6LEVE Fanlq Ul QLHMEMNE BFLOMETILILIGID (L& TeN LS S 6 &5 6or
QUITILILIMGLD. W STMGSIeUD Fanuenll Rulsss &1 heushE
eTesoTEERI LD MU 60T D46LeV S Gouml 6THS ([ OMH MU G)6Vemney
T B HH T CUMS QEFWHUTHSHENET Bl0)GSSI6Us5MHE

BLeU &GN T(heGLmuilar selr, QsmLTFRwns
BlHeuSESILGLD 6T6Tm Y LILELUT SarsSEE Q& iougid
LHOD FeNUMW QSTLFFRW TS BlapeuSILLSHES W
ellLwnsener QeueflLiLGSSIuGID (W& TS S!6) &) 6T
QUMMILILITEGLD.

FenLule BIH & FadHoidsaser L nl&ensullBIb HL LI LM
QSTLFUmer QUITMILL SLEUUGSSID STLILSEHEHS T WS TESLD.



2018 oy 1D 24,600T19.60T 19 QYLD @)eVES CHFIL &6mTE ST
FLLSHer 16 (1) @b 2 U Liflefletr Ly mb, Fenuuller eumLTHS
Bl& Fahmssener 2 flw & CHEIEHNE &WTH&SHE Fnlg e
SMISHS UIBLDTETLY, QF6VE &6, QFTHSISHSHET LOMHMILD
QUMTMILIL&&ET eTadTLIenT QFTLFLIL 2 flw 68588 6v

LSS & MIGEn6TWLD MDD NN &n&EHeneTu|Ld GLicwrleur
Geuevor(HILD.

. BISE Fo DG &erss T QASTLILTS
& 600TE S T UIGUITENT(H & (& ©) (58 S 60T Q\LIMMILIL) &8 6T

RLHOWMHSHONS BIHE FabhmisH6r CLmEFL] &eTlarme Sj6uevs)
SHeUMIGETIGTTE) 6TLNE Fa QU GLIT(HEBOTETLOLLITEDT @)L TLLIWIT6oT

Fa DD ESET [BHEIG LIETEUNS & et LILI(H S 60T D EuTeUIT 6T6lT LIS NS
Blwmwnmer 2 UHLILGSSen6 QuUDHMS Q& THILILGID HMID
eTeOTSl SeouTdH M6y LNLIrmwksseT oL msw
sevoressmleumerTifletr opflé&enaenu Qeueflul®Heugih sreors
GBMT&H&SIOMGLD. Blwmwnmer 2 MIHILGSS6m60 Q\LIHIIS
QeEMHLLG 2 WJ WLLSHVTar @ 2 S LGSS0TSLD
6T60TD ITAVILD, @)6VIEIEDIS & 600TE: & TILIGY B ULILD IS @585 ©)600T M1
SEOTSSMILIME GLOMHO SHMETEBLL GLIME 3G 6TLIQUITIDSILD
GUTHW LIDLD Fabmrs QeueflliLGSSLILG6USH S TET RH

2 MIFILHSSHEVTSE HeMLOW WML LTS CLOMTEFIYSHET Si6VeVS!
SHUNHET HEOIIWITH VLG Fal LTS HMTEHSMESHMET LB &SI
eTeOTLIS M6V GUTHIW LMD Fon(DMIGH 6T 6TLOEVITLD. 6MEWITV B\HS
BB & FoDHMIGHENET 19 LILINLWITSHES G5 Tesor(H)
ufl§edlueuiasefiermey er(&B&SLILGLDL QUTGETTSTT [FHWw meor
SILTTSH L QFLITES OFNSHSHE FndILD 6Teor

TR TUMTSESLILGROTmS!.

eT60TeuT M6V QG MGl WEND BlFeTTWSH M@ LD WHmD Qg Tblevnenm
SLLMWLILEGLD JeMLDWL! @)6VTEINS &60T8: 8 TUI6Y
BIWILDMBISE55HE @) 60THIS GeTe s TUle] QEwIwlLLr L gl G,

o GUMFIYSH6rleT VeV FeumIGeTflar &TTeTons BIS &
DM & 66V 6TLDE Folq U G)LITHEUOTEHILOLLITEOT G LIMTLIWITEoT
LoD Sahmis&Eefl6T S5 5188566 §)60Tm & MG 6T LOMHmLh
LHUIGSETM CUMTE FICWTRSIOTET 2_&HHS S60Te:amUleY
HeOL(emM&Ben6T HILL AL CLm&FLq S&erflermey Sj606uEi
& 6UMISETIGOTTEL 6T FalQll 115 S185&5m6T ST S5



Q& MeTeUS MG, CUMHIW LOMHMILD QLIT(HESLOTET & 600T8 & LI
FTeTMISHEN6T QUMME Q& maTeug ereorg LU gmws s masmeot
QLI WIMTGLD. GUTHW Qumiwimer Lmip

FaD 0SSO [BES eTIQLD &THSHISG6T elLyid
GLOMFI9.5616uTITeL 6TIRLD 21560 & &IT8: 851G 6T
&(H\60I0 LI TETER6ULITE LD, QL6M&LITED 26106y, GLImed)
24,6U600T M1 &6 6T HWITHF6V, GeustrHGL6TCM HefTLILIG
SJVEVGI 2 6TeT&HES &L (HILILTHIGemeT SellJLiLIS 2aTipe08:6iT
GT(LR6US M G5 TEOT & IT[J6U0T MBI & 61T TG LD.

FLOGWITASLONGT 2 5HS Se0rsS TG HEM L (DM MW

S LSGW QUTGBLGH Femnuuler 2 6rarss &L HLIUTH&6T
QG mLumer e(® L1fb S6uor jemney QLM mI& & meuorLTeLD,
2 _6Tem&H & &L (HILILITL_ L9607 LILIGT Q&ITL[JLITET 62([H
UAFTwGSam s Geueflul(hleusmE HTeT eTesoresored]6Vem6Y.

WrGWmR&&sLILL(R6TeT SersS L (H& & TeTen &6 lersh
WMHMID HeorsS b LH LR seflersin BlwmugseaTeniow|n
LML (WP&TMLG SieuS T eormen QeueflliL®&Ss LUl (Herer
QSTLITLemL W QeuefliL® S SHevserflar &S uwn

LS UL L L eor.

51506 &6 l6eiT 21606VS! [B160Y6VED) LD S5 61T 60T &5 ITT6U0T LD TS & 60) LIGDIL
QFMLIFFWNTS BlHeuSSSHF QFas Q% TLILile
GUITEwere) Bl&FFWIDMM Blenev & meuor )L HE T M &M
ETEOTLI S M ITH QUM MG QS TETarTLILL 9.5 HS

& 60018 S ITILI6Y & & ITEOT & MedTMI&56rf160T 2419 LILI6mLul6L SHevrsE L5
plbg S0 Faruuller QSTLIFERWITET BlaheuSLIL| Q&ML jLImeT
S LnemLenw yCuwmeLLger QUTHSSLILITH
Blysvoruil&s s LUl L gl GuIrSiw Bl&EFWInmm Blenevser

ST LILI(H6USS TS [BITET 3J6USTe0 S STeV BIS& Sn M mi& 566y
M6 QGITLTLIMET QeusfllIL( &S 605 EHE G 6TeTS!
SHMHHTILE] AM&Hns U6 HeueaTld QFNGS CaustorHLD. HS
QeuaflliL( & H6V&6T CUITEH weTedlev & mevorLILI(H6US TS

@ evemev@wentley eTeorgl UILITTWSMS aflevE&H & QS meTer
GouendrT(HILD. 6TevT LD, TH &MV BlasLDey & 6rfler 96veug!
Blemeugerfler 319 iLemLuilel QsTLTHS! BL19.55 & ELD
FeTenLD @)LHS GLITHEVTLD.



o QeuefuLBHSSH6V56T L MR BIH & FaDHOI5SHN6T
FOIUUGSSH6, HLLenDLIL] IDMHIILD 2 66L& &MmIg 6T 6T60T LI6T
LHUT IYHG 2 L LUGSSLILLLET. SHHE & TITewTLONS
MBS QS MH & EEVEUMRBIGHEVE 6T IDMHMILD [B]8LD6Y&H6T
o flweunm Blurwinmer ellg58 60 BISH & samhmisserflev
2 arerL&aUUL (heTemeoreur eraur WGHIILNL LI L&,

6T60TS) &600T8 &5 ITILIeNI 60T 2arL_T&5 G600TL MBS (LD &S UILDT6OT
sevor O LIL &6, s mer 2 6rersss &L Guumt_ 6
LeveenT mIgET LM mID generw el L WimISET ereoTLI6oT LM
SLOUUTLHS STULSEHSHEGS Anlalss L L g,

2. FEMEUTIL FLL(N6MMWITET LOMMILD (L0 MG M S 51605
CaeameauliLm@asT uHMw n&ens

- 2018 9ylh 2,600TIG60T 19 QLD QVESH CHF W HETE S MG
FLLSH GL&memilh G emauliLmB\&6T QS ML TLITer e9Gag L
eTHUIT(H & 6T 2_6IT6IT LIS W eiTemen.

- 2018 1D S,600T19.60T 19 QYLD G6VHSH CHFIWI HETS: ST
FgLLGHaT 12 (o)) Uflellev UL Qswwiiul @ erer
GxemeuliLmp serledr LNgs Ty, eTeors) &emrd: & miliey
SMGenguiletr HLNLITTWSH MHETEr Sj19.LILIENLS6T 6Tl
Wrfleflev efleuflg s il B eiter efwmbisefedmb S euLh
STEHEHMHIGHET HT, HETHEHTUIR| GG CHeMEULITET FaH6V
S&H6UVSHEBLD NLITHBISEBLD LMD 667885 M EBHLD 6TET60T TV
QuUHME Q& meTarLILL L eor. eTeorg L 1Fevem et ulled (mb Sl
QzeaTUGD ST e, Fiflwimer BIS Hyns&ens, Fenuullearmev
GuesTLILIL () eubH (BHSS!.

- 2018 QLD =y,600TIq.60T 19 QYLD @\6VEHH CHFI HEVTE S TG
FLLSHeT 6 (1) (FF) (iii) @pd Lflefléh @MLILSH Qawwliul GieTer
GoemnauILT(H&HEBEH S @ThISG sFenu FTLUNES B9 6
G DS G 6IT (LDEITEOEUT UL 2,600 19 M &5 TEOT [BIPE o (D 01 5556067
RESHTH SIT6O0T L LH (5 &) 60T M 6o

- 2018 24,10 2u,600T19.60T 19 QYLD @\6VE S CHF &6v0Ts: & M6
FLLSH 6T 6 (1) (FF) (iv) b Wiflellev gMult® Qewwliugc G erer
CxemeuLILIMTBH & EH & E )600T IS (LDEOTEm 60T 3, 600T19.6V [5T60T



Wweatemeusd s Fumflaaser FLFUNSSLILULILGBHS BISH &
Fa.D MGG 6TI6L 2_6TaTL_& & 1L (H6iTereo.

Werummlw BLaIg.&HenS&6T IMHmID QUMmE GamererLiuL L
FTEOTMISHET 6T60T UM MI6oT 2)19.L1LemLul6h GLimS) wlemeu meor

AL WRISEFEE WLGLUUOSHUWSTE, BLO&TEDILD Fa DI E606T
QeaueflLiL(HSSID (6T S @ JSILD 6TEOTEUT TV

UG el sLILLallevenev.

e 2018 QLD Qy,600TIq.60T 19 QYLD EEVES ST &6WTE ST
FLLEHaT 12 () Uifleflev GOILSE Qe wwliul@erer
CaemeuILITH & EBHE G @) hIS FenLuilers! BlHeuns &enuiudleor
eTeuUGrEILD 2 MILILINETT RUHEUHEHG &F60 LWL 6T gHTeUS (5
RUUBSLD QSTLIUNS CHIILLITES 606V L0ENMIN&HLDTES
GULDGEMLOLLITEUT 6U6DT185 [Blem6VemL & EH & LIMLDLIMTS 6F 85It
QBITLITY E\1H&P60TemLD.

e 2018 9yLD 2,600TI9.60T 19 QYLD B)VE S CHF I HETHSITILIEY
FLLGH e 12 (2ar) Yiflellev GG Q&FwwiiL’ @ eirer
Gz emeULILIT(H & 615 & & B)600T RIS JHTEUS 6T(DSRVTS FLLHeNS
Ve gl FenLiufleor Blapeurss FemLiuileormey QeusflullL i’ G eTer
Goum LIm QUITEI6uTEOT {606V & MILILITEOT (L MHIE 6N & &Hemer
IFGHETINN Q&WweLILHI6TaTenLD.

e 2018 QLD JL,600TIL60T 19 QYLD @6VEHSH CHFIWI GH6vTs: & U6
FLLGGer 12 (61) iflellev @mI0li® Qswwiiul GeTer
CaHemeuLILIMHSEHEHEG §)600T S FenLiulleir HTP&ETTEHS S5 SI6UBIGHET,
Lieoof &6 WHoid QsTSHUTH&6T ererusumenm O e&l&amne
QFWeLLIL_(H6TeTenLD.

e 2018 QLD Q600719607 19 LD B)V&ES CHFRI S6voTd: & TG
FLLGHer 12 (g) Lfledlev GMILLTR Qe {Herer
CaemnauILMH&EHEHEG )60 hId &FenLIUI6T Q& Mg S5 S0 6T
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wiaflenw Ufleys6r Gevriensullasrer < rmiiss
BPOISESERSE APWSILASSILLGGEHSID §WhHens
efleusmuid uHPw Q& TeTens, HHBUTMSW Fienguley
ST ILIGID @ UIDHens 2 ereyll QIIM@mL-&6meT Sl eTedTLI6oT
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GLOM QS ITETEITLILILL9.(1H 858 6 606 6V.

efleusFmul umUFS Bloieusniseafle GLMmG & maTaTLiLIL L
2L TTET s6rfler erevorenilsens, 2u,TTUIEFR & EBEHS

G emeuwimer BIHSHe6T gHUTEH QFUIS6, 2 TTiIFER

2 S CUINEGSS &6 (Research Officer), 6 @hepTevfGeir (Scientist)
LOMMILD eFemedtw 2anBWITa6T QLSCWTT QG TLTLITeDT |
eflugmBISEDHL LDHOID FENLISE QFTHSOTET QLTSS
QUETTRIGET QSTLFLTeT 6flLIThISEBEL GMlSs Lermiiiey
25,6007 (H 6UeNT CFSHIH&HLULILIQBHSTEILD, 2016 DD 2y, 6UOTLY 65T
Neirestj Soeys Femgens @ menmLiLBiSsHe0 (Information for
Agriculture Research Managers) LOMH@ILD 2010 QLD 2y,600T 19607
WYletreory 2155608 W eflLIFmIGSeneT 2 areTL &8 QeuafludilL
Gouettriq.l o Qeueflul LiLL 19.@ma sl cuemev.

HmsmerCsHeq efleusmu rmilER Fenu, LEVAWT efleusmw
ITLER FanU LDHMD Gevrkens efleuamil SLrmiigH

Q& MeTEn s FenLl eTTLINDMISE @enLulleh 2011 Qulh WHMLh
2016 <p1b spemT(hSs6rfley QFIg Qs meTariiul L Lflb ST ey
euubgmsefler KNrsmrn efleusmw senmulserer

2, CuMFsTHEemeTu|D LoHMILD 65 @hehmeflseneTuLb
ufiinrm e QameTeaTel eTemih el WSS 6T BLb (5 01 mkiss ey
QeueflB T LWIDHFHEBHG 10 2 5HCUINTSHS S TS 66T
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) 2l BloieuerTd @@ CausirHCHmemnaT all(Q\&S LeTesr [ LDMSH LD
Qursiang @bhg emallil BIS el ellsaslIL@ILD. eeflgub 2 flu
BSHS BlOIeIeTHIST G UeNT SeIaITm Coustr(HCaHMeTHEmeT
D& &N, YMSEIIT, BHS BIaemaUBET QS5TLIFFIWTS
BIH & gnmmsEs6ale) QFNGS Calaumiqll énalliL&&H6rTs Sl Ll
LG eTement. eTevflgniD, eTHTHTSEHO @HS BIHS O FTensHmeT
SrliLerey Q&FUIW BHLEUIYGHNS THSHSLILMRLD.

() Femuullermev SLCARP/AD/vac/2020 Sulh @6vsHas WMo 2020.08.12
SLD HEHW HYSHSHHT epeVDnd SHHQHTLHH enndFlearg
QEFEWMTTHSS AelSHUULL S FaT Llarary SHaumws
WP&BTMLNG B0 CF606)E 6T 560160018 & TS 60T SMISHTTLN TNEG
@enL_gleTenzl. Usallsefleor PILASSID Sl Csrliy QFuIusHES
BSeMmeUWITaT SMie]enTaeneT QUMHMIS SHLMm CHETHBH TD R
&QGID gMHEHTCa eI emeudb s LU HIeTensL.
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UBLTHS SM&ama 2019 - 5558 M&ans
@levnlens elleuF Tl SLTMILEFR S QS MeTens FenLl

alleugmu o rrisFes QsmeTans FanLudlar Q& W e m M ens:
e @eloosms adausFTw LImMUFHUIL NISHCWS &FTHen6rSHeameT

SOLBES BUTHM6T HSS SeUTHEEHEG FnUy CHHW efmsiemnsamer
QUPEIGLD QUL (B 2019 Sylh SL,600T(H RMHEMITUIT LDMSID 28 Qb H&EH) R
malUSmMS JFHUTH QFLg mSIsamer apRSWS. @bHs 6NHSIGeT
QUGHESTLLLD, QUGBHBESTLLLD FTTT WHMIDL SLOHGMTSEET SLHIW
Wifleyserflev 10 ApLliy ImMUERS G55 EHEE QULMISLILIL L 6.

¢ GMMaTsH LWTUGSSULGLLD WeT WwhHoh SL6 LOFLIGm eU6THS6T
wHoID Seummler CLLLITG UHMIW FIaCsE CaieneWIHIG efleusFTw
WITLEFSR ploaushsealler AW usLs NFTHEIW FrsSS 6T (APAARI)
Fa QLTS SIenoLIL60 2019 Suth S,600T(h WLemev LOMSID 10 Qb HSH WS
12 glb HEHH cuen T CHHFIW Bifiey eueThISGET ST BleaneuwsH e (NARA)
gour®h QFWUWLULG BLSSILIL LS.

« weaflg auemmhiseT YNBSS FTiHs HHLERS B LSH6r S Caih
QafleyseT GMHASTETATLILIL L GIL 66T 2019 Sylbh SLe0TIMEG STUIVTHS,
LEVHEIWT Wmmd eflemusitey QHB W LeSmevs SLsmIsetlse LUIHE
QUOIISMHS 20019 b S4euor(H IS emeud:s 23 eflavorevor g M seT
BB HOSHH\&HSHE|LDLIL_L 6T .

o Qelloyesrs Blwbss Qeefleumfl WSermieumeniser Gupellar eneuid
2019 SYID SY6eu0TIq60 @U6toT(h T MUER BlomIeusmIsGeT WeTmuie Q&L
LILL6UT. Q& 60Tement ST MUES Blmieusin (CRI), efleus Tl )6 euord s emsS)eit
(DOA) BaHIW HTaUTHIGT QFTHM BHH CFane Blenesulilh (NPQS) 2,5 wier
355N W BloyieusTm&SeTTGD. Wermiled @upaller o il onildensser
FOLISHGSLD LDHOID SiBSHS BlOISEISEFHGID Fnrifésiiul Leor
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SauSS&IIe eflFnraauseaflin WwHmb sarssriley sinsansseflan
&LI0E STLLULLL GONUTRSaT ETQFWIW T(NSS HL LS50S 56T

.........

o SLCETUY BLUIWMMEE SeRWIDTar opflajaraaer GaH

BSOS TN DTG QFWTETHSHE G S HiD

SIILILLLL GeTers.

¢ OALLHSEMET maliL QFE BloieiarhsT dGss Carflamasulsr

GUle Benafl&B586 @aliLisser el Gelssriul Lar

BLAIE &6

o FenUWler QFWIMHDIMSEW CLIDLIGSSID (NSLOME T TS H S 60T
Q& TeTen & SHeme L6t LH MMM F&ev 26erySluf&EsLh
SiDley 1SS LILL Bi6iTermer.
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VISION

A vibrant and sustainable agricultural research, development and

innovation system assuring socio-economic development of
Sri Lanka

MISSION

To ensure agricultural research, development and innovations
are directed towards national development goals through policy

formulation, facilitation, coordination, monitoring and
evaluation, and impact assessment.

GOALS

Goal 1: To orient agriculture research, development and innovation to national development goals

Goal 2: Promote capacity development in the National Agriculture Research System (NARS)

Goal 3: Achieve world class research, development and innovation status

Goal 4: Promote continuous performance appraisal in line agencies

Goal 5: Promote dissemination and awareness creation of the national agriculture research,
Development and innovations

Goal 6: Strengthen institutional capacity of Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy

(SLCARP) in order to NARS

Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy
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THE OBJECTIVES OF THE SLCARP

To achieve excellence in the agriculture research, development and innovation

To orient agriculture research and innovation to achieve national development agenda

To develop capacity of the National Agriculture Research and Innovation System (Scientific
and Technical )

To promote demand driven research of high standards to support agriculture developments.
To promote international, regional and national level corporation, in order to achieve world
class research, development and innovation

To monitor and evaluate progress of national research, development and innovation
programmes and institutions

To promote dissemination and awareness of the national agriculture research, development
and innovation programmes

To strengthen institutional capacity of the SLCARP in order to achieve National Development

Agenda

Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy
4



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

SLCARP Annual Report 2019

MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL 2019

. Dr. D T Kingsley Bernard, Chairman, Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research

Policy,

. Dr. S H S Ajantha de Silva, Additional Secretary (Agri Technology), Ministry of

Agriculture, Rural Economic Affairs, Livestock Development, Irrigation and Fisheries
and Aquatic Resources Development,

Dr. Kapila Senanayake, Director, Department of Fiscal Policy, General Treasury,
Ministry of Finance and Mass Media

Dr. WM W Weerakoon, Director General, Department of Agriculture,

Dr. KM A Bandara Additional Conservator General of Forest (Research, Education &
Development), Department of Forest

Mr. N S H Dalpadadu, 379, (Opposite Ampitiya Post Office), Ampitiya, Kandy

Dr. H M P Kithsiri, Deputy Director General (Research and Development), National
Aquatic Resources Research and Development Agency,

Mr. W Madawanarachchi, CEO, CIC Holdings PLC

Prof. Gamini Senanayake, Senior Professor, Department of Agric. Biology, Faculty of
Agriculture, University of Ruhuna

Dr. (Mrs.) G A Gunawardena, Deputy Director (Veterinary Research), Veterinary
Research Institute, Gannoruwa,

Dr. A M Mubarak, Chairman, National Science Foundation
Dr. L S K Hettiarachchi, Director, Tea Research Institute

Mr. A M Arif, Director (Plantation), Ministry of Public, Enterprise and Kandy City
Development

Dr. K Hettiarchchi, Secretary / Director, Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research
Policy, (From February to June 2019)

Dr. K G I Amarasinghe, Secretary / Director, Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural
Research Policy (From June to December 2019)

Mr. Prabath Wimal Kumara, Secretary / Director, Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural
Research Policy (From December 2019)
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COUNCIL MEETINGS 2019

During 2019, nine Council meetings were held. Dr. D.T Kingsley Bernard was the Chairman of
the Council during the 2019 and Dr. K Hettiarchchi was the Secretary of the Council till June 2019.
Dr. K.G.I Amarasinghe served as Secretary of the Council from June to December 2019.

AUDIT AND MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE-2019

During the year 2019 three meetings were held by the Audit and Management Committee (AMC)

of SLCARP to discuss matters relating to Finance and Administrative matters.

AMC Meeting Number & Date

Name Institute 57 58 59
10.04.2019 | 16.08.2019 | 14.10.2019

Dr. Kapila Senanayake Director, Ministry of Finance N N N
(Chairman) & Planning
Prof. Gamini Seananayake Senior Professor, Faculty of

Agriculture, University of \ N N
(Member) R

uhuna

Deputy  Director  General

(Research & Development)
Dr. H. M. P. Kithsiri (Member) National Aquatic Resources N, N N,

Research and Development

Agency
Ms. Udeni Perera Audit Superintendent, N

Agriculture, Agrarian Board

Internal Auditor, Ministry of

Mahaweli, Agriculture,

Mr. U S L Kumara Jrrigation and Rural N, Excused v
Development

Ms. O M Sriyalatha ** Audit Superintendent, N N

Agriculture, Agrarian Board

** on behalf of Ms. Udeni Perera

Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy
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INTRODUCTION

Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy (SLCARP) was established on 22"¢ December,
1987 under the Ministry of Agriculture with the enactment of the SLCARP Act No 47 of 1987.

Since then, SLCARP has been actively engaged in supporting agricultural research in the National

Agricultural Research System (NARS). Among its mandated functions, the primary responsibility

of SLCARP is to develop policies and strategies to strengthen research and development in the

agricultural sector by creating conducive environment in the NARS. The main functions of the

SLCARP is to identify research priority areas, facilitate interaction through sharing of information

on the respective fields, resolve constraints confronted in research and play a role in enhancing the

activities of the respective committees. At present there are Twelve National Committees

established by the Council:

1.
1.
1ii.
1v.
V.
Vi.

Vii.

Viii.

IX.

xi.

Xil.

National Committee on Agricultural Biotechnology (NCAB),

National Committee on Agricultural Mechanization (NCAM),

National Committee on Aquatic Resources (NCAR),

National Committee on Floriculture Research and Development (NCFRD),

National Committee on Forestry (NCF),

National Committee on Livestock and Poultry (NCLP),

National Committee on Natural Resources Management, Sustainable Agriculture and
Climate Change (NCNRMSACC),

National Committee on Organic Agriculture(NCOA),

National Committee on Crop Improvement and Agronomy (NCPB),

National Committee on Plant Protection (NCPP),

National Committee on Post-Harvest Technology and Human Nutrition (NCPHTHN),
National Committee on Socio Economics and Policy Analysis (NCSEPA),

In addition, special scientific committees were appointed for specific scientific services such as;

1i.

Editorial Board of Sri Lanka Journal of Food and Agriculture,

Sub committees on Research Allowance

Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy
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10.

11.

12.

13.
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MANDATED FUNCTIONS OF THE COUNCIL

To advise the Government on all matters regarding the organization, co-ordination, planning
and execution of agricultural research and such other related matters as may be referred to it
by the Minister ;

To formulate national agricultural research policy and priorities;

To define the overall aims and scope of agricultural research with a view to furthering national
development objectives ;

To make recommendations to the appropriate authorities on the financial, manpower and
physical resources required by agricultural research institutions and establishments and on
the terms and conditions of service of the staff of such institutions and establishments;

To review institutional and departmental agricultural research programmes and make
recommendations with regard to their priorities and funding to the Ministry of the Minister in
charge of the subject of Finance and Planning;

To promote and facilitate excellence in agricultural research;

To act as a channel of communication between agricultural research institutions and the
Government;

To arrange for and fund inter-institutional agricultural research projects;

To arrange for and fund special scientific services for services for the entire agricultural
research sector;

To promote linkage between agricultural research institutions at national and international
level;

To organize conferences and seminars on international, national and inter-institutional issues
relating to agricultural research;

To arrange the post-graduate training of agricultural research staff and for interchange of
scientists with recognized research institutions abroad; and

To review the performance of agricultural research projects, institutions and divisions from

time to time.

Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy
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REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN

In the year 2019 the SLCARP successfully carried out action plan activities as it was able to
successfully implement many important mandated functions by granting National Awards to
scientists in the National Agricultural Research System (NARS), capacity building of NARS

researchers, granting agricultural research projects and conducting workshops and seminars.

National Awards for the excellence in Agricultural Research is a biennial award scheme, initiated
by the Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy for recognizing the outstanding
achievement in agricultural research. Applications were called from 4 main sectors: Plantation,
Non-Plantation, Fisheries and Livestock and fifty three applications were received from three
sectors: Plantation, Non-Plantation and Fisheries. None of the applications were received from the
Livestock Sector. Eight applications which were non conformity to stipulated requirements
mentioned in the advertisement were rejected by the Main Selection Panel and only 45 applications
were evaluated. Awardees were selected out of 45qualified applicants by the Main Selection Panel
with the support of 3 Sectorial Expert Review Committees appointed by the Council of SLCARP.
All these panels/committees consisted independent qualified representatives including retired
expertise from Universities of Sri Lanka, Institutions of National Agricultural Research System
and Private Sector. Awards were given to the 10 Research teams including four Certification of
Commendation. A Certificate, Plaque and Cash Awards were given to all members of the each
team of first, second and third Awards. The value of Cash Awards of First, Second and third prizes
were Rs. 300,000.00, 250,000.00 and 200,000.00 respectively. Only the certificates were given to

the winners of Certificate of Commendation.

The Council has organized an international Workshop on Underutilized Fish and Marine Genetic
Resources and their Amelioration in collaboration with Asia — Pacific Association of Agricultural
Research Institutions (APAARI) 10- 12 July, 2019 at National Aquatic Resource Agency (NARA).
The regional expert workshop has provided a platform to develop the sustainable partnership to
develop partnership and networking between public sector and private sector for knowledge

shearing on experience and best practices on utilization of underutilized fish and marine resources.

Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy
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Identification of potential areas and donor /funding agencies to promote investigations on

underutilized marine genetic resources and their commercialization.

Under the Human Resources Development program for the NARS, further selections were
made 1n year 2019 and 23 candidates were selected to be sent in year 2019, in addition to the
selections made in year 2017 and 2018 for training in Thailand, Malaysia, and Philippines or in
Local Universities for 2019. Researchers of the NARS have received admission at University Putra
Malaysia (11), Kaseartsart University (01) University of Philippines (05) Indian Council of

Agriculture Research Universities (01).

Two Research Institutes were reviewed in 2019 by panels of external reviewers appointed by
SLCARP. They were Coconut Research Institute (CRI) & National Plant Quarantine Service
(NPQS) of the Department of Agriculture (DOA). Review committee reports were submitted to
the Council and to the respective institutes. It was decided to monitor the progress of
implementation of recommendations made by the respective external review committees. Status
of implementation of the recommendations were reviewed by the SLCARP Council in 02 research
institutes reviewed in 2017 (Fruit Crops Research and Development Institute of the Department of
Agriculture (FRDI) and the National Institute of Postharvest Management (NIPHM) and 06
research institutes reviewed ie Field Crops Research & Development Institute (FCRDI); Hector
Kobbekaduwa Agrarian Research and Training Institute (HARTI); National Aquatic Resources
Research and Development Agency (NARA); Palmyrah Research Institute (PRI); Sugarcane
Research Institute (SRI); and Veterinary Research Institute (VRI). The Status of implementation
of the recommendations reviewed were sent to the respective Secretaries of the Ministries, Director
Generals/Heads of the institutes, Department of National Planning of the Treasury and Chief

Internal Auditor of the Ministry of Agriculture for their information and implementation process.

Future reputation, acceptance among NARS and sustainability of SLCARP will depend on its
ability to communicate with the NARS Scientist and the level of dialogue maintained by SLCARP
at Council level at different scientific committees. Various scientific Committees constituted with
highly recognized senior professionals of the country in 12 committees perform a very valuable

function by devoting their valuable time. The high level of contact and encouragement must be

Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy
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continued. As the Chairman I wish to acknowledge their valuable contribution through their role

in different committees.

In ensuring good governance procedures regular Audit and Management Committee (AMC)
meetings were held under the chairmanship of the Treasury representative as a member of the
council and all administrative and financial decisions were taken in accordance with AMC
recommendations. In ensuring team effort in SLCARP and maintaining transparency in decision
making at staff meeting which were held monthly providing an opportunity to all staff members

to contribute to management and share their views.

I wish to place on record the valuable advice and guidance given by the member of the council to
me and Secretary in fulfilling the mandated functions. I acknowledge with appreciation the hard

work and excellent performance of SLCARP Senior Scientists and staff in performing their duties.

Prof Gamini Senanayake
Chairman,

Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy
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REPORT OF THE SECRETARY

Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy (SLCARP) is mandated to coordinate research
and human resources development, promote and facilitate Excellence in Agricultural Research in
the National Agricultural Research Institutes. Accordingly, SLCARP had organized National
Awards for the excellence in Agricultural Research in the 2019 for recognizing the outstanding
achievement in agricultural research. Awards were given to the 10 excellence research teams who
were from Plantation, Non-Plantation and Fisheries sectors. None of the applications were
received from the Livestock Sector. Awardees were selected out of 45qualified applicants by the
Main Selection Panel with the support of 3 Sectoral Expert Review Committees appointed by the
Council of SLCARP.

As per the cabinet approved capacity development programme to develop the human resources in
the NARS institutes, further selections were made in year 2019 and 23 candidates were selected
to be sent in year 2019, in addition to the selections made in year 2017 and 2018 to train at PhD
and MSc levels in Malaysia, Thailand, Philippines and India. In 2019, nineteen (19) Candidates
obtained admission to the University Putra Malaysia, Kaseartsart University, University of
Philippines and Indian Council of Agriculture Research Universities under the capacity building

long term training Programme of SLCARP.

According to Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with Indian Council for Agricultural
Research (ICAR), a researcher from Tea Research Institute (TRI) received a placement for post
graduate training from C S K Himachal Pradesh krishi Vishvavidyalaya ( C S KHPKV), India.
Under the MoUs Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy and Malaysian Agricultural
Research and Development Institute (MARDI) and Bangladesh Agriculture Research Council

(BARC) many scientists exchange programmes and study visits were arrange for the coming years.

SLCARP in 2019 successfully completed two External Review of Research Institutes. They are;
Coconut Research Institute (CRI) & National Plant Quarantine Service (NPQS) of the Department
of Agriculture (DOA). Final Review Reports were submitted to the heads of the respective
institutes and to the Secretary, Ministry of Agriculture for information and follow up on Review
Committee recommendations.

Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy
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One of the most important mandated functions of SLCARP is to collect and analyze research data
base of the National Agricultural Research System. Significant amount of Government funds are
allocated annually to undertake research in the 25 Research Institutes under different Ministries,
covering Plantation, Non-Plantation, Fisheries, Livestock, Forestry and Floriculture Sectors.
SLCARP is the only organization mandated with the responsibility of identifying the National
Priorities for research in the above sectors in agriculture. Therefore, collection of research themes
and other information is essential to use as a management tool for research managers, researchers
and General Treasury in making appropriate decisions. This analysis has generated many
important messages to research managers to bring about necessary changes in the country’s
Agricultural Research Agenda. This analysis is useful to the Department of Agriculture, Directors
of the Crop Research Institutes, respective Ministries and General Treasury in identifying gaps in
research based on Research Priorities, research disciplines and necessity to adjust resources
allocation for more useful and urgent research agenda. Research Action Plans for 2019 of 25

Institute of the NARS were analysed by SLCARP and their progress also monitored.

In addition, during the year 2019, National Committees were held to evaluate the ongoing NARP
projects and screen new NARP projects. The Committees monitored the progress of ongoing 53
NARP projects conducted by the institutes in the NARS and also approved 15 new projects to be
implemented in 2020 to achieve productive results for the National Economy. Analysis of the
Action Plans of all NARS Institutes in 2019 was revealed that all Institutes compliance to the
Research Priorities set by the SLCARP. Those committees organized one international workshop,
one national symposium and 11 workshops to disseminate the research finding and create a

platform to the scientists and stakeholders to discussed research issues.

Last but not least [ wish to extend my sincere gratitude to the Chairman, Council members and the
staff of the SLCARP for their untiring support given to accomplish the objectives of the SLCARP

on the way to achieve Sustainable Development Goals.

Mr. Prabath Wimal Kumara
Secretary / Director

Sri Lanka Council of Agricultural Research Policy
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ACTIVITIES OF THE SLCARP IN 2019

AGRICULTURAL RESEARCH POLICY FORMULATION

Mandated Function Covered

e To Advise the Govt. on all Matters Regarding the Organization, Coordination, Planning
and Execution of Agricultural Research and Such Other Related Matters as may Referred
by the Minister (1).

e Formulation of National Agricultural Research Policy & Priorities (2)

e Defining Overall Aims and Scope of Agricultural Research with a View to Furthering

National Development Objectives (3)

e To act as a channel of communication between agricultural research institutions and the

Government (7);

e Organize Conferences & Seminars on Inter-Institutional, National and International Issues

Relating to Agricultural Research (11)

Analysis of Research Action Plans for 2018 of 25 National Agricultural Research Institutes
in 2018

One of the most important mandated functions of SLCARP is to collect and analyses research data
base of the National Agricultural Research System. Significant amount of Government funds are
allocated annually to undertake research in the 25 Research Institutes under NARS, covering
Plantation, Non-Plantation, Fisheries, Livestock, Forestry and Floriculture Sectors. SLCARP is
the only organization mandated with the responsibility of formulating National Agricultural
Research Policies, and identifying the National Priorities for research in the above sectors.
Therefore, collection of research themes and other information is essential to use as a management
tool for research leaders, researchers and Treasury in making appropriate decisions. Analysis is
finalized and results are being interpreted. Agricultural Research Status Report of National
Agricultural Research System 2018 is the final outcome. This analysis has generated many

Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy
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important messages to the respective Ministries, Director Generals, Directors and Treasury leaders
to bring about necessary changes in the country’s Agricultural Research agenda and to identify
gaps in research based on Research Priorities, research disciplines and necessity to shift resources
allocation for more useful and urgent research agenda. It was revealed in the analysis that, in 2018,

Rs. Mn 1081 were budgeted for 1392 projects in the research action plans of the NARS institutes.

Progress review of NARS institutes in 2019 were conducted in August based on Information of
the Institutes, Relevance of the Research, Effectiveness of Findings, Efficiency, Research outputs,
Research outcome, dissemination and partnerships. This progress review was conducted with the
participation of eminent scientists in the field of agriculture. A document has finalized to take up
to the higher level in the Government. Critical observations of this review were; lack of research
staff, lack of active interaction between researchers and policy makers, lack of close monitoring
of research projects, need to revisit the budget allocations, lack of inter intuitional multi-
disciplinary research on current issues, delay in knowledge dissemination and insufficient
interactive communication between researchers and farmers . It was submitted to the SLCARP

council for discussion. Total number of scientists participated was around 60.

Implications of Economic Policies on Agriculture Sector Performance of Sri Lanka

This policy brief is based on the workshop on Implications of Economic Policies on Agriculture
Sector Performance of Sri Lanka organized by CARP, which looks into the impact of current
economic and agricultural policies and its impact on the performance of the agricultural sector.
This is timely as the agriculture is still the backbone of the country as large number of people still
depends on it. The agricultural sector in Sri Lanka is composed of five major sectors: the
plantation, non-plantation, forestry, fisheries, and livestock. The contribution from the agricultural
sector to the total GDP in the country has dropped from 7.8% in 2012 to 7% by the year 2018.
Considering the exports, the agricultural export value index increased from 140.0 in 2015 to 160.7
in 2018 showing a slight growth during the period. Understanding the important role that
agriculture plays in Sri Lanka, various governments have initiated/introduced policy directives

with the aim of developing this sector in the overall economic development in the country.

Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy
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All these initiatives aim to achieve agricultural development by focusing on two key areas:

[a] Import substitution & ensuring food security through increased domestic production and
productivity, [b] Promotion of exports: The present broad economic policies comes in the form of
‘Public Investment Programme [PIP]. In the PIP policy document, broad policy directives relating

to 5 key areas and key strategies under broad policy directives have been identified.

Broad Policy Directives Relating to Agricultural Sector in the Public Investment Programme [PIP]

2017 - 2020

Sector Policy Directive

Crop Commercialization of agriculture sector with eco-friendly
Agriculture | innovative technologies will contribute to achieve inclusive and
sustainable economic growth ensuring food security and food
sovereignty of the nation and to sustain the drive of competitiveness
of agriculture and agro-based products in the international market.
Livestock | Increasing production and quality of livestock products to satisfy the
local demand and to boost rural income with the objective of making
our farmers capable to compete in local and international markets
Plantation | Driving the plantation sector for capturing a considerable market
share in the international market while ensuring the decent living
conditions of the plantation community

Fishery Increasing the competitiveness of Sri Lankan fishery products in the
international market while ensuring the food security of people and
improved living status of the fishing community

Land Rational utilization of land resource on the basis of suitability
evaluation for achieving higher economic gain, ensuring food
security and decent living of people while maintaining the equity and
ecological sustainability

National Agricultural Research Plan (NARP) Year 2019

National Agricultural Research Plan of Sri Lanka (NARP) is the programme to provide funds to
carry out Agriculture Research projects of the National Agricultural Research System (NARS) and
National University System where agriculture/agriculture related research are carried out. These
projects are designed in accordance with the priority areas identified by Sri Lanka Council for

Agricultural Research Policy for a particular period. Currently funds are provided to Department

Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy
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of Agriculture, Department of Export Agriculture and National Universities where agriculture

related research are carried out. The projects are granted annually for a period of 1 to 3 years

The research project proposals submitted to SLCARP by relevant institutions in the NARS and
National Universality System, are evaluated by the relevant National Committees functioning at
the SLCARP for recommendation for funding. Under this programme, half yearly progress
Monitoring and annual onsite monitoring of on-going research projects and Terminal Report
Evaluation are also done by relevant National Committees of Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural

Research Policy.

Evaluation of new proposals is one of the main activities under the NARP. In 2019 fifteen research
project proposals were received from National Agricultural Research System and National
University System. These proposals were evaluated National Committees on Aquatic Resources
(2), Agricultural Biotechnology (2), Crop Improvement & Agronomy (4), Natural Resources
Management, Sustainable Development & Climate Change (2), Floriculture Research &
Development (1), Plant Protection (3) and Socio Economic (1). Out of these fifteen (15) new
research projects, seven were from the National University System: University of Colombo (1),
University of Peradeniya (1), University of Ruhuna (2), University of Kaleniya (1), University of
Sri Jayawardenapura (1), Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka (1). Department of Agriculture
submitted 8 research proposals. Department of Export Agriculture did not submit any new
proposals for the year 2020. All proposals were recommended for funding in year 2020. In addition

twelve (12) ongoing projects were given one year extension with funds

In 2019 total Number of projects in operation was 53 (36 of the Department of Agriculture, 08 of
the Department of Export Agriculture, and 09 of the National Universities). Half Yearly Progress
Monitoring of these 53 projects was done by the relevant National Committees and commented
that the progress was satisfactory. Onsite project monitoring was also carried out at GLORDC (6),
PVIC (3), PGRC (1), DEA (6), ARS-TW (1), RRS-LD (1), FRDI (3), RARDC-MK (1) and RRDI
(1) and commented that the progress was satisfactory. New suggestions and recommendations

were made for further improvement of the projects.

Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy
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National Committees of SLCARP

i) National Committee on Agricultural Biotechnology (NCAB)

In the year 2019, two (2) committee meetings were conducted by the National Committee on
Agricultural Biotechnology. Dr. Jayantha Senanayake, Director (Act.), Rice Research and
Development Institute served as the Chairman of the Committee while Mr. Lakshika
Hettiarachchi, Research Officer, SLCARP served as the Secretary / Coordinator to the Committee.
In the year 2019, Seven (7) projects of Agricultural Biotechnology were conducted under the
NARP programme, by the Scientists in Department of Agriculture (4) and Universities (3).
Progress of the above ongoing NARP research projects were monitored by the Committee
members. All these projects had shown satisfactory physical progress. Two new proposals were
screened and recommended for funding for 2020 along with an extension of one of the existing

projects.

ii) National Committee on Crop Improvement & Agronomy (NCCIA)

In the year 2019, 9 meetings were held by the National Committee on Crop Improvement and
Agronomy. Dr. S K Wasalage, Addl. Director, Plant Genetic Resource Centre Served as the
Chairperson of the Committee while Dr. Padmini C Girihagama, Senior Scientist of SLCARP
continued her service as the Secretary/ Coordinator of the Committee. During this year 20 projects
were operated including 15 projects from DOA, 4 from DEA and 1 from UWVSL. All these 20
projects were monitored and all these projects had shown satisfactory physical progress. Four new
project proposals from Department of Agriculture (03) and University Colombo (01) were
evaluated and all four proposals were recommended for funding and included in NARP 2019

Programme. National Research priorities in Agronomy in Sri Lanka was formulated and published.

iii)  National Committee on Forestry

Prof. Hemanthi Ranasinghe and Mrs. N. C. Daulagala were appointed as the Chairman and
Coordinator/Secretary of the National Committee Forestry on respectively. In 2019, the committee

conveyed 03 meetings and one workshop on “Forestry for a Low Carbon Future”. The research
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project titled “Estimating forest dieback and regeneration potentials in Montage forest at Horton
Plains National Park” was completed in September, 2019 and the Terminal Report was requested

from the PI.

iv)  National Committee on Organic Agriculture

Dr. Sarath Ranaweera, Chairman, Bio-foods Pvt. Ltd. and Mrs. N. C. Daulagala were appointed
as the Chairman and Coordinator/Secretary of the National Committee on Organic Agriculture
respectively. In 2019, the committee conveyed 02 meetings. Topics such as conducting an Organic
Agriculture Research Workshop and promoting of organic agricultural research were discussed at
these meeting. As per the advice and recommendations of the SLCARP Council, useful
information for Sri Lankan organic producers, researchers and funding agencies will be published
in the SLCARP website by the National Committee on Organic Agriculture with the view of
fulfilling the information requirement in the sector on following areas; Organic Agriculture
Markets and Products, Priorities in the National Research Programme, Facts and Numbers of the
Research Gaps Currently Existing, Standards and Certifications Requirements in the Sector,

Related Government Policy Initiatives and Material Inputs for the Sector.

V) National Committee on Agricultural Mechanization

The role of National Committee on Agricultural Mechanization of SL CARP is to identify research
needs and formulate policies on agricultural mechanization. The committee comprises members
from public and private sector organizations who are actively involved in development and
dissemination of appropriate technologies on mechanization to the agriculture sector in Sri Lanka.
In the year 2019 one committee meeting was organized. Dr. M A Wijeratne, Tea Research Institute
served as the Chairperson of the Committee while Mr. Sameera Dissanayake, Research Officer of

SLCARP continue his service as the Secretary/ Coordinator of the Committee

Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy
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vi) National Committee on Aquatic Resources (NCAR)

In 2019, the National Committee on Aquatic Resources held four Committee Meeting, Regional
Workshop on Underutilized Fish and Marine Genetic Resources and their Amelioration was
conducted in collaboration with Asia — Pacific Association of Agricultural Research Institutions
(APAARI) 10- 12 July, 2019 at NARA. It was attended by 150 participants representing Research,
Development, Exports, Universities, policy makers and the Private Sector. A Policy Brief is

prepared based on the outcome of the workshop.

vii)  National Committee on Floriculture Research and Development (NCFRD)

Dr. Shelomi Krishnarajah, Director General / Department of National Botanic Gardens (DNBQG)
has been appointed as Chairperson of the Committee and Dr. S M P Chandra Padmini, Senior
Scientist of the SLCARP served as Coordinator/ Secretary. During the year 2019, two committee
meetings were held to evaluate progress of NARP Projects, and to conduct twelfth National
Symposium of Floriculture Research (12" NASFLOR) and Printed Proceedings of 2018
NASFLOR, book of Abstracts 2019 NASFLOR.

viii) National Committee on Livestock and Poultry (NCLP)

Members of the Committee was nominated and established in 2019 and the first meeting was
held on 29" Nov 2019 Research management activities of the thrust areas. . Prof Thakshila
Serasinghe, , University of Ruhuna Served as the Chairperson of the Committee while Mr.
Sameera Dissanayake, Research Officer of SLCARP continue his service as the Secretary/

Coordinator of the Committee

ix) National Committee on Natural Resources Management, Sustainable Agriculture

and Climate Change (NCNRMSACC)

Dr. Ajantha De Silva, Additional Secretary, Ministry of Mahaweli, Agriculture, Irrigation and

RuralDevelopment has severed as Chairman of the Committee and Dr. S M P Chandra Padmini,

Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy
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Senior Scientist of the SLCARP assisted as the coordinator / secretary of the committee. During
the year 2019, two committee meetings were held to evaluate progress of NARP Projects and
screening of new NARP projects. One stakeholder workshop was conducted on Workshop on use
of bio engineering methods to mitigate landslides in Sri Lanka. The Committee evaluated progress
of the 05 research projects in National Agricultural Research Plan in 2019 and screened the 02new

research projects and approved for funding in 2019.

X) The National Committee on Plant Protection (NCPP)

Dr. Keerthi Mohotti, Deputy Director (Research), Tea Research Institute of Sri Lanka served as the
Chairman of the Committee and Dr. Shanika Jayasekera, Senior Scientist of SLCARP served as the
Coordinator/ Secretary of the Committee. In the discipline of Plant Protection 22 ongoing research
projects were evaluated. A total of five meetings in Plant Protection were held for evaluation of
NARP research proposals, and for making necessary policy decisions. In 2019 two new research

proposals were received and both projects were evaluated for awarding in year 2020.

xi) National Committee on Post-Harvest Technology and Human Nutrition (NCPTHN)

Dr. D. B. T. Wijeratne, Assistant Representative, Food and Agriculture Organization served as the
Chairman of the committee and Dr. Shanika Jayasekera was the Coordinator/Secretary of the
Committee. A total of two meetings in Postharvest Technology and Human Nutrition were held for
evaluation of 06 NARP research proposals and for initial screening of research projects of the

Institute of Postharvest Technology

xii)  National Committee on Socio-Economic and Policy Analysis (NCSEPA)

Dr. R. M. Herath, Head of the Socio Economic Planning Centre of the Department of Agriculture
was the Chairperson of the National Committee and Dr. Frank Niranjan served as the
Coordinator/Secretary of the Committee and three committee meetings were held during the year.
One research projects were evaluated by the Committee and recommended for the year 2020. A
policy brief entitled “Implications of Economic Policies on Agriculture Sector Performance of Sri
Lanka”
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WORKSHOPS AND SYMPOSIA CONDUCTED IN 2019

Regional Workshop on Underutilized Fish and Marine Genetic Resources of Asia-Pacific
and their Amelioration

&

il

A Regional Workshop on Underutilized Fish and Marine Genetic Resources and their

Amelioration was conducted in collaboration with Asia — Pacific Association of Agricultural

Research Institutions (APAARI) 10- 12 July, 2019 at NARA, Sri Lanka.

The most of the countries in Asian region are now paying the greatest concern on aquaculture and
utilizing underutilized fish and marine genetic resources. Though most of the other Asian countries
are now infatuated a sound knowledge and skills in the areas of utilizing underutilized fish and
marine genetic resources, we are still not adequately grabbed such knowledge and information.
Considering the importance of grasping the same, Sri Lanka Council of Agriculture Research
Policy (SLCARP) has planned to conduct the above Regional Workshop and discussed this matter
with the other countries. Asia-Pacific Association of Agricultural Research Institutions (APAARI)
based in Bangkok, Thailand (in which SLCARP is a member institution) has expressed its
enthusiasm to collaborate to organize this Regional Workshop. Cost for the airfare and
accommodation for the international participants (about 25) have been paid by the APAARI to

conduct the workshop in Sri Lanka.
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The regional expert workshop provided a platform to develop the sustainable partnership to
develop partnership and networking between public sector and private sector for knowledge
shearing on experience and best practices on utilization of underutilized fish and marine resources.
Identification of potential areas and donor /funding agencies to promote investigations on
underutilized marine genetic resources and their commercialization. The Regional workshop had
12 Country presentations in addition to the other technical presentations. The technical
presentations covered the issues and findings of a range of related to the existing and potential
resources including in the studies that have been conducted in the region as well as an analysis of
trends. Altogether 150 scientists representing 12 countries participated. Proceedings of the

workshop is being finalized by the local scientists and published by APAARL

Conducive Research Environment through a Dialogue between NARS & Government

(Biennial Dialogue-2019)

One-day workshop on “Conducive
Research  Environment through a
Dialogue between NARS & Government
(Biennial Dialogue-2019)” was
conducted on 29™ July 2019 at the
Hector Kobbekaduwa Agrarian
Research & Training Institute. The

Purpose of the Workshop is to provide a
better platform for NARS scientists, policy/decision makers, relevant officials of the Finance
Ministry and Research Managers for a dialogue to facilitate a better understanding on the current
status and future directions of Agricultural Research. Forty three participants from NARS
including 3 council members, and two Ministry Officials from Ministry of Agriculture, Rural
Economic Affairs, Irrigation and Fisheries & Aquaculture Resources Development participated
at this Workshop. Officials from the General Treasury did not participate though they have

confirmed their participation.

It was noted that during the past ten years all the research institutions have made significant

contributions (new varieties, cultivars and breeds released, new technology, Agronomic
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Packages, new products, Industry Applications developed, New Recommendations made)
towards the development of economy of the country in spite of the many hardships faced by
them. It was also revealed that many important research programmes are planned and
implemented at present and expecting to do many more in the future. The presenters informed
that they have made those contributions with great difficulty as they have faced lot of problems
and constrains and they do not have a conducive research environment to carry out research
effectively and efficiently, even at present. Major constraints could be highlighted as inadequate
staff, inadequate cash flows and unhappiness due to treating NARS scientists differently
compared to benefits (salary, Allowances, freedom) offered to university staff. Finally it was
suggested to appoint a High level Committee consisting suitable representatives of NARS to
Communicate with the Government about the problems & constraints faced by them and council

has given the approval to appoint the committee.

Workshop on the Efficient and Cost Effective Cattle Feeding Techniques

The Efficient and Cost Effective Cattle Feeding was brought up as an important area to be
discussed due to rising cost of production of fresh milk and scarcity of nutritive cattle feed for
efficient and cost effective manner. A one day workshop was proposed with the objective to create
awareness on the strategies of cost effective ruminant feeding in respect to Complete Feed Block

(CFB) technique.

It was organized by National Committee on Livestock & Poultry of SLCARP and held at Institute
of Continuing Education (ICE), Gannoruwa, on 18™ of March 2019. Workshop was supported by
the Ministry of Fisheries, Aquatic Resources Development and Rural Economy, Department of
Animal Production and Health (DAPH), Veterinary Research Institute (VRI) and National
Engineering Research & Development (NERD) Centre of Sri Lanka. A total of 87 audiences
presented at the workshop and they were welcomed by Dr. D. T. Kingsley Bernard, Chairman
SLCARP. It was embraced with a Keynote Speech by Emeritus Prof. A N F Perera, Faculty of
Agriculture, University of Peradeniya on ‘Strategic feeding of dairy cattle for higher productivity’

and 06 technical sessions from specialists.
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As post workshop activities the National Committee on Livestock & Poultry is preparing a
Technical Guideline on Efficient and Cost Effective Cattle Feeding in respect to Complete Feed
Block (CFB) technique. That will be disseminated among the District Extension Officers through
the Provincial Directors of DAPH.

Symposium in Veterinary Research 2019

Veterinary Research lﬂ Symposium in Veterinary Research 2019 was organized jointly

with SLCARP on 5™ December 2019 and was a great opportunity
to shear the knowledge and findings in order to reach the higher
potential of the sector and among the shareholders. Sri Lanka
Council for Agricultural Research Policy (SLCARP) among other
‘ | mandates has been constantly involved in facilitating the process
® of R & D prioritization, including the preparation of recently
completed research priorities over the last five years. Having re-
visited the previous R & D prioritization, SLCARP is pleased to
support the Symposium in Veterinary Research 2019.

Scientific Approach & Research Methodology for Agricultural Research

A two-day workshop on “Scientific Approach & Research Methodology for Agricultural
Research” was conducted on 25" November 2019 and 02" December 2019. The objective of this
workshop was to enhance skills of NARS scientists’ Scientific Approach & Research
Methodology for Agriculture Research with a view to strengthen their research capacity. Twenty

five scientists of National Agricultural Research System were participated.

Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy
26



SLCARP Annual Report 2019

12" National Symposium for Floriculture Research 2019 (12" NASFLOR - 2019)

The Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy and Department of National Botanic
Gardens organized the Annual National Symposium on Floriculture Research (NASFLOR-2019)
on 09" November 2019 at the Auditorium, Royal Botanical Garden, Peradeniya to highlight and
discuss recent research findings in this field. Researchers, Growers, Exporters and Policy makers
participated and share their experiences to develop this sector. Sixteen research papers related to
floriculture sector were presented by researchers and those papers were grouped to four categories

as follows;

Forestry for a Low Carbon Future Seminar

One day Seminar titled “Forestry
for a Low Carbon Future” was
successfully conducted on 10
December 2019 at the Secretariat,
Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural
Research Policy. Forty eight
professionals attached to the
National Agricultural Research

System, National = University

System, Private Sector Institutes and relevant Ministries participated in this seminar. The Purpose
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of the Workshop is to provide a platform to discuss and explore the initiatives and mechanisms of
reducing carbon footprint in Sri Lanka. Presentations were done on following topics; Current
trends of Forestry sector carbon in the world including Sri Lanka, Measuring, Reporting,
Verification (MRV), and Certification in Forestry: Status, Challenges and Way Forward, Energy
from Biomass: status, issues and way forward, Standard on Biomass Certification and Private
Public Partnerships in forestry including forest biomass certification by Suraj Vanniarachchy,
Head-Project Development, Carbon Consulting Company and Dr. Sampath Wahala, Senior
Lecturer, Department of Tourism Mamagement, Sabaragamuwa University, Mrs. Lakmini
Senadheera, Manager, Sustainable Future Group and Mr. Shantha Baminiwatte, Forestry
Consultant, Eng. Parakrama Jayasinghe, Former President/ Bio Energy Association, Mrs. Nileka
de Silva, Assistant Director/Systems Certification Division, Sri Lanka Standards Institute and Ms.
Manorika Ranasinghe, Executive, Environmental Sustainability, MAS Holdings. The proceedings

of the seminar will be uploaded to the SLCARP website in the first quarter of 2020.

A Practical Approach for Research Methodology Writing in Plant Protection Research

A Workshop on Practical Approach for Research Methodology Writing in Plant Protection
Research, on 9" September 2019, from 1.00pm to 4.00pm at SLCARP. The objective of the
workshop was to strengthen the research writing methodology in plant protection as there is a felt
requirement to skill development in research methodology writing. This workshop was attended
by about 50 participants. Certificates were presented to all the participants. Prof B M R Bandara
and Dr. Keerthi Mohotti, Chairperson of the National Committee in Plant Protection were

resource persons of the workshop.

Awareness Workshop on National Priorities in Plant Protection

Awareness Workshop on National Priorities in Plant Protection was conducted on 6™ August
2019 from 2.00pm to 4.00pm at SLCARP The objective of the workshop was to further create
awareness on National Priorities in Plant Protection compiled for the period year 2017-2021. This

workshop was attended by about 50 participants.
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Workshop on Use of bio-engineering methods to mitigate landslides

Landslides as one of the most serious problems facing by the Sri Lankans. It is being addressed by
several global and regional organizations and institutions too. SLCARP organized a workshop on
above topic on 20™ December 2019 to develop policies and strategies to mitigate landslides using
bio engineering methods. Experts from National Building Research Organization (NBRO),
Departments, Research Institutes and NGO shared their experiences to develop research proposal

to find out bio engineering methods to mitigate landslides in Sri Lanka.

Workshop for Future Research Planning of the National Institute of Postharvest Management

Workshop for Future Research Planning of the National Institute of Postharvest Management was
held on 8" August 2019, at SLCARP at the Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy.
The objective of the workshop was to identify future research areas for NIPHM aligned with
National Research Priorities of SLCARP, Strengthen Mechanism of Technology transfer,
Strengthen link between NIPHM and agri business entrepreneurs and to make recommendations
by the National Committee in Postharvest Technology and Human Nutrition for Strengthening the
future R&D programmes of the NIPHM aligned with National Research Priorities of SLCARP.
This workshop was attended by about 40 participants.
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Training Workshop on Mechanism of Monitoring and Evaluation of Research Projects

\SLCARP organized a Training Workshop on Mechanism of Monitoring and Evaluation of

Research Projects on 19" December 2019, in order to provide a correct understanding of the
mechanism of monitoring and evaluation of research projects to the Senior Officers and
Researchers of the National Agriculture research System. The objectives of the Workshop was to
provide a correct understanding of the mechanism of monitoring and evaluation, Importance of
monitoring and evaluation by the Department/Institute and the line Ministry, How the researcher
should conduct the research project to meet physical and financial targets of the project and
Limitations which can be faced and how to overcome the limitations. The resource persons were
Prof. A L T Perera, Former Director, Postgraduate Institute of Agriculture and Mr S LG Bandusiri
Chief Financial Officer/Chief Accountant, and Mr WWS Mangala, Director, Planning, Ministry
of Agriculture, Rural Economic Affairs, Irrigation and Fisheries and Aquatic Resource
Development. This workshop was attended by 75 participants which included the higher

management of same of the R & D institutes.
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Study Visit on New Developments in the Mariculture Sub-Sector in Kilinochchi & Jaffna
2019

o]

Study visit on Mariculture Sites was completed successfully on 18" — 20" September 2019. This
was organized by SLCARP National Committee on Aquatic Resources. Altogether 35 officers was
participated at the study visit representing Ministry Section of Fisheries and Aquatic Resources,
SLCARP Council, National Committee on Aquatic Resources, SLCARP, NARA and NAQDA.
Main objective of this study visit was to provide an awareness on recent development and
diversification in mariculture and coastal aquaculture in Sri Lanka which includes processing of
sea cucumber, fatting of lobsters, farming of sea cucumber, mud crabs and Prawn Litopenaeus

vannamei and seaweeds.

Culture species of Sea Cucumber is Holothuria scabra, which is the higher valued species in the
international market. There are 56 licensed farms operating in the above areas. Pens are the only
method of practicing in Northern Province for culturing Sea Cucumber. Only one hatchery is

operating at present in Jaffna. Fattening of lobsters is another lucrative business being

developed in the Nothern region. Stocking and harvesting data were available since 2016.

Sea Weed farming is practiced at Mannar, Kilinochchi and Jaffna Districts. Presently,
Kappaphycus spp. are grown in the above mentioned Districts by about 118 farmers
including 87 women. Several culture methods such as Raft, Cylinder, Tube and Monoline
are practiced by farmers. See Weeds are good source of Carrageenan. Total wet Sea Weed
production in Kilinochchi, Jaffna and Mannar is 150.3 mt in 2019. Prawn — vannamei farms
are located in Mannar. There are two Licensed vannamei farms in Mannar with a total area of 65
ac. Total Culture area is 26 ac. Closed system and recirculation model are available and targets
specific pathogen free Litopenaeus vannamei are imported to Sri Lanka in 2019. Specific Pathogen

Free (SPF) 890 Brooders were imported to Sri Lanka and stocked Post Larvae 19.73 mn upto now.
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Harvested amount of this prawn type is 216.1 mt. Average profit per acre from one cycle world be

1.25 mm.

Fattening of Mud Crabs and control breeding farm was visited in South-bay in Mannar District.
Crab aquaculture is developing within the Northern region and having favorable market both
locally and globally. Presently, mud crabs are considered as an attractive source of food either
captured or cultured form for domestic and export markets. The specific culture tanks situated in

South-bay of Mannar coast

2019 Public Auction to dispose the unusable items in the SLCARP

In the year 2019 SLCARP conducted a public auction to dispose the unusable items which were

identified by the Annual Verification Committee of the Council.
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AGRICULTURAL RESEARCH MANAGEMENT

Mandated Function Covered

e Make Recommendations to Appropriate Authorities on Financial, Manpower and Physical

Resources Required by Agricultural Research Institutions (4)

e Review Institutional and Departmental Agricultural Research Programmes and Make
Recommendations with Regard to their Priorities and Funding to the Ministry of the

Minister in Charge of the Subject of Finance and Planning (5)

e Review the performance of agricultural research projects, Institutions and Divisions from

time to time (13)

Information for Agricultural Research Managers (INFORM)

SLCARP collects information on research personnel, research projects and recurrent research
budget of previous year, annually in electronic format from the 13 Research Institutions (Coconut
Research Institute (CRI), Palmyrah Research Institute (PRI), Rubber Research Institute(RRI),
Sugarcane Research Institute (SRI), Tea Research Institute (TRI), Veterinary Research Institute
(VRI), National Aquatic Resources Research & Development Agency (NARA), Institute of Post-
Harvest Technology (IPHT), Hector Kobbakaduwa Agrarian Research and Training Institute
(HARTT),Department of National Botanic Gardens (DNBG), Forest Department (FD), Department
of Export Agriculture (DEA) and Department of Agriculture (DOA) in the NARS including 19
sub institutions of DOA. During the 2019 information were requested from 13 institutions of
NARS including 19 sub institutions of DOA. During the year 2019 thirty one databases were
expected and twenty nine were collected. Databases were processed and resubmitted to the

relevant institution.

INFORM training programme was conducted successfully, on 18®, 19" 30 and 31! July 2019 at
the Computer Laboratory, National Agriculture Information and Communication Centre
(NAICC), Gannoruwa. This was a two-day training programme and conducted for two batches
(DOA & Non-DOA).
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INFORM Coordinators of the 18 sub institutions (FCRDI, FRDI, HORDI, RRDI, GLORDC,
SEPC, RARDC-AR, RARDC-BN, RARDC-BW, RARDC-MK, RARDC-KC, PGRC, PVIC
NPQS, FMRC, FRU ROP, SCS, of DOA were invited on 18" July and 30" July 2019. INFORM
Coordinators of other institutes: DEA, CRI, RRI, SRI, TRI, PRI, VRI, NARA, DFD, DNBG,
IPHT, SLCARP and HARTI were invited on 19" July and 31% July 2019. At the first day of the
training programme, participants of both batches, were trained on Data collection and Database
management. At the second day they were trained on INFORM budget preparation and retrieving
of data from their own databases. Dr. P C Girihagama was the Resource person of the training

programme.

Forty six INFORM Coordinators and Assistant INFORM Coordinators participated the training
programme on 18-19 July 2019 and 52 participants attended on 30-31 July 2019. 15 databases
(CRI, GLORDC, SEPC, RARDC-BW, RARDC-MK, PGRC, PVIC, NPQS, FRU, ROP, SCS,
RRI, NARA, DFD and IPHT) were completed and 14 databases were partially completed.

NAICC Computer Laboratory of Department of Agriculture was given free of charge to conduct
the workshop. The total cost of the Training programme was Rs. 76,390.00 and it was incurred for
the lunch and Refreshment of the participants and resource person and accommodation & food at

HORDI and PGRC for SLCARP officials and fuel.

External Review of Research Institutes — 2019

Two  Research Institutes  were
reviewed in 2019. They are; Coconut
Research Institute (CRI) & National
S e Plant Quarantine Service (NPQS) of
the Department of Agriculture (DOA).
An initial meeting with the appointed
reviewers was held on 29" March

2019 All participated reviewers have

expressed their opinions regarding the
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review. Institutes reports requested from the institutes to be reviewed, have been submitted to

SLCARP and these were shared with respective Review Panels.

Following review panels were appointed to review the mentioned institute in 2019.

Review Panel for Coconut Research Institute

Dr. V. H. L. Rodrigo, Acting Director, Rubber Research Institute - Chairman
Dr. A. M. T. Amarakoon, Senior Lecturer, Department of Chemistry, Faculty of Science,
University of Kelaniya -Member

Dr. M. A. Wijeratna, Officer in Charge, Tea Research Institute - Member

Review Panel for National Plant Quarantine Service (NPQS) of the Department of

Agriculture

Prof. K L Wasantha Kumar, Professor in Agricultural Biology, Department of Agricultural
Biology, Faculty of Agriculture, University of Ruhuna - Chairman

Prof. K K I U Aruna Kumara, Professor in Crop Science, Department of Crop Science, Faculty
of Agriculture, University of Ruhuna - Member

Mr. Dinesh de Silva, Head of Shipping and International Trade, Unilever Sri Lanka Ltd.- Member

Follow up action of External Reviews:

Status of implementation of the recommendations were reviewed by the SLCARP Council in 02
research institutes reviewed in 2017 (Fruit Crops Research and Development Institute of the
Department of Agriculture (FRDI) and the National Institute of Postharvest Management
(NIPHM) and 06 research institutes reviewed in 2018 ie Field Crops Research & Development
Institute (FCRDI); Hector Kobbekaduwa Agrarian Research and Training Institute (HARTI);
National Aquatic Resources Research and Development Agency (NARA); Palmyrah Research
Institute (PRI); Sugarcane Research Institute (SRI); and Veterinary Research Institute (VRI). The
Status of implementation of the recommendations were reviewed by the SLCARP Council. The
recommendations with council comments were also sent to the respective Secretaries of the
Ministries, Director Generals/Heads of the above mentioned institutes, and Department of National
Planning of the Treasury and Chief Internal Auditor of the Ministry of Agriculture for their
information and implementation process.
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MOTIVATION OF THE SCIENTISTS

Mandated Function Covered
e Promote and Facilitate Excellence in Agricultural Research (6)
e To Arrange for and Fund Special Scientific Services for the Entire Agricultural Research

Sector (9)

SLCARP National Awards for Excellence in Agricultural Research-2019

National Awards for the excellence in Agricultural Research is a biennial award scheme, initiated
by the Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy for recognizing the outstanding
achievement in agricultural research. This programme is conducted as a mandatory function of the
SLCARP Act. No 47, 1987 and has been conducted since 1997. The objective of the scheme is to
encourage and motivate agricultural scientists towards achieving higher levels of scientific
research, improve their career prospects and bestow recognition on outstanding contributions made
towards advancement in National Agricultural Development. Applications were called from 4
sectors: Plantation, Non-Plantation, Fisheries and Livestock and fifty three applications were
received. None of the applications were received from the Livestock Sector. Awardees were
selected by the Main Selection Panel with the support of 3 Sectoral Expert Review Committees
appointed by the Council of SLCARP. Six awardees were recommended from the three sectors:
Plantation (1), Non-Plantation (3) and Fisheries (2). In addition, 4 applicants in the Non-Plantation
Sector were recommended to give the Certificates of Commendation. Awards were given to the
10 Research teams including four Certification of Commendation. A Certificate, Plaque and Cash

Awards was given to the all members of the each team of first, second and third Awards.
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Sri Lanka Journal of Food and Agriculture (SLJFA)

During the year 2019 about 13 research papers were reviewed out of which 10 research papers
were selected for publication whilst three were not selected or withdrew. The SLJFA Vol. 4 Issue
2 and Vol. 5 Issue 1 were published in the SLJOL and SLCARP website and Volume 4 and Volume
5 Issue 1 were printed (ISSN 2424-6913). The SLJFA adopts open access policy. The research
papers that are accepted for publication by the Editorial Board by 30 June and 31 December are
published in the Issues 1 and 2 respectively each year. Furthermore, the SLCARP paid Rs.2000.00

each per review.

The Research Allowance Programme

The Government of Sri Lanka has provided an incentive for the researchers for conducting
valuable research programmes and as a mechanism to encourage them to conduct highly
innovative research to meet the present demands as relevant to their fields of expertise. This is
operational through Management Services Department Circular 2/2014.In accordance with the
Circular SLCARP has the authority to approve the research allowance for the researchers in

agriculture sector. A total of 130 applications for the research allowance was evaluated.

Workshop on Introduction to Bio-informatics

Considering the enhancement of new knowledge
among the scientists in Agricultural Biotechnology,
committee had decided to conduct a training
programme on Bioinformatics for a selected
scientists in the NARS who were involved in
Agricultural Biotechnological research.

Consequently a two days’ workshop was conducted

at the Agricultural Biotechnology Centre,
University of Peradeniya for 30 participants of NARS institutes.
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FUNDING

Mandated Function Covered

e Arrange for and Fund Inter-Institutional Agricultural Research Projects (8)

Funding of Inter-institutional research projects

This programme provides funds for conducting research programmes to Institutes in the NARS
on a competitive basis. Funding was continued for four research projects. Total budget allocated

was Rs 3,000,000

Tablel: Research Projects awarded

Name of Research Project Institute Name of Year of
Principal award
Investigator
Investigation of health promoting effects of Sri | TRI, Uni Nelum 2018
Lankan Tea cultivars Ruhuna, Piyasena
Uni
Peradeniya
Comparative assessment of soil erosion, soil DOA, Dr.AG 2018
moisture and crop performance in contour soil | Atomic Chandrapala
bund system introduced as an adaptation Energy
measure to climate change impacts in Authority
Anuradhapura district with other land uses.
Evaluation of Dielectric Heating (Microwave) | TRI, Uni Dr. K M 2017
and Infra-Red (IR) techniques as novel soil Peradeniya | Mohotti
sterilizing techniques for eradicating nematode
pests in tea as alternatives to chemical
fumigation
Genetic Analysis and linkage mapping of TRI, Uni Mr.M A B 2017
pigments of Tea (Camellia Sinensis L.) Kelaniya Ranatunga
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HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

Mandated Function Covered

Promote Linkage between Agricultural Research Institutions at National and International

Level (10)

Arrange Postgraduate Training for Agricultural Research Staff and Interchange/Exchange

of Scientists with Recognized Research Institutions Abroad (12)

Capacity Building of Researchers of the NARS

SLCARP has throughout year 2019 provided the necessary coordination to the scholars for
admissions and ensured receipt of funds for the progarmme, therefore all payments due to
the scholars were made. In year 2019 more nominations were invited from NARS Institutes

as per the procedure approved by the Council of SLCARP.

Total Number of Candidates who have Received Admission under the Capacity

Building Long term Training Programme of SLCARP in Year 2019

University of Philippine s 05
Kaseartsart University 01
University Putra Malaysia 12
Indian council of Agriculture research universities 01
Total Scholars 19

Total Number of Scholars who are reading post sraduate degrees under the

Capacity Building Long term Training Programme of SLCARP in Year 2019

University Putra Malaysia 28
Kaseartsart University 02
University of Philippine s 24
Indian council of Agriculture research universities 05
AIT 03

Total Scholars 62
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Asia Pacific Association of Agricultural Research Institute (APAARI)

SLCARP has been a member of APAARI since its inception and pays an annual
membership fee. Secretary SLCARP was an executive committee member for years and
chairman appointed an executive member Asian Pacific Consortium on Biotechnology and
Bio resources (APCOB). Since its establishment APAARI has significantly contributed
towards addressing agricultural research needs and enhancing food and nutritional security
in the region. The close links, networks, partnerships and collaboration with stakeholders
that APAARI has developed over the years, makes the Association a valuable organization
in the region. The ultimate aim of APAARI is to help realizing sustainable development
goals in Asia and the Pacific. Through the Asia Pacific Association for Agricultural
Research Institutions (APAARI), two training and invitation for a workshop were offered

to SLCARP which are given below along with names of participants:

In year 2019, Placements in the following subject areas were offered by APAARI. The

placements offered in year 2019.

Name of the . . . .
Nos. Officer Details of Foreign Trips Country Duration
1 |Dr.SKDFF 4™ Master Class in Penang, 26 -31 May
Niranjan/DD(RM) | Agricultural Res. Policy Malaysia 2019
2 | Dr. Shanika Workshop on Innovations | Taipei, Taiwan | 30th June - 06
Jayasekera/ in Agribusiness for Young July 2019
Senior Scientist Entrepreneurs Sponsored
3 | Dr. DT Kingsley | Asia - Pacific Consortium | Bangkok, 11-12 June
Bernard/Chairman | on Agric. Biotechnology Thailand 2019
and Bio resources Steering
committee Meeting
4 Workshop on Innovations | Iran February 3-5,
in Vegetable Seed 2020
Production Technology
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MoU between SLCARP and Malaysian Agricultural Research and Development Institute

SLCARP and Malaysian Agricultural Research and Development Institute (MARDI) have entered
into a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) on scientific and technical cooperation and
development of Human Resource of agricultural scientists in the National Agricultural Research
System (NARS) in 2016 when His Excellency the President of Sri Lanka visits Malaysia. The
objective of the MoU is to strengthen, facilitate, promote and develop scientific and technical
cooperation between the participants with an emphasis for the enhancement of cooperation for
mutual benefits to take necessary steps to encourage, facilitate and promote scientific and technical
cooperation in the areas of; Agriculture, Livestock and Information Management System in
Agriculture. For the year 2019, a need assessment was conducted to identify the local training
requirement by sending a requesting letter to the heads of the NARS by asking required training
needs. Training needs were conveyed to MARDI to get their willingness to provide the
requirement. However, due to some unavoidable circumstances from MARDI they conveyed that
the above trainings can be arranged in 2020. Meantime, few letters were exchange between
SLCARP and MARDI regarding formulation of the Technical Management Committee (TMC)
and visit of the Director General of MARDI to Sri Lanka. A council approved was sought by
SLCARP to nominate the eligible committee members representing Sri Lanka for the TMC align
with the MoU.

MoU between SLCARP and Bangladesh Agricultural Research Council

Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) between the Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research
Policy (SLCARP), Sri Lanka and the Bangladesh Agricultural Research Council (BARC), signed
on 18 April 2011 in Bangladesh. Under this programme short term trainings were granted on;Study
visits and Training Programme, Exchange of Germplasm and Information on Agriculture,
Exchange of Technology and Experts.The discussed work plan 2017 -2021 was then signed in
presence of H.E. Mr. Riaz Hamidullah, High Commissioner of the People’s Republic of
Bangladesh to Sri Lanka, and senior members of NARS at a function. According to the work plan,
both the parties agrees upon to Exchange of Technology, Germplasm and Information, Scientists

and Trainees including institutional collaboration.
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SLCARP PUBLICATIONS

oriculture Research
Book of Abstracts i nka

National Symposium on Floriculture Research
NaSFloR - 2015
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ACHIEVEMENTS OF SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS (SDG) - 2019

In the year 2019, under the National Agricultural Research Plan (NARP), 53 research projects
were coordinated to achieve SDGs relevant to “zero hunger” and “climate change” and Ten (15)
new projects had been recommended for funding in the year 2020. In the programme of Funding
of Inter-institutional research projects, four research projects were coordinated to achieve SDGs.
Other than that one workshop was conducted to develop policies and strategies to mitigate
landslides using bio engineering methods. Experts from National Building Research Organization
(NBRO), Departments, Research Institutes and NGO shared their experiences to develop research

proposal to find out bio engineering methods to mitigate landslides in Sri Lanka
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ACHIEVEMENTS OF THE STAFF

Participation in International Seminars and Conferences by SLCARP staff and Council

Members
Nos. Name of the Officer Details of Foreign Trips Counctry Duration
1 | Dr. SK D F F Niranjan 4™ Master Class in Penang, Malaysia 26 - 31
Deputy Director Agricultural Res. Policy May 2019
(Research)
2 | Dr. Shanika Jayasekera/ Workshop on Innovations in | Taipei, Taiwan 30 June -
Senior Scientist Agribusiness for Young 06 July
Entrepreneurs Sponsored 2019
3 | Dr. DT Kingsley Asia - Pacific Consortium Bangkok, Thailand | 11-12 June
Bernard/Chairman on Agric. Biotechnology 2019
and Bio resources Steering
committee Meeting
4 | Dr. SM PC Padmini, Professional Position under | Bangladesh 16-18
Senior Scientist SAARC Agriculture center October
(Senior Programme 2019
Specialist (Crops)
5 | Dr. S M PC Padmini, International Conference on | Australia 12-13
Senior Scientist Business Management December
(ICBM)-2019 2019

Participation in Local training by SLCARP staff

Name of the Officer Title of the Training Dates

Dr. N.S. Jayasekera Advance Excel 30 & 31 May 2019

Dr. S.M.P.C. Padmini

Dr. P.H.A.P.C. Girthagama | Database management using Ms. 12,19 & 26 June 2019
Access

Ms. R.Y.M.P. Ranathunga Disciplinary management 05 & 07 August 2019
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Name of the Officer Title of the Training Dates
Dr. P.H.A.P.C. Girthagama | Symposium at RRISL 04 & 06 November 2019
Mr. L.G. Hettiararchchi Database management using MS.

Access 07 & 08 November 2019

Dr. S.M.P.C. Padmini

Soil Science Society of Sri Lanka

05 & 06 December 2019

Mr. L.G Hettiararchchi

Introduction to Qualitative and

29 November and 02

Quantitative Data Collection and December 2019

Analysis

27,28 & 29 November
2019

Ms. Kaumalee Dissanayake | Inventory and Asset management

Dr. NS Jayasekera 27,28 & 29 November
Dr. P.H.A.P.C. Girihagama 2019

Project management using MS

Publications:

Hettiarachchi, L.G., Jayathillake, N., Fernando, S. and Gunawardena, S., 2019. Effects of compost
particle size, moisture content and binding agents on co-compost pellet properties. International
Journal of Agricultural and Biological Engineering, 12(4), pp.184-191.

Sachitra, K. M. V; Padmini, S. M. P. C; Niranjan, F. and Bernard, D T K (2019) Can Capability
Approach Influence Over Entrepreneurial Growth? Reference in Floriculture Agribusiness Sector,
Book of Abstract of the National Symposium on Floriculture Research, Nov. 2019

Padmini, S.M.P. C., Kodagoda, T., and Samaratunge, R (2019), A question of ties: The impact of
social ties on resource mobilization of women entrepreneurs in the Sri Lankan floriculture
industry, Proceedings of the 16 International Conference of the Business Management,
University of Monash, Australia, pp 104

Sachitra, K. M. V.; Padmini, S. M. P. C. and Bernard D. T. K., (2019). Entrepreneurial growth
among farmers: Lesson from floriculture industry in Sri Lanka, Proceedings of the 16
International Conference of the Business Management, University of Monash, Australia, pp 113
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Dr. S K D F F Niranjan, Deputy Director (Research Management), served as a ;

Reviewer of the Policy Research in the Area of Agriculture, Agricultural Sector
Modernization Project, Ministry of Mahaweli, Agriculture, Irrigation and Rural Economic

Affairs

Member, Research and Training Committee (RTC), Hector Kobbekaduwa Agrarian Research
and Training Institute (HARTI)

Editorial Board Member, Sri Lanka Journal of Food and Agriculture (SLJFA), Sri Lanka
Council for Agricultural Research Policy, Colombo ISSN 2424-6913
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45



SLCARP Annual Report 2019

STAFF OF THE SLCARP

Approved carder for the SLCARP is 36 and existing carder in 2019 is 26. The Posts which
are fall in vacant; Senior Scientist (01post), Research Officer (01 post), Accountant (01
post), Librarian (01 post), Administrative Officer (01 post), Management Assistant (03
post), Driver (01 post), and Office Aide (01 post)

Staff status as at 31%' December 2019, at the Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research

Policy is as follows:

Chairman

Dr. S.S. B. D..G..Jayawardena B.Sc. (Agric.), M.Sc., Ph.D. till January 2019
Dr. D. T. K. Bernard, B.Sc. (sp.), M.Sc. Ph.D. Feb 2019 — Dec 2019
Secretary

Dr. J.D. H. Wijewardena MPhil, Ph.D. till January 2019

Dr. K Hettiarchchi, B.Sc. (Agric.), Ph.D Feb 2019 — June 2019
Dr. K G I Amarasinghe, B.Sc., M.Sc., Ph.D  June 2019 — Dec 2019
Mr. Prabath Wimal Kumara, BA, MA from Dec 2019

Senior Manager
Deputy Director (Research Management)
Dr. S. K. D. F. F.Niranjan B.Sc. (Agric.), MPhil, Ph.D. (Agric. Economics)

Senior Scientist

Dr. P. H. A. P. C. Girihagama B.Sc. (Agric.), MPhil, Ph.D. (Agric. Economics)
Dr. N. S. Jayasekara B.Sc. (Sci.), MSc. Ph.D. (Agric. Entomology.)
Dr. S. M. P. C. Padmini B.Sc. (Agric.), MSc, Ph.D.  (Agric. Crop Science)

Academic and Research
Research Officer
Ms. N. C. Daulagala B.Sc., M.Sc. (Agric.)

Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy
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Mr. D. D. S. S.Dissanayake B.Sc. (Agric.)
Mr. L.G.Hettiarachchi B.Sc. (Agric.), MSc.
Middle Manager

Assistant Director Administration

Mrs. R.Y.M.P.Ranathunga B.Sc. (Mgt. &Pub Admi.) sp.

Management Assistants (Tec)

Mr. D. M. D. D. N. Abeyrathne, BIT External
Ms. J. A. D. M. P. Jayasinghe, AAT

Ms. S. M. S. U. Kaushalya, AAT

Management Assistants (Non-Tec)
Mrs. G. L. Nawalage

Mrs. H. H. Batagoda

Ms. N. B. S. Dharshani

Mrs. G. A. P. K. Dissanayake
Mrs. A. B. Anjalee

Mr. K. G. S. C. Wanigasekara
Mrs. A. P. M. D. K. Samarajeewa
Mr. R. P. N. B. Premathilaka
Ms.P. G. C. L. Sumanasinghe
Ms. S. R. M. P. H. Samaranayake

Primary Level Skilled
Mr. D. G. A. S. Dassanayake Driver
Mr. D. J. D. R. D. Jayamaha -do-

Primary Level Unskilled
Mr. N. A. K. Weerakkody Office Aide
Ms. A. R. H. Premarathne -do-

Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy
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Sir Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy is grateful to its entire staff for their hard
work and cooperation provided in implementing the accelerated work programme. If not for their
continuous cooperation and commitment, the volume of work completed in the 2019 could never
have been achieved. Our sincere thanks are also due to the Chairman and members of the Council

for the valuable support and cooperation extended throughout the year.

SLCAREP is also thankful to Hon. Minister of Agriculture, Rural Economic Affairs, Livestock
Development, Irrigation and Fisheries and Aquatic Resources Development, Hon. State Minister
of Agriculture, Hon. Deputy Minister of Agriculture, the Secretary, Ministry of Agriculture,
Secretary of State Ministry of Agriculture, Additional Secretaries, Chief Accountant, Directors
and other staff in the Ministry of Agriculture, Rural Economic Affairs, Livestock Development,
Irrigation and Fisheries and Aquatic Resources Development and those of the Audit Unit for
their excellent cooperation provided to SLCARP for successful completion of year 2019 work

plan.

The cooperation extended by the State Sector Institutions, Universities and relevant Private

Sector Organizations are also acknowledged with thanks.
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Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy
No. 114/09, Wijerama Mawatha, Colombo 07
Statement of Financial Position

As at 31™ December 2019
2019 2018
Notes LKRs. Cts. LKRs. Cts, -

ASSETS

Property, Plant & Equipment 08 11,021,067 11,782,463
Infrastructure 08-A 560,180 604,392
Work in Progress - CARP New Building 2,460,000 -
Total Non Current Assets 14,041,247 12,386,856
Inventories 09 1,494,097 1,558,832
Trade & Other Receivables 10 18,714,601 20,554,351
Cash at Bank 11' 20,278,760 25,446,705
“Total Current Assets B 40,487,457 - 47,559,888
TOTAL ASSETS a 54,528,704 59,946,744
EQUITY & LIABILITIES

Capital & Reserves _

CARP Fund : 12 5,208,877 27,639,257
Treasury Grants - Research 13 0 {6,468,925)
Deferred Income Fund 14 11,581,247 2,208,690
Accumulated Surplus / {Deficit) 27,621,522 27,025,744
Gift - 116,892 .

’ . 44,411,646 50,521,658

Retirement Benefit {Gratuity) 15 9,177,501 7,820,353
Total Non current Liabilities ' _ 9,177,501 7,820,353
Current Liabilities

Trade & Other Payables 16 939,557 1,604,732
Total current liabilities . 939,557 1,604,732
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES : : | 54,528,704 59,946,744

These Financial Statements are in compliance with the reguirements of the finance Act, No.38 of 1971-and the Public
sector accounting standards in Sri Lanka.

The Governing Council is responsible for preparation of these Financial Statements. We approved and signed on behalf
of the SLCARP council.

Prepared By ; %\"J"m.. S.M.5.U Kaushalya

Checked By ; O ADMPIayasinghs

M.K.M.Mihirani Prabhath Wimal Kumara
Acwu&tant (Acting) Secretary | piveckov
M. K. M. Mihirani .. - .
Accountant . Gamini Senanayake, : Pmbath Wlma‘! Kumara
{ Project & Institutional Finance Management) Chairman Secretary/ Director

Ministry of Agriculture, Livestock Developm . L W ; i8#i Lanka Council forAgricultural Research Poli
asion s Fers & Aquatio Resouei Lanks Counl fo Agricuturd ReseschPligtLanialiannel Begien o estuch ol

Development o No: 114/9, Wijerama Mawatha
No. 288, Sri Jayawardenepura Mawatha, Rajagiriya. ~ *\0" ¢4 %57 Colombo 07
0 4 1 Colombo 7



Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy
No. 114/09, Wijerama Mawatha, Colombo 07

Statement of Comperhensive income
for the Year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018

Note LKRs. Cts. LKRs. Cts.
Treasury Grants 01 181,203,509 127,530,048
Other Income 02 3,917,342 1,862,572
TOTAL INCOME 185,120,851 129,392,619
Operating Expenses 03 149,587,917 64,159,073
DIFFERENCE BETWEEN TREASURY GRANTS , ' 35,532,934 65,233,546
OTHER INCOME AND OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative Expenses 04 40,937,552 38,100,208
Capital Expenses - -
Finance Cost 05 1,147,563 23,732
blFFERENCE BETWEEN TREASURY GRANTS . (6,552,180} 27,109,607
& OTHER INCOME AND TOTAL EXPENDITURE
Add / (Less) Prior Year Adjustment 06 7,147,959 (689,180)
- Add / {Less) Write off Assets 07 158
EXCESS OF EXPENDITURE OVER INCOME & TREASRY GRANTS 595,779 '26,420,268
Balance B/F 27,025,743 605,476
‘Balance C/F 27,621,522 : 27,025,744

02



WITIV VY WS Te9Le - LYT'I8S'TE 0 LL8'80L'S 6107 ISTE JPquiadaq] e uejeg
641'S6S - - - - sjuesg Ainseas] 13 20dU| OAQ 34njipuadxg JO S529X3
- (00:'602vEL) - - - WO 40§ JudWISHIpY
- 00°LTE'LTY - : - WIS 104 Jawisnipy
{r86'eL1'} - - -Juswisnipe uonepasdag
- - TEYI8EC - - S395SY [EMAED U0 PAARIBY SIURIS JUBILIIADG
- - 0T1'S9T0T - - pung awoeou) pauagag 103 Wwswisnipy
- - - L8E'GL6'T - pun4 44y 03 siuesn jeyide) jo-aouejeq 1o Jo Jajsuel)
- - - 9VL'9PE'T - JuaWISN{py JusWeuey YoIeasoy Jesp Joud
- - - T6L°9V1' - JUBLUISBAUL YyoIeasaY 19N
- - - - (£8€'s26'2) uaunsnipy sjuesn Jejde) jo asuejeq 19N
- - - - (e66'v5¥'6T} JuaWSn{py pun4 dyv? Jeap Jolid
85972505 prL'seo'se 268'9T1 069'802'C (5268919} £ST'689°LE 6102 1ST0 Atenuer je dugjeg
85912505 brL'ST0'LT T68OTT 069’802 {sz6'89t'9) LST'6E9'LT 810Z ISTE 1aqwadaq e auejeq
892°02t'9Z - - - - sjues9 AINSeal] 13 awod] JIAQ InJIpuadxa JO SSAINI.
- (s89'0TT} - - awWoou| pa1agaq se paziudoaay awodu|
- SLE'GIE'T - - pun4 2Wodu| paiajaq 40 UOIUS0IY
- - (68291} - waunsnipy JuawiBeueyy Yoieasay Jea) Joud
- - (8¥s's6S) - . JUSUIISIAUL Yodeasay JoN
L£0'S05'2T 9/%'S09 T68'9TT - (885'958's) LST'6E9°LE 8102 15T0 Auenuier Je asuejeg
(s;yaqg)
Aunb3 * pung yoeasay .
[sesmding SIAISDY JARO pung duyd uoRdpsaq
ass! e : . i
[s19ssy 19N jeoy — awoou| pauseq sjueln Amseal)
Aygu3 3uljonauod Ay Jo SIBUMQ OL INGUAY
SN

610Z ,,T€ 12qu303Q papua Jeak aup Joj
Aynb3 /19N uj saBuey) o Juawialels - Au3 103088 Ngnd
fayod yoieasay jesnynousy Joj ;3uno) exuer ug

n3



Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy
No. 114/09, Wijerama Mawatha, Colombo 07

Statement of Cash Flow
For the Year ended 31* December 2019

2019 2018
Rs. Cts. Rs. Cts.
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Surplus/ (deficit) for the year 595,778 26,420,268
Non-cash mmfements
Ag[ustg_}gm for
Depreciation on property, plant & equipment 3,173,985 3,183,560
Treasury Grant Prior year Adjustment - -
Deferred Income on Funds Received for Fixes Assets 9,372,558 2,208,690
Gratuity Provision for the Year 1,357,148 2,091,465
Property, Plant & Equipment Disposal Loss - 158
Prior Year Adjustments on Fixes Assets 13,056 474,104
CARP Fund {22,430,380) -
Gift (116,892) -
Interest Income
Distress Loan Interest (644,268) (547,354)
Bank Deposits - -
Net Research Investments 6,468,925 (612,336)
Gratuity Payment - (820,928)
Operating Profit Before Changes in Working Capital (2,210,092) 32,397,628
Changes in Working Capital
{Increase) / Decrease in Inventories 64,735 _ {666,628)
(Increase) / Decrease in trade & other receivables 1,839,751 (15,611,734)
Increase / (Decrease) in creditors and payables (665,175) 248,190 _
Cash Generated from Operations (970,781) 16,367,456
Net Cash Flows from Operations Activities (970,781) 16,367,456
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING AC'I’IVIT_IES
Purchase of property, plant & equipment (2,381,431) (2,315,375)
Work in Progress - CARP New Building {2,460,000) -
Interest income
Distress Loan Interest 644,268 547,354
Bank Deposits - -
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities (4,197,163 (1,772,022)
CASH Fi.OWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Treasury Grant Received - -
Net Fund received - -
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities - -
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (5,167,944) 114,595,435
Cash & cash equivalents at b_eginni_ng of the perio_d. 25,446,705 10,851,270 .

Cash & Cash Equivalents at end of period {Note 10) 20,278,761 25,446,705 ,-f}

ng




Notes to the financial statements

Year ended 31 December 2019
2019 2018
LKRs. Cts. LKRs. Cts.

01 Treasury Grants .2019 2018
Recurrent 168,350,300 112,584,500
Capital for Research Management Activities 12,853,209 14,945,548

' ' 181,203,509 127,530,048

02 Otherincome 2019 2018
Distress Loan Interest 644,268 547,354
Sundry income 99,050 18,725
International Symposium . 108,000
Deferred income 3,173,984 110,685
Exchange Gain . 1,077,808

3,917,342 1,862,572

03 Operating Expenses 2019 2018
International Training (A) 136,734,708 48,213,526
Research Management Activities 12,853,209 14,945,548

149,587,917 64,159,073
(A) International Training
2019 2018
Long term Training _
India 9,773,198 3,640,254
Malasiya 62,881,141 6,302,322
Phillippines 46,041,838 15,457,252
Thailand 18,038,531 14,162,555
136,734,708 39,562,382
Short term Training
Bangladesh - 166,391
India - 105,698
Malaysia - 74,000
Thailand - 918,960
Thailand - 7,575,812
USA - 784,833
Orientation Program - 25,450
- 9,651,144
Total Expense on International Training 136,734,708 49,213,526




04 Administrative Expenses 2019 2018

Allowances to Chairman & Director 1,661,907 2,374,960
Employee benefits expenses (A 27,214,340 24,470,545
Travelling Expenses ( B) 34,143 634,816
Fuel to Members 139,250 96,000
Allowances to Members 532,309 429,250
Fule & Lubricant 234,081 206,349
Uniforms 25,000 25,000
Newspapers & Periodicals 17,520 16,809
Stationery 1,130,371 779,433
Repairs & Maintenance ( C) 755,208 571,416
Office Upkeep ( Janitorial service) 674,001 623,594
“ Communication Expenses 419,717 447,295
Electricity Charges . 846,063 - 79,171
Security Charges 1,234,019 806,136
Entertainment/Meting Expenses 560,745 638,556
Staff Welfare 462,163 307,649
Auditor's remuneration 426,384 255,400
Staff Training : 322,370 203,000
Insurance 370,495 387,092
Postage & Stamps 102,725 67,936
Advertisement 493,330 549,921
Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment 3,173,984 3,183,560
Sundry Expenses : 80,931 201,807
Vehicle Tax ' - 6,000
Non Consumable Expenses 26,496 25,914
40,937,552 38,100,208
({ A) Employee benefits expenses 2019 . 2018
Staff Salaries 14,769,582 12,527,049
Cost of Living Allowances 2,506,660 2,534,870
Other Allowances 1,418,332 2,157,247
Overtime : 308,788 227,166
Medical Reimbursement 259,411 267,903
Encashment of medical leave 566,115 -
Research Allowances - -
Transport & Fuet Allowance 3,124,320 2,320,382
Contribution to Employees’ Provident Fund 2,420,271 1,953,677
Contribution to Employees’ Trust Fund 483,714 390,7851?
Gratuity Expense 1,357,147 2,091,465
27,214,340 24,470,545




(B) Travelling Expenses 2019 2018

Local 34,143 43,109
Overseas - 591,707
34,143 634,816
{ C) Repairs & Maintenance 2019 2018
Equipments 278,535 228,704
Vehicles 365,273 303,064
Building . 111,401 35,148
Furniture & Fittings - 4,500
- 755,208 571,416
05 Finance Cost . 2019 2018
Debit Tax 25,737 23,732
Bank Charges 200 -
Exchangeloss 1,121,625 -
' 1,147,563 23,732
06 Prior Year Adjustment 2018 2018
Add: .
Reversal of Accrued Expenses Provision - 280,484
Reversal of Depreciation : - 373,821
Fuel & Lubricants Adjustment - 6,400
Correction of Capital Grants (Treasury Grants -Research ) )
2010 490,950 -
- 201 5,098,189 -
2012 9,811,304 -
2013 10,660,490 -
2014 12,096,339 -
2015 9,462,065 -
2016 6,696,459 -
2017 5,692,846 -
2018 4,408,230 e
64,417,912 660,705
Less: _
Provisioning of Accrued Expenses 899,014 899,234
Building Maintenance - 449,480
Loan Revolving Fund Bank A/C - 1,171
Correction of Capital Grants (Treasury Grants -Research }
2010 {42,681) -
2011 (5,047,710) -
2012 (11,747,822) -
2013 {7,067,044) -
2014 {10,316,405) -
2015 (9,462,065) -
2016 - {6,694,895) -
2017 (5,_530,992} -
2018 (461,325) -
{56,370,939)

Balance as at 31st December 2019 _ 7,147,959

nT



07 Write off of Assets 2019 2018
Balance brought forward- At Cost
Computer & Printer 299,907 1,054,960
Office Equipment 161,651 533,790
Office Furniture & Fixtures 53,331 10,000
Non- Consumables - -
514,889 1,598,750
Balance brought forward - Accumulated Depreciation
Computer & Printer ' 299,507.14 1,054,960
QOffice Equipment 161,651.38 533,631
Office Fyrniture & Fixtures 53,330.75 10,000
Non- Consumables - -
— 514,889 1,598,591
- 158




Notes to the financial statements
08 Property, plant & equipment

Balance as at Additions Disposals Adjustments Bala_nce asat
01/01/2019 31{.‘12{2619
Cost
CARP Building 22,325,490 - - - 22,325,490
Computer & Printer 10,188,382 1,850,500 299,907 - 11,738,975
Computer Software 2,404,427 - - - 2,404,427
Office Equipment 11,602,037 - 161,651 - 11,440,386
Office Furniture 4,006,098 530,931 53,331 (461,325) 4,022,373
Motor Vehicles 26,321,295 - - - 26,321,295 -
Library books 143,248 - - - 143,248
Non- Consumables - - . - -
76,980,978 2,381,431 514,889 {461,325) ..78,396,194
Balance as at Charge for Balance as at
: Disposals Adjustments
01/01/2019 the year 31/12/2019
Depreciation
CARP Building 15,932,545 1,116,275 - - - 17,048,819
Computer & Printer 8,712,594 911,212 299,907 - 9,323,899
Computer Software 2,404,427 - . - - 2,404,427
Office Equipment 9,151,663 782,685 161,651 (448,269) 9,324,427
Office Furniture 2,599,588 312,438 53,331 - 2,858,695
Motor Vehicles 26,321,295 - - - 26,321,295
Library books 86,402 7,162 - - 93,565
65,208,514 3,129,772 514,889 (448,269) 67,375,127
Net book value as at 11,782,463 11,021,067

2019.12.31



08 -A  Infrastructure

Balance as at Additions 2019 (Disposals) 2019 Balance as at Balance as at
01/01/2019 31/12/2019 31.12.2018
Cost
Electronic Data 8,640,585 - - 8,640,585 8,640,585
Road 884,251 - - 884,251 884,251
9,524,836 - - 9,524,836 9,524,836
Balance as at Charge for (Disposals) 2019 Balance as at Balance as at
01/01/2019 the year 2019 31/12/2019 31/12/2018
Depreciation
Electronic Data 8,_640,535 . - - 8,640,585 8,640,585
Road 279,859 44,213 324,071 279,859
8,920,444 44,212.53 - 8,964,656 8,920,444
N lue as at -
et book value as 3 604,392 560,180 604,392
2019.12.31
2019 2018
09 Inventories
Stamp in hand 6,705 885
Stationery 955,785 999,845
Non- Consumables 531,607 558,102
1,494,097 1,558,832
10 Trade & other receivables 2qT0 2018
Staff Debtors - Distress Loan 3,525,282 2,430,390
Staff Debtors - Festival Advance 3,750 3,750
Unsettied Research Imprest * 659,131 659,131
Deposits Receivable 75,500 75,500
Prepayment 14,086,412 16,831,738
Income Receivable 363,958 553,273
Floricutture Project 50 50
IFPRI Project 518 518
18,714,601

10

20,554,351 .




11 Cash at bank 2019 2018
BOC - Torrington Square 6,963,024 14,017,088
BOC - Loan revol. Fund 4,975,666 5,471,187
BOC Savings A/C - Gratuity Fund 8,340,070 5,958,430 .

20,278,760 25,446,705

12 CARP Fund 2019 2018
Balance as at 01% January 2019 27,639,257 27,639,257
Prior Year Adjustments

2010 - -
2011 (26,402,813) -
2012 (1,964,728) -
2013 6,713,823 -
2014 {2,918,025) -
- 2015 5,116,750 -

2016 -

2017 -
2018 - -
{19,454,993) -

Transfer of Net Balance of Capital Grants
2010 1,456,870 -
2011 4,572,010 -
2012 850,920 -
2013 (5,599,756) -
2014 722,401 -
2015 (1,855,716) -
2016 (831,703) .
2017 (4,286,192) -
2018 (151,012) -
2019 2,146,791 :
(2,975,387) -
Balance as at 31st. December 2019 5,208,877 27,639,257

Jomad




13 Capital Grants - {Treasury Grants - Research) 2019 2018
Balance at the beginning of the year {6,468,925) {5,856,588)
Treasury Grant Received 15,000,000 14,350,000
Prior Year Adjustments

2010 - -
2011 (6,319,092) -
2012 3,355,657 -
2013 {8,812,010) “
2014 3,522,032 -
2015 4,318,929 -
2016 3,058,517 .
2017 1,721,388 -
2018 461,325 (16,789)
1,346,746 {16,789)
Transfer of Net Balance of Capital Grants to CARP Fund '
2010 (1,456,870) -
2011 (4,572,010) -
2012 (850,920} -
2013 5,589,756 -
2014 (722,401) -
2015 1,855,716 -
2016 831,703 -
2017 4,286,192 -
2018 151,012 -
2019 (2,146,791)
2,975,387 .
12,853,209 8,476,623
Research Management & Related Functions
Research Management Activities 10,239,563 12,135,933
Publication, seminars & Workshops 232,215 490,240
10,471,778 12,626,173
Transfer to Deferred Income Fund 2,381,431 2,319,375
12,853,209 14,945,548
Net of Capital Grants Transferred to CARP Fund 0 (6,468,925)

12




14 Deferred Income Fund 2019 2018
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,208,690
2011 32,671,426 .
2012 505,589 -
2013 (2,025,046) -
2014 (2,471,471) -
2015 (9,435,679) -
2016 (3,060,121) -
2017 (1,883,242) -
2018 {4,136,346) -
10,165,110
Government grants Received on Capital Assets 2,381,431 2,319,375
Deferred Income for the Year
For the Assets Purchased in 2019 (3,173,984} {110,685)
Balance at the beginnigg of the year 11,581,247 2,208,690
.5 Retirement Benefit (Gratuity Provision) 2019 2018
Balance as at 01% January 2019 7,820,353 6,549,816
Add : Receipts
Current Year Provision 1,357,147 2,091,465
Interest - -
9,177,501 8,641,281
Less : ment
Payment to Retired Employees - 820,928
Reversal of over provision - -
Balance as at 31st December 2019 9,177,501 7,820,353
6 Trade & other payables 2019 2018
Accrued Expenses 649,329 1,229,260
Deposits Payable 217,890 241,730
Loan Payable 6,200 6,200
NARP Project 233 233
PAYE Payable - 2,155
VAT Payable 12,000 12,000
Retention Payable 47,685 113,153
Other Payable 6,220 -
939,557 1,604,732

13
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Comparision of Approved Recurrent Budget (Revised) and Actual Expenditure Amounts for the year ended

Recurrent Actual Income/ Approved Revised Difference/ Excess
Expenditure 2019 Budget 2019 (Shortage)
LKRs. Cts. LKRs. Cts. LKRs, -  Cts.
01 Treasury Grants
Recurrent 168,350,300 200,000,000 31,649,700
168,350,300 200,000,000 31,649,700
02 (a). OtherIncome
Distress Loan Interest 644,268 - -
Sundry Income 99,090 - -
Deferred Income 3,173,984 - -
3,917,382 - -
03 Administrative Expenses
Employee benefits expenses (A) 28,876,247 37,820,250 8,944,003
Travelling Expenses (B) 34,143 750,000 715,857
Vehicle Hiring Charges - 50,000 50,000
Allowances to Members 532,309 800,000 267,691
Fuel & Qil’ 373,331 650,000 276,669
Uniforms 25,000 30,000 5,000
Newspapers & Periodicals 17,520 20,000 2,480
Stationery & Non Consumables 1,156,867 1,150,000 (6,867)
Repairs & Maintenance (C) 755,208 1,225,000 469,792
Office Upkeep( Janitorial service) 674,001 800,000 125,999
Communication Expenses 419,717 559,750 140,033
Electricity Charges 846,063 1,000,000 153,937
Security Charges 1,234,019 1,500,000 265,981
Meeting Expenses 560,745 600,900 39,256
Staff Welfare 462,163 600,000 137,837
Auditor's remuneration 426,384 350,000 (76,384).
Staff Training 322,370 500,000 177,630 ¢
Insurance 370,495 480,000 108,505
Postage & Stamps 102,725 250,000 147,275
Advertisement 493,330 700,000 206,670
Surcharge - 10,000 10,000
Incidentals - - -
Sundry Expenses 80,931 150,000 69,069
Vehicle Tax _ - - -
Interenational 'Frainigg for NARS 136,734,708 150,000,000 13,265,292
R 174,498,276 199,995,000 25,496,724
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Employée benefits expenses
Staff Salaries 14,769,582 17,768,376 2,998,794
Cost of Living Allowances 2,506,660 3,088,800 582,140
Qther Allowances 1,418,332 1,500,708 82,376
Overtime 308,788 300,000 (8,788)
Medical Reimbursement 259,411 270,000 10,589
Encashment of medical ieave 566,115 1,240,349 674,234
Contribution to Employees' Provident Fund 2,420,271 3,128,576 708,305
Contribution to Employees’ Trust Fund 483,714 625,715 142,001
Defined Benefit Plan Cost - Gratuity 1,357,147 2,792,606 1,435,459
Approved Vehicle & fuel Allowances 3,124,320 4,005,120 880,800
Research Allowances : - 300,000 300,000
Allowances to Chairman & Director 1,661,907 2,800,000 1,138,093
' 28,876,247 37,820,250 8,944,003
Travelling Expenses
Local 34,143 100,000 65,857
Qverseas ) - 650,000 650,000
’ ' 34,143 750,000 715,857
Repairs & Maintenance
Equipments 278,535 300,000 21,465
Vehicles 365,273 700,000 334,727
Building 111,401 200,000 88,599
Furniture & Fittings - 25,000 25,000
755,208 -1,225,000 469,792
Finance Cost
Debit Tax 25,737 - {25,737)
Bank Charges 200 5,000 4,800
Exchange Loss 1,121,625 - (1,121,625)
' 1,147,563 5,000 (1,142,563)
200,000,000 24,354,161

Grand Total 175,645,839
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en




Sri Lanka Councll for Agricultural Research Policy
Comparision of Approved Capital Budget (Revised) and Actual Expenditure Amounts for the year ended December 2019
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Folio

Expenditure I
Category

Objective
No./ Section
ois_l'.le Act.

Object
‘Code

Functions

Actual Income/
Expenditure 2019
LKRs. Cts.

Approved Budget 2019
LKRs. Cts.

Difference/ Excess
(Shortagz)
LKRs, Cts.

Research
Management
and Functions of
the council

10-(a)

To advise the Government on alt
matters regarding the organization, co-
ordination, planning and execution of
agricultural research and such other
related matters as may be referreg to it
by the Minister

11,000.00

200,000.00

179,000.00

{Objectives of
Jthe Council)

10- (b)

250

To formulate national agricultyral
research policy and priorities

436,758.00

480,000.00

(16,758.00)

10-{c)

2501

To define the overall aims and scope of

agricultural research with a view to
hering national development

objectives

101,250.00

150,000.00

48,710.00

10-{d)

2501

To make recommendations to the
appropriate aythorities on the financial,
manpgower and physical resources
required by agricultural research
institutigns and establishments and qn
the terms and conditions of service of
the staff of such institutions and
establishments :

157,380.00

390,000.00

232,620.00

10-{e)

2501

| ‘ré review institutional and departmental

agricultural research programmes and
make recommendations with regard to
their priorities and funding to the

| Ministry of the Minister in charge of the
subject of Finance and Planning

1,094,262.50

900,000.00

(194,262.50)

2501

To promote and facﬂitabé excellence in
agricultural research

3,308,130.75

5,000,000.00

1,691,869.25

2501

To éct as a channel of communication
between agricultural research
institutions and the Government

73,322.50

80,000.00

5,677.50

10 - (h)

2501

To arrange for and fund inter-
institutional agricultural research
PIQE cts

2,649,910.61

3,000,000.00

350,089.39

10- (i)

2501

To arrange for and fund special scientific
services for the entire agricultural
research sector

321,384.00

350,000.00

28,616.00

10- ()

2501

To promote linkage between agricultural

‘Jresearch institutions at national and

international level

1573,241.51

2,900,000.00

1,326,758.48

C/F

9,786,679.87

3,663,320.13 -

13,450,000.00




SLCARP Annual Report 2019

BJF 5,785,679.87 13,450,000.00 3,663,320.13
To organizé conferences and seminars *
on internatianal, national and inter- .
- ' Y ,000. 24,620.00
10-0) 2501 institytional issues relating to 225,380.00 250,000.00
agricultural research
To arrange for the post-graduate
10-() 2401 training of agricultural research staff and
for interchange of scientists with
recognized research institutions abroad:
To review the performance of
} |agricultural research projects, 72,497.00
10- {m) =0 Iinsmutions and divisions from time to 227,503.00 500,000.00 272,497:
ime A
- ’ 10,239,562.87 14,200,000.00 3,960437.13
Acquisition of . I -
capital Assets
(a)} Building,
Plant, Machinery 2103
- 4,841,431.25 15,400,000.00 10,558,568.75
2105
4,841,431.25 15,400,000.00 10,558,568.75
*
Rehabilitation & _
{improvements of 2001
Capital Assets
4 {Other Capital
diture
(a) Restructuring 2502 N .
(b} Seminar,
Workshop & 2502 232,215.00 400,000.00 167,785.00
Publication
232,215.00 400,000.00 167,785.00 |
Grand Total 15,313,209.12 30,000,000.00 14,686,790.88
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GENERAL
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PART I

16.1.1 B asis oi‘_Pregaration

a)

b)

d)

Statement of compliance - The financial statement of the council comprise
the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Financial Performance,
cash flow statement and notes to the financial statement.

The financial statement was authorized for issue by the Council on 27%
February 2020.

Reporting entity - The institute of Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural
Research Policy has been registered under the Parliament act.No.47 of 1987
on 27th of December 1987. The registered office of the council is situated
at No.114/09, Vidya Mawatha, Colombo 07, Sri Lanka.

Principle activities and nature of operations - SLCARP was established
in 1987, under the Act No.47 of 1987 to ensure that agricultural research is
directed towards national development through formulation of agricultural
research policy, research prioritization, planning, facilitation, co-ordination,
monitoring and evaluation of agricultural research.

A Description of the Nature of the Entity - Sri Lanka Council for
Agricultural Research Policy is an umbrella organization of the National
Agricultural Research System (NARS) that operates within several
Ministries. SLCARP came into existence on the 22nd December 1987 to
create an environment for more productive agricultural research.

SLCARP’s mission is to enhance and mobilize the scientific resources in Sri
Lanka efficiently to catalyze and agricultural research and technology
generation within NARS,

With the Secretariat in Colombo, SLCARP serves as an organization in an
advisory capacity for co-coordinating and consolidating efforts within Sri
Lanka NARS, funding research projects/programmers and promoting scientific
research linkages in prioritized areas both nationally and internationally. CARP
has been instrumental in promoting and facilitating research, by improving and
enhancmg agticultural research through documentation and communicating
latest advances in research to the NARS scientists. SLCARP has identified its
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own perspective, plans and programs for the future in keeping with the
aspirations and goals of the Ministry of Agriculture Development and Agranan
Services to meet the future challenges in enhancing domestic food production
and exports focused on poverty reduction.

f) Our Vision - A vibrant and sustainable agricultural research, developmem
and innovation system assuring socio- economic development of Sri Lanka.

g) Our Mission - To ensure agricultural research, development and
innovations are directed towards national development goals through policy
formulation, facilitation, coordination, monitoring and evaluation and
impact assessment. |

h) Our Mandated Functions - SLCARP

(1) To advice the Government on all matters regarding the organization, co-
ordination, planning and execution of agricultural research and such other
related matters as may be referred to it by the Minister;

() to formula:te national agricultural research policy and priorities;

(3) to define the overall aims and scope of agricultural research with a view
to furthering national development objectives;

(4) to make recommendations to the appropriate authorities on the financial,
manpower and physical resources required by agricultural research
institutions and establishments and on the terms and conditions of service
of the staff of such institutions and establishments;

(5) to review Institutional and departmental agricultural research programmes
and make recommendations with regard to their priorities and funding to
the Ministry of the Minister in charge of the subject of Finance and
Planning;

(6) to promote and facilitate excellence in agricultural reésearch;

(7) to act as a channel of communication between agricultural research
institutions and the Government;

(8) to arrange for and fund inter-institutional agricultural research projects;

13
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(9) to arrange for and fund special scientific services for the entire agricultural
research sector;

(10)to promote linkage between agricultural research institutions at national and
international level; '

(11)Organize conferences and seminars on mmaﬁond, national and inter-
Institutional issues relating to the agricultural research;

(12)to arrange for the post-graduate training of agricultural research staff and
for interchange of sclentlsts with recogmzed research institutions abroad;
and

(13)to review the performance of agncultural research pro;ects institutions and
divisions from time to time.

16.1.2. National Agricultural Research Plan (NARP)

National Agxiculturai.Research Plan_ (NARP) is one of the mandatory functions
conducted by Sri Lanka Council for Agiiculuual Research Policy under the
programme no 1 and 13 of the Action Plan .U.nder this programme SLCARP does
the recommendation of research project proposals for funding, monitoring of
ongoing projects and evaluating of the terminal reports. Main objective of this.
programme is to facilitate Agricultural research by providing funds, monitoring
ongoing projects and evaluating of terminal reports of these projects.

Annuéll_y, end of the year, SLCARP prepares NARP, the document containing all
the details of the research projects to be conducted in the following year. The
projects are implemented by the institutions of the National Agricultural Research
System (NARS) and agriculture related Faculties of the National Universities.
Currently NARP is operated in the Departmént of Agriculture, Department of
Export Agriculture, and agriculture related Faculties of National Universities.
These projects are designed in accordance with the priority areas identified by Sri
Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy for a particular period.

20
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16.1.3. Capacity Building Programme

SLCARP decided to revitalize Human Resources Development for the NARS as
there was a felt requirement for training officers to M.Sc. and PhD level. Thus,
SLCARP submitted a proposal to the Ministry of Agriculture for Capacity Building
of the Researchers of the NARS for which Cabinet Memorandum was issued on
21 September 2017 under the heading of Directing of Researchers of the NARS
for Foreign postgraduate degree training.

This programme provides provision for training to address the training requirement
of the National Agriculture Research System of this country, which needs much
strengthening to meet the challengers of the sector and to be in par with the
neighboring countries in the region.

Number of Candidates who have received admission under the Capacity Building
long term training Programme of SLCARP in year 2019 and on-going scholars of
the Capacity Development Programme. '

No of Scholars

University Putra Malaysia - Malaysia 28
University of Philippines Los Banos — Philippines 23
University of the Philippines Diliman — Philippines 01
Kasetsart University — Thailand | 02
Asian Institute of Technology (AIT) — Thailand 03
Haryana Agricultural University — India 01
Kerala Agricultural University — India 01
Professor Jayasankar Telangana State Agricultural'

University (PJTSAU) — India 01
Acharya N.G. Ranga Agricultural University — India 01
C S K Himachal Pradesh krishi Vishvavidyalaya — India 01

16.2.1 Accounting Policiés and Concepts;

Accounting policies consist of principles, bases, conventions, rules and procedures,
and also Accounting concepts are ideas and assumption which are fundamental to
accounting practices. Therefore some of our accounting concepts are as follows;

16.2.2 Basis of meﬁsurement

163

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cash basis. No
adjustment has been made for inflationary factors in the financial statement.

Functional and presentation of currency
The financial statement of the year end 2010 were presented in Sri Lankan rupees

(LKRs.) and nearest cents.
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However we have decided to present our Financial Stﬁterhent in LKRs. And round
to the nearest rupee which is effective from the financial year January 01% 2011
and ahead. Year 2017 was presented in LKRs. and rounded to the nearest rupee.

The stipend and University fees relating to Capacity Building program are paid in
USD () where that Expenses is converted to LKR at the spot rate of transaction
date and prepaid the stipend and University fees are taken in to financial
statements at the rate of Balance sheet rate. The difference arisen due to changes
on Exchange rate has been taken in to financial statements as exchange gain or
Loss.

16.4 Accounting for Govt. Grants disclose of Govt. Assistance

(@) Accounting for Government Grants & Disclosure_of Government Assistance is
adopted. '

(b) We '&rrher say, that_accounting policy had been adopted _with regard to the
government grants was the method of capital approach but that government grant
was related to the fixed assets it had been taken to the accounts under the method

of income approach.

(¢c) A Deferred Income Fund has been identified only in respect of the assets purchased
 during the year 2018 in the Financial Statements of 2018

16.4.1 Capital Grants [Treasui‘v Grants Research)

According to the Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy Act No.14 of
1987, all the Grants received need to be credited to CARP Fund and all the

expenses need to be done out of that. In that Sense Capital Grants (Treasury Grants
Research) need to be a considered as a supplementary Note to the CARP Fund and

the remaining balance need to be reflected in the CARP Fund each Year. Then only
Carp Fund will be remaining as an Equity Fund in Statement of Financial Position.

From 2010 to 2017 the funds that were used to purchase of fixed assets have not
been reflected in the Capital Grants (Treasury Grants Research). But a
depreciation_income had been transferred to the Statements_of Comprehensive
Income. Because of that cumulative adverse effect over last years a_negative
balance in CARP fund was visible in Capital Grants (Treasury Grants Research)
in2017 & 2018.
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Corrective Adjustments have been made in order to rectify above adverse effect
based on the issues emphasized by the Auditors General by his queries dated

31.12.2019 with the reference of AGL/E/CARP/2018/03.

In Summary areas that were recognized by the Auditor General is as follows.

1. TIreasury Grants Research _
In the years of 2017 & 2018 Treasury Grants Research has reflected negative

balances.

a) Council have made capital exggmes more than Fund received for the

activities in
b) Itwas doub;&l the marmer of e xge es that were incurred on fixed assets

without reflecting such expenses in Treasury Grants Research as that is in

capital nature. _
¢) The depreciation impact of Non- Consumables has also affected to the

negative balance in Treasury Grants Research.

2. The Amortization of the funds recg;ved on behalzf of Fixed Assets have not been

happened according to the requirements of LKAS 20, Accounting for Government
Grants & Disclosure of Government Assistance as the funds used for those fixed

assets purchases are not reflected in Treasury Grants Research,

3. According to the Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy Act No.14 of
1987, all the Grants received need to be credited to CARP Fund and all the

expenses need to be done out of that.

In order to rectify the above the initial entries that had been passed to Accumulated

Surplus or Deficit (Prior Year Adjustments), Carp Fund & Gift were reversed in _

respective Years and placed the correct entries according 1o LKAS 20, Accounnng

for Government Grants & Disclosure of Government Assistance the Correction
entries, Calculation and the explanatory notes are attached as Anmexures.

16.4.2 Research Management Acﬁvities

Generally, the Capital Fund are utilizing to Research Management Activities where the
requirements of LKAS 38 for Intangible assets are not comply with. Hence the Research

management activities are in a nature where that could not be capitalize. Due to that

reason both the expense and amount of Fund are shown in the Comprehensive Income
Statement in order to reflect the effect.
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17. 1. VALUATION OF ASSETS

1.1 Property Plant & Equipment

Property plant & equipment are on the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and is provided on the straight line method at the following rates per

annum.
a) Building - 05%
b) Computer & printers 30%
c) Computer Software 30%
d) Office Equipment 15%
e) Office Furniture 15%
f) Vehicles 25%
g) Road 05%
h) Library Book 05%
1) Electronic Data 30%
Revaluation of Assets

Request has been made to the secretary Ministry of Agriculture for revaluation of assets.
Adjustment will make for 2019 after receiving of the revaluation report. A revaluation
committee has been appointed by now where as the council approval is pending.

1.2 Disposal Value |
Value of disposal items has been decided by the council approved valuation committee.

1.3 Trade & Other Receivables

Trade & Other Receivables incurred Staff Debtors, Unsettled Research Imprest, Deposits,
Prepayment, Income receivable & Project receivables.

1.4 Composition of EPF & ETF rates;

Employer Employee Total
EPF 15% 10% 25%

ETF 03% - 03%

24



1.5 Unsettled Research imprest

The research imprest has been given to various research Institutes/ Upivei‘sities in Sri
Lanka. However, some of the research institutes/ Universities do not settle this research
imprest at the year-end such amount stated as an unsettled research imprest.

1.6 Stocks

Stocks are shown in the financial statement at lower of market value or purchase price.
The stock is valued using FIFO method. The Non Consumables are classified as stock item
based on the nature of that category which was previously presented in Property plant and
equipment. The Depreciation provided so far is reversed back to Prior Year Adjustments.

1.7 Gratuities

A provision has been made according to regulations 5 of Gratuity Act. No.12 of 1983 in
respect of employees eligible under the Act.

1.8 Receivable Deposits

Values of refundable and receivable of deposits are namely as follows;

A. W. Ranasinghe (Filling Station - Kollupitiya)
Postgraduate Institute of Management - Library
Sri Lanka Telecom - IDD

1.9 Other Matters

2.0 Ownership of the Building SLCARP
Request has been made to the Secretary ministry of Agriculture to clear the ownership of

the land and Building which is used by the SLCARP.

2.1 Pending Litigation of Mr. W.M.D. B. Abyerathne
The Council noted the present status after the disciplinary inquiry - Mr. W.M.D. B.
Abyerathne, Former Accountant, SLCARP. In addition, the council approval was also
granfed to handover the case against Mr. W.M.D. B. Abyerathne to Attorney General to
cover Rs. 587, 418 the amount which is to be recovered from him.

=3
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Our Corporate Information

As at 31* of December 2019
Name of the State Owned Enterprise
Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy
Ministry
Ministry of Mahaweli, Agriculture, Irrigation and Rural Development
Seecretary to the Ministry
Mr. Neel Bandara Hapuhinne

Classification of General Treasury (PED /COP/POLLCircular-17.06.2015)

Budgetary Funded — Research and Development Agencies/ Entities established under an Act. of Parliament
to perform research and development activities for the benefit of the National Economy or in the wider
interest of the public are deemed as Research and Development Agencies.

Supervision and Monitoring Role Managed by
Department of Public Enterprises (PED)

Carder Supervision & Corporate Plan Managed by
National Salaries and Carder Commission / Department of Management Services (MSD)

and
Department of Public Enterprises (PED)

Annuai Budget and Action Plan Managed by
Department of National Budget

Governed by
The Council of Sri Lanka Council for Agricuitural Research Policy

Head of the Council

Secretary / Director

Legal Form
Incorporated Under the Parliament Act.

Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy Act, No. 47 of 1987

i
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Registered Office
No.114/ 09, Vidya Mawath , Colombo -07
Sri Lanka

Telephone Numbers
0094 — 11 - 2697103, 2697648, 2698001,2685688, 2665076, 2665077

Fax Number

0094 - 11 - 2982951

E-mail - slcarp.agri@gmail.com

Our Website - www.slcarp.lk

Auditors to the SI. CARP

Auditor General

Secretary to the Council / Head of the Department
Secretary / Director
Bankers

Bank of Ceylon ~Supper Grade Branch, Independence Square, Colombom07, Sri lanka.
¢ Current A/C No. 2323310
¢ Swift Code BCEYLKLX ,Bank Code 7010 ,Branch Code 453
¢ Telephone Number 0094 - 11-2692506

Lawyers to the SL CARP

Attorney General, AG’s Department, Colombo 01, Sri Lanka.
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Summary of the Recommendations

made at the Audit and Management Committee Meetings Conducted in year 2020

Composition of the Audit & Management Committee in Year 2019,

Audit & Management Committee:
1 Dr. Kapila Senanayake, Ministry of Finance & Planning ~ Chairman
2 Prof. Gamini Seananayake, Faculty of Agriculture, University of Ruhuna — Member
3 Dr. H. M. P Kithsiri, National Aquatic Resources Research and Development Agency — Member

By Invitation:
1 Mrs. Udeni Perera, Audit Superintendent, Agriculture & Agrarian Board
2 Mr. U S L Kumara, Internal Auditor, Ministry of Mahaweli,Agriculture, Irrigation and Rural Development

Numbers of Meetings Convened with Duties:
57" Audit & Management Committee Meeting — 10" April, 2019
58" Audit & Management Committee Meeting — 16 August, 2019
59" Audit & Management Committee Meeting — 14" October, 2019

All Recommendation of the Audit & Management Committee Meetings held have been submitted
to the Council of SLCARP.

Recommendations made at the Audit & Management Committee Meetings:

Papers submitted at the 57th AMC Meeting Submission Requirements Action by
Information Recommendation

Confirmation of the Minutes of the 56™  [Submitted for

. ) ) ) - Secretary
Audit & Management Committee meeting |Information
Budget revision 2019 Submitted for_ Secretary
- recommendation
P f the 1% Quarter of 2019 submitted for - Secreta
rogress of the 1™ Quarter o Information © M
. Submitted fi
Unutilized tyres Homitted for - Secretary

Information




Papers submitted at the 58th AMC Meeting Submission Requirements Action by
Information | Recommendation
Confirmation of the Minutes of the 57"  |Submitted for
) ) . - Secretary
Audit & Management Committee meeting [Information
‘Revision of Recurrent Budget 2019 Submitted for
- Secretary
recommendation
Progress of the 2™ Quarter of 2019 Submitted for ) Secretary
Information
. . Submitted for
Unutilized tyres Information - Secretary
Annual Asset Verification Submitted for
. - Secretary
Information
Internal Audit Division Submitted for
. - Secretary
information
PAYE Dr. Wijewardena, Former Secretary  [Submitted for
) - Secretary
Information
Transfer of remaining Balance of Bank A/C,|Submitted for Secreta
BOC, A/C No. 1632497 to Treasury information i
Auditior General’s Report 2018 Submitted for
i - Secretary
Information
Investigation — Research Grant Negative|Submitted for '
- Secretary
Balance Information o
Half year Financial Statements 2019 Submitted for '
- . * |Secretary
recommendation
Revision of Capital Budget 2019 Submitted for
- Secretary
recommendation
Papers submitted at the 59th AMC Meeting Submission Requirements Action by
Information Recommendation
Confirmation of the Minutes of the 58™|Submitted for
. . . - Secretary
Audit & Management Committee Meeting |Information
Matters Arising from Minutes Submitted for S
- ecretary
information
Handing over duties of resigned|Submitted for
. - Secretary
Accountant _ Information
Recovery of Overpaid medical leave Submitted for
. - Secretary
encashment calculation 2018 recommendation -
Revision of Recurrent Budget 2019 Submitted for
- . Secretary
recommendation
Revision of Capital Budget 2019 Submitted for
- . Secretary
recommendation
Proposed revision of Capital Budget - _ Submitted for Secretary
2020 _ recommendation
rd Submitted f
- Progress of the 3™ quarter of 2019 ubmitted for i Secretary
Information

Convener

yoyna
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National Audit Office
AGL/E/CARP/01/19/03 13 August 2020

Chairman

Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy

The Auditor General’s Report as per 12" sentence of the National Audit Act bearing
number 19 of 2018 on Financial Statements of the Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural

Research Policy for the year ending by 31 December 2019

The above Report is being sent herewith.

W P C Wickramaratne

Auditor General

Copies:

Secretary — Ministry of Agriculture, Rural Economic Affairs, Livestock Development,
Irrigation and Fisheries and Aquatic Resources Development

Secretary — Ministry of Finance



National Audit Office

AGL/E/CARP/01/19/03 13 August 2020

Chairman

Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy

The Auditor General’s Report as per 12" sentence of the National Audit Act bearing

number 19 of 2018 on Financial Statements of the Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural

Research Policy for the year ending by 31 December 2019

1.
1.1

Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

Balance Sheet of the Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy by date of 31
December 2019 and the Comprehensive Income Statement for the year ending by that
date, Equity Changing Statements and Cash Flow Statement for the year ending by that
date and Notes relevant to Financial Statements, Financial Statements with summarized
important accounting principles for the year ending by 31 December 2019 had been
audited under my execution in accordance with the regulations of the National Audit Act
No. 19 0f 2018 and the Financial Act No. 38 of 1971 which should be read in conjunction
with 154 (1) article of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri
Lanka. In accordance with the regulations of the 154 (6) article of the Constitution, my

Report will be tabled in the Parliament in due course.

Except the impact of the issues detailed in the part of the Basis for the Qualified Opinion
of my Report, I am of the opinion that the financial status of the Sri Lanka Council for
Agricultural Research Policy as at 31 December 2019 and its financial activities and
cash flows for the year ending by that date are expressing true and reliable status

according to the accounting standards of the public sector of Sri Lanka.



1.2 Basis for the Qualified Opinion

(a) Though the 04 motor cars of which the cost was Rupees 26,321,295 and which were
completely depreciated at the end of the reviewed year were still in use, action had not
been taken to show reliable value of those vehicles in Financial Statements, after
revaluation of vehicles considering the effective life span of those according to Sri Lanka

Public Sector Accounting Standards No. 3.

(b) For adding of a new part to the building in which the Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural
Research Policy is located, the advance money of Rupees 2,460,000 paid to the Building
Department in the reviewed year, had been shown under Non-current Assets as

incomplete work instead of showing under Current Assets in the Balance Sheet.

(c) Asthetotal sum of Rupees 473,770 which consisted the course fees paid by the Institution
for the officers who were overseas for study activities and the Bank charges and
commission money charged by the Bank had not been matched to the expenditure of the
reviewed year, the balance of the reviewed year had excessively been shown by that

amount.

I have conducted the Audit in accordance with the Sri Lanka Audit Standards. My
responsibilities under these Audit Standards are further detailed in this Report, in the Part of
Auditor’s responsibility in connection with the auditing of Financial Statements. It is my belief
that the audit evidences obtained by me are sufficient and appropriate for the providing of a

basis for my qualified opinion.

1.3 Responsibility of the Management and the Governing Parties on Financial

Statements

Preparation of these Financial Statements according to Accounting Standards of the Sri
Lanka Public Sector, submission in reliable form and deciding of required internal
controls which create possibilities to prepare Financial Statements without significant
incorrect statements which would derive due to frauds and errors, are the responsibilities

of the Management.



1.4

In preparation of the Financial Statements, it is responsibility of the Management to decide
the possibility of the continued functioning of the Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural
Research Policy. Except if the Management considers to liquidate the Council or to cease
functioning when there is no other option, it is the responsibility of the Management to
maintain accounts and to disclose issues related to the continued functioning of the

Council being on the basis of continued functioning.

The responsibility on the financial reporting activity is taken by the Governing Parties.

Books/ ledgers and reports of the Institution on incomes, expenditure, assets and liabilities
should be maintained properly so that it would be possible to prepare the annual and
periodical Financial Statements in accordance with the 16 (1) sub sentence of the National

Audit Act No. 19 of 2018.

Auditor’s responsibility on auditing of Financial Statements

Providing a reliable confirmation that as a whole, Financial Statements do not contain
significant incorrect statements occurring due to frauds and errors and issuing of Auditor’s
Report inclusive of my opinion are my objectives. Even though the reliable confirmation
is a confirmation of high level, when the auditing is conducted according to Sri Lanka
Audit Standards, it would not always a confirmation that would reveal the significant mis-
statements. Significant mis-statements may occur due to frauds and errors which would
affect alone or together and it is expected that these would be an impact on the economic

decisions taken by referees based on these Financial Statements.

Auditing has been conducted by me in accordance with the Sri Lanka Audit Standards

with judgment and suspicion based on my professional capacity. Also,

e When identifying and assessing risks of significantly incorrect statements which may
occur in Financial Statements due to frauds or errors, by planning of appropriate
auditing procedures suitable to situation to overcome the risks which may occur due
to frauds and errors, obtaining of sufficient and proper audit evidences makes the basis

of my opinion. The impact which occurs by a fraud is stronger than an impact which



takes place from significant incorrect statements. Collusion, preparation of false

documents, intentional ignoring or ignoring of internal governances cause frauds.

e For the purpose of formulation of auditing procedures suitable to situation, an
understanding on internal governance of the Council had been obtained, but there is

no intention to express an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal governance.

e Reliability of the accounting principles and the accounting estimates which have been
used and the appropriateness of the disclosures made by the Management in

connection were evaluated.

e In connection with the fact that on the grounds of incidents and conditions whether
there is a significant uncertainty on the continued functioning of the Council, based
on the obtained audit evidences, the relevance of the adopting of the basis on the
continued functioning of the Institution had been decided for accounting. If I conclude
that there is a significant uncertainty, emphasis of my Audit Report should be given
to the relevant disclosures in the Financial Statements. If those disclosures are not
sufficient, my opinion should be modified. However, continued functioning may cease

on future incidents or conditions.

e The submission, structure and the content of the Financial Statements in which the
disclosures are included were evaluated and the fact that the transactions and incidents
which made basis for those are included in Financial Statements appropriately and in

reliable form had been evaluated.

Governing Parties were made aware of the important audit findings, main internal governing

weaknesses and other issues which were identified in my audit.

2. Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Special provisions connected to the requirements stated below are included in the National

Audit Act No. 19 of 2018.



In accordance with the requirements stated in the 12 (LJ) sentence of the National Audit
Act No. 19 of 2018, except the impact occurring by the issues detailed in the Part on
Basis for the Opinion of my Report, all information and explanations needed for the
audit have been obtained by me and, as shown by my investigation, Council has

maintained the appropriate Financial Reports.

According to the requirement stated in the 6 (1) (1) (iii) sentence of the National Audit
Act No. 19 of 2018, Financial Statements of the Council which have been submitted

tally with those of the previous year.

According to the requirement stated in the 6 (1) (1) (iv) sentence of the National Audit
Act No. 19 of 2018, the recommendations made by me in the previous year have been

included in the Financial Statements which have been submitted.

On procedures followed and evidences obtained and in limitations to the significant issues, my

attention had not been taken by anything which leads to the making of below mentioned

statements.

According to the requirement stated in the 12 ([]) sentence of the National Audit Act
No. 19 of 2018, certain member of the Governing Board of the Council, with the
involvement of the Council, there had been an involvement exclusive of general

business condition, directly or in other way, pertaining to certain contract.

According to the requirement stated in the 12 (I]) sentence of the National Audit Act
No. 19 0f 2018, has acted not adhering to a certain written rule or some other common

or specific orders issued by the Governing Board of the Council.

According to the requirement stated in the 12 ([1) sentence of the National Audit Act
No. 19 of 2018, has acted not adhering to the powers, functions or activities of the

Council

According to the requirement stated in the 12 ([1) sentence of the National Audit Act
No. 19 of 2018, resources of the Council had not been procured and utilized
economically, efficiently and effectively in accordance with the rules and regulations

in the relevant time periods.



3.

Other Audit Observations

(@)

(c)

Despite the identification of the importance of the emphasis to be given to the
Organic Agriculture by the Council, and introducing to research institutions of Sri
Lanka 07 priority areas in which the research should be increased, the research on
organic agricultural policy, quality status of the organic foods available in the

present market had not been conducted from year 2017 onwards.

Though the information on number of research conducted in agricultural research
institutions, financial allocations provided for research, information on researcher,
scientist and other staff and physical resources belong to the institution had been
collected up to the reviewed year, updating of the database system (Information for
Agricultural Research Managers) after year 2106 and issuing of the publications
which contain these information and which should be issued annually, had not been

done after year 2010.

According to the Contractual Agreement between Bangladesh Agricultural
Research Council, Malaysian Agricultural Research Council and the Sri Lanka
Council for Agricultural Research Policy initiated in years 2011 and 2016,
arrangement of overseas short-term training for 10 officers under the exchange of
consultants and scientists in the field of agriculture had been included in the Action
Plan of 2019. But the Council had not taken action to identify such training

opportunities and to direct officers to the same.

Though it has been mentioned that the researchers who undergo training under the
overseas post graduate degree programme should select their research themes,
giving emphasis to the problems and constraints to which agriculture sector of Sri
Lanka is facing now or is likely to face in future, number of officers who had
selected fields of agricultural mechanization and organic agriculture which have
been identified as fields to be improved for the benefit of the agriculture sector of
Sri Lanka was at a very low level. However, the Institution has not implemented

planned procedures to improve this condition.



(e) Though it had been planned to provide funds for 06 projects consisting 02 projects
selected from the research proposals called from research institutions in year 2019
and 04 projects carried forward from past years, funds had been allocated in the
year reviewed for 03 projects at Tea Research Institute which had been commenced
in years 2017 and 2018 and not yet been completed and also for 01 project of the
Department of Agriculture. Officers of the Council had not taken action to
physically examine the performance of each of these projects and also new

proposals pertaining to the reviewed year had not been identified.

(f) Due to the reason of not taking action on recruitment of research officers of existing
research institutions, the number of research conducted in four fields — Floriculture,
Forestry, Agricultural Mechanization, Natural Resources Management has been

reduced by 378 in year 2019 relative to the year 2017.

(g) From the funds granted to four research institutions and two universities for
research activities, a sum of Rupees 659,131 which should be settled to the Council
had not yet been recovered and is carried forward in accounts from year 2006

onwards.

(h) A sum of Rupees 192,890 which had been deposited by several private institutions
on providing of services during the period from 2016 to 2018, had not been released

and is carried forward in accounts.

(i) As action has not been taken also in the year reviewed for the recruitment for the
vacancies in 36 approved cadre positions which exist for several years, main 05
positions of the Institution, i.e. the positions of Senior Scientist, Senior Research

Officer, Accountant, Administrative Officer and Librarian remained vacant.

W P C Wickramaratne

Auditor General



Replies for the Auditor General’s Report as per 12" sentence of the National
Audit Act bearing number 19 of 2018 on Financial Statements of the Sri
Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy for the year ending by 31
December 2019

1.  Financial Statements
1.1 Qualified Opinion
1.2 Basis for the Qualified Opinion

(@) A request to the Mechanical Engineer of the Ministry of Agriculture had been made by
the letter SLCARP/AD/V.General.Vol 2 dated on 12.08.2020 on revaluation of the cost
of 04 motor cars belong to the Council, considering the effective life span of those. This
activity would be completed in a few weeks.

(b) Agreed. Noted for correction.

(c) Agreed. Noted for correction.

1.3 Responsibility of the Management and the Governing Parties on

Financial Statements

1.4 Auditor’s responsibility on auditing of Financial Statements

2. Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

3. Other Audit Observations

(@)- ()

The recommendations given in Audit Observation from (a) up to (f) are
expected to be implemented in consultation with the Council.



(g) Effort had been taken to correct this and steps will be taken to correct it
and match to the Financial Statements.

(h) In general, these deposit monies are released after requests made by the
relevant institution. As these institutions have not requested money yet, the
balances are continuously indicated as deposits to be paid. But action will
be taken in future to clear these monies.

(i) Council has forwarded a letter baring number SLCARP/AD/Vac/2020
dated 12.08.2020 to the secretary of the Line Ministry requesting advice
on the action to be taken on recruitments to cadre positions to which
approval of the Management Services Department had been given at
present.

The above information provided by the Officers-In-Charge of subjects is being
submitted for your kind attention.

Prof Gamini Senanayake

Chairman

As mentioned above, computer type-setting of the information provided by the
Officers-In-Charge of subjects had been done by me and submitted herewith.

Dineka Samarajeewa

Management Assistant



SLCARP Annual Report 2019

Annual Report 2019 — Summary Report

Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy

Performance of the Institution

SLCARP organized National Awards for the excellence in Agricultural Research to
recognize the outstanding achievement in agricultural research on 28" October 2019.
Awards were given to the 10 excellence research teams who were from Plantation, Non-

Plantation and Fisheries sectors.

The international Workshop on Underutilized Fish and Marine Genetic Resources and their
Amelioration was organized in collaboration with Asia — Pacific Association of
Agricultural Research Institutions (APAARI) 10- 12 July, 2019 at National Aquatic
Resource Agency (NARA)..

Under the Human Resources Development program, further selections were made and 23
candidates were selected to be sent in year 2019, for training in Thailand, Malaysia, and
Philippines Universities for 2019.

Two Research Institutes were reviewed in 2019 by panels of external reviewers appointed
by SLCARP. They were Coconut Research Institute (CRI) & National Plant Quarantine
Service (NPQS) of the Department of Agriculture (DOA). Review committee reports were
submitted to the Council and to the respective institutes.

The action taken to rectify the deficiencies indicated in audit queries and audit reports

Action has been taken to recalculate the value of 04 vehicles owned by the council
considering the effective lifespan.
A letter has been sent to the Secretary to the Ministry of Agriculture requesting necessary

instructions for the recruitment process

Refundable deposits are released upon request by the deposited institutions.

The midterm actions proposed to be taken

All Staff have been instructed to follow manifesto of the government to improve the
Council’s performance.

Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural Research Policy
1
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